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The cover photograph of Pemaquid Falls by Tom Field is courtesy of the 
Damariscotta River Association. The Falls are where the freshwater Pemaquid 
River meets saltwater. The lower, saltwater river forms the head of Pemaquid 
Harbor. Pemaquid Falls has been the site of Native American settlement for 5,000 
years, and of European activity since Colonial Pemaquid was settled in the 1620s.

The historic Pemaquid Mill, astride the falls in the center of the folded-out 
cover, was purchased by the Damariscotta River Association in December 2018, 
following the closure of Hammond Lumber’s lumber yard and hardware store. 
A water mill has been on this site for nearly 400 years. The mill building houses 
intact sawmill equipment including a water turbine dating from the first half of the 
nineteenth century. The Old Bristol Historical Society plans to restore and develop 
this into a museum under a 99-year, one dollar lease from the D.R.A. 

Carl Poole, Jr., who operated Poole Brothers Lumber at the Mill for many years 
until its sale to Lavalley Lumber in 2005, passed away at the age of 74 on February 
10, 2019.

Just below the Pemaquid Mill property is the Pemaquid Falls Town Landing, 
one of the Town’s five public landings. The access road shown in the right center of 
the photograph will be re-graveled in 2019.

The productive shellfish beds in the upper harbor have long been closed to 
harvesting due to high levels of organic pollution. Most of the point sources of 
pollution – overboard discharges and non-functioning septic systems – have 
been repaired or replaced over the past three decades by the Maine Department 
of Marine Resources. Now the Shellfish Committee and the Pemaquid 
Watershed Association are working under a grant from the Maine Department 
of Environmental Protection to identify and control non-point sources – wild 
animals such as beavers, and agricultural runoff – mitigation of which may finally 
allow the Harbor to be opened for clam harvesting.
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Dedication
Bristol Veterans’ Memorial

The 2018 annual Town Report is dedicated to the men and women of Bristol who 
have served their country as members of the Armed Forces. A Committee established 
in 2018 is working to create a permanent Memorial to those Veterans. A board listing 
the Veterans of World War II was erected in the 1960s, but has not stood the test 
of time. Now a permanent memorial is being planned for Ellingwood Park, and 
fundraising is under way by a volunteer committee co-chaired by Parks Commissioner 
Sandra Lane and Andrea Cox. Other members are Russell Lane, Lara Sargent and 
Joyce Thompson.

Bristol already has a Memorial to its Civil War Veterans, in the form of the Liberty 
Pole outside the Town Office in Bristol Mills. This will be re-assembled in 2019 
following the donation of a new pine mast by Jay Crooker, whose great-great-
grandfather donated the original mast in 1865.
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Municipal Directory
Selectmen, Assessors & Overseers of the Poor
Chad M. Hanna - Chairperson........................................................ Term expires 2020
Harry M. Lowd, III............................................................................ Term expires 2019
Paul M. Yates...................................................................................... Term expires 2021

School Committee
David Kolodin, Chairperson............................................................ Term expires 2021
Darin Carlucci................................................................................... Term expires 2020
Cerina Leeman................................................................................... Term expires 2021
Sarah Cook Mathieson..................................................................... Term expires 2019
Bonnie Sablinsky............................................................................... Term expires 2019

Parks & Recreation Commission
Clyde Pendleton, Jr. - Chairperson................................................. Term expires 2019
Sandra Lane........................................................................................ Term expires 2021
Laurie Mahan..................................................................................... Term expires 2020

Town Administrator, Treasurer and Tax Collector.................................Christopher Hall

Town Clerk and Registrar of Voters...........................................................Rachel Bizarro
Assessing Clerk...................................................................................... Jessica Westhaver
Deputy Treasurer......................................................................................Lindsay Currier
Code Enforcement Officer, Plumbing Inspector and 
  911 Addressing Officer.............................................................................. Joseph Rose
Moderator....................................................................Donald Means / Robert Cushing

Election Clerks
James Albright, Roberta Albright, Barbara Allen, Phil Averill, Jan Bacon, Patricia 
Benner, William Benner, Susan Borg, Sandra Cheney, Julie Crider, Betty Ann 
Frederic, Ken Frederic, Hope Gould, Sandra Guibord, Rose Anne Holladay, 
Bonnie Sablinsky, Linda Shaffer, Deborah Skoglund, Alden Sproul, Laura Stubbs, 
Eveline Tierney, Jessica Westhaver, Susan Westhaver

Budget Committee
J. W. Oliver, Chairperson..................................................................Term expires 2019
Sandra Brackett.................................................................................. Term expires 2021
Robert Davidson................................................................................ Term expires 2020
Paul DiMauro..................................................................................... Term expires 2021
Richard Francis.................................................................................. Term expires 2020
Kenneth Frederic............................................................................... Term expires 2019
Charles Hanson................................................................................. Term expires 2019
Paul Leeman III................................................................................. Term expires 2021
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Sara MacCorkle................................................................................. Term expires 2020
Karl McLetchie................................................................................... Term expires 2021
Kristine Poland.................................................................................. Term expires 2020
Rosa Redonnett..................................................................................Term expires 2019

Fire Chief, Fire Warden &
  Director of Civil Emergency Preparedness......................................... Paul Leeman Jr.

EMS Service Chief.............................................................................. Jeraldine Pendleton

CLC Ambulance Service Representative....................................................Donald Means
Alternate: Joseph Rice

Health Officer............................................................................................. Nathan Powell

Animal Control Officer...................................................Lincoln County Sheriff ’s Office

Planning Board
Andrea Cox, Chairperson................................................................ Term expires 2019
Benjamin Pendleton, Vice Chairperson......................................... Term expires 2020
Jeff Eilenberg...................................................................................... Term expires 2021
Robert Cushing.................................................................................. Term expires 2019
Patricia Jennings................................................................................ Term expires 2020
Jason Lord, alternate......................................................................... Term expires 2019
Andrew Poland, alternate................................................................. Term expires 2019

Harbor Masters	 Harbor Committee
Robert Ball 	 John Stolecki, Chairperson
Round Pond, Moxie Cove and Muscongus Harbor	 David Caron, Vice Chairperson
Steven Hope 	 Robert Ball
New Harbor, Long Cove, Browns Cove, and Back Cove	 Troy Benner
John Stolecki 	 Steven Hope
Pemaquid Harbor and Damariscotta River	 Richard Poland Jr.
	 Jack Tedrow

Fish Committee
Joseph Crooker, Karl McLetchie, Slade Moore

Shellfish Conservation Committee
Steven Lackovic, Chairperson......................................................... Term expires 2019
Scott Burke......................................................................................... Term expires 2020
David Cheney.................................................................................... Term expires 2020
Ronald Poland.................................................................................... Term expires 2020
Steven Termine.................................................................................. Term expires 2021
Corey Poland, Alternate................................................................... Term expires 2019

Shellfish Warden...........................................................Lincoln County Sheriff ’s Office
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Legislative Directory
United States Senator Susan Collins	 www.collins.senate.gov
68 Sewall Street, Room 507 	 413 Dirksen Senate Building
Augusta, ME 04330 	 Washington, DC 20510
(207) 622-8414 	 (202) 224-2523

United States Senator Angus King	 www.king.senate.gov
4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 3 	 133 Hart Building
Augusta, ME 04330 	 Washington, DC 20510
(207) 622-8292 	 (202) 224-5344

United States Congresswoman Chellie Pingree, 
  First District	 www.pingree.house.gov
2 Portland Fish Pier, Suite 304 	 2162 Rayburn House Office Building
Portland, ME 04101 	 Washington, DC 20515
(207) 774-5019 	 (202) 225-6116

State Senator Dana Dow, District 13	 dana.dow@legislature.maine.gov
30 Kalers Pond Road	 3 State House Station
Waldoboro, ME 04572 	 Augusta, ME 04333-0003
Home:  (207) 832-4658 	 (207) 287-1540
Cell:  (207) 446-3262	 (800) 423-6900

State Representative Michael G. Devin, 
  District 90	 michael.devin@legislature.maine.gov
1 Hillcrest Road 	 2 State House Station
Newcastle, ME 04553 	 Augusta, ME 04333-0002
Work:  (207) 563-8350	 (207) 287-1400
Cell:  (207) 563-3132	 (800) 423-2900

Lincoln County Commissioners	 www.lincolncountymaine.me
District 1: Hamilton Meserve	 32 High Street, P.O. Box 249
District 2: William B. Blodgett (chair)	 Wiscasset, Maine  04578
District 3: Mary Trescot	 (207) 882-6311
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Bristol Consolidated School 
Directory

Bristol Consolidated School	 AOS 93 Superintendent of Schools 
2153 Bristol Road	 767 Main Street, 1A
Pemaquid, ME 04558	 Damariscotta, ME 04543
207-677-2678	 207-563-3044
Central Office Staff
Craig Jurgensen....................................................................Superintendent of Schools
Rick Kusturin...................................................................................... Business Manager
Sue Fossett...........................................................................Director of Special Services
Sherry Forstrom..........................................Special Services Administrative Assistant
Angelique Ouellette..................................................................Psychological Examiner
Laurie Rule..............................................................................Curriculum Coordinator
Candice Abruzese.................................................................Human Resources/Payroll
Linda Skiff........................................ Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent
June Gallant................................................................................ Food Services Director
Myra Lane................................................................................................... Finance Clerk
School Committee
David Kolodin, Chairperson...........2021
Darin Carlucci..................................2020	 Cerina Leeman................................. 2021
Sarah Cook Mathieson....................2019	 Bonnie Sablinsky.............................. 2019

Bristol School Staff
Office
Jennifer Ribeiro...................................................................................................Principal
Sue Shiminski...........................................................................Administrative Assistant
Lauri Pulsifer............................................................................................... School Nurse
Classroom Teachers
Alison Sawyer........................................................................................................... Pre-K
Andrea Powell............................................................................................. Kindergarten
Christina Bradbury..............................................................................................Grade 1
Ashley Pendleton..................................................................................................Grade 2
Amber Waltz.........................................................................................................Grade 3
Wendy Arzate........................................................................................................Grade 4
Hilary Gallione...................................... Grades 5-6 ELA*, Grades 5-6 Social Studies
Becky Cooper......................................... Grades 7-8 ELA*, Grades 7-8 Social Studies
Kevin Crafts...................................................................................... Grades 5-8 Science
Kandi Kinney..................................Grade 7 ELA* and Social Studies; Grade 5 Math
Marliee Harris........................................................................................................... Math
Donovan York....................................................................................... Grades 6-8 Math
*ELA - English Language Arts
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Special Education
Kathy Hogan.................................................................. Grades K-8 Special Education
Rachel Deblois.......................................................................... Educational Technician
Erica Powell............................................................................... Educational Technician
Tammy Holmes......................................................................... Educational Technician
Jennifer Eckel............................................................................ Educational Technician
Ken Jackman............................................................................. Educational Technician
Specialists
Gretchen Brinkler.......................................................................... Guidance Counselor
TBD................................................................................................................Psychologist
Bethany Hancock..................................................................... Occupational Therapist
Risa Small..............................................................................................Speech Therapist
Mary Wilkins......................................................................................Physical Therapist
Kristen Travers-Whitmore.......................................................................Social Worker
Compass Program
Michaela Lothrop.................................................................................................Teacher
Lydia Crafts................................................................................................Social Worker
Matthew Eugley........................................................................ Educational Technician
Alison Fortin............................................................................. Educational Technician
Wendy Pendleton..................................................................... Educational Technician
Morgan Perry............................................................................ Educational Technician
Rebekah Oliver......................................................................... Educational Technician
Unified Arts
Andrea Cough..............................................................................................................Art
John Cough.....................................Technology Instructor/Technology Coordinator
Tammy Holmes......................................................................................................Library 
Chris Perry......................................................... Physical Education/Athletic Director
James Boyd.......................................... Music - Classroom, Chorus and Instrumental
Educational Technicians
Joan Hatch................................................................................. Educational Technician
Merrillee Cheney........................................................Educational Technician – Pre-K
Katie Thomas.....................................................................................................Title One
Ann Baldwin.........................................................Educational Technician – Title One
Christy Toman.......................................................................... Educational Technician
Maintenance Staff
Bob Onorato........................................................................................... Head Custodian
Ralph Bryant.....................................................................................................Custodian
Dick Forstrom...................................................................................................Custodian
Nicole St. Cyr....................................................................................................Custodian
Food Service
Kristine Dyer....................................................................................................... Manager
Nancy Corson..............................................................................................Food Service
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Selectmen’s Report
Chairman Chad Hanna, Harry Lowd III, Paul Yates

The Town of Bristol remains in strong financial condition, confirmed by our 
annual audit. We have continued to maintain a healthy budget surplus which 
should allow the Town to operate throughout the calendar year without the need 
for tax anticipation borrowing. Collections on property taxes remain excellent. 
Our thanks go out to all our taxpayers for their diligence in paying their property 
taxes.

In 2018 the Town paid off another long-term debt note, after paying off two 
in 2017. This leaves just one fire truck note, maturing in 2023, on which we are 
paying $23,975 a year. We need to preserve our ability to borrow for future major 
expenditures such as bridge replacement and fire trucks.

The Town’s valuation by the State surpassed a billion dollars at $1,031,550,000 
for 2019, the highest valuation in Lincoln County. When we receive the county 
tax assessment, we expect Bristol’s share to be around $1,375,000 – the second-
largest claim on Town revenue after the School budget. This primarily funds law 
enforcement: the Lincoln County Sheriff ’s Office, the District Attorney’s office, 
the courts, and the Two Bridges Regional Jail. 

Bristol Consolidated School continues to grow the number of students enrolled, 
a welcome trend after decades of decline. The downside is, of course, increased 
costs. In 2019-20 the Town will have to fund a significant increase in high school 
tuition to Lincoln Academy, with at least 12 more students attending; and a major 
increase in the Special Education budget. But these are good problems to have. 
Bristol is an attractive place to raise a family, and the school is a key factor in 
attracting younger people to the community.

In 2018 road paving was undertaken on the Foster Road, Upper Round Pond 
Road, Fish Point, Beach Loop and Old Fort Road. As always, we thank the 
residents for their patience while these projects were completed. We also repaired 
the Varney Bridge on Redonnett Mill Road, a necessary step before replacing the 
fish ladder at the Bristol Mills Dam. This spring we will be seeking bids to replace 
the deteriorating bridge where the Upper Round Pond Road crosses the Pemaquid 
River, the largest project in this year’s roads budget request. Bristol’s town roads 
are in generally good shape. It would be nice to say the same for the state highways 
in Town. We hope that the Department of Transportation will carry out significant 
repaving on Route 130 in 2019.

The Town installed two solar electricity generating arrays in 2018, on the roof of 
the school and at the Transfer Station. These are now generating an average of 75% 
of the electricity consumed at the school, town offices, parks and fire stations, at a 
savings to the Town over the Standard Offer electricity price.

The 2018 edition of the Town Report is dedicated to Bristol’s Veterans, and to the 
Veterans’ Memorial Committee that is planning and fundraising for a permanent 
memorial to Bristol veterans of America’s foreign wars. Veterans of the Civil War 
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are commemorated by the historic Liberty Pole at 
Bristol Mills, which will be re-erected in the spring. 
A new mast, donated by Jay Crooker, comes from 
the same property from which his great-great-great 
grandfather donated the original mast to the Town 
in 1865. The mast has been dried and turned in the 
traditional manner at Boothbay Harbor Shipyard. 

In June we were pleased to award the Boston Post 
Cane to Georgina ‘Gina’ Rayburn, who, at 99 years 
young, is the oldest citizen of Bristol. We hope that 
she will keep it for a long time!

Georgina Rayburn – Picture taken in 2018
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Selectmen’s Financials 2019
Payroll 		
Appropriation	 	 348,662.47 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 5,350.09 
Fees	 	 18,501.53 
Total		  372,514.09 
Expenditures	 	
Selectmen, Assessors, Overseers of the Poor	 11,700.00 	
Town Administrator	 54,999.96 	
Staff	 185,674.23 	
Health Insurance	 79,227.40 	
FICA & Medicare	 19,543.35 	
Retirement	 5,000.00 	
Other Charges	 15,000.00 	
		  371,144.94 
Total Net		  1,369.15 
Unexpended to Surplus		  1,369.15 

Town Expense		
Appropriation	 	 118,000.00 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 10,386.34 
Reimbursements	 	 16,648.74 
Total		  145,035.08 
Expenditures	 	
Building Repair & Maintenance	 41,836.37 	
Town Expense	 64,285.63 	
	 	 106,122.00 
Total Net		  38,913.08 
Balance Carried to Town Expense 2019		  32,749.45 
Unexpended to Surplus		  6,163.63 

Radio Replacement		
Appropriation	 	 - 
Foundation Grant	 	 24,000.00 
Total		  24,000.00 
Expenditures	 	
Radios	 - 	
	 	 - 
Total Net		  24,000.00 
Balance Carried to Radio Replacement 2019		  24,000.00 

Ordinance Administration 	 	
Appropriation	 	 9,000.00 
Balance carried from 2017	 	 - 
Fees (Permit Revenue)	 	 25,653.24 
Total		  34,653.24 
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Expenditures	 	
CEO Payroll & Mileage	 33,458.08 	
Planning Board	 1,542.00 	
Clerical	 109.60 	
FICA & Medicare	 2,587.96 	
State Fees	 2,845.00 	
General Expense	 469.38 	
	 	 41,012.02 
Total Net		  (6,358.78)
Covered by 2018 Contingency		  6,358.78 

Computer		
Appropriation	 	 18,000.00 
Total		  18,000.00 
Expenditures	 	
Programs & Licensing	 16,780.30 	
Technology Purchase & Repair	 9,909.30 	
Website Hosting & Development Expense	 3,279.30 	
	 	 29,968.90 
Total Net		  (11,968.90)
Covered by 2018 Capital Reserve		  9,600.00 
Covered by 2018 Contingency		  2,368.90 

Legal Fees	 	
Appropriation	 	 3,116.77 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 6,883.23 
Total		  10,000.00 
Expenditures	 	
Town Legal Fees	 8,985.67 	
	 	 8,985.67 
Total Net		  1,014.33 
Balance Carried to Legal 2019		  1,014.33 

Assessment	 	
Appropriation	 	 12,000.00 
Total		  12,000.00 
Expenditures	 	
Revaluation Final Payment	 6,000.00 	
Annual Maintenance	 9,500.00 	
		  15,500.00 
Total Net		  (3,500.00)
Covered by 2018 Contingency		  3,500.00 

Animal Control	 	
Appropriation	 	 10,555.00 
Fees  	 	 1,244.00 
Total		  11,799.00 
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Expenditures	 	
Lincoln County Sheriff ’s Office	 2,755.00 	
Lincoln County Animal Shelter	 5,085.28 	
		  7,840.28 
Total Net		  3,958.72 
Unexpended to Surplus		  3,958.72 

Insurance	 	
Appropriation - Surplus	 	 35,374.67 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 625.33 
Dividend Disbursement for low risk	 	 3,826.00 
Total		  39,826.00 
Expenditures	 	
MMA Property & Casualty Insurance	 15,995.50 	
MMA Worker’s Compensation	 20,431.20 	
		  36,426.70 
Total Net		  3,399.30 
Balance Carried to Insurance 2019		  3,399.30 

County Tax	 	
Appropriated under Tax Commitment	 	 1,328,624.68 
Total		  1,328,624.68 
Expenditures	 	
Treasurer, Lincoln County (Assessed Lincoln County)	 1,328,624.68 	
	 	 1,328,624.68 
Total Net		  - 

Marsh Island Tax	 	
Appropriation	 	 - 
Total		  - 
Expenditures	 	
Treasurer, Lincoln County (Assessed by State of Maine)	 387.63 	
	 	 387.63 
Total Net		  (387.63)
Covered by Surplus		  387.63 

Bristol Fire & Rescue	 	
Appropriation	 	 325,941.28 
Balance Carried from 2017 - General Operating Exp	 	 47,082.92 
Balance Carried from 2017 - Monro Dry Hydrant	 	 19,725.00 
Revenues	 	 9,711.06 
Total		  402,460.26 
Expenditures	 	
Bristol Fire & Rescue Expense	 285,677.94 	
New Tanker Note	 23,975.40 	
Fire Truck Note 	 71,088.42 	
		  380,741.76 
Total Net		  21,718.50 
Balance Carried to Bristol Fire & Rescue		  21,113.79 
Unexpended to Surplus		  604.71 
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Bristol/South Bristol Transfer Facility	 	
Appropriation	 	 233,680.00 
Total		  233,680.00 
Expenditures	 	
Annual Contract	 233,680.00 	
		  233,680.00 
Total Net		  - 
Balance Carried to Transfer Station 2019		  - 

General Assistance	 	
Appropriation	 	 - 
Reimbursement From State of ME - Quarter 1	 	 - 
Reimbursement From State of ME - Quarter 2	 	 529.20 
Reimbursement From State of ME - Quarter 3	 	 144.20 
Reimbursement From State of ME - Quarter 4 (Anticipated)	 	 402.08 
Total		  1,075.48 
Expenditures	 	
General Assistance Cases	 3,273.40 	
		  3,273.40 
Total Net		  (2,197.92)
Covered by 2018 Contingency		  2,197.92 

Town Roads Management	 	
Appropriation 	 	 652,285.68 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 147,936.47 
Foundation Grant for Guardrails	 	 12,000.00 
FEMA Reimbursement	 	 6,488.93 
Reimbursements/Refunds	 	 13,632.98 
Private Sign Purchases	 	 253.92 
Total		  832,597.98 
Expenditures	 	
General Maintenance	 451,372.32 	
Snow Removal	 327,815.57 	
Street Lights	 5,771.90 	
	 	 784,959.79 
Total Net		  47,638.19 
Balance Carried to Town Roads 2019		  47,410.09 
Unexpended to Surplus		  228.10 

Town Garage & Highway Equipment	 	
Appropriation - Surplus	 	 18,500.00 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 9,650.73 
Diesel Reimbursements from other Departments	 	 6,987.71 
Funds Transfer from Capital Reserve	 	 27,734.00 
Other Credits	 	 116.00 
Total		  62,988.44 
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Expenditures	 	
Equipment Repair/Maintenance/Garage	 41,666.48 	
Diesel	 5,202.95 	
	 	 46,869.43 
Total Net		  16,119.01 
Balance Carried to Town Garage & Highway Equip. 2019		  16,119.01 

Town Landings & Harbors	 	
Appropriation 	 	 - 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 24,209.32 
Mooring Permit Fees	 	 18,100.00 
Boat Excise Revenue	 	 22,460.95 
Total		  64,770.27 
Expenditures	 	
Expenses	 8,510.41 	
Reimbursements	 738.50 	
	 	 9,248.91 
Total Net		  55,521.36 
Balance Carried to Town Landings & Harbors 2019		  55,521.36 

Olde Bristol Days	 	
Appropriation 	 	 6,000.00 
Balance Carried Error from 2017 Warrant	 	 (2,607.38)
Revenue	 	 24,086.45 
Sales Tax	 	 25.55 
Total		  27,504.62 
Expenditures	 	
Operating Expenses	 20,163.93 	
Transfer out to Boat Race Organization	 7,500.00 	
Mug Sales Tax	 25.55 	
	 	 27,689.48 
Total Net		  (184.86)
Covered by 2018 Contingency		  184.86 

Town Cemeteries	 	
Appropriation	 	 10,500.00 
Total		  10,500.00 
Expenditures	 	
Cemetery Flags & Maintenance	 6,525.00 	
	 	 6,525.00 
Total Net		  3,975.00 
Unexpended to Surplus		  3,975.00 

Solar Energy Project	 	
Appropriation	 	 - 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 300.00 
Reimbursement from Installer for costs	 	 1,440.00 
Total		  1,740.00 
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Expenditures	 	
General Expenses	 2,940.00 	
	 	 2,940.00 
Total Net		  (1,200.00)
Covered by 2018 Contingency		  1,200.00 

Lower Pemaquid Watershed Study	 	
Appropriation	 	 - 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 (1,266.90)
Grant Received	 	 5,872.50 
Transfer from Shellfish Committee CD	 	 2,500.00 
Total		  7,105.60 
Expenditures	 	
Watershed Study Expenses	 5,474.36 	
	 	 5,474.36 
Total Net		  1,631.24 
Balance Carried to Fish Committee 2019		  1,631.24 

Shellfish Conservation	 	
Appropriation	 	 - 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 20,180.75 
Licenses & Fines	 	 5,251.00 
Total		  25,431.75 
Expenditures	 	
Payroll	 2,143.93 	
General Operating Expenses	 876.60 	
Transfer to Pemaquid Watershed Study	 2,500.00 	
Refunds	 31.00 	
	 	 5,551.53 
Total Net		  19,880.22 
Balance Carried to Shellfish 2019		  19,880.22 

Bristol Mills Dam	 	
Appropriation	 	 5,000.00 
Transfer from Fish Ladder Cap Reserve	 	 9,412.00 
Total		  14,412.00 
Expenditures	 	
Final Dam Study Payment from 2017	 4,135.16 	
Dam Survey & Pool & Weir Concept	 10,140.66 	
Administrative Charges	 135.23 	
	 	 14,411.05 
Total Net		  0.95 
Unexpended to Surplus		  0.95 

Fish Committee	 	
Appropriation	 	 768.05 
Balance Carried from 2017	 	 231.95 
Total		  1,000.00 
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Expenditures	 	
General Expense	 35.00 	
	 	 35.00 
Total Net		  965.00 
Balance Carried to Fish Committee 2019		  965.00 

Veterans Memorial	 	
Appropriation	 	 - 
Donations	 	 4,572.00 
Total		  4,572.00 
Expenditures	 - 	
	 	 - 
Total Net		  4,572.00 
Transferred to Veterans Savings Account		  4,572.00 

Provider Agencies	 	
Appropriation	 	 50,306.00 
Total		  50,306.00 
Expenditures	 	
Spectrum Generations	 5,200.00 	
CLC Ambulance	 16,231.00 	
New Hope for Women	 995.00 	
Bristol Area Library	 14,500.00 	
Mid Maine Community Action	 1,680.00 	
Pemaquid Watershed	 1,500.00 	
Eldercare Network	 7,500.00 	
Healthy Kids	 1,200.00 	
Life Flight	 1,500.00 	
	 	 50,306.00 
Total Net		  - 

Town Contingency 	 	
Appropriation - Surplus	 	 20,000.00 
Total		  20,000.00 
Transfers	 	
Ordinance Administration	 6,358.78 	
Technology/Computer	 2,368.90 	
Revaluation	 3,500.00 	
General Assistance	 2,197.92 	
Olde Bristol Days	 184.86 	
Solar Energy Project	 1,200.00 	
BETE Exemption Shortage	 0.03 	
	 	 15,810.49 
Total Net		  4,189.51 
Unexpended to Surplus		  4,189.51 
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Capital Reserve Accounts

Town Buildings Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation		   - 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		   - 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   19,734.84

 Computer Capital Reserve (CD)	 	
Appropriation		   2,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		   2,000.00 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   119.72 

Bristol Dam Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation	 	 10,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  10,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   20,062.78 

Revaluation Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation	 	 15,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  15,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   15,125.01 

Landings & Harbors Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation	 	 5,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  5,000.00 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   10,053.42

Highway Equipment Capital Reserve (Savings)	 	
Appropriation	 	 5,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  5,000.00 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   3,302.20

Bridge Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation	 	 20,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  20,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   85,447.70

Solar Array Capital Reserve (CD)	 	
Appropriation	 	 10,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  10,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   10,083.34

Fish Ladder Capital Reserve (CD)	 	
Appropriation		   - 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		   - 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   70,956.48

Fish Ladder Restricted Funds Reserve (CD)	 	
Appropriation	 	 20,000.00 
Foundation Grant	 	 200,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  220,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   202,273.05
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Ocean Hill Cemetery Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation		   - 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		   - 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   23,176.57 

Combined Trusts Capital Reserve (Savings)		
Appropriation		   - 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		   - 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   13,523.87 

Veterans Memorial Capital Reserve (Savings)		
Appropriation		   - 
Donations	 	  4,572.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		   4,572.00 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   4,573.28 

Bristol Fire & Rescue Facility Capital Reserve (CD)	 	
Appropriation	 	 10,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  10,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   16,940.99 

Bristol Fire & Rescue Truck Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation	 	 10,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  10,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   85,076.42 

Bristol Fire & Rescue Emergency Contingency Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation	 	 20,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  20,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   20,166.68 

Parks & Recreation Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation	 	 11,000.00 
Additional Transfer	 	 30,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  41,000.00
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   84,114.03 

Parks & Recreation Beach Pavilion Capital Reserve (CD)		
Appropriation	 	 - 
Foundation Grant	 	 300,000.00 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		  300,000.00 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   286,745.22 

Parks Learning Center Capital Reserve (Savings)		
Appropriation		   - 
Total Transferred to Capital Reserve		   - 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		  5,071.74
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2018 Appropriations from Taxation
Other Town Government:
Article 5.	 General Government	 	 334,927.49 
Article 19.	 Bristol Fire & Rescue	 	 355,230.96 
Article 24.	 Bristol Mills Dam 	 	 30,768.05 
Article 25.	 Bristol Mills Dam Engineering Study	 	 5,000.00 
Article 29.	 Cemeteries	 	 6,605.00 
Article 30.	 Bristol/South Bristol Transfer Station	 	 233,680.00 
Article 34.	 Requests

1. 	 Bristol Library	 14,500.00 
2. 	 Healthy Kids	 1,200.00 
3. 	 Eldercare Network	 7,500.00 
4. 	 Mid-Maine Community Action	 1,680.00 
5. 	 New Hope for Women	 995.00 
6. 	 Pemaquid Watershed Association	 1,500.00 
7. 	 Spectrum Generations	 5,200.00 
8. 	 Life Flight	 1,500.00

	 TOTAL	 	 34,075.00 
Article 35. Central Lincoln County Ambulance, Inc.	 	 16,231.00 
Bristol School:	 	
Article 43.	 Regular Instruction	 2,208,079.19 
Article 44.	 Special Education	 835,546.97 
Article 45.	 Career & Technical Education	 3,800.00 
Article 46.	 Other Instruction	 99,841.67 
Article 47.	 Student & Staff Support	 287,878.48 
Article 48.	 System Administration	 109,076.77 
Article 49.	 School Administration	 188,067.37 
Article 50.	 Transportation & Buses	 407,218.34 
Article 51.	 Facilities Maintenance	 396,919.09 
Article 52.	 Debt Service & Other Commitments	 - 
Article 53.	 All Other Expenditures	 24,619.12 
	 Fund Balance Forward (Not from Taxation)	 (225,000.00)
	 State Subsidy Estimate (Not from Taxation)	 (219,525.65)	
Article 55.	 Local Share/Foundation Allocation	 	 4,116,521.35 
Total Appropriations from Taxation		  5,133,037.85 

Liabilities/Loans

Fire Truck Loan		
Appropriation		   23,976.60 
Total Paid to First National		   23,975.40 
Balance As of 12/31/2018		   101,270.67
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Town Administrator’s Report Chris Hall

2018 has been a busy year and 2019 looks like being busier!
In the Town Office, we said farewell to Deputy Treasurer Lisa Peters after four 

years’ service, and welcomed Lindsay Currier to take her place. In addition to 
her bookkeeping responsibilities, Lindsay has plunged into helping Bristol Fire 
& Rescue to establish an annual children’s Bicycle Safety Rodeo - her hobby is 
mountain biking.

At the Selectmen’s direction, we continue to try to keep the claims on property 
taxes to a minimum. Bristol has the third lowest property tax rate in the state – 
though I like to point out that we have the lowest rate of any town over 1,000 
residents! This is likely to increase in 2019 due to rising costs beyond our control – 
notably for increased school enrollment, for Lincoln County’s assessment for the 
courts and police protection, and for the Central Lincoln County Ambulance 
service.

Wherever possible, major projects in Bristol will be funded from grant sources 
and from setting aside reserves. The Town has been fortunate to secure a number 
of grants in the past year, for projects of the Parks and Highway Departments, the 
Bristol Consolidated School and for the new Fish Ladder. Some of these have come 
from governmental sources but most have come from family foundations and 
individuals in the Bristol area. The generosity of residents has also been shown in 
the establishment of two new land preserves along the Pemaquid River, the Keyes 
Woods Preserve on Poor Farm Road and the Pemaquid Mill at Pemaquid Falls. No 
less than 420 individual donors made possible the acquisition of the Mill.

The river has been the focus of a lot of interest and work in 2018. This biologically 
rich watershed supports trout, bass and alewives as well as many less charismatic 
fish and invertebrates, and these in turn support growing numbers of eagles, 
ospreys, herons and otters. Pemaquid Falls, featured on the Town Report’s cover, 
are the first obstacle faced by the returning alewives each year as they journey up 
the river to spawn in Biscay and Pemaquid Ponds. Since the acquisition in 2018 
of the Pemaquid Mill by the Damariscotta River Association, a group has been 
studying how to ease the passage for the fish at the Falls, which will hopefully 
increase the number of fish which reach the upper river. 

In 2018 volunteers recorded a record number of returns for recent years, with 
over 50,000 fish passing the fish ladder at the dam. Subject to permits from the 
state and the Army Corps of Engineers, we hope to replace the fish ladder in 2019 
with a ‘pool and weir’ design fish passage similar to that at Damariscotta Mills. A 
preliminary step towards this project was the replacement of the bridge deck on 
Redonnett Mill Road, which will now allow construction vehicles to access the 
east side of the dam and the fish ladder.

2018 also saw a grant for the town’s Shellfish Committee, jointly with the 
Pemaquid Watershed Association, to identify the sources of pollution that have 
closed much of the saltwater Pemaquid River to clam harvesting for many years. 
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This work will continue in 2019. 
The big project in the 2019 Highway budget is the replacement of the Upper 

Round Pond Bridge across the Pemaquid River, just next to the Town Hall. The 
metal culvert installed in 1984 had a design life of 30 years, and is in urgent need of 
replacing. We plan to install a full span bridge which will ease passage for both fish 
below and cars above, and which will be clad in stone to give some resemblance to 
the original stone arch that was removed in 1984. 

Two small but complicated projects will be completed this year. The Munro 
Bridge fire pond and hydrant, on Route 32 near the Round Pond Village tennis 
court, has finally received its permits and the work will be done this summer. The 
Liberty Pole in Bristol Mills, disassembled for a year now, has had its new mast 
cured and turned over the winter at the Boothbay Harbor Shipyard, and should be 
re-erected in the spring.

Bristol has been fortunate over the years in the quality and the dedication of 
the men and women who serve in elected office and who volunteer for the Town’s 
various committees. It is a pleasure for me to work with some wonderful colleagues, 
and to be able to serve the people of the Town. Thank you!
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Clerk’s Report
IFW
State Treasurer.................................................................................................$31,116.25
Town Treasurer..................................................................................................$1,504.25

Clams
11	 Resident Commercial...................................................................................... $2,200
2	 Nonresident Commercial.................................................................................. $800
	 Conservation hours purchased...................................................................... $1,100
32	 Resident Recreational......................................................................................... $640
7	 Nonresident Recreational.................................................................................. $280
	 Complimentary Licenses (65 and over, 12 and under)
	   Resident............................................................................................................... 34
	   Nonresident............................................................................................................2

Dogs
Altered
	 State Treasurer................................................................................................. $1,431
	 Town Treasurer............................................................................................... $1,431
Unaltered
	 State Treasurer.................................................................................................... $526
	 Town Treasurer.................................................................................................... $61
Kennels
	 State Treasurer...................................................................................................... $60
	 Town Treasurer.................................................................................................... $24

Vital Statistics
Registered voters: 2,379	 Marriages: 33
Births: 19 (6 boys, 13 girls)	 Deaths: 44

Name	 Age	 Date of death

Inman, Earl W. Jr.	 83	 01/07/2018
Meyer, Kay R.	 82	 01/18/2018
Ertman, Harold L.	 85	 01/19/2018
Osier, Kilton Todd	 81	 01/19/2018
Egers, Ralph W. Jr.	 83	 01/26/2018
Dufour, Robert E.	 77	 01/29/2018
Giesberger, Dirk H.	 68	 01/30/2018
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Romero, Alex R. Jr.	 64	 01/31/2018
Hannon, Guilford L.	 98	 02/06/2018
Libby, Helen M.	 54	 02/10/2018
Timoney, Peter F.	 61	 02/18/2018
Reilly, John M. Sr.	 96	 03/10/2018
Bailey, Arthur L.	 67	 03/12/2018
Fossett, Walter L.	 90	 03/18/2018
Bradford, Martha J.	 71	 03/21/2018
Chickering, Sharon M.	 70	 03/26/2018
Ziegenhagen, Eduard A.	 82	 04/02/2018
Leeman, Ruth S.	 93	 04/05/2018
Heppel, Howard E.	 69	 04/07/2018
Lane, Jeanne M.	 89	 04/14/2018
Nolan, Ellen J.	 74	 04/30/2018
Leeman, Nellie G.	 88	 05/04/2018
Cushing, Howard M.	 96	 05/15/2018
Beaton, James G.	 83	 06/04/2018
Voss, Carrol M.	 98	 06/10/2018
Mansir, Eleanor M.	 79	 07/04/2018
Buchanan, Thomas C. III	 89	 08/03/2018
Heiser, Paula L.	 68	 08/04/2018
Seaver, Rosemarie	 53	 08/04/2018
Leeman, Patrick M.	 42	 08/13/2018
Moss, Douglas D. Jr.	 75	 08/14/2018
Kauserud, Rachel	 90	 08/15/2018
Nyboe, Helen B.	 93	 09/16/2018
Hunter, Ellen P.	 70	 09/23/2018
Gayer, Frederick W.	 85	 09/29/2018
Rogers, Thomas B.	 80	 10/03/2018
Glasgow, Ty J.	 62	 10/24/2018
Chase, Audrey J.	 88	 10/27/2018
Barstow, Henry H.	 85	 10/29/2018
Zwicker, Elizabeth	 83	 10/30/2018
Hanna, Myrtle A.	 86	 11/10/2018
Dunbar, Brian E.	 74	 11/22/2018
Reed, Patricia A.	 88	 11/30/2018
Genthner, Stephen L.	 50	 12/31/2018
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2018 Assessors’ Report
COMMITMENT

Description	 Amount
Value of Real Estate (Taxable)	 $1,037,019.00
  •  Land Value	 $523,574,000
  •  Building Value	 $513,445,000
Value of Personal Property (Taxable)	 $6,398,230
  •  Machinery & Equipment	 $5,665,400
  •  Business Equipment	 $471,530
  •  Other Personal Property	 $261,300
Total Taxable Property	 $1,043,417,230
Rate of Taxation	 $6.25 per $1,000

EXEMPTIONS
Homestead Exemptions	 (689 Exemptions)	         $13,773,300
  (4 properties fully exempt – under $20,000 assessment)
Veteran Exemptions	 (151 Exemptions)	 $906,000
Blind 	 (1 Exemption)	 $4,000
BETE Exemptions	 (6 Exemptions)	 $6,266,570

The Collection of Taxes
Assessments are based on the status of property as of April 1st of the tax year. 

Valuations can be adjusted at any time during April, or until the taxes have been 
committed to the Tax Collector. Upon commitment, the valuations become 
permanent record and may be changed only through the abatement process. Tax 
bills will be mailed to the owner of record as of April 1st, and if known to the Town 
a copy will be mailed to any new owner. It is interesting to note that in Maine, there 
is no legal requirement for the Town to provide a tax bill.

The tax due date and the interest rate for late payment are determined by vote of 
the townspeople at the Annual Town Meeting held in March of each year. In 2019, 
the Selectmen will recommend September 16th for the due date and 8% for the 
interest rate on late payments. 8% is the maximum allowable interest rate in 2019 
as set by the State Treasurer. Prepayment of taxes in any amount will be accepted 
at any time.

The Lien Process
Between eight and twelve months after taxes have been committed, the Treasurer 

will place a lien on all real estate accounts with an unpaid balance. All lien costs 
must be paid by the delinquent taxpayer before the lien can be discharged. If the 
lien remains unpaid for 18 months after having been recorded, the Town becomes 
the owner of the property. At this point the prior owner may negotiate with the 
Selectmen to buy back the property, or the Town may sell the property at auction.
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Property Tax Relief

Homestead Exemption
You are entitled to a Homestead Exemption if:
•  You are a legal resident of Maine as of April 1st, 2019 and have owned a homestead 
in the State of Maine for at least the past 12 months;
•  You declare the homestead in Bristol is your permanent/primary residence;
•  Is the only property for which you have claimed a homestead property tax 
exemption.

Veteran’s Exemption
You are entitled to a Veteran’s Exemption if you veteran or the widow of, who 
served active duty during a federally recognized war period and, if discharged 
or retired under honorable conditions. The Veteran must have reached age 62 or 
must be receiving a pension or compensation from the United States Government 
for total disability, either service or non-service connected. A DD 214 is required 
to be furnished with application.

Blind Exemption
You are entitled to a Blind Exemption if you have been determined to be blind by 
a licensed Doctor of Medicine, Doctor of Osteopathy or Doctor of Optometry. 
Appropriate documentation is required to be furnished to prove eligibility.

If you are already receiving any of these exemptions, there is no need to reapply. 
Applications are available at the Town Office or on our website at https://www.
bristolmaine.org/tax-collection-and-assessing and must be filed on or before 
April 1st.
Current Land Use Programs

The State of Maine has four “current use” programs that offer the property 
owner a reduction in assessed value: Farmland, Open Space, Tree Growth, and 
Working Waterfront. The programs establish valuation of property at its current 
use, rather than at market value.

All four programs are available to property owners through an application 
process with the local municipality. Applications must be filed on or before April 
1st of the year the reduced valuation is first requested.

Property must meet certain criteria to qualify for each program and any future 
change in the use of the land will cause disqualification resulting in a penalty.
Farmland

In the Farmland program, the property owner is required to have at least five 
contiguous acres in their parcel of land. The land must be used for farming, 
agriculture or horticulture and can include woodland and wasteland. Additionally, 
the parcel must contribute at least $2,000 gross income from farming activities 
each year.
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The Department of Agriculture prepares a valuation guideline for municipalities, 
which results from studies based on suggested values using a correlation from 
income stream and market data attributable to agricultural enterprise.

If the property no longer qualifies as farmland, then a penalty will be assessed. 
The penalty is equal to the taxes that would have been paid in the last five years 
if the property had not been in farmland, less the taxes that were paid, plus any 
interest on that balance.

See Bulletin 20 (Farmland Tax Law), 36 M.R.S. §§ 1101 - 1121 (Farm and Open 
Space Tax Law), and 7 M.R.S. chapter 2-B (Registration of Farmland) on the Maine 
Revenue Website.
Open Space

There is no minimum acreage requirement with this program. However, 
minimum areas and setbacks must be excluded from classification.

The parcel must be preserved or restricted in use to provide a public benefit. 
Benefits recognized include public recreation, scenic resources, game management, 
and wildlife habitat.

The municipal assessor is responsible for determining the value placed on open 
space land. In the determination of that value, the assessor must consider the sale 
price that a particular open space parcel would command in the open market if 
it were to remain in the particular category or categories of open space land for 
which it qualifies.

If an assessor is unable to determine the value of a parcel of open space land 
based on the valuation method above, the assessor may use the alternative 
valuation method. Using this method, the assessor reduces the fair market value 
of an open space land parcel by the cumulative percentage reduction for which the 
land is eligible according to certain categories. Those categories are as follows:

Ordinary Open Space - 20% reduction
Permanently Protected - 30% reduction
Forever Wild - 20% reduction
Public Access - 25% reduction
In other words, if the property met all of the above requirements, the owner 

would see a cumulative reduction of up to 95% on the classified land.
If property no longer qualifies as open space, a penalty will be assessed using 

the same methodology as is used for removal from the Tree Growth program (see 
below).

See Bulletin 21 (Open Space Tax Law) and 36 M.R.S. §§ 1101 - 1121 (Farm and 
Open Space Tax Law) on the Maine Revenue Website.
Tree Growth

This program provides a benefit for owners of at least ten acres of forested land 
used for commercial harvesting. A forest management and harvest plan must be 
prepared and a sworn statement to that effect submitted with the application. 
Applications must include a map of the parcel indicating the forest type breakdown 
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as well as all other areas to be excluded from the tree growth program.
Each year, the State Tax Assessor determines the valuation per acre for each 

forest type by county. For a list of current Tree Growth rates, see Rule 202 on the 
Maine Revenue Website.

If forest land no longer meets the criteria of eligibility or the landowner opts to 
withdraw from the tree growth program, a penalty will be assessed. Depending 
upon the length of time that the parcel has been enrolled, the penalty is between 
20% and 30% of the difference between the 100% Tree Growth value and the fair 
market value of the land.

See Bulletin 19 (Maine Tree Growth Tax Law) and 36 M.R.S. §§ 571 - 584 (Tree 
Growth Tax Law) on the Maine Revenue Website.
Working Waterfront

“Working waterfront land” means a parcel or portion of a parcel of land abutting 
tidal waters or is located in the intertidal zone (located between the high and low 
water mark) the use of which is more than 50% related to providing access to or in 
support of the conduct of commercial fishing (including commercial aquaculture) 
activities.

Working waterfront land used predominantly (more than 90%) as working 
waterfront is eligible for a 20% reduction from just value. Working waterfront 
land used primarily (more than 50%) as working waterfront is eligible for a 10% 
reduction from just value. Working waterfront land that is permanently protected 
from a change in use through deeded restriction is eligible for an additional 30% 
reduction.

If property no longer qualifies as working waterfront, a penalty will be 
assessed using the same methodology as is used for removal from Tree Growth 
classification.

See Working Waterfront Q & A and 36 M.R.S. §§ 1131 -1140-B (Current Use 
Valuation of Certain Working Waterfront Land) on the Maine Revenue Website.
Personal Property Business Tax Relief
BETE
Certain businesses may qualify for an exemption on personal property tax for 
equipment first subject to tax on April 1, 2008. This is an annual application. 

BETR
Certain Businesses may qualify for reimbursement on personal property tax paid 
during the previous year. Taxpayers begin the application process by filing the 
form “801” with our office.
More information can be viewed online at http://www.maine.gov/revenue/
propertytax/.
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11 EDGEMERE LANE, LLC.......................................12,299.38
1267 INVESTORS, LLC................................................959.38
187 BACKSHORE, LLC..............................................3,047.50
187 BACKSHORE, LLC...................................................65.00
212 SNOWBALL HILL ROAD, LLC..............................2,168.75
26 PRINCETON AVENUE REALTY TRUST....................2,421.88
28 BEACH LOOP ROAD, LLC......................................1,188.13
302 BIRCH KNOLL, LLC............................................2,053.75
61 SEAWOOD PARK, LLC..........................................2,095.63
ABBOTT, DEBORAH S., TRUSTEE.................................395.00
ABENAKI PEMAQUID HARBOR, LLC..........................2,620.00
ABLON, BETTY ANN................................................2,571.88
ACHESON, JAMES M & ACHESON, THOMAS M & ACHESON,
  MATTHEW T & ACHESON, ROBERT B & WM J.........1,741.25
ACHESON, JULIANNA.................................................657.50
ACHESON, MARJORIE & ALLAIRE, SHAWN M..............830.00
ACHESON, MATTHEW T..............................................572.50
ACHESON, RICHARD D, JR...........................................674.38
ADAMS, APRIL & REDMOND, JOHN.........................2,660.00
ADAMS, JULIE & BONSANT, MARY...........................2,043.75
ADAMS, KEVIN R & ADAMS, CAROL J.......................2,420.00
ADDISON, CARL W & ELLEN B, TR............................1,219.38
ADICKES, ERNEST J & ADICKES, SAMANTHA L.........2,513.13
ADIRONDACK LAND MANAGEMENT, LLC..................2,466.25
ADIRONDACK LAND MANAGEMENT, LLC.......................30.00
ADKINS, THOMAS & ADKINS, CORINNE E.................1,803.13
ADLER, STEPHEN R & ADLER, BRENDA K....................307.50
AGNETA, GAIL B & DIBBLE, TIMOTHY K.......................683.13
AH VIEW, LLC - WILKINSON & LOCRAFT, TTEES.........3,002.50
AIKEN, ALEXANDER W & AIKEN, HEATHER ANN..........161.88
AJAMI BRADFORD TRUST........................................2,063.75
AKIN, GWENDOLYN, TR...........................................3,968.13
ALAN J MACPHEE ENTERPRISES, INC.......................1,011.88
ALBRIGHT, JAMES A & ALBRIGHT, ROBERTA L.............348.75
ALBRIGHT, JAMES A & ALBRIGHT, ROBERTA L..........3,061.88
ALDERISIO, JOAN....................................................3,235.00
ALDERSON, MICHAEL S & ALDERSON RABY,
  CHRISTINE M........................................................1,902.50
ALDRICH, PAUL M & ALDRICH, MARJORIE R, TR.......1,111.88
ALFONSO, RICHARD J & LOIS M, TR..........................2,518.13
ALFONSO, RICHARD J & LOIS M, TR..........................3,430.63
ALIANO, JOANNE M.................................................1,563.75
ALLAN, JOHN A & BARBARA L, TRUSTEES................1,836.25
ALLEN M GLICK TRUST DATED 6/24/09....................5,829.38
ALLEN M GLICK TRUST DATED 6/24/09....................2,891.88
ALLEN S GUIGNARD TRUST - GUIGNARD, ALLEN S & 
  MCKINNEY, RITA M, TRUSTEES..............................3,018.75
ALLEN, CHERYL H....................................................3,581.25
ALLEN, GEORGE E, III & BRENDA.................................311.88

 Real Estate Taxpayer List
ALLEN, PAUL S, TRUSTEE.........................................2,482.50
ALLEN, ROSAMOND W...............................................185.00
ALLEN, SANDRA C & ALLEN, JAY T...........................1,205.00
ALLEN, WALTER L.......................................................323.13
ALLEY, WENDY...........................................................233.75
ALOISE, DAVID A.....................................................2,378.75
ALOISE, DAVID A & PLACITELLA, DARIA...................4,986.88
ALOISE, DONNA.........................................................291.88
ALOISE, DONNA M..................................................5,026.88
ALSUP, BENJAMIN W & COMER, CARRIE S................2,300.00
ALWARD, NATALIA..................................................1,174.38
AMERICAN TOWER CORP.........................................1,429.38
AMES, MICHAEL & AMES, JUDY..................................155.63
ANDERSEN, JAN A & ANDERSEN, JANE A....................964.38
ANDERSEN, JAN A & ANDERSEN, JANE A....................189.38
*ANDERSEN, LEIGHTON E & ANDERSEN, LESLIE W...2,270.63
ANDERSON, CHARLES W, JR....................................1,273.13
ANDERSON, CHRISTOPHER H..................................1,050.63
ANDERSON, DAVID I & ANDERSON, MAUREEN G.........218.75
ANDERSON, JOSEPH M, JR......................................1,430.63
ANDERSON, MAUREEN E............................................978.75
ANDERSON, PAUL M & ANDERSON, KATHLEEN K...36,936.25
ANDERSON, PETER..................................................2,796.88
ANDERSON, PETER C..................................................184.38
ANDERSON, PETER C..................................................197.50
ANDERSON, PETER C..................................................206.88
ANDERSON, PETER C..................................................231.25
ANDERSON, SUSAN & ANDERSON, RICHARD J, TR...1,369.38
ANDRAS, JUDITH L & DAVIS, ALAN B.......................1,778.13
ANDREW, WAYNE M & ANDREW, SUSAN R..............2,064.38
ANDREWS, CAROL & ANDREWS, ERIC J......................186.88
ANDREWS, CAROL L & ANDREWS, LAURI E................188.13
ANDREWS, CAROL L & ANDREWS, GREGG C...............188.13
ANDREWS, CAROL L...................................................188.13
ANDREWS, LAURI E, TRUSTEE.................................1,232.50
ANTONE, SUSAN C & ANTONE, WALLACE H.................984.38
ANTOSIEWICZ, PIOTR & ANTOSIEWICZ, PAMELA......5,693.75
APGAR, GEORGE B & APGAR, JOAN W........................261.88
APPLEGATE, BARBARA & FRASER, HOWARD...........1,613.13
ARBER, MARJORIE J................................................1,016.25
ARGEROPAULOUS, BONNIE & 
  DAVIDSON, PETER G, TR........................................3,653.13
ARMSTRONG, KATHRYN & STOLECKI, JOHN.............1,260.63
ARNOLD, WILLIAM G & ARNOLD, JEAN D,TTEES.......4,361.88
ARZATE, WENDY WILLIAMS.......................................326.25
ARZATE, WENDY WILLIAMS....................................1,424.38
ASHBY, JO RUTAN - TRUST......................................1,571.88
ASMUSSEN, VIRGINIA TUDOR & 
  ASMUSSEN, BRIAN C...............................................380.63
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ATCHISON, DONALD W - REVOCABLE TRUST & 
  ATCHISON, BARBARA F - REVOCABLE TRUST.........1,983.75
ATELIER 3, LLC........................................................8,417.50
ATELIER 3, LLC...........................................................276.25
ATKINSON, JOAN M & JOHNSON, PATRICK K............1,555.63
AUGUSTA, ROBERT L...............................................1,696.88
AUSSCHNITT, CHRISTOPHER P & 
  AUSSCHNITT, SUSAN F..........................................5,999.38
AUSTIN, JAMES E & AUSTIN, DARCY M.......................560.63
AUTIO, H DAVID......................................................4,011.25
AVERILL, NORMAN C & AVERILL, SANDRA S............3,410.00
AVERILL, NORMAN C & AVERILL, SANDRA S...............315.00
AVERILL, PHILIP H..................................................2,377.50
AVERILL, PHILIP H & BACON, JANET M....................1,592.50
BACK SHORE REAL ESTATE TRUST...............................341.88
BACON, JANET & AVERILL, ERICA M............................659.38
BADER, LAURENCE M - LIVING TRUST, 
  BADER, LAURENCE M, TRUSTEE............................2,102.50
BADGLEY, TIMOTHY R................................................626.25
BAGANZ, BRUCE P, ETAL, TR....................................6,260.63
BAGANZ, MARK & BAGANZ, BRUCE P & 
  SIMPSON, BARBARA A............................................399.38
BAILEY, ARTHUR L.....................................................731.88
BAILEY, DANIEL F & BAILEY, MARIA V.........................254.38
BAILEY, GORDON L & BAILEY, SCLINDA A.................1,721.88
BAILEY, JAMES C & BAILEY, NANCY L.......................1,230.00
BAILEY, VINCENT R.....................................................731.25
BAILIN, SARAH W, TRUSTEE PEMAQUID PT TRUST...6,665.63
BAKER FAMILY, LLC....................................................223.75
BAKER, DOROTHY, TR & GLIDDEN, LISA, TR..............3,501.88
*BALDACCHINO, GERARD J, SR & SHEILA M................896.88
*BALDWIN, WAYNE J & DAVIDSON-BALDWIN, 
  STEPHANIE P........................................................2,358.13
BALL, JOSEPH E, JR & EVELYN M................................971.25
BALL, ROBERT J & BALL, SANDRA J.........................1,350.63
BALL, RYAN J & BALL, NICOLE C..............................1,725.00
*BALL, WILLIAM E.........................................................5.63
BANKS, JAMES E & BANKS, ELIZABETH C.................1,886.25
BANNON, PATRICIA J..................................................893.13
BAPTIST, LISA ELIZABETH & BAPTIST, PAUL E..........1,226.25
BARBARA D DITARANTO REVOCABLE TRUST, 
  DITARANTO, BARBARA D, TRUSTEE.......................1,062.50
BARCLAY, GILBERT..................................................2,986.25
BARD, ELLEN GURMAN...........................................1,193.75
BARRETT, NANCY WYNN, TR......................................776.25
BARRETT, SAMUEL K & GALBRAITH, VIVIAN............1,965.00
BARRON, DUNLAP NAT CITY BNK, 
  NAT CITY BNK, TR.................................................1,115.00
BARROWS, ALBERT F & BARROWS, VALERIE R.........1,607.50
BARSTOW, HENRY, TR - ALICE BARSTOW ESTATE......1,698.13
BARTLETT, PAUL & BARTLETT, JAMES P...................1,056.25
BARUFALDI, JUDITH A.............................................1,655.63

BASCOM, FAY A & LEEMAN, PAUL F, JR.......................942.50
BATCHELOR, SUSAN M............................................1,086.88
BATH SAVINGS TRUST CO, TR DALBECK TRUST............443.13
BATY, ANN & BATY, DANIEL T......................................293.75
BATY, ANN E & BATY, DANIEL T.....................................75.63
*BATY, ANN E & BATY, DANIEL T.................................876.88
BATY, DANIEL T & BATY, KRISTEN A............................876.88
BATY, DANIEL T & BATY, KRISTEN A.........................1,331.25
BAUER, BETH A & BAUER, ARTHUR L, JR....................406.25
BAY SAIL, LLC.............................................................233.13
BAY, KRISTIN E & POST, KIKI J.....................................306.25
BAYBUTT, MARK D & BAYBUTT, SCOTT T..................3,223.75
BAYVIEW ASSOCIATES, LLC.....................................3,264.38
BAYVIEW ASSOCIATES, LLC.....................................4,760.00
BEAGAN, JOHN H & BEAGAN, JANET DA..................1,381.88
BEAL, DALE M LIVING TRUST & 
  BEAL, CONSTANCE A LIVING TRUST..........................610.00
*BEATON, JAMES....................................................1,370.63
BEATTIE, TAYLOR V..................................................1,436.25
BEAUCHAMP, ISA.......................................................621.88
BEAUCHAMP, MICHAEL W..........................................957.50
BEAUDET, ALEX.......................................................1,663.75
BEAUDET, ROGER G & BEAUDET, JESSE....................2,275.00
BEAVER, ANDREA L & BEAVER, BRYAN.......................713.13
BECK, ISAAC F - 1996 REVOC TR - MARITAL BECK, 
  SANDRA - TR & GOTTLIEB, EDWARD A - IND TR.....7,238.75
BECK, JACOB T & BECK, JILL M.................................1,143.13
BECKERMAN, JOHN S & BECKERMAN, HARRIET.......2,335.00
BEDARD, PAUL M & BEDARD, MARILYN R...................923.75
BEDELL, F MERRITT....................................................433.75
BEDELL, F MERRITT....................................................220.63
BEDELL, KATHRYN K....................................................89.38
BEDNARK, THOMAS A & BEDNARK, CHRISTINE C.....1,202.50
BEGIN, JEANNE P & GERLACH, JANINE P & STEVEN A...67.50
BEGLEY, TAMARA L & BOWERS, LISA K & 
  MCLAUGHLIN, LOIS A...........................................1,614.38
BEHAN, CHRISTOPHER............................................2,146.88
BELANGER, CHARLENE R............................................790.63
BELKNAP, SAMUEL L, JR & BELKNAP, BARBARA E....2,665.00
BELL, CEDRIC C & BELL, PATRICIA MARGOT..............3,074.38
BELL, HARRY R, JR - IRREV ASSET MNGT TRUST & 
  BELL. ROSE A - IRREV ASSET MNGT TRUST...............343.75
BELL, REBECCA.......................................................2,094.38
BELL, REBECCA..........................................................425.63
BELL, VERNE M LIV TR; BELL, VERNE M - TRUSTEE...1,301.88
BENNER, ALLAN J & BENNER, LILLIAN.....................1,498.13
BENNER, BRYANT, FOSTER ET AL................................175.00
‡BENNER, CHESTER F & JOHNSON, MEREDITH A & 
  THOMAS R...............................................................791.88
BENNER, DANICA L & BENNER, PETER J......................772.50
BENNER, DEVIN & BENNER, YVETTE........................1,253.13
BENNER, DEXTER J..................................................1,182.50
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BENNER, EDWARD A..................................................543.13
BENNER, EDWARD A..................................................563.13
BENNER, EDWARD A & BENNER, TERRI JEAN...........2,312.50
*BENNER, GORDON A.............................................1,291.88
BENNER, JAMES C, JR..............................................1,553.13
BENNER, JOSEPH....................................................1,411.25
BENNER, LAURA F......................................................375.00
BENNER, LAURA F......................................................758.75
BENNER, M PATRICIA.................................................581.25
*BENNER, M PATRICIA...............................................768.75
BENNER, ROBERT.......................................................171.25
BENNER, ROY A..........................................................247.50
BENNER, SCOTT A...................................................1,474.38
*BENNER, STANLEY J & BENNER, PATRICIA C...........1,962.50
BENNER, SUSAN E...................................................1,546.88
BENNER, TERRI JEAN & PENNIMAN, TOM M................268.13
BENNER, TROY M....................................................1,200.00
BENNER, TROY M....................................................1,285.63
BENNER, TROY M....................................................1,428.13
BENNER, WENDELL L.................................................215.63
*BENNER, WILLIAM E & BENNER, PATRICIA C..........1,658.13
BENNER, WILLIAM E, JR...............................................48.75
BENNETT, STEVEN D & BENNETT, LORHYTA.................320.63
BENSON, TRACY A......................................................987.50
BENTLEY, GEORGE, TRUSTEE - 
  GEORGE W. BENTLEY REV. TR. 9/19/2007.............1,562.50
BENTLEY, JEFFREY & LAFLEUR, JANET.....................2,600.63
BENZ, CHARITY I.....................................................1,983.75
BEOTE, CARSON J & BEOTE, SALLY T........................1,619.38
BERG, KEVIN R & BERG, CRYSTAL L..........................1,397.50
BERGQUIST, KATHRYN C..........................................1,473.75
BERGQUIST, KATHRYN C..........................................1,219.38
BERKELEY, JOHN A, TR & ERICSON, ANDREA, TR......1,938.13
BERNA, NANCY.......................................................1,881.88
BERNIER, BARBARA K.............................................2,179.38
BERNIER, JUDY A....................................................1,134.38
BERNINGER, KATHY S.................................................134.38
BERNSTEIN, LOIS & BERNSTEIN, DAVID...................4,051.25
BERRYMAN, BRADLEY DANIEL................................1,572.50
BEST, DALE & BEST, NANCY........................................919.38
BETTENCOURT, JOY H & BETTENCOURT, 
  ARTHUR LAWRENCE................................................535.00
BETTENCOURT, JOY H & BETTENCOURT, 
  ARTHUR LAWRENCE.............................................2,315.63
BETTENCOURT, JOY H & BETTENCOURT, 
  ARTHUR LAWRENCE..................................................25.00
BETTENCOURT, JOY H & BETTENCOURT, 
  ARTHUR LAWRENCE..................................................29.38
BETTENCOURT, JOY H & BETTENCOURT, 
  ARTHUR LAWRENCE....................................................9.38
BETTS, RONALD J & BETTS, RAMONA G......................407.50
BICKFORD, BRIAN R & REDONNETT, GRETA..............1,683.75

BICKFORD, CARROLL M - TRUST 
  BICKFORD, BRIAN R & GRETA J, TR...........................718.13
*BICKFORD, DONALD K & BICKFORD, SUSAN M..........795.00
BICKFORD, GRETA JR, CUSTODIAN................................68.13
BICKFORD, JESSICA A & BICKFORD, KENNETH L.......1,352.50
BICKFORD, ROY & BICKFORD, MARIE.......................1,066.25
*BICKFORD, ROY & BICKFORD, MARIE.....................1,043.13
BIECHELE, GUY D & CHICKERING-BIECHELE, 
  DEBORAH.............................................................1,088.75
BIEDRZYCKI, RICHARD C & BIEDRZYCKI, 
  HENRIETTA C........................................................3,426.25
BIG BOULDER, LLC..................................................1,855.63
BIG BOULDER, LLC.....................................................150.00
BIG BOULDER, LLC.....................................................150.00
BIGELOW, YVETTE...................................................2,707.50
BIGELOW, YVETTE...................................................1,066.88
BILLIK, JOHN M & BILLIK, ELIZABETH.........................985.00
BILODEAU, SEAN A & BILODEAU, KATHY B...............1,429.38
BILSKI, DAVID S & LINZEE, JILL I..............................2,691.25
BISAGNI, JAMES J & WALKER, 
  MEMORY HOLLOWAY, TRUSTEE.............................1,627.50
BISHOP, ELIZABETH WF & THOMAS B BISHOP TRS 
  OF THE ELIZABETH WF BISHOP TRUST..................4,731.25
BISHOPS BLUFF, LLC................................................4,386.88
BIXBY, STEVEN...........................................................952.50
BJORKGREN, DAVID A (HEIRS)....................................219.38
BLAIN, CHERYL L........................................................709.38
BLAIR DAVID W & ALICIA R.....................................1,778.13
BLAKE, BRANDON J....................................................630.00
BLAKESLEE, LUCIA LANDON, TR..............................1,988.75
BLANCHARD, LAURA J................................................500.00
BLANCHARD, LAURA J.............................................1,598.13
BLANCHARD, LAURA J.............................................5,713.75
BLANK, GORDON E & BLANK, LYNNE H.......................970.63
BLANK, LYNNE & GORDON & HANNA, FRED W & 
  NANCY C.................................................................985.63
BLODGETT, CYNTHIA & GENTHNER, DEBRA & 
  HERNANDEZ, SUSAN M........................................1,003.13
BLOMQUIST, PAUL W & BLOMQUIST, JO-ANNE C......1,287.50
BLOMQUIST, PAUL W & BLOMQUIST, JO-ANNE C.........570.63
BLOMQUIST, PHILIP A & BLOMQUIST, LINDA F.........1,476.25
BOISVERT, BRIAN J & BOISVERT, ROBIN R................1,687.50
BOLSTER, ARTHUR S, TRUSTEE................................1,830.63
BOLSTER, CHAD C......................................................320.00
BOLSTER, LESLIE C..................................................3,101.88
BOLSTER, LESLIE C.....................................................383.13
BOND, ANDREW T & BOND, ANNE W.......................3,116.88
BONUGLI, CELESTE H..............................................2,988.13
BOOKER, JAMES B......................................................883.75
BOOKER, RICHARD D & BOOKER, DIANE R..................836.88
BOOT, CURTIS D & BOOT, MICHELLE M........................325.00
BOS-SEE REVOCABLE TRUST...................................3,053.75
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BOSTROM, HERBERT G & BOSTROM, ROSALIE F.......2,174.38
BOUCHER, KENT & BOUCHER, LISA..........................1,960.63
BOUCHER, LEWIS - REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
  BOUCHER, LEWIS E, TRUSTEE OF..........................5,330.63
BOULTON, JAMES.......................................................349.38
BOULTON, JAMES R & BOULTON, LAURA A...............1,255.00
BOULTON, LAURA A & BOULTON, JAMES R...............1,200.63
BOURNE, ANNE FOSTER...............................................72.50
BOURNE, ANNE FOSTER..........................................1,605.00
BOURNE, JESSICA L & RICE, JOHN P............................825.63
BOWER, P. JEFFREY....................................................485.63
BOWER, P. JEFFREY.................................................7,942.50
BOWERS, ELIZABETH B...........................................8,601.88
BOWERS, LISA K & BEGLEY, TAMARA L & PETER W....2,563.13
BOWERS, LUCILLE C & JEFFREY S & 
  GOODRICH, BETH C & JAMES D, SR..........................718.75
BOWMAN, JANE.....................................................4,260.00
BOYD, ERNEST DONALD.............................................962.50
BOYES, DAVID & THIES, MELINDA L.........................2,932.50
BOYES, DAVID & THIES, MELINDA L............................124.38
BOYNTON, M PATRICIA - (HEIRS OF)...........................805.63
BOYNTON, PATRICIA M............................................1,170.63
BRACKETT, GREGORY & BRACKETT, SHELLEY...........6,046.88
BRACKETT, JACK & BRACKETT, ISABEL.....................1,560.63
BRACKETT, JACK O..................................................1,200.00
BRACKETT, JACK O.......................................................43.75
BRACKETT, JOHN W.................................................1,802.50
BRACKETT, LISA B......................................................325.63
BRACKETT, LYNNE HUGHES.....................................1,415.63
*BRACKETT, SANDRA H...........................................4,565.63
BRACKETT, SANDRA H.............................................2,083.75
BRACKETT, STEPHEN A.................................................16.88
BRACKETT, STEPHEN A & BRACKETT, CYNTHIA H........547.50
BRACKETT, STEPHEN J & BRACKETT, KAREN M.........1,463.75
BRACKETT, VIRGINIA..................................................808.13
BRADBURY, CHRISTINA & BRADBURY, WILLIAM......2,020.00
BRADFORD, R VERNE & BRADFORD, MARTHA P.......1,561.88
BRADFORD, ROBERT W & MARY JANE & 
  SUCCESSORS, TR...................................................2,460.00
BRADLEY SHORE, LLC..............................................2,647.50
BRADLEY, BARBARA & MICHAEL & 
  BOLDUC, SUZANNE RAE & MICHELLE RAE................715.63
BRADLEY, ROBERT B & BRADLEY, SUZANNE B.........1,075.63
BRADLEY, WILLIAM ROSS & BRADLEY, CRISSY SUE.....862.50
BRAGDON, RICHARD M & BRAGDON, GERALDINE P...1,965.63
BRAND, ANDREW JOHN & BRAND, 
  MICHELLE FISHER.................................................1,108.13
BRANDYWINE TRUST AGREEMENT..........................1,190.00
BRANTNER, FRANK L & BRANTNER, TAMAR...............271.88
BREAU, LEONARD G...................................................750.63
BREISBLATT, WARREN M & LINDA W, TR..................2,843.13
BRENNER, MARYANN O & BRENNER, FRANK J............393.13

BRENNER, MARYANN O & BRENNER, FRANK J............762.50
BRESKY, WAYNE & MEIK, STEPHANIE A...................1,811.25
BRETT, CHRISTOPHER & SUSAN, TRUSTEES..............1,622.50
BREWER, JENNIFER.................................................1,233.75
*BREWER, MARILYN M..............................................536.88
BREWER, NANCY S STARKE, JOHN P JR....................2,731.25
BREWER, THOMAS L...............................................1,062.50
BRIGGS, EDDA, TR & WATSON, BARBARA, TR..............481.25
BRIGHT, CLARA & BRIGHT, JAMES P & 
  BRIGHT, STEPHEN W REV LIVING TRUST................8,151.25
BRINKLER, CYNDI & BRINKLER, JAMES E....................975.63
BRINKLER, JAMES V................................................3,220.00
BRISARD, ZOE & BRISARD, ROBERT ALAN................1,798.13
BRISTOL CAPE, LLC..................................................2,040.63
BRISTOL ENTERTAINMENT, LLC................................4,403.13
BRISTOL ONE, LLC...................................................1,543.75
BRISTOL ONE, LLC......................................................168.75
BRISTOL ONE, LLC........................................................50.63
BRISTOL ONE, LLC...................................................2,193.13
BRISTOL ONE, LLC......................................................216.25
*BRISTOW, JOHN R & ANDREWS, ROBERT YOUNG...3,046.88
BROCKUNIER, CHARLES..........................................2,016.88
BROIDA, MICHAEL D & BROIDA, RONALD C................952.50
BRONZI, PAULE V, TRUSTEE PAULE V BRONZI 
  REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST....................................2,055.63
BRONZI, PAULE V, TRUSTEE PAULE V BRONZI 
  REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST....................................1,725.63
BROOKE, SCOTT B......................................................137.50
BROOKS, JOHN P........................................................945.00
BROOKS, KATHERINE P...............................................660.63
BROOKS, MARTHA W TRUSTEE................................1,572.50
BROOKS, MARTHA WISLY, TR...................................1,168.75
BROW, MICHAEL R.....................................................311.25
BROWER, HOWARD S & BROWER, ANDREA C..........1,975.00
BROWN DOG RESCUE, LLC.......................................3,288.75
BROWN, DANIEL S.....................................................150.00
BROWN, DANIEL S & BROWN, MICHELLE MARCELLA...638.75
BROWN, DANIEL S.....................................................797.50
BROWN, EDMUND K...............................................1,558.13
BROWN, FRED........................................................1,966.88
BROWN, KATHLEEN K.............................................3,062.50
BROWN, PETER & VIRGINIA & BROWN, 
  CLARA ELIZABETH................................................1,365.00
BROWN, RANDOLPH & BROWN, MARGARET H......16,126.25
BROWN, STEPHEN C & BROWN, PAULA...................1,439.38
BROWNE, MARGARET A..........................................2,021.88
BROWNS HEAD TREE TRUST....................................7,144.38
BRUINS, DOUGLAS E & BRUINS, NANCY..................3,035.63
BRUZELIUS, CAROLINE, TR......................................2,386.88
BRYANT, NICHOLAS M & BRYANT, KAITLIN M...........1,278.75
BRYANT, RANDY W & BRYANT, KAREN L...................1,271.25
BRYCE, JENNIFER HALEY & BRYCE, TIMOTHY JOHN...1,988.13
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BUCHANAN, THOMAS C, III & 
  BUCHANAN, MARGARET.........................................705.00
BUCHANAN, THOMAS C, III &
  BUCHANAN, MARGARET......................................1,915.63
BUCHWALDER, MATHEW........................................1,378.13
BUCKINGHAM, ALEXIA A.........................................4,351.25
BUCKINGHAM, JAMES B..........................................1,361.25
BUDROW, BRIAN........................................................439.38
BUDROW, BRIAN........................................................175.00
BUDROW, MICHAEL G & BUDROW, ANGELA L..........1,583.13
BUDROW, THOMAS E & BUDROW, SALLY A.................439.38
BUELL, ANNE C, TRUSTEE........................................4,905.63
BUHYOFF, GREGORY & BUHYOFF, MARILYN.............1,476.25
BULLIS, ANDREW V.................................................2,218.13
BULMER, BRIAN T & PELLETIER, SHERRI L...............1,432.50
BULMER, LINDA M & BULMER, JESSE R...................1,227.50
BULMER, LINDA M..................................................1,700.00
BULMER, LINDA M.....................................................426.88
BUNCHBERRY FIELD ESTATES ROAD ASSOCIATION......311.88
BUNKER, JONATHAN..................................................449.38
BURGESS, MICHAEL WILLIS & DONNA H, 
  BRIAN M & BENJAMIN S..........................................593.13
BURKE, SCOTT H (PIP)................................................469.38
*BURLESON, NANCY S............................................1,858.13
BURNHAM, CASEY N...............................................1,108.75
BURNHAM, TERESA GEORGENE..................................181.25
BURNS, CHRISTOPHER...............................................170.00
BURNS, LOWELL F...................................................1,010.00
*BURNS, MARLENE G..............................................1,821.25
BURNS, SHANNON.....................................................261.25
BURNS, SHANNON R & BURNS, ANGELA R.................502.50
BURNS, SHANNON R & BURNS, ANGELA....................938.75
BURNS, SHANNON R, TRUSTEE...................................133.13
BURROW, PATRICK A...............................................1,556.25
BURTON, DON G & BURTON, IRENE H......................3,915.00
BURTON, ROSS A........................................................806.25
BURTON, ROSS A & BURTON, BETTY WHITE.............2,398.13
BUSTEED, WARREN & POLHEMUS, BETH.................3,340.63
BUSTEED, WARREN....................................................583.13
BUSY BEA, LLC...........................................................880.00
BUSY BEA, LLC...........................................................658.13
BUSY BEA, LLC........................................................4,509.38
BUTLER, ANN B.......................................................4,465.63
BUTTERNUT COVE HOLDINGS, LLC...........................2,928.13
BUZBY, CHARLES R & BUZBY, LORILEE A..................2,716.25
BYRNES, WILLIAM C & BYRNES, PATRICIA C.............5,223.75
CAHILL, THOMAS J & CAHILL, MICHELE M..................707.50
*CALLAHAN, BETHIAH H............................................807.50
CALLAHAN, BETHIAH H................................................33.13
CALLAHAN, SHERRILL LEE.......................................2,124.38
CAMERON, CAROLE ANNE..........................................574.38
*CAMERON, DOUGLAS & CAMERON, CONNIE..........2,506.88

CAMERON, MICHAEL W & CAMERON, JOAN.............2,092.50
*CAMERON, PHILIP.................................................2,106.88
CAMPBELL, JOHN P & VERCOE, ELIZABETH H, TRS...2,213.75
CANNING, JOHN N.....................................................123.13
CANNING, JOHN N..................................................2,281.88
CANNING, JOHN N.....................................................105.00
CANNING, MARION W.............................................1,216.25
CANTERBURY, BRUCE & CANTERBURY, LORRAINE.......188.13
CANTERBURY, BRUCE & CANTERBURY, LORRAINE....1,121.25
CAPUTO, ELENA......................................................1,953.13
CARD, GUY.................................................................106.88
CARD, JAMES D & CARD, TERESA (PIP).........................91.88
CARD, WILLIAM S & WILLIAMS, JENNIFER L............1,832.50
CAREY, ROSANNE C.................................................1,538.13
CARLUCCI, DARIN & CARLUCCI, SERAFINA..................781.88
CARNESE, DANIEL J....................................................253.75
CARON, MARGARET A & CARON, DAVID J................3,831.25
CARON, RHONDA K & CARON, DONALD R................2,051.25
CARPENTIER, ANDREW J............................................814.38
CARROLL, JAMES S & CARROLL, HEATHER L............6,535.63
CARROLL, TIMOTHY M & CARROLL, LINDA J...............758.75
CARTER, ASHLEY MARIE & CARTER, DUSTIN JAMES....133.75
CARTER, ELIZABETH A.............................................3,456.88
CARTER, EUGENE & CARTER, MANOLA L.....................403.13
CARTER, MANOLA & KENNEDY, ANDREA J..................222.50
CARTER, RICHARD & CARTER, GLADYS....................1,212.50
CARTER, RICHARD H...............................................2,798.75
CARVER, ELEANORE B.............................................2,920.63
CARVER, NEAL GRAHAM & CARVER, 
  DONALD CRAIG, TR...............................................1,989.38
CASA M, LLC C/O MARIANN DEE, MEMBER..............3,682.50
CASAD, JENNIFER.......................................................118.75
CASAD, JENNIFER C.................................................1,228.13
CASH, LAWRENCE R, JR...........................................1,178.13
CASTALDI, ALFRED C & DEBRA M, TR.......................5,123.13
CASTELEIRO, DARCY & CASTELEIRO, PAUL...............1,686.25
CASWELL, ELIZABETH R..........................................2,465.00
CATHERINE RM RENO 2002 TRUST..........................1,026.25
CENTRAL MAINE POWER COMPANY...........................163.75
CENTRAL MAINE POWER COMPANY...........................631.88
CENTRAL MAINE POWER COMPANY......................60,281.88
CERVERA, XAVIER...................................................7,926.25
CERVERA, XAVIER...................................................1,720.00
CHABOT, JOHN & MARCIA - LIVING TRUST 
  CHABOT, JOHN A & CHABOT, MARCIA W - TTEE.....2,630.63
CHADWICK, DARRYL W & CHADWICK, CAMILLE A...1,819.38
CHADWICK, JESSICA L & CHADWICK, CASEY L............110.63
CHADWICK, KEVIN G & CHADWICK, ONA G.................936.25
*CHADWICK, WALLACE W & CHADWICK, MARILYN...1,265.00
CHALMERS, HAROLD & MARILYN, TR......................1,050.63
CHALMERS, JEFFREY & CHALMERS, SUSAN.............1,926.25
CHALONS-BROWNE, SUSAN....................................6,678.75
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CHAMBERLAIN, GEORGE - REALTY TRUST................2,896.88
CHAPMAN HOLDINGS, LLC......................................2,585.63
CHAPMAN, DEBORAH................................................911.88
CHAPPELL, THOMAS M...........................................3,061.88
CHAREST, NANCY A....................................................200.00
CHARLES NES, LLC..................................................3,999.38
CHARLES NES, LLC..................................................1,495.00
CHASE APARTMENTS, INC.......................................3,953.13
CHASE APARTMENTS, INC.......................................3,868.13
CHASE APARTMENTS, INC..........................................243.13
CHASE, AUDREY.........................................................848.13
CHASE, AUDREY......................................................4,873.13
CHASE, AUDREY H & CHASE, PAUL L........................3,936.88
CHASE, BEATRICE S....................................................521.25
CHASE, BEATRICE S.................................................1,153.13
CHASE, JEAN E........................................................1,050.00
CHASE, JEAN M..........................................................351.88
CHASE, L. DEWEY & CHASE, BEATRICE S..................3,807.50
CHASE, MARK D, TR.................................................2,821.88
CHASE, MARK D, TR.................................................2,573.75
CHASE, MARK D, TR.................................................1,534.38
CHASE, MICHAEL.......................................................945.63
CHASE, MICHAEL & CHASE, MARK & CONNELL, ANNIE...31.25
CHASE, MICHAEL P.................................................6,140.63
CHASE, REUBEN T & CHASE, CATHERINE M.................519.38
CHASE, REUBEN T & CHASE, CATHERINE M..............2,019.38
CHASE, STEPHEN & CHASE, TARA...............................421.88
CHASE, STEPHEN L & CHASE, JANET........................1,378.13
CHASE, TARA.............................................................821.25
CHASE, TERRY M..........................................................66.25
CHENEY, ALAN B........................................................582.50
CHENEY, DANIEL & CHENEY, SUSAN............................534.38
CHENEY, DAVID P & CHENEY, MERRILLEE C..............2,164.38
CHENEY, DAVID P & CHENEY, MERRILLEE C...................51.88
CHENEY, MARK P & CHENEY, CYNTHIA M....................900.00
CHENEY, MARK P....................................................2,165.00
*CHENEY, PRESCOTT...............................................7,023.75
CHENEY, PRESCOTT.................................................4,400.00
CHENEY, PRESCOTT J..................................................312.50
CHENEY, PRESCOTT J..................................................290.63
CHENEY, PRESCOTT J & NYGREN, 
  VALERIE ELIZABETH.................................................823.13
CHENEY, R DANIEL & SANDRA, TRUSTEES.......................1.88
CHENEY, RAYMOND D & CHENEY, SANDRA.................411.25
CHENEY, RAYMOND D & CHENEY, SANDRA..............1,430.00
CHENEY, RAYMOND D & SANDRA & 
  CHENEY, MARK P..................................................1,717.50
CHENEY, RAYMOND D & SANDRA S, TRUSTEES...........312.50
CHENEY, RAYMOND D & SANDRA, TRUSTEES...........1,216.88
CHENEY, RAYMOND D & SANDRA, TRUSTEES...........2,346.88
CHENEY, RAYMOND D & SANDRA, TRUSTEES................35.00
CHENEY, RICHARD A & CHENEY, KAREN A................2,319.38

CHENEY, RICHARD A & CHENEY, KAREN A.....................73.13
CHENEY, RICHARD A & CHENEY, KAREN A...................314.38
CHENEY, RICHARD A................................................1,086.25
CHENEY, SANDRA S & R DANIEL, TRUSTEES.............3,548.75
CHENEY, SUSAN......................................................2,321.88
CHENEY, VIRGINIA & MYTYCH, CAROLANN & 
  MIDURA, CHARLES V............................................2,875.63
CHERNIKOFF, LARRY B & BECK, ALLISON.................3,097.50
CHESEBRO, MARK B & CHESEBRO, LORI F................2,101.88
CHESEBRO, NATHAN B & CHESEBRO, JENNIFER L.....1,891.25
CHICKERING, CHRISTOPHER RYAN..............................228.13
*CHICKERING, EDWARD & CHICKERING, CHRISTINE...1,245.00
*CHICKERING, WAYNE M.........................................2,232.50
CHI-HAN CHYUNG REVOCABLE TRUST (THE)...........4,642.50
CHILD, AARON & WILDE, PETER.................................441.25
CHILD, AARON C.....................................................1,038.75
CHILD, AARON C........................................................478.75
CHILD, ERNEST, III...................................................2,936.88
CHIPMAN, JOHN M & CHIPMAN, BONNIE M............2,183.13
CHIPMAN, JOHN M & CHIPMAN, BONNIE M...............323.13
CHIPMAN, KENNETH L, JR HEIRS................................346.25
CHRISTIAN, LOUISE W.............................................1,440.00
CHUBB, MARLIN E & CHUBB, JILL S............................522.50
CHURCHILL, DOUGLAS J.............................................351.25
CHURCHILL, MELBA & ZAVON, MARY & 
  DINSMORE, JANICE.................................................758.75
CHUTTER, RICHARD R - TRUST.................................6,368.13
CIESLA, JOHN M & CIESLA, SARAH B..........................188.13
CLAFLIN, WILLIAM L & CLAFLIN, KATHLEEN H.........1,840.63
CLAPPER, SANDRA L..................................................522.50
CLARK, ANNA M & CLARK, WILLIAM O, JR...............2,453.75
*CLARK, DOUGLAS E..................................................904.38
CLARK, DOUGLAS M & CLARK, JULIA L....................1,575.00
CLARK, GILMORE N & CLARK, PHYLLIS M................2,145.63
CLARK, J THOMAS & CLARK, NANCY W....................3,591.25
CLARK, LORIELIE J...................................................1,719.38
CLARK, ROBERT B & CLARK, CAROLE JEAN...................25.63
*CLARK, ROBERT B & CLARK, CAROLE JEAN............1,890.63
CLARK, WILLIAM A, III & CLARK, JENNIFER S..............714.38
CLARKE, ROBERT, JR & LECHASSEUR, SUSAN...........1,339.38
CLAXTON, LORINDA C..............................................1,670.63
CLEAVES, JENNY E......................................................156.25
CLEFT ROCK REALTY HOLDINGS OF MAINE, LLC.......1,046.88
CLEFT ROCK REALTY HOLDINGS OF MAINE, LLC.......9,676.25
CLEFT ROCK REALTY HOLDINGS OF MAINE, LLC..........508.13
CLIFF STREET TRUST................................................6,416.25
CLIFF STREET TRUST SPATE, LOUISE A - TRUSTEE........333.13
CLIFFORD, ANNE E..................................................1,166.88
CLIFFORD, ARIELLE M.............................................1,721.88
CLIFFORD, BARBARA S - TRUST CLIFFORD, 
  BARBARA S & CORNISH, JOHN M - TTEE................2,986.25
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CLIFFORD, FREDERIC M - TRUST CLIFFORD, 
  FREDERIC M & CORNISH, JOHN M - TTEE...............3,401.88
CLIFFORD, FREDERIC M - TRUST CLIFFORD, 
  FREDERIC M & CORNISH, JOHN M - TTEE...............1,063.13
CLIFFORD, GARY L & PRENTICE, GORDON...................428.13
CLIFFORD, GARY L......................................................982.50
CLIFFORD , STEPHANIE...........................................3,740.63
CLIFFORD, STEPHANIE ANN & CLIFFORD, GARY L........199.38
*CLINEY, PATRICIA A...............................................3,744.38
CLINEY, PATRICIA A......................................................20.63
CLOSSON, MARY BURNS..............................................30.00
CLOSSON, TED A & CLOSSON, MARY B........................785.00
CLOUGH, WILLIAM S & CLOUGH, OLGA FOWLER......3,908.75
COAKLEY, MARGARET M & FITTON, PHILLIP R..........2,202.50
COCHRANE, DONNA H................................................223.13
COCHRANE, DONNA H & CASAVANT, THERESA & 
  MARTIN, JAY........................................................1,950.63
COGAR, LARA L, TR LARA M COGAR REVOC TR.........4,435.63
*COGGINS, CHRISTOPHER F & COGGINS, DEIRDRE H..1,578.75
COGGINS, PHYLLIS R...............................................1,022.50
COHEN, RICHARD & GOUVERNEUR, ELIZABETH R.......924.38
COHEN, RICHARD & GOUVERNEUR, ELIZABETH R.......300.63
COLBY, VIRGINIA.....................................................1,367.50
COLE, AARON D & COLE, LYNN E..............................1,600.00
COLE, LOREN W & COLE, DEBORAH W......................2,696.88
COLE, STACEY A......................................................1,135.00
COLEMAN, GENE KEVAN & 
  SKILLINGS-COLEMAN, ELIZABETH........................1,783.75
COLEMAN, GENE KEVAN & 
  SKILLINGS-COLEMAN, ELIZABETH...........................193.75
COLEMAN, MIRA H..................................................1,848.75
COLLAMORE, DONALD & COLLAMORE, REBECCA A... 1,345.00
COLLAMORE, JEFFREY A..........................................1,108.75
COLLEA, RUFUS & COLLEA, TRACY L........................3,853.13
COLLINS, KATHLEEN, TR..........................................1,168.13
COLLINS, PETER F & COLLINS, AMES J........................190.63
COLLINS, SUZANNE R..............................................5,943.75
COLQUHOUN, ROBERT..................................................37.50
COLQUHOUN, ROBERT & COLQUHOUN, ELIZABETH.....727.50
CONGDON, PHILIP A & CONGDON, RUTH F...............5,360.63
CONGDON, PRISCILLA G..........................................1,151.25
CONGER, MARGARET L - TRUST...............................3,785.63
CONNELL, ANNIE E MAHAN.....................................2,437.50
CONNER, MARY ANN & GUMKOWSKI, FREDERICK...2,254.38
CONNOR, RAYMOND JAMES.......................................826.25
CONRAD, R JAMES & WENDY O, TR..........................5,061.88
CONRON, ODETTE J & PYLE, NICOLE F & 
  ATKINSTON, JEANINE Y............................................993.75
CONSTANTINOU, GUS & CONSTANTINOU, PATRICIA... 2,698.13
CONWAY, KEVIN P & VIRGINIA P CONWAY, TTEES.....2,707.50
CONWAY, LESLIE & GARTELMANN, JANET................3,060.00
COOK, CHERYL A & SPITZ, BARBARA.......................4,300.63

COOK, GRAYSON & COOK, ANN...................................722.50
COOK, KEVIN L & COOK, LISA L................................2,571.88
COOK, LAURA I...........................................................920.63
COOK, NATHAN DANIEL & DEONIS, 
  MARIA CRISTINA..................................................1,680.00
COOK, PETER J & COOK, HEIDI....................................265.63
COOKE, DALE W & COOKE, MATTHEW F...................2,377.50
COOK-MATHIESON, SARAH A..................................1,715.00
COOLIDGE, A KNIGHT & KNIGHT, ROBERT B & 
  HELEN K...............................................................2,415.63
COOMBS, STEVEN W & COOMBS, RENEE E..................715.63
COOPER, ANDREW.....................................................203.13
COOPER, EARL A JR & COOPER, REBECCA J.................190.63
COOPER, EARLE & COOPER, REBECCA J.......................606.25
COOPER, EARLE A & COOPER, REBECCA...................1,686.88
COOPER, EARLE A, JR & COOPER, REBECCA GLEN.....6,019.38
COOPER, EARLE A, JR & REBECCA J.............................178.13
COOPER, EARLE A, JR & REBECCA J.............................184.38
COOPER, EARLE A, JR & REBECCA J.............................215.63
COOPER, EARLE A, JR & REBECCA J.............................184.38
COOPER, EARLE A, JR & REBECCA J.............................171.88
COOPER, EARLE A, JR & REBECCA J.............................190.63
COOPER, EARLE A, JR & COOPER, REBECCA J...............463.13
COOPER, MARIE E........................................................55.63
COOPER, NICHOLAUS.................................................293.75
COOPER, REBECCA J EARL A, EARL A, JR.....................293.13
CORBETT, ALEXANDER E, III & CORBETT, 
  MARY RUTH F......................................................1,286.88
CORBETT, JANET R...................................................4,885.63
CORCORAN, PETER BLAZE.......................................1,170.00
CORCORAN, PETER BLAZE..........................................605.00
CORDASCO, ANTHONY W & GEROW, JULIE C............3,827.50
CORMIER, RENEE L & CORMIER, TIMOTHY J................532.50
CORSON, LEOL L.............................................................0.00
CORSON, MATTHEW L & CORSON, MICHELE M........1,066.88
CORWIN, ISABELLA M.............................................4,439.38
CORWIN, ISABELLA M................................................180.63
CORWIN, ISABELLA M.............................................2,924.38
*COTTON, KENNETH S & COTTON, JUDITH M............1,910.63
COUCH, JOHN B & COUCH, MAY E............................1,038.13
COUGH, PAUL F & SCHULZE, INGRID...........................173.75
COUGH, PAUL F & SCHULZE, INGRID...........................751.25
COWAN, DAVID S....................................................1,151.88
COWAN, LEAH & COWAN, DAVID & 
  COWAN, BRETT J. & COWAN, CHAD D.......................261.25
COWAN, LEAH & COWAN, DAVID & 
  COWAN, BRETT J. & COWAN, CHAD D.........................40.63
COWAN, LEAH & COWAN, DAVID & 
  COWAN, BRETT J. & COWAN, CHAD D.......................201.88
COWAN, LEAH & COWAN, DAVID & 
  COWAN, BRETT J. & COWAN, CHAD D....................1,314.38
COWAN, SHAWN C & COWAN, APRIL M......................591.88
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COX, ANDREA P............................................................99.38
COX, ANDREA P & COX, RYAN P...............................1,579.38
COX, ANDREA P..........................................................123.13
COX, ANDREA P............................................................97.50
COX, RYAN P & COX, ANDREA P..................................181.25
CRAIG, A, DOUGLAS P.............................................2,358.13
CRAIG, DOUGLAS L & CRAIG, MARY C......................2,015.00
CRAIG, GEORGE A & CRAIG, SHARON G.......................431.25
CRAIG, KELLI M & CRAIG, JOSHUA A........................1,424.38
CRAIG, WILLARD C.......................................................39.38
CRAIG, WILLARD C & CRAIG, DONNA H....................1,096.25
CRAMER, FRANCIS L & WILSON, JOYCE E & 
  BRANT R, TRUSTEES.............................................1,028.13
CRAMER, FRANCIS L & WILSON, JOYCE E & 
  WILSON, BRANT R - TRUSTEES.................................690.00
CRAMER, SUZANNA & CRAMER, FRANCIS L, III........4,239.38
CRANE, LAURIE L.......................................................551.25
CRAWFORD, NUEL W & CRAWFORD, DIANA C...............46.88
*CRAWFORD, NUEL W & CRAWFORD, DIANA C........1,448.75
CRIDER, WILLIAM G JR & CRIDER, JULIE H...............1,862.50
CROCKER, CLAIRE S TR............................................3,354.38
CROCKETT, EVELYN.....................................................326.25
CROCKETT, EVELYN M.................................................541.25
CROCKETT, EVELYN M.................................................573.13
CROCKETT, EVELYN M.................................................393.75
CROCKETT, EVELYN M & CROCKETT, TROY K................467.50
CRONRATH, GARY H & CRONRATH, ROBINA R..........2,050.63
CROOK, LORI LEE & RUSSELL, WILLIAM J JR.............2,363.13
CROOK, ROBERT W JR................................................386.25
CROOK, TIMOTHY B....................................................252.50
*CROOK, TIMOTHY B & CROOK, ROBERT W JR & 
  MCLAIN, KIMBERLY I & CROOK, KATHLEEN R........3,750.00
CROOKER JR, STERLING T...........................................516.25
CROOKER JR, STERLING T.............................................71.88
CROOKER JR, STERLING T & CROOKER, CAROL LEE......307.50
CROOKER, DENNIS B & CROOKER, GAIL M................4,483.75
CROOKER, JOSEPH C................................................2,103.13
CROOKER, JOSEPH C...................................................647.50
CROOKER, JULIA E........................................................46.25
CROOKER, STERLING T III & SARA L.........................2,816.25
CROOKER, STERLING T JR & CROOKER, CAROL L.......4,156.88
CROOKER, STERLING T JR & CROOKER, CAROL L.......2,103.13
CROOKER, STERLING T JR & CROOKER, CAROL L..........413.75
CROOKER, STERLING JR & CAROL LEE...........................75.63
CROSBY, BENTLEY C & CROSBY, GERTRUDE B...........1,126.25
CROSS, TADE F, TRUSTEE.........................................1,325.00
CROSSLEY, WILLIAM S JR........................................2,043.75
CROSSLEY, WILLIAM S JR.............................................66.25
CROWE, RICHARD D & CROWE, BRENDA E...............2,140.63
CROWELL, ROBERT N & CROWELL, LAURA...............1,944.38
CROWLEY, MARK D & CROWLEY, MARY CATHERINE....564.38
CROZIER, CATHERINE..............................................1,351.88

CRUDEN, IRENE.......................................................1,327.50
CULLEN, DAVID J & CULLEN, KATHY S......................7,965.00
CULLEN, JOYCE M....................................................1,316.25
*CULPOVICH, STEPHEN M & CULPOVICH, 
  DEBORAH E..........................................................1,404.38
CUMMINGS, BRUCE & CUMMINGS, KAREN.................340.63
CUMMINGS, BRUCE M & CUMMINGS, KAREN E............43.75
CUMMINGS, CHARLES W & CUMMINGS, JANE D......4,704.38
*CUNNINGHAM, ALEXANDER J & 
  CUNNINGHAM, FAYE M........................................1,062.50
CUNNINGHAM, BETSY & CARL W JR, TR......................267.50
CUNNINGHAM, BETSY & CARL W TR...........................851.25
CUNNINGHAM, LEE N & MARIE L & 
  CUNNINGHAM, SCOTT N.......................................1,416.25
CUNNINGHAM, PAUL S & CUNNINGHAM, SHARI AF...2,080.63
CUNNINGHAM, PAUL S & CUNNINGHAM, SHARI AF...1,991.25
CUNNINGHAM, S BRUCE & CUNNINGHAM, 
  PATRICIA J............................................................2,037.50
*CUNNINGHAM, S BRUCE & CUNNINGHAM, 
  PATRICIA J............................................................3,271.25
CUNNINGHAM, SHARI AF & CUNNINGHAM, 
  PAUL S.................................................................2,888.13
CURLEY, KATHLEEN M & CURLEY, JOHN E...................206.88
CURRAN, ANNE J & GAWALT, JANE F........................2,615.63
CURRAN-WATSON, LOUISE......................................1,620.00
CURRIER, SCOTT & CURRIER, THERESA....................2,196.88
CURTIS, ANNE V.........................................................992.50
CURTIS, NATHANIEL T & CURTIS, LINE B..................2,100.00
CURTO, ALAN.............................................................237.50
CUSHING, ADELYN IN TRUST........................................15.63
CUSHING, BRIAN H & STINCHFIELD, MARY Y...............265.63
CUSHING, DAVID W & CUSHING, CATHERINE J..............23.75
CUSHING, DAVID W & CUSHING, CATHERINE J.........1,340.00
CUSHING, DAVID W & CUSHING, CATHERINE J.........1,062.50
CUSHING, DAVID W & CUSHING, CATHERINE J............124.38
*CUSHING, HOWARD M.............................................612.50
CUSHING, ROBERT E................................................1,523.75
CUSICK, THOMAS H.................................................1,655.00
CYR, DANIEL & CYR, LORI G.....................................1,194.38
CYR, NORA A & CYR, PAUL J....................................1,096.25
D & E FRIEDLANDER REALTY TRUST OF 2013...........2,423.13
D & E LAND, INC.........................................................403.13
DAERH, LLC.............................................................3,293.13
DAERH, LLC.............................................................1,066.88
DALBECK, BRUCE W & PICCIRILLO, PETER H & 
  BARBARA D..........................................................1,340.63
DALBECK, RICHARD B REAL ESTATE TRUST..............2,865.63
DALBECK, RICHARD B REAL ESTATE TRUST..............2,664.38
DALTON FAMILY LTD PRTNERSHIP...........................2,014.38
DALTON FAMILY LTD PRTNERSHIP...........................4,384.38
DALTON FAMILY LTD PRTNERSHIP...........................1,884.38
DAMARISCOTTA BANK & TRUST CO..........................1,040.63
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DAMIGELLA, BEVERLY.............................................2,246.25
DAMIGELLA, JOSEPH J, III & DAMIGELLA, 
  BEVERLY JEAN.........................................................668.75
DAMPEER, JANE D & HUTCHINSON, REILLY A...........1,360.63
DANCH, JOANN C - (HEIRS OR DEVISEES OF)............1,783.13
DARLING-CUMMINGS, ELAINE H, TRUSTEE..............3,260.63
DAVENPORT, JULIET & GILBERT, EMILY MARY..........3,783.13
DAVENPORT, JULIET R & GILBERT, EMILY MARY.......1,144.38
DAVENPORT, JULIET R.............................................1,385.00
DAVEY, REGINA ANN; GUARDIAN OF PARSONS, 
  BRENDAN R.............................................................226.88
DAVIDSON, CONSTANCE.............................................338.75
DAVIDSON, CONSTANCE L........................................1,202.50
DAVIDSON, CONSTANCE L........................................2,134.38
DAVIDSON, ROBERT P & BIZARRO, RACHEL L..............399.38
*DAVIDSON, ROBERT P & BIZARRO, RACHEL L.........3,377.50
DAVIS, ALAN B & ANDRAS, JUDITH L.......................1,325.00
DAVIS, ALEXANDER MCD.........................................2,007.50
DAVIS, KATHLEEN F....................................................238.13
DAVIS, MARILYN B.....................................................513.75
DAVISON, CATHY G..................................................3,491.25
DAWSON, LISABETH A (HEIRS)...................................557.50
DAWSON, MICHAEL & DAWSON, DENISE....................473.75
DAWSON, MICHAEL R.............................................2,115.00
DAWSON, MICHAEL R.............................................2,582.50
DAY, JONATHAN O & DAY, SHANNON D....................1,347.50
DAY, KIMBERLY A & MAXCY, DARREN B....................1,356.25
DAY, MATTHEW M...................................................1,207.50
DEARING, HEATHERLEE C...........................................935.00
DEARING, JOANNA STARR.......................................1,546.25
DEE, PATRICE B..........................................................885.63
DEE, PATRICE B.......................................................1,581.25
DEGHETTO, RICHARD L & DEGHETTO, LEONA C...........153.13
DEGRANPRE, JUDY E...............................................5,183.75
DELINO, LYNNE P & DERRIG, LAUREN P...................8,699.38
DELINO, LYNNE P & DERRIG, LAUREN P........................95.63
DELINO, LYNNE P, TR. & DERRIG, LAUREN P..............4,149.38
DELONG, CYNTHIA H & HOLMES, LINDA H & 
  HANNA, SUSIE.........................................................228.75
DELONG, CYNTHIA H & HOLMES, LINDA H & 
  HANNA, SUSIE JUAN...................................................2.50
DELONG, CYNTHIA H & HOLMES, LINDA H & 
  HANNA, SUSIE JUAN............................................1,620.63
DELONG, CYNTHIA H & HOLMES, LINDA H & 
  HANNA, SUSIE JUAN...............................................237.50
DELONG, CYNTHIA H & HOLMES, LINDA H & 
  HANNA, SUSIE JUAN...............................................190.63
DELONG, CYNTHIA H & HOLMES, LINDA H & 
  HANNA, SUSIE JUAN...............................................181.25
DELONG, DAVID H & DELONG, CYNTHIA...................1,088.75
DELONG, SIDNEY G & DAVIERO, JILL R.....................2,007.50

DELONG, SIDNEY G & DAVIERO, JILL R & 
  RUSSELL, WILLIAM J JR........................................2,108.75
DEMAURIAC, ALICE D & SANCHEZ-BANOS, JULIO A...7,922.50
DENISON, CHRISTOPHER & DENISON, 
  WENDY A WHITING..............................................1,783.13
DENNE, GRAHAM....................................................3,895.00
DENNIS, SANDY & OSTROM, KAREN........................1,181.25
DERIVAN HOLDINGS, LLC........................................2,161.88
DERMEN, DIRAN & BRUZENAK, GEORGE.....................535.00
DERMEN, DIRAN & BRUZENAK, GEORGE.........................0.63
DERMEN, DIRAN & BRUZENAK, GEORGE..................4,845.63
*DEUCHER, VIRGINIA M..........................................2,120.63
DEWBEA, LLC..........................................................1,342.50
DEWEIR, DIANE.........................................................724.38
DEWEIR, DIANE C....................................................1,231.25
DEWEY, CHARLES F & WILLIAMS, ANDREA I............2,562.50
DEXTER, STEPHANIE L & WARNER, SABRINA G...........556.88
DIANNE S DOLAN AND FARRELL J DOLAN, TTEES.....3,890.63
DICKASON, ANN A..................................................5,935.63
DICKINSON, MICHAEL B & DICKINSON, Nancy.......1,676.25
DIETERICH REALTY TRUST - DIETERICH, TIMOTHY J & 
  HALEEN H, TRUSTEES..............................................658.13
DIETZ, VIVIEN EVE & BERKEY, JONATHAN P.............2,162.50
DIGHTON, WAYNE & DIGHTON, CHRISTINE...............1,130.00
DIGREGORIO, VINCENT J & DIGREGORIO, LYNETTE A...192.50
DIMAURO, DAVID PAUL, JR......................................1,230.00
DIMAURO, DAVID PAUL, JR & DIMAURO, 
  JESSICA MARIE........................................................929.38
DINSMORE, JOLENE R................................................877.50
DINUCCI, JUDITH CHRISTENSON, TR........................2,703.13
DIONNE, ALLEN......................................................3,074.38
DIPALERMO, DIANE & DIPALERMO, JOSEPH................810.00
DISANDRO, JEFFREY J & DISANDRO, 
  MARY BROWNE....................................................2,232.50
*DOAN, PENELOPE & JOYAL, THANE...........................868.13
DOBROWOLSKI, ALEX & DOBROWOLSKI, JOAN P.....1,161.25
DOCKLAND, LLC.........................................................737.50
DODGE FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST.......................4,620.63
DODGE FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST............................91.88
DODGE, ELLIOTT, JR & HOUSE, MELISSA..................1,324.38
DODGE, JOYCE G & DODGE, JOHN, TR.......................4,968.13
*DODGE, MARIE N..................................................1,271.25
DODGE, SHEILA HENNESSEY...................................1,958.13
DODGE, TERRIE A....................................................1,030.00
DOEHLER, SYDNEY GADD - REVOCABLE TRUST...........245.63
DOEHLER, SYDNEY GADD - REVOC TR 5/19/16........1,366.25
DOERING, MARIAN H.................................................762.50
DOERING, MARIAN H..............................................3,405.63
DOHERTY, AMY H....................................................1,089.38
DOHERTY, DIANA R.................................................1,095.63
*DOHERTY, GEORGE F, JR...........................................645.00
DOHERTY, JAMES E & DOHERTY, SANDRA J..............2,262.50
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DOLBEAR, CAROLYN LS - TRUST..............................1,080.00
DOMINA, RANDY & DOMINA, NATASHA.....................210.00
DONALDSON, ANDREW L & GILL, 
  BRITTANY ELIZABETH...........................................1,536.88
DONALDSON, GARY A, JR & DIANE H.......................1,248.13
DONALDSON, JEAN Z - TRUST.................................1,959.38
DONEGAN, BRENDAN P...........................................1,653.75
DONOVAN, BARBARA A...........................................1,905.63
DONOVAN, CRAIG H................................................3,605.63
DORR, GEORGE W & DOROTHY A, TRUSTEES............3,505.00
DORR, JOHN L - (DEVISEES OF)...................................898.13
DOUGHTY, KAREN D & DOUGHTY, JAMES C..............1,224.38
DOUGLAS FAMILY TRUST.........................................1,745.63
DOWLING, DOUGLAS A & DOWLING, NANCY G...........116.25
DOWLING, DOUGLAS A & DOWLING, NANCY G........3,200.63
DOWSE, JAMES & DOWSE, MAUREEN.....................1,846.88
DOYLE, KELLY M.........................................................688.13
DRAKE, MEGAN R......................................................212.50
DRISKO, DONALD F....................................................949.38
DRISKO, LYNNE J........................................................895.63
DRISKO, MARJORY F - (LIFE ESTATE)...........................175.00
DRUM, PETER W.....................................................3,534.38
DRUMMEY, THOMAS E & CARNES, JUANITA A.............204.38
DUDDY, HERBERT H....................................................346.88
DUDDY, KENNETH & DUDDY, CHARLENE..................1,867.50
DUDDY, KENNETH & DUDDY, CHARLENE.....................121.88
DUDLEY, BRISTOL & MOORE, LLC - 
  MCFARLAND SHORE RD, LOT 18C SERIES...............8,326.25
DUFOUR, ROBERT E (DEVISEES OF).............................209.38
DUGDALE, JUANITA B..............................................1,953.13
DUGGAN, JUDITH R L & DUGGAN, CHARLES W........1,307.50
DUHAMEL, CAROLE A.................................................785.00
DUHAMEL, JAMES & DUHAMEL, LAURIE.................1,430.63
DUNBAR, BRIAN E......................................................215.63
DUNSMORE, DAVID & DUNSMORE, MARCIA............1,610.00
DUNSTAN, KEITH G & ACHORN-DUNSTAN, KATE L...1,396.25
DURCAN, GERARD & GERACHIS, JO ANN....................953.75
DURHAM, WILLIAM B & DURHAM, KATHLEEN A......1,680.00
DVOROZNIAK, MARK S, TRUSTEE.............................2,700.63
DWYER, FRANCES S, TRUSTEE....................................337.50
DWYER, FRANCES S, TRUSTEE....................................498.75
DYER, DANA D & MARGARET LYNN & BENJAMIN.....1,783.13
DYER, JONATHAN & DYER, ALLISON A........................381.25
DYER, SPENCER & SMITH, KRISTINE........................1,666.88
DYER, SPENCER T & DYER, KRISTINE R..........................58.13
DYER, SPENCER T & DYER, KRISTINE R..........................64.38
DYER, THOMAS & DYER, DYAN O.............................5,709.38
DYSENCHUK, CYNTHIA & DILLON, ANDREA.............1,188.13
EASTER, JENNIFER C................................................1,001.88
ECKEL, ALAN ELLIS & ECKEL, JENNIFER JO...............4,803.13
ECKSTEIN, HENRY E, JR & ECKSTEIN, 
  JACQUELINE M.....................................................1,545.63

EDDYBLOUIN, JOHN & EDDYBLOUIN, ALISON..........1,361.88
EDMUNDS, HUGH G & EDMUNDS, LUCY..................5,466.25
EDMUNDS, JANICE T...............................................1,257.50
EDSTROM, DAVID & EDSTROM, LAUREN.....................382.50
EDWARDS, MILDRED STOLTE...................................2,206.88
EDWARDS, MILDRED STOLTE......................................491.25
EGBERT, THURSTON M, JR & BARBARA D, TTEES......1,718.75
EHRENFELD, ELIZABETH E & MARTHA & EMILY......12,609.38
EILENBERG, JEFF E & WRIGHT, KATHLEEN M............2,008.13
EINHORN, EDGAR R & EINHORN, BARBARA O..........4,787.50
ELEFANTE, MICHAEL B, TR - DANA ROBES TRUST...11,390.63
ELIZABETH K MCFARLAND TRUST 6/26/15 - 
  ELIZABETH K MCFARLAND, TRUSTEE...................11,592.50
ELIZABETH, MARY TRUST C/O PAUL MUISE................703.75
ELLIOTT, CLAUDE C, JR...............................................237.50
ELLIOTT, CLAUDE C, JR............................................1,324.38
ELLIOTT, DAVID J & ELLIOTT, JANE THOMAS.............2,261.25
ELLIOTT, ROSEMARY Y & ELLIOTT, CRAIG E..................890.00
ELLIOTT, SHAWN M & ADAMS, CHRISTY L...............1,083.75
ELLIOTT, WAYNE ROBERT..............................................33.75
ELLIOTT, WAYNE ROBERT............................................213.75
ELOWE, KENNETH D................................................1,155.63
ELSKUS REALTY TRUST - ELSKUS DENSCH, ARILDA & 
  ELSKUS, ADRIA & ALBIN P....................................3,391.25
ELSKUS REALTY, LLC................................................3,348.75
ELWELL, MICHAEL H..................................................336.88
EMANUEL, SUSAN & EMANUEL, KERRY...................2,281.88
EMBURY, DAVID C & EMBURY, CARYN E...................1,330.00
EMERY, DALLAS E, SR.................................................283.75
EMERY, DALLAS, SR................................................2,243.13
ENDERS, CAROL A......................................................204.38
ENDERS, CAROL ANN & ENDERS, VILLI.......................215.63
ENDERS, VILLI P & ENDERS, CAROL.........................1,230.63
ENDERS, VILLI P & ENDERS, CAROL............................305.00
ENGLISH, WENDY S & ENGLISH, TIMOTHY L.............1,576.88
ENRIQUEZ, JUAN C.....................................................568.75
ENRIQUEZ, JUAN C..................................................7,271.25
ENTRUST NEW ENGLAND FBO PAUL F COUGH............179.38
ENTRUST NEW ENGLAND FBO PAUL F COUGH............173.75
ERAKLIS, JOHN..........................................................488.75
ERB, PATRICIA A......................................................2,048.13
ERICKSON, BRUCE & ERICKSON, NANCY..................7,091.88
ERICKSON, ROBERT D & ERICKSON, BRENDA M........1,941.88
ERICKSON, TODD M....................................................892.50
ERICSON, ANDREA, TR & BERKELELY, JOHN, TR........3,176.88
ERN, JEANETTE P, TR...............................................1,590.00
ERNST, MARGOT KLEBE..............................................418.75
ERNST, MARGOT KLEBE..............................................565.00
*ERTMAN REVOCABLE FAMILY TRUST.....................3,755.00
ERTMAN, PATRICIA S...............................................6,065.00
ESKESEN, SAGE.......................................................1,441.88
ESSING, DAVID B & ESSING, DEBORAH L..................1,376.88
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ETHERIDGE, RUTH L & ETHERIDGE, BRIAN E............1,115.63
EUART, ELWOOD JOSEPH & WOOD-EUART, DOLORES, 
  TR. - EUART FAMILY MANAGEMENT TRUST...........2,150.63
EUGLEY, ROBERT A, JR & EUGLEY, REBECCA H..........1,750.63
EUGLEY, ROBERT JR & EUGLEY, REBECCA....................196.88
EUGLEY, ROBERT V & EUGLEY, SUSAN L...................1,111.25
EUGLEY, SARAH.........................................................237.50
EVANS, DAVID A......................................................1,914.38
*EVANS, ZOE ANN...................................................2,270.63
EVOSKEVICZ, PAMELA F.............................................236.25
EVOSKEVICZ, PAMELA F..........................................1,141.88
EVOSKEVICZ, PAMELA F.............................................158.13
EVOSKEVICZ, PAMELA F.............................................285.63
*F GERARD MERSER REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST......7,573.13
FAGERSTROEM, PETER, TRUSTEE.............................1,282.50
FAIGLE, JOHN NORMAN, JR...................................10,525.00
FAIRBROTHER, ROBERT W & BARBARA J, TR............3,266.25
FAIRBROTHER, ROBERT W & BARBARA J, TR...............823.75
FAIRWIND MARINE SUPPLY & REPAIR, INC.................515.00
FAIRWIND MARINE SUPPLY, INC..............................1,275.63
FALABELLA, ELIZABETH A.......................................1,541.88
FALABELLA, NICHOLAS J.........................................1,114.38
FARNSWORTH, KAREN...............................................825.00
FARNSWORTH, KAREN...............................................428.13
FARNSWORTH, KAREN E & MCCRARY, LEON R.........1,158.13
FARRAR, EDWARD & MARION, TRUSTEES................2,176.88
FARRAR, EDWARD L - NOMINEE TRUST...................2,410.00
FARRELL, BETH L & LIBBY, SUSAN D........................5,836.88
FARRELL, LINDA C & PETER M., TR..............................346.88
FARRELL, LINDA C & PETER M, TR............................6,661.25
FARRELL, LINDA C & PETER M, TR............................4,241.88
FARRELL, MARGARET S...........................................3,073.75
FARRIN, BARBARA C...............................................3,619.38
FARRIN, BONNIE F...................................................1,306.25
FARRIN, GARY P & FARRIN, MICHELLE.....................1,303.13
FARRIN, LILLA M & FARRIN, GARY P...........................241.88
FARRIN, LILLA M & FARRIN, GARY P...........................885.63
FARRIN, MARGARET W...............................................522.50
FEIGENBAUM, ELI......................................................695.00
FELICE, JOSPEH P, JR & FELICE PAMELA B................1,956.25
FELT, FORREST F & FELT, LORRAINE M.........................940.00
FELTIS, CHRISTOPHER C & FELTIS, BRENDA..............1,001.25
FELTIS, DALE A & FELTIS, SHARLENE P........................777.50
FELTIS, GREGORY S....................................................999.38
FELTIS, MICHAEL D..................................................1,399.38
FELTIS, TIMOTHY.....................................................1,177.50
FENNER, SHARON L................................................1,115.00
FENSTER, ROSS & LEFF, JANE, TR.............................4,126.25
FERGUSON III, MOUNCEY & BARKER, LIISA & 
  BARKER, KENT.....................................................4,043.13
FERGUSON, BRUCE W & FERGUSON, CYNTHIA F......3,533.75
FERGUSON, STEVEN E.............................................6,957.50

FERNANDEZ, GERARD JR & FERNANDEZ, 
  BEVERLY W..........................................................5,432.50
FEULNER, NANCY W................................................1,285.00
FICKEN, ROBERT & FICKEN, GALINA V......................1,908.13
FIELDING, JOHN C & FIELDING, LYNNE A................10,775.63
FIELDS, BRADLEY P & FIELDS, PATRICIA A...............1,438.75
FIELDS, BRADLEY P & FIELDS, PATRICIA A..................209.38
FISCHER, PETER R & JACKSON, CAROL A..................1,600.00
FISHER, MARIA R.......................................................286.25
FISKE, JOHN H, JR...................................................1,937.50
FISKE, KELLEE............................................................952.50
FISKE, KELLEE............................................................298.13
FITZPATRICK REV TR FITZPATRICK, JUNE REILLY - TR...246.88
FITZPATRICK, JAMES T................................................923.13
FITZPATRICK, JOSHUA J..............................................463.13
FLAHERTY, MAUREEN & MOYSEY, JAMES................1,007.50
FLANAGAN, DAVID P & FLANAGAN, AMY L..............6,152.50
FLANAGAN, DAVID P. & FLANAGAN, AMY L.................354.38
*FLANAGAN, JOHN E & FLANAGAN, DENISE E.........2,184.38
FLANAGAN, MARTHA M & HEBERT, FREDERICK R....6,835.00
FLANAGAN, MARTHA M & HEBERT, FREDERICK R....3,098.13
FLETCHER, BELINDA................................................1,170.63
FLETCHER, DANNY J................................................1,353.13
*FLETCHER, JOAN B...................................................672.50
FLETCHER, RONALD, TR...........................................1,886.88
FLEURY, EVA M & FLEURY, ROBERT ALLEN..................880.00
FLEWELLING, W TR & DODGE, NANCY - PR ETAL......2,093.75
FLEWELLING, WILLIAM A, TRUSTEE........................3,385.00
FLINT, SANDY & FLINT, SHERRY...............................9,589.38
FLOOD, THOMAS ROSS, TR & CINDY J, TR...............15,413.75
FLOOD, THOMAS ROSS, TR & CINDY J, TR.................1,365.00
FLOWER, DAVID M..................................................1,605.00
FLOWER, DAVID M..................................................1,068.75
FOBERT, EDWARD & MOE, JANICE & 
  POTTER, PAMELA & POTTER, MICHAEL.................1,536.88
FOGG, BRENT A & FOGG, ANNE MARIE.......................758.75
FOLEY, TIMOTHY D & FOLEY, LOIS K.........................1,243.13
FOLGER, GRACE..........................................................608.75
FOLLETT, BARBARA & MONTOURI, THOMAS...............461.88
FONDRIEST, JULIA A & GRASS, CHRISTINA M.........15,437.50
FONO, NICHOLAS A....................................................910.63
FONTANELLA, ROBERT G & FONTANELLA, 
  SHARON R............................................................1,217.50
FOOTE, DAVID............................................................717.50
FORBES, BETTY GOLDSMITH...................................1,943.13
FORBES, LURENE S.....................................................518.13
FORD, FRANCIS F & FORD, ILENE B..........................1,047.50
FORTIER, RICHARD A...............................................2,318.75
FORTIER-TAPLIN, JOYCE H.......................................1,520.63
FORTIN, JOSEPH & FORTIN, ROANNE.......................2,600.63
FOSSETT, EDWARD A...............................................2,274.38
FOSSETT, EDWARD A & BENNER, AMY L..................1,475.63
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FOSSETT, EDWARD A..................................................328.13
FOSSETT, EDWARD A..................................................438.13
*FOSSETT, GORDON E & FOSSETT, PATRICIA E..........1,464.38
FOSSETT, GORDON E & FOSSETT, PATRICIA E...............588.75
FOSSETT, GORDON E & FOSSETT, PATRICIA E...............511.88
FOSSETT, GORDON E & FOSSETT, PATRICIA E.................43.13
FOSSETT, GORDON E & FOSSETT, PATRICIA E............1,444.38
FOSSETT, GORDON E & FOSSETT, PATRICIA E...............576.25
FOSSETT, GORDON E & FOSSETT, PATRICIA E...............310.63
FOSSETT, HAROLD W..................................................385.63
FOSSETT, KENDALL L & FOSSETT, CARLA A....................43.75
*FOSSETT, KENDALL L & FOSSETT, CARLA A................822.50
FOSSETT, KENDALL L & FOSSETT, CARLA A..................389.38
FOSSETT, KENNETH M & FOSSETT, BARBARA J - 
  JOINT DECLARATION OF TRUST.............................2,351.25
FOSSETT, MEREDITH J & FOSSETT, MICHAEL J & 
  VASSILIOU, BRANDI L..............................................472.50
FOSSETT, MICHAEL J & FOSSETT, COURTNEY M...........556.25
FOSSETT, RACHAEL KAREN.........................................680.63
FOSSETT, RACHAEL KAREN......................................1,519.38
FOSSETT, SUZANNE S - REVOCABLE TR.......................810.00
FOSSETT, SUZANNE S - REVOCABLE TR.......................515.00
*FOSSETT, VALERIE J...............................................1,330.63
FOSSETT, WALTER, SR & FOSSETT, LORRAINE...........1,778.75
FOSSETT, WALTER, SR & KIERSTEAD, SANDRA JF.........661.88
FOSTER, BEVERLY & FOSTER, EVERETT.......................519.38
FOSTER, BEVERLY & FOSTER, EVERETT.......................259.38
FOSTER, DAVID A, JR & FOSTER, CHARLYN F............1,878.75
FOSTER, DAVID AMES & FOSTER, LINDA BENNER........262.50
FOSTER, DAVID, III & SALSBURY, CAROLINE F...........4,020.00
FOSTER, DAVID; FOSTER, BARBARA, ETAL..................313.75
FOSTER, JENNIFER.....................................................578.75
FOSTER, LINDA B.......................................................245.63
FOSTER, MARY...........................................................295.00
FOSTER, MICHAEL R...................................................871.25
FOSTER, SUSAN K...................................................6,428.13
FOSTER, SUSAN K...................................................1,818.75
FOSTER, WILLIAM A & FOSTER, PAULA A.................1,759.38
FOUNTAIN, MELVIN C & FOUNTAIN, EDGAR A...............81.25
FOUNTAIN, MELVIN C & FOUNTAIN, EDGAR A.............984.38
FOUNTAIN, MELVIN C & FOUNTAIN, EDGAR A.............447.50
FOUNTAIN, MELVIN C & FOUNTAIN, EDGAR A..........1,864.38
FOUNTAIN, MELVIN C & FOUNTAIN, EDGAR A.............388.13
FOUNTAIN, MELVIN C & FOUNTAIN, EDGAR A.............142.50
FOURRE, LUKE & FOURRE, KAITLYN.........................1,963.75
FOURTEEN DEGREES, LLC........................................2,743.75
FOWLER, IAN KEATINGE & ALISON COPE FAM TR........426.88
FRADLEY, FREDERICK MACKONELL - (HEIRS OF)......4,672.50
FRANCIS TRUST (THE).............................................3,158.75
FRANCIS TRUST (THE)................................................214.38
FRANCIS TRUST (THE).............................................1,875.00
FRANCIS TRUST (THE).............................................6,656.25

FRANCIS, RICHARD M & FRANCIS, TAMAR JH..........1,674.38
FRANZ, ANDREW B.................................................4,318.75
FRANZEK, WALTER & FRANZEK, DRACHELLE............2,721.88
FRASER, EUNICE.....................................................3,986.88
FRASER, STANLEY A & FRASER, CONSTANCE H........2,501.88
*FREBURGER, JOHN F & FREBURGER, JO-ANN............949.38
FREDERIC, KENNETH O............................................2,656.25
FREDERIC, KENNETH O...............................................320.00
FREDETTE, SHARI I & GIFFORD, KATRINA V..............1,178.13
FREED, ELIZABETH ANN CATANIA...............................462.50
FREEMAN, JOHN.....................................................3,673.13
FREEMAN, JOHN S & COCHRANE, MARY K...............1,654.38
FREESE, CYNTHIA B & FREESE, MARK R...................9,463.75
FREY, JAMES E & FREY, PATRICIA A.............................786.88
FRIEDMAN, ALAN M & FRIEDMAN, MALGORZATA....2,294.38
FRIEDMAN, JEFFREY N & FRIEDMAN, KAREN R........1,268.13
FRIEDMAN, ROBERT M & FRIEDMAN, WINIFRED P...1,901.88
FRITZ, GRACE R; REVOCABLE TRUST 
  FRITZ RUSSEL G (TR), FRITZ GRACE R (TR)............1,189.38
FROSIO, PETER JAMES.............................................1,215.00
FROST, J CHRISTOPHER & FROST, ANNE N................4,893.75
*FURMAN, DANIEL W & FURMAN, MARCIA B..........7,495.63
FURMAN, DEBRA T..................................................1,417.50
FURMAN, ROBERT W JR & SPENCER, 
  NANCY FURMAN..................................................3,866.25
FURMAN, ROBERT W JR & SPENCER, 
  NANCY FURMAN.....................................................610.63
FUSCO, MICHAEL R..................................................1,284.38
FUSCO, RICHARD A & FUSCO, KIMBERLY A...............2,235.63
GABRIEL, WALTER & GABRIEL, PATRICIA - TRUST.....1,223.13
GABRIELE, CHRISTINE A; MAY, DENNIS P JR; 
  MAY, MARK C & ROACH, ANDREA L ET AL..............5,335.00
GAFFNY, CAROLYN R, TRUSTEE................................1,143.13
GAGE FAMILY TRUST...............................................1,791.88
GAGE, JAMES W & ANN L, TR...................................1,201.88
GALLAGHER, DAVID L GALLAGHER, HELEN G...........1,139.38
GALLAGHER, JAMES; GALLAGHER, JOHN & 
  GALLAGHER, RALPH.............................................2,783.75
GALLIGAN, JON P & GALLIGAN, CARLENE N.............2,095.00
GALTON, DORIS & GALTON, JOHN ADAM..................4,126.88
GALVIN, JOANNE L & MARIUS, SUSAN & 
  CROOK, CAROLYN J..................................................651.88
GAMAGE, CHAD G & GAMAGE, JENNIFER L..............1,360.63
GAMAGE, CYNTHIA A.................................................218.75
GAMAGE, CYNTHIA A..............................................1,343.13
GAMAGE, JOHN F....................................................3,231.25
GAMAGE, JOHN F.......................................................556.88
GANEM, BARBARA H & GANEM, WILLIAM L JR...........237.50
GANSON, ALEXANDER............................................1,741.88
GANSON, GEORGE, JR.............................................1,591.88
GANSON-MYSHKIN, NATALIE..................................1,261.88
GANUNG, ROBERT L & GANUNG, CATHERINE D...........915.63
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*GARCIA, THOMAS D & CAMPBELL, DEBORAH G.....2,577.50
GARDNER, GEORGE K, (HEIRS)................................1,303.75
GARDNER, GEORGE K, (HEIRS).....................................12.50
GARRON, ROBERT M & OLSON, JOANNE..................1,201.25
GARSIDE, PAMELA R...............................................1,805.63
GARSTKA, GARRETT...................................................376.88
GARTH, TODD C & ZYLSTRA, LAURA L......................1,283.13
GASTALDO, EDWARD.................................................243.75
GASTALDO, EDWARD, JR.........................................1,568.75
GATCOMBE NEW HARBOR LTD PTNRSHIP................7,212.50
GAUNTT, ROY & GAUNTT, MARY..............................2,160.63
GAUTHIER, DAVID R................................................1,149.38
GAWALT, ANN G & RUSHFORTH, BRIAN C...................509.38
GAWALT, GERARD W & GAWALT, JANE C..................1,671.88
GAWALT, GERARD W & GAWALT, JANE F.....................330.00
*GAYER, FREDERICK W & GAYER, JOAN L....................867.50
GEHRIG, ELIZABETH TEDFORD....................................243.13
GEIB, KURT L..............................................................779.38
*GENTHNER, DENNIS & GENTHNER, SUSANNE...........908.75
GENTHNER, FRANK.................................................1,411.88
GENTHNER, GARY & GENTHNER, LISA M.................1,815.63
GENTHNER, GLENN.................................................2,114.38
GENTHNER, HAZEL M.................................................585.00
GENTHNER, LISA M & GENTHNER, GARY....................212.50
*GENTHNER, MONIKA................................................899.38
GENTHNER, RICKY...................................................1,543.13
GEORGE A BOMANN, III GENERATION-
  SKIPPING TRUST BOMANN, GEORGE A IV & 
  BOMANN, ANDREW B & JOHN D...........................4,344.38
GETZ, STEVEN P & RUSSELL, LINDA L......................1,560.00
GEYER, BENJAMIN & HOPE, STEVEN R............................6.88
GEYER, BENJAMIN & GEYER, DEANNA........................240.63
GEYER, BENJAMIN & GEYER, DEANNA........................193.75
GEYER, BENJAMIN L & GEYER, DEANNA L...................175.63
GEYER, BENJAMIN L & GEYER, DEANNA L...................857.50
GEYER, CHEYENNE MARY PASCIUTI............................161.25
GEYER, CORTNEY LEE..............................................1,177.50
GEYER, IRENE A.........................................................861.88
GEYER, JOHN F & GEYER, SUSAN G..........................2,351.88
GEYER, JULIE L........................................................1,695.63
GEYER, RONALD L & GEYER, IRENE.................................0.00
GEYER, TYLER T.......................................................1,051.25
GIBBS, SONJA E, TR CRANBERRY POINT RE TRUST...1,749.38
GIBNEY, PHILIP A & DEBEVOISE, ANNE M................1,615.00
GIBSON, LOUISE ANN & LEE B, TRUSTEES................2,373.75
GIESBERGER, DIRK & NANCY - TRUST GIESBERGER, 
  DIRK H & NANCY A & DEGEER, MARCIA E..............6,955.63
GIFFORD, CHRISTOPHER C & GIFFORD, GAIL D.........1,059.38
GIFFORD, EVELYN R, IRISH, PATRICIA E, & 
  POLAND, ALICE J & GIFFORD, GERALD K................1,460.00
GIFFORD, MARTHA E...............................................3,028.75
*GILBERT, ARROLYN T................................................730.63

GILBERT, CHRISTOPHER & GILBERT, LYNNE..............1,984.38
GILBERT, CLINTON K...................................................821.88
GILBERT, GEORGE S & GILBERT, MARCEY L...............1,316.25
GILBERT, NICHOLAS J..............................................1,066.25
GILBERT, RAYMOND SCOTT.........................................988.13
GILBERT, TIMOTHY K & GILBERT, DEBORAH J..............721.25
GILBERT, TIMOTHY K..................................................646.88
GILBERT, WAYNE M & GILBERT, ROSALIND...............4,296.25
GILDERSLEEVE, EDWARD J & GILDERSLEEVE, 
  MYRNA E................................................................716.25
GILDERSLEEVE, EDWARD J III & GILDERSLEEVE, 
  MYRNA E.............................................................1,334.38
GILDERSLEEVE, THOMAS E & GILDERSLEEVE, 
  DAWN..................................................................2,565.63
GILES, RALPH WE II & GILES, KATHLEEN CARROLL...8,840.63
GILES, RICHARD C........................................................15.63
GILES, RICHARD C...................................................1,452.50
GILLESPIE, JEAN - ESTATE OF...................................1,773.13
GILZEAN, HEATHER....................................................437.50
*GILZEAN, RONALD S & GILZEAN, NATALIE J...........1,331.25
GINAND, KARL D & SKINNER, CHRISTINA GINAND...1,022.50
GLASGOW, TY J & GLASGOW, MELISSA T.................1,096.88
GLEASON, RONALD L & GLEASON, MAUREEN A.......1,581.25
GLENDINNING, HELEN VIOLA..................................2,167.50
GLENN, JAMES M & GLENN, CAROLYN A.....................391.25
GLUCHANICZ, PAUL & GLUCHANICZ, MELISSA.........7,038.75
GODING, BRIAN & GODING, CASEY.............................833.75
GOLDBERG, HELENE M - TRUST 10/29/96...............4,763.75
GONZALEZ, PABLO & GONZALEZ, TAMMY................1,809.38
GOOD, SUSAN R & JOHN L III, TR.................................285.63
GOODENOW, DOUGLAS E...........................................290.63
GOODRICH, BETH & BOWERS, LUCILLE C....................841.25
GOODRICH, BETH & BOWERS, LUCILLE....................1,609.38
GOODRICH, BETH C.................................................1,032.50
GOSBEE, FREDERICK D & LANE, JULIA L...................1,926.25
GOSNELL, EDWIN LEE.............................................1,176.88
GOSSELIN FAMILY BISCAY POND IRV REALTY TR......1,089.38
GOSSELIN FAMILY BISCAY POND IRV REALTY TR.........181.25
GOTT, EMORY K II & GOTT, VALERIE J.......................1,775.63
GOULD, HOPE............................................................983.13
GOULD, WAYNE K & GOULD, AMY B.......................15,440.00
GOUVERNEUR, SALLIE & RILEY, JOHN......................2,555.00
GOUVERNEUR, SALLIE & RILEY, JOHN.............................0.63
GRADY, RODNEY L SR & LAUREL P..............................787.50
GRAINGER, ANDREW R & STONE, KATHLEEN C, TR...2,002.50
GRAM, BRUCE & CHRIS & JEFF................................1,031.88
GRAM, BRUCE & CHRIS & JEFF...................................701.88
GRANT, JOAN H.......................................................1,357.50
*GRANT, RITA L & GRANT, WARREN.........................1,023.75
GRAVES, THOMAS H, JR...............................................86.25
GRAY, DONNA KILNER.............................................3,460.63
GRAY, KENNETH......................................................3,133.75



44	 ANNUAL REPORT

GRAY, KENNETH D & HAVENS, MARY R.......................445.63
GREBOSZ, MARC.....................................................4,235.00
GREELEY, ARTHUR W..............................................2,038.75
GREEN, JOHN R JR & SUSAN, TR & GREEN, MARK....1,430.63
GREENLAND FARM TRUST............................................39.38
*GREGORY DOWNEAST RE TRUST - GREGORY, 
  JERRY G & GREGORY, MARGARET - TRUSTEES.......2,438.75
GREGORY J BUHYOFF REVOCABLE TRUST & 
  MARILYN B BUHYOFF REVOCABLE TRUST..............2,386.25
GREGORY J BUHYOFF REVOCABLE TRUST & 
  MARILYN B BUHYOFF REVOCABLE TRUST.................161.25
GREGORY, JERRY G & GREGORY, MARGARET...............691.25
GRICUS, CHARLES & GRICUS, PATRICIA L....................378.13
GRIESAR, WILLIAM H..............................................4,317.50
GRIESAR, WILLIAM H...................................................86.25
GRIEVES, DONNA L & GRIEVES, PETER D..................1,959.38
GRIFFIN, LESLIE.........................................................123.75
GRIFFIN, RALPH H JR, TRUSTEE...............................4,008.13
GRIFFIN, SANDRA L.................................................1,201.88
GRIFFIN, THOMAS W...............................................3,755.00
GRIGGS, TIMOTHY W & GESTEN, KATHLEEN W & 
  MILES, AMANDA G & GRIGGS, MARC M JR............3,963.13
GRIMM DRESNER FAMILY NEW HARBOR RE TR........1,088.75
GRINDELL, DAVID W & GRINDELL, NANCY E............2,223.13
GRINDELL, SARAH & GRINDELL, JASON F................1,853.75
GROBE, JAMES R & MULLINAX, WAYNE T.................1,490.00
GROBE, JAMES R & MULLINAX, WAYNE T....................126.88
GROSS, GEORGE R & GROSS, JUDITH O....................1,041.25
GROSS, GEORGE R & GROSS, JUDITH O.......................430.00
GROSS, VIRGINIA M...................................................965.00
GROTHE, WAYNE L.....................................................895.63
GROTTON, PATRICK & GROTTON, LINDA L................1,493.75
GROTTON, PATRICK & GROTTON, LINDA L................1,838.13
GROTYOHANN, ROBERT & GROTYOHANN, WENDY...2,355.00
GRUND, STEVEN W & HEYER, NANCY E....................1,360.63
GRUNER, DAVID E & GRUNER, SANDRA F.................3,662.50
GRUNER, DAVID E & FINN, SANDRA............................953.75
GUERETTE, RICHARD C & GUERETTE, SUSAN LH.........103.13
GUERETTE, RICHARD C & GUERETTE, SUSAN LH......1,158.13
GUERTIN, CONRAD & GUERTIN, SUSAN...................1,720.00
*GUIBORD, RUSSELL P & GUIBORD, SANDRA E........1,721.88
GULLO, ROBERT & GULLO, KATHLEEN......................1,223.13
GULLO, ROBERT & GULLO, KATHLEEN.........................464.38
GUMKOWSKI, FREDERICK & VANDERPOT, JILL & 
  DALTON, COLLIN...................................................2,613.13
GUNDERSEN, GUNNAR J & GUNDERSEN, SALLY F.......499.38
GUNTHER, ROBERT.................................................1,651.88
GUNTHER, ROBERT....................................................574.38
GUSS, PHYLLIS A, TRUSTEE.....................................1,852.50
GUTEK, RICHARD, TR..................................................546.88
GUY A SPINELLI TRUST - 1999.................................1,770.63
GUZAS, ROBERT & GUZAS, SANDRA........................2,124.38

GUZAS, ROBERT & GUZAS, SANDRA........................1,389.38
*GWARA, EDWARD J & GWARA, PATRICIA...............1,506.88
HABERLAND, EVELYN LOUISE SPEAR & 
  SPEAR, ELISABETH ELLEN, CO-TR..........................4,507.50
HABERLAND, JAY L & HABERLAND, EVELYN S..........6,497.50
HADDOCK, JAMES B & JANICE A, TRUSTEES.............6,395.63
HADUCH, GEORGE A & MILLER, ELLEN D.................3,113.75
HAFFEY, JANET C........................................................603.75
HAFFEY, JANET C.....................................................1,514.38
HAFFEY, JANET C........................................................164.38
HAILCORE, LLC........................................................5,463.75
HAINKE, BENJAMIN C.................................................205.63
HALEY, THEODORE F & HALEY, ELLEN J.......................601.88
HALEY, THEODORE F & HALEY, ELLEN J.......................543.13
HALFOND, JAY A & GAYLE S, TRUSTEES - 
  JAY HALFOND LIVING TRUST.................................3,854.38
HALL, CHRISTOPHER GL & INGRAHAM, ABIGAIL K...2,210.00
HALL, DIANE L........................................................1,881.25
HALL, HUGH F.........................................................1,318.75
HALL, HUGH F.........................................................4,638.13
HALL, HUGH F................................................................1.25
HALL, JOHN R............................................................328.13
HALL, JOHN R.........................................................2,182.50
HALLOWELL, JAMIEN..............................................1,658.13
HALLOWELL, KURT & HALLOWELL, ANDREA...........2,972.50
HAMBURGER, CYNTHIA M......................................1,465.00
HAMELIN, ANDREW C & HAMELIN, PAULA D...........1,786.25
HAMELIN, ANDREW C & HAMELIN, PAULA D..............335.63
HAMELIN, LINDA A & GREENLAW, DAVID B & 
  GREENLAW, BURTON............................................1,728.13
HAMILTON, SALLY & ATWOOD-LYON, CAROL...........1,366.88
HAMMER, EDWARD P & HAMMER, CONSTANCE C......345.63
HAMMOND, DANA I II & HAMMOND, KANDELL L.....1,211.25
HAMMOND, DANA I II & HAMMOND, KANDELL L........179.38
HANCE, VICTORIA J.................................................1,000.00
HANDFIELD, BURTON T & HANDFIELD, GLORIA A.....1,541.88
HANKS, MARK S & HANKS, INGA F.............................336.25
HANKS, MARK S & HANKS, INGA F.............................343.75
HANLEY, JEWEL.........................................................164.38
HANLEY, JEWEL R & HANLEY, MARK S.....................2,393.13
HANLEY, MARK..........................................................275.00
HANLEY, MARK S.......................................................888.13
HANLEY, MARK S.......................................................495.00
HANLEY, MARK S.......................................................631.25
HANLEY, MARK S.......................................................885.00
HANLEY, MARK S.......................................................378.13
HANLEY, MARK S.......................................................656.25
HANLEY, MARK S & HANLEY, JEWEL R........................278.13
HANLEY, MARK S....................................................1,835.00
HANLEY, MARK S, TRUSTEE........................................885.63
HANLEY, RUBY A (DEVISEES OF).................................218.75
HANLEY, RUBY A (DEVISEES OF).................................239.38
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HANLEY, RUBY A (DEVISEES OF).................................568.75
HANLEY, RUBY A (DEVISEES OF)..............................3,254.38
HANLEY, STEWART P..................................................205.00
HANLON FAMILY PARTNERSHIP...............................4,557.50
HANLY, STEPHEN........................................................620.00
HANNA, ADAM E & SMITH, PAMELA HELEN & 
  HANNA, JOHN C HEIRS............................................305.00
HANNA, BETH............................................................254.38
HANNA, BRONWEN E..............................................1,476.88
HANNA, CHAD & HANNA, MARY.............................1,527.50
HANNA, CHAD M & HANNA, MARY M.....................1,612.50
HANNA, CHRISTOPHER J............................................205.63
HANNA, DAVID W & HANNA, GAIL K........................1,446.25
*HANNA, DAVID W & HANNA, GAIL K.........................535.63
HANNA, FRED W.....................................................1,283.13
HANNA, GAIL K & KEDDIE, SCOTT ALAN..................1,063.13
HANNA, MARSHALL...................................................832.50
HANNA, MARSHALL T................................................155.63
HANNA, MARSHALL T & HANNA, KATHY CHASSE.........17.50
HANNA, MARSHALL T & HANNA, KATHY CHASSE.......570.00
HANNA, MARSHALL T & HANNA KATHY C...............3,615.63
HANNA, MARSHALL T & HANNA, KATHY CHASSE....2,918.13
HANNA, MARSHALL T & HANNA, KATHY CHASSE.......626.25
*HANNA, MYRTLE A..................................................914.38
HANNA, NANCY L......................................................145.00
HANNA, NATHAN P & HANNA, NANCY L.....................883.13
HANNA, PAUL C, TRUSTEE.......................................6,393.75
HANNA, RICHARD H...................................................348.13
*HANNA, SARA J....................................................1,390.63
HANNA, SUSIE JUAN...............................................1,766.88
HANNAH & SAWYER, TR..........................................2,583.75
HANNAH, KAY L, TRUSTEE.......................................1,097.50
HANNAH, PETER & HANNAH, KAY...........................3,787.50
HANNEMANN, YVONNE..........................................1,451.25
HANNON, GUILFORD L (HEIRS OF)...........................2,261.25
HANSEN, RACHEL...................................................1,490.00
HANSON, PAULA C & HANSON, CHARLES A.............2,770.63
HANSON, SUSAN M & HANSON, DAVID R................1,517.50
HANSON, SUSAN M & DAVID R, TR LOVEJOY & 
  MADLAND............................................................2,328.75
HARBOR ISLAND, LLC..............................................4,173.75
HARDING, RICHARD & HARDING, WENDY S.............2,947.50
HARRINGTON, DAVID S, TRUST 
  HARRINGTON, DAVID S - TRUSTEE........................1,308.13
HARRINGTON, DAVID S, TRUST 
  HARRINGTON, DAVID S - TRUSTEE......................13,616.25
HARRINGTON, DAVID S, TRUST 
  HARRINGTON, DAVID S - TRUSTEE........................5,506.25
HARRINGTON, DONALD G & HARRINGTON, KIM.........900.00
HARRINGTON, ERIC S & HARRINGTON, DARCI J...........505.63
HARRINGTON, ERIC S & HARRINGTON, DARCI J........1,791.88
HARRINGTON, LAWRENCE B & JANINE H, TR - 

  HARRINGTON FAMILY TRUST...................................788.75
HARRIS, BETTY LOU................................................4,773.13
HARRIS, BETTY LOU................................................2,171.25
HARRIS, ROBERT W & HARRIS, JODY L.....................1,588.75
HARRIS, STEPHANIE D...............................................378.13
HARRISON, DORIS L................................................3,388.75
HARRISON, JOHN.......................................................744.38
HARROD, JAMES G & HARROD, KERI G.....................1,538.75
HARTMAN, MARY C...................................................150.00
HARTMAN, MARY C...................................................797.50
HARVEY, HELEN L.......................................................288.13
HASKETT, MORGAN L & HASKETT, SONYA A................212.50
HASTINGS, L CHRISTY.............................................1,727.50
HASTY, CYNTHIA & HASTY, MICHAEL.......................1,797.50
HATCH, ANGELA R & HATCH, DANA A.........................830.00
HATCH, CATHY & HATCH, DARREN A...........................153.13
HATCH, CATHY & HATCH, DARREN A...........................187.50
HATCH, DARREN A..................................................1,515.00
HATCH, FREDERIC B III & HATCH, CLAUDIA L............1,882.50
HATCH, FREDERIC B III & HATCH, CLAUDIA L............1,182.50
HATCH, JAMES B & JENNINGS, PATRICIA A...............1,882.50
*HATCH, TERRY E....................................................2,415.63
HATCH, TERRY E & SAWTELLE, JUDITH & 
  CHENEY, RICHARD A.............................................1,100.63
HATHAWAY, JEANNE ELAINE & FITZ-RANDOLPH, 
  JULIA...................................................................2,054.38
HATHCOCK, JOHN F & HATHCOCK, JOANN G.............3,168.75
HAWKINS, GRAHAM J & HAWKINS, MARGARET......1,946.88
HAYTER, MARGARET E & HAYTER, LAWRENCE E......1,098.75
*HAZELL, JAMES W & HAZELL, DEBORAH R............1,656.88
HB ANTIQUES, LLC..................................................1,535.00
HEABERLIN, MALLORY M........................................1,055.63
HEATH, DAVID E & HEATH, PAMELA J.......................2,823.75
HEDBERG, LAURA B & PIERCE, RICHARD A..............1,075.00
HEEREMA, DAVID & HEEREMA, JOANNE.....................938.13
HEIDENREICH, THEODORE E III & HOLLY, TR.............6,048.13
HEIM, WILLIAM G & HEIM, BONNIE WOODS............4,511.88
HEINLY, KARIN EISEL..................................................393.75
HEISER, PAULA.......................................................1,493.13
HELLEN, CARLY RUSHMORE....................................1,321.88
HELLTHALER, RICHARD M.......................................2,142.50
HEMMAN, STEPHEN R - 2016 LIVING TRUST 
  HEMMAN, STEPHEN R., TRUSTEE.............................873.13
HENDRICH, PETER...................................................1,911.25
HENDRY, MORGAN HENDRY, WILLIAM W.................2,220.00
HENDRY, MORGAN LELAND III.................................1,020.00
HENDRY, WILLIAM W, ET AL.......................................386.25
HENKE, EDWIN D & HENKE, MARY JO......................7,855.63
HENKIN, MICHELLE L & DAVIS, ALEXANDER MCD....4,156.88
HENRICH, DONNA L................................................2,360.63
HENRICH, DONNA L.......................................................1.88
HENRICKSEN, KAREN L............................................2,248.13
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HERALD, DARICK & HERALD, TERRI..........................1,474.38
HERBERT, S SOEHREN, SOEHREN, K,TR....................5,607.50
HERBOLD, MARGARET R & HERBOLD, JAMES E........1,373.13
HERNDON, SARAH..................................................1,086.88
HERNDON, SARAH G...............................................1,153.75
HERNDON, SARAH G...............................................1,439.38
HERR, ROBERT MCGEE & HERR, PAULA MARION.........256.25
HERRERA, ROBERT A & HERRERA, DEBORAH D........1,886.88
HERRICK, DANA & ALEXANDER, CACY.....................1,033.75
HERRON, NATHANIEL..............................................4,736.25
HERRON, NATHANIEL & THE FO’C’SLE TRUST...........4,140.00
HERRON, NATHANIEL S, TR......................................4,497.50
HERRON, NATHANIEL S, TR.........................................485.63
HERRON, NATHANIEL SCOTT...................................4,211.88
HERRON, NATHANIEL SCOTT......................................680.63
HERTZOG, LAWRENCE & HERTZOG, KATHLEEN.........5,638.75
HESELTON, BETTY B................................................2,190.63
HEUSSER, RONALD PAUL & FILIPPELLI, HEIDI ANN...1,209.38
HEWITT, DAVID E & HEWITT, MARY.........................1,511.25
HEWITT, DAVID E & HEWITT, MARY............................978.75
HICKS, JAMES & THOM, JUDITH..............................3,995.63
HIGER, PETER............................................................879.38
HIGGINS, JANE S & WELCH, FRANCIS.......................4,393.13
HIGGINS, MILDRED P.................................................628.75
HILBERT, ROBERT J & HILBERT, CHRISTINE J...............153.13
HILBERT, ROBERT J & HILBERT, CHRISTINE J............1,301.25
HILDEBRANDT, STORM V............................................755.00
HILDEBRANDT, STORM V............................................976.25
HILDEBRANDT, STORM V............................................760.00
HILDEBRANDT, STORM V............................................242.50
HILDEBRANDT, STORM V & LAMARRE, ROBERT N....1,464.38
HILTON TIMBER MANAGEMENT, LLC...........................133.13
HINCK, CHRISTOPHER & HINCK, REBECCA R.............1,413.75
HINCK, JEFFERY.........................................................773.75
HINSON, RONNIE T & HINSON, BRENDA W...............7,490.00
HIRSCH, STEPHEN, TRUSTEE....................................1,353.75
HISLER, JAN A.........................................................1,212.50
HITCHCOCK COTTAGE, LLC.......................................1,898.13
HITCHCOCK COTTAGE, LLC..........................................295.00
HITTINGER, HELMUT LYNDA, LYNDA, CO-TRUSTEES....353.13
HOBBS, J KIMBALL & HOBBS, ROBIN S....................1,459.38
HOBBS, JOHN H, TRUSTEE.......................................2,671.88
HOBBS, MADELINE M, TRUSTEE..............................2,194.38
HOBE, SHARON.......................................................1,866.88
HOBSON, SHARON L...............................................2,920.00
HOCHGRAF, NORMAN N..........................................4,825.00
HODGDON, EDWARD S & HODGDON, MELANIE E.....1,770.63
HOHORST, JAMES H................................................4,087.50
HOHORST, JOAN D......................................................146.25
HOISINGTON, DENNIS L & HOISINGTON, SONYA P....1,013.75
HOISINGTON, SONYA P & HOISINGTON, DENNIS L....1,740.63
HOISINGTON, SONYA P & HOISINGTON, DENNIS L....1,953.75

HOLBROOK, KIRK W & HOLBROOK, SHERRIE D........2,068.13
HOLBROOK, SHERRIE D & HOLBROOK, KIRK W........1,726.88
HOLDEN, GEORGIA..................................................1,521.88
HOLLADAY, JAMES B & HOLLADAY, ROSE ANNE.......1,574.38
HOLLADAY, JAMES B & HOLLADAY, ROSEANNE...........995.00
HOLLADAY, JAMES BRECKENRIDGE JR & BREANNA..1,399.38
HOLLADAY, ROSEANNE............................................1,014.38
*HOLLAND, FRANKLIN B & HOLLAND, JOANNA T.....4,063.13
HOLLAND, SUSAN K & MERRITT, WARD J....................666.25
HOLLIS, BLAKE & HOLLIS, DONNA...........................1,408.75
HOLLIS, HOWARD G................................................1,118.13
LENK, HOLLY J & LENK, GEOFFREY F...........................908.75
HOLME, CHARLES F....................................................503.75
HOLME, CHARLES F....................................................350.00
HOLME, CHRISTOPHER B.........................................2,224.38
HOLME, SANDRA & KUTCH, NICHOLAS A & 
  LABRECK, AMELIA A..................................................56.25
HOLME, SANDRA J..................................................1,074.38
HOLMES, GREG W...................................................1,087.50
HOLMES, LAURENCE N...............................................330.63
HOLMES, LINDA H...................................................1,280.63
HOLMES, ROBERT C, TRUSTEE.................................1,376.88
HOLMES, ROBERT C, TRUSTEE.................................2,393.13
HOLMES, ROBERT C, TRUSTEE......................................99.38
HOLMES, ROBERT C, TRUSTEE....................................216.88
HOLMES, ROBERT C, TRUSTEE....................................291.88
HOLMES, ROBERT C, TRUSTEE....................................787.50
HOLMES, ROBERT C, TRUSTEE....................................296.88
HOLMES, ROBERT, TRUSTEE.......................................120.00
HOLMES, RUSSELL M & RUSSELL, STEPHANIE H.........256.88
HOLMES, RUSSELL M & HOLMES, TAMMY J................294.38
HOLMES, RUSSELL M & HOLMES, TAMMY J.............5,541.25
HOLMES SANDRA L.................................................1,543.75
HOLZBERG FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST....................1,927.50
HOLZBERG FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST.........................45.00
HOLZHAUER, WOLFGANG.......................................1,224.38
HOOD, DAVID R & HOOD, DOLEEN M........................4,028.75
HOOD, DAVID R & HOOD, DOLEEN M...........................433.75
HOOD, MOLLY D, TRUSTEE.......................................1,468.13
HOPE, MICHAEL R & HOPE, MARGO W....................2,697.50
HOPE, MICHAEL R & HOPE, PETER R........................2,693.13
HOPE, PETER R........................................................2,394.38
HOPE, STEVEN R & HOPE, MIRANDA E........................854.38
HOPE, STEVEN R.....................................................1,330.00
HOPE, SUE ELLEN.......................................................859.38
HOPEWOOD FAMILY TRUST..........................................20.00
HOPEWOOD FAMILY TRUST........................................915.00
HOPKINS, GLENN A & HANNA, JAMIE....................11,055.63
HOPKINS, THERESE....................................................523.75
HORNOR, RICHARD G & HORNOR, LEE M.................3,288.75
HOUGHTON, GEOFFREY P & HOUGHTON, JAIME A...1,991.25
HOUSTON, HEATHER G............................................1,591.88
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HOVEY, GEORGE D & HOVEY, SALLY A......................2,218.13
HOVING, JAMES & WIGGINS, KATHERINE................3,179.38
HOWARD, BRIAN & HOWARD, LISA.........................1,354.38
HOWARD, HEIDI S........................................................88.13
HOWARD, JOHN F ET AL, TR & HOWARD, 
  WELSIE S ET AL, TR...............................................2,729.38
HOWARD, ROBERT T................................................1,243.13
HOWE, CAROLINE C................................................2,136.88
HOWELL, JULIAN F & HOWELL, CATHI M.................2,643.75
HOWELL, ROBERT C................................................2,018.13
HOWLETT, WILLIAM K & HOWLETT, BARBARA H........195.63
*HOWLETT, WILLIAM K & HOWLETT, BARBARA H...3,191.25
HOYT, MURIEL........................................................1,486.88
HOYT, MURIEL........................................................1,031.25
HOYT, MURIEL ANN................................................1,337.50
HRYCENKO, HARRY & HRYCENKO, TATIANA.................948.13
HU, ZHENG & HU, JOYCE.............................................758.13
HUANG, XIAOHUA...................................................7,630.00
HUBBARD, STERLING & HUBBARD, KATHLEEN............235.00
HUBBARD, STERLING W III & LOWRY, KATHLEEN J...1,532.50
HUBERTY, MARIA TERESA..........................................241.25
HUDSON, ROY A & HUDSON, CATHERINE F..............1,801.25
HUDYBERDI, ALICE A.................................................761.88
HUFFMAN, RICHARD - REVOCABLE TRUST 
  HUFFMAN, RICHARD L TRUSTEE...........................1,599.38
HUGHES INVESTMENTS, LLC.......................................373.75
HUGHES, CHARLES.....................................................363.13
HUGHES, GLENN A & HUGHES, JOHN E....................1,553.13
HUGHES, GLENN A & HUGHES, JOHN E.........................34.38
HUGHES, GLENN A & HUGHES, JOHN E.........................37.50
*HUGHES, HAROLD C & HUGHES, MARILYN L..........2,936.25
HUGHES, HAROLD C & HUGHES, MARILYN L.................15.63
HUGHES, HAROLD C, JR..............................................725.00
HUGHES, JANET, TTEE - DANA H HUGHES TRUST.........136.25
*HUGHES, JIMMY F & HUGHES, PATRICIA L.............1,340.63
HUMPHREY, MARY O............................................22,010.63
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................512.50
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................412.50
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................714.38
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................212.50
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................565.00
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................239.38
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................189.38
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................211.25
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................191.25
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................182.50
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................181.88
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................181.88
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................194.38
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................181.25
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................185.63
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................186.88

HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................240.00
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................460.00
HUNT, NORMAN C......................................................105.63
HUNT, ROBERT E........................................................213.13
HUNT-BRACKETT, JANE & HUNT, CANDACE..............6,220.00
HUNTER FAMILY LIVING TRUST..................................329.38
HUNTER, DANIEL P & MOISAN, MARY ANNE............1,027.50
HUNTER, ELLEN P & HUNTER, RONALD A................3,116.88
HUNTER, KIM FLORENCE............................................543.13
HUNTER, ROBERT S & HUNTER, JUANITA.................1,351.88
HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK, SUCCESSOR TR.......3,666.25
HURLBUT, MARCUS D & PATRICIA M, CO-TTEES.......2,586.25
HURLBUT, MARCUS D & PATRICIA M, CO-TTEES.......3,498.13
HURST, BEVERLEY, TRUSTEE....................................1,798.75
HURST, JON B & HURST, JAN S.................................1,765.00
HUSH, JAMES A & HUSH, VIRGINIA D......................3,246.25
HUTCHINS, RONALD L & HUTCHINS, CANDACE J.........629.38
HUTCHINSON, MARK...............................................3,878.75
HYLAN BARR, MARION ROSE & HYLAN, 
  DANIEL FOSTER....................................................1,401.25
HYLAN, MARILYN M, LARSON, PATRICIA M & 
  MORTON, RICHARD M..........................................2,721.25
ILTIS, GILLIAN A, TRUSTEE.......................................5,836.25
INGALLS, AVIS........................................................1,875.63
INGALLS, JO ANN E....................................................358.13
INGALLS, JUDITH & GOULD, JAMES.........................2,125.63
INGRAM, BRUCE F......................................................298.75
INMAN, JONANCY E................................................1,376.88
INNISFREE LEGACY, LLC...........................................7,486.88
INSKEEP, N JENNIFER EWOLDT...................................356.88
IRELAND, MELVILLE HANNA TRUST - BARRON, 
  THOMAS A TR & JETON, NANCY K TR...................13,292.50
IRELAND, ROBERT LIVINGSTON JR...........................9,460.63
IRELAND, ROBERT LIVINGSTON JR..............................420.00
IRELAND, THOMAS E...............................................3,748.13
IRELAND, THOMAS E & NANCY R, TR..............................5.00
IVENS, MARKITA.....................................................1,211.25
IVERSEN, SUSAN.....................................................2,081.88
IVES, PHYLLIS & IVES, ROBERT................................3,628.13
J EDWARD KNIGHT & CO............................................845.00
JACK, BARBARA.........................................................876.88
*JACKOVICH, ANTHONY B & ETHEL, ET AL...............1,940.63
JACKSON, DAVID M & JACKSON, DIANE L.................1,250.00
JACKSON, FRED & JACKSON, LINDA............................315.00
JACKSON, STACEY M..................................................998.13
JAEGER, GILBERT B JR & JAEGER, CAROL AB............1,761.88
JAMES & ANN ACHESON PEMAQUID HARBOR TRUST -
  ACHESON, JAMES M & ACHESON, ANN W, TTEES...2,016.88
JAMES, GERALD & SHERYL & JAMES, ANDREW G.......610.63
JAMES-CHUNG, HILLERY STOWELL............................640.63
JANELL, JOHN A & JANELL, JEAN F..........................4,153.75
JANSEN, WILLEM & JANSEN, NATALIE........................942.50
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JAWOR, ANNETTE S.................................................1,503.75
JERVIS, PAUL M & JERVIS, JUDITH B...........................322.50
JERVIS, PAUL M & JERVIS, JUDITH B...........................315.63
JESPERSEN, MARK O & JESPERSEN, KIMBERLY H........760.63
JESPERSEN, MARK O & JESPERSEN, KIMBERLY H.....1,435.63
JOANNES, HENRY S & FLEURY, EVA-MARIE.................608.13
JOE WINCHENBACH, INC............................................400.00
JOHANSSON, WALTER N..........................................2,753.75
JOHN, ROBERT W & JOHN, JANET G.......................16,123.75
JOHN, ROBERT W & JOHN, JANET G.........................5,523.75
JOHN’S ISLAND, LLC..............................................13,741.88
JOHNSON, BARBARA G...........................................1,402.50
JOHNSON, BARBARA G..............................................553.13
JOHNSON, ELIZABETH M............................................154.38
JOHNSON, EMILY W - CHARITABLE POST DEATH TRUST 
  DTD 10/08/2017..................................................1,076.88
JOHNSON, RICHARD L & JOHNSON, AMANDA L.......1,246.25
JONES, CATHY F & JONES, MARK H..........................4,912.50
*JONES, GLENN E & JONES, TIMOTHY.........................941.88
JONES, JO HANNAH & HALL, DAVID D......................1,893.75
JONES, JOYCE D N......................................................194.38
JONES, JOYCE DN....................................................2,816.88
*JONES, KENNETH L & JONES, R STEVENS...............1,876.88
JONES, OLIVE.............................................................816.88
JORDAN, KATHERINE EATON....................................1,040.63
JORDAN, KATHERINE EATON.......................................574.38
JOY, JANICE M............................................................739.38
JOYAL REALTY TRUST..............................................1,286.88
JOYCE, FRANCES M....................................................507.50
JUDKINS, WILLIAM R, JR............................................920.63
KACH, FRANCIS L.......................................................164.38
KAGAN, SEYMOUR J KAGAN, MARCIA J...................3,938.75
KAHL, HOWARD J. JR & KAHL, SARA B-REVOC TR 
  KAHL, HOWARD J JR & SARA B, CO-TRUSTEES......3,291.88
KALAM, TONU.........................................................1,085.00
KALINA, MICHAEL B & KRISTIN & REEVES, ERIN & 
  HANNA, MICHAEL...................................................138.13
KALLIO, RICHARD W KALLIO, PATRICIA S....................274.38
KALLOCH, LYNN......................................................1,265.00
KANE, PETER E & PAMELA R, TR..............................4,675.00
KANOZAK, CHARLES E & KANOZAK, NANCY M........6,261.25
KASPARYAN, N GEORGE CALMAR, ELIZABETH.........5,406.88
KAUSCH, HENDRY, TR, HENDRY & MCDONOUGH......1,961.88
KAUSERUD, RACHEL................................................7,965.63
KAY, STAFFORD & KAY, PATRICIA P...........................3,867.50
*KEARNEY, KATHLEEN J..........................................1,898.75
KEELEY, HOWARD R & HAZEL M, CO-TR...................3,626.88
KELEHER, THOMAS A & KELEHER, JULIANA................308.75
KELLEHER, DANIEL, MICHAEL, & LINDA E................3,238.13
KELLEHER, DAVID I & KELLEHER, KYSA M................1,520.00
KELLEHER, RORY & KELLEHER, CAMILLE MARIE......5,083.13
KELLEHER, RORY & KELLEHER, DANIEL M...................388.13

KELLEY, DEBORAH..................................................1,528.13
KELLEY, EMILY E & KELLEY, CHAD M........................1,323.13
*KELLEY, GERALD......................................................531.88
KELLOGG PENOBSCOT ROAD, LLC................................640.63
KELLY, EDWARD G & KELLY REBECCA J.....................4,088.13
KELLY, MARGERY F..................................................2,231.25
KELSEY, CHARLES W...................................................653.75
KELSEY, PAUL A, JR....................................................251.88
KELSEY, PAUL A, JR & HEIDI L..................................2,559.38
KELSEY, PAUL JR........................................................524.38
KELSEY, PAUL SR.....................................................1,241.25
*KEMPTON, PATRICIA I & HOFFMAN, MONIQUE JA.......21.88
KEN GRAY, LLC........................................................3,125.63
KENNEDY, BRENDA L & FISKE, NANCY J, & 
  FISKE, DAVID M & LEE, EM....................................2,375.63
KENNEDY, BRENDA L & FISKE, NANCY J, & 
  FISKE, DAVID M & LEE, EM.......................................221.88
KENNEDY, BRENDA L & FISKE, NANCY J, & 
  FISKE, DAVID M & LEE, EM...........................................0.63
KENNEDY, EDWARD J & KENNEDY, LALEAH C...........1,127.50
KENNEDY, SARAH I & SEWALL, JASON D.....................126.88
KENNEDY, SARAH I & SEWALL, JASON D..................2,698.75
KENNISON, DOROTHY L..............................................735.63
KENTOPP, KRISTIN E................................................2,045.63
KERR, HERBERT F, TR..................................................115.63
KERR, HERBERT F, TR...............................................4,847.50
KERR, WILLIAM A.................................................12,961.88
KERSEY, KATHRYN ELIZABETH & O’CALLAGHAN, 
  JUDITH LEE & KERSEY, PATRICIA A........................1,824.38
KERSHNER, ROBERT MICHAEL & KERSHNER, 
  JERYL DANSKY.....................................................8,624.38
KESSLER, JEFFREY R & KESSLER, JANE D.................2,790.63
KIECHEL, Conrad D & SAVAGE, NANCY S...............3,885.00
*KILLAM, CHESTER H & KILLAM, ALICE G................1,710.63
KIMBALL, BARRY W & KIMBALL, MARY J................3,813.13
KIMBALL, LYNN B, TRUSTEE....................................2,216.25
KIMBLE, ELLEN SUE...................................................290.63
KING, ALICE K, TRUSTEE ALICE K KING REVOC TR.....3,855.00
KINLOCH, JOHN J & KINLOCH, COLLEEN K...................828.75
KINNEY, ELEANOR H...................................................385.00
KINNEY, ELEANOR, TRUSTEE.......................................336.88
KIRBY, III JEFFERSON D & KIRBY, CAROL E...................497.50
KIRBY, III JEFFERSON D & KIRBY, CAROL E................3,634.38
KIRK, ELIZABETH A & KIRK, KATHARINE M.................750.63
KITTREDGE, ROY & KITTREDGE LYNN..........................122.50
KLAUS, JEANNE H...................................................4,755.63
*KLEIN, BARBARA L................................................1,870.63
KLEIN, GUNTER E & KLEIN, SUZANNE W..................1,481.25
KLEIN, GUNTER E & KLEIN, SUZANNE W.....................430.00
KLEIN, SINA...............................................................922.50
KLEITZ, DORSEY & LUCORE, SANDRA.......................2,101.25
KLINE, CHARLES R & KLINE, CATHERINE S................1,450.00
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KLINE, CHARLES R & KLINE, CATHERINE S................6,015.63
KLINE, ROBERT E.....................................................1,987.50
KNAUSS, PETER LLOYD............................................1,084.38
KNIGHT, WILLIAM & MENDELSON, LLOYD...............2,454.38
KNIGHT, WILLIAM & MENDELSON, LLOYD...............3,556.88
KNIGHT, WILLIAM & MENDELSON, LLOYD...............5,135.63
KNIGHT, WILLIAM A................................................2,078.13
KNIPE, GREGORY L & KNIPE, FLORENCE E...................885.00
KOENIG, CLAIRE S......................................................138.13
*KOLODIN, DAVID A & KOLODIN, ELIZABETH A........1,531.88
KOLODIN, DAVID GARRETT......................................2,963.75
KOMOROWSKI, JOHN A & KOMOROWSKI, SUSAN L...1,898.75
KONITZKY, GUSTAV.................................................2,869.38
KONITZKY, GUSTAV....................................................121.88
KORTEMEIER, KENNETH A & KORTEMEIER, ANGELA L... 275.00
KOSS, IRWIN & KOSS, KATHLEEN................................243.13
KOSZEWSKI, DAVID R & KOSZEWSKI, GLORIA A..........884.38
KOZA, MARK & KOZA, MARY BETH..........................2,042.50
KOZAK, CONRAD & KOZAK, DEBORAH.....................5,363.75
KRAMP, MICHAEL.......................................................931.25
KRESGE, BRUCE A, TTEE BRUCE A KRESGE TRUST.....5,381.88
KRESGE, BRUCE A, TTEE BRUCE A KRESGE TRUST.....5,710.00
KRETSCHMER JR, EDWARD T & KRETSCHMER 
  JO ANNE...............................................................1,175.00
KVOCHAK, JOHN & KVOCHAK, VIRGINIA.....................246.88
LABRECK, LAURA & LABRECK, CHRISTOPHER..........1,298.13
LACASSE, JOSEPH A & LACASSE, NANCY W.............2,088.13
LACKOVIC, STEPHEN E.............................................1,155.63
LADAY, GEORGE S & LADAY, HANNAH......................1,785.00
LADAY, HANNAH........................................................272.50
LAFEY, THERESA T & LAFEY, JON.................................151.25
LAFEY, THERESA T & LAFEY, JON..............................2,990.00
LAGASSE, TERRY L..................................................2,073.13
LAKE LEASING CORP...............................................4,680.63
LAKIN, FRANCES F ESTATE.......................................5,370.63
LAKIN, FRANCES F ESTATE..........................................168.75
LAKIN, ROBERT F - REV TR LAKIN, ROBERT F - TTEE....267.50
LAKIN, ROBERT F - REV TR LAKIN, ROBERT F - TTEE...3,060.00
LAMAR, EUGENIA K................................................2,571.88
LAMB, CHRISTINE S, TRUSTEE CHRISTINE S 
  LAMB REVOCABLE TRUST.....................................3,921.88
LAMB, CORKHUM, MCGOLDRICK, ETAL.......................771.88
LAMB, FREDERICK & KAREN A, TRUSTEES................2,563.13
LANDRY, DAVID W...................................................1,710.63
LANDRY, DAVID W......................................................260.63
LANE, ALAN P............................................................823.13
LANE, ALBERT B......................................................1,821.25
LANE, CALEB CR.........................................................403.75
*LANE, ELIZABETH M.................................................621.25
LANE, ELIZABETH M...................................................181.25
LANE, ELIZABETH M...................................................768.75
LANE, ELIZABETH M................................................1,490.00

LANE, ELIZABETH M, TR.............................................263.13
*LANE, JEANNE M (HEIRS OF OR DEVISEES OF).......1,325.00
LANE, LOIS CHASE......................................................818.75
LANE, MARIE E...........................................................898.75
LANE, RUSSELL A & LANE, HEIDI R..........................1,061.88
*LANE, SANDRA J & (LIFE ESTATE)..........................1,426.88
LANG FAMILY LTD PARTNERSHIP.............................2,144.38
LANG TRUST LANGE, ANATOL & LANGE, VERA - TR.....218.75
LANG, ELIZABETH S, TR..............................................933.75
LANG, JOHN C, SR...................................................1,660.00
LANGDON, JENNIFER & LANGDON, KARL.....................62.50
LANGE, ANATOL & VERA, TRUSTEES OF THE 
  LANGE TRUST..........................................................726.88
LANGLOIS, DONALD & LANGLOIS, CAROL................1,956.25
LARKIN, JENNIFER R & HOUGH, CHRISTOPHER........2,125.00
LARSEN, HANS........................................................4,997.50
LARSEN, HANS........................................................1,640.63
LASH, ALBERT L JR, TRUSTEE.....................................937.50
LASH, DAVID L & CART, CECILIA...............................2,312.50
LASH, FRANCES, TRUSTEE.......................................3,167.50
LASH, FRANCES, TRUSTEE.......................................1,112.50
LASKEY, FREDERICK A & LASKEY, DONNA J..............3,006.25
LASKEY, NORMA L, TRUSTEE..........................................8.13
LASKEY, RICHARD M, TR..........................................1,352.50
LASKEY, RICHARD M, TRUSTEE...................................120.00
LASKEY, RICHARD M, TRUSTEE...................................524.38
LASKEY, RICHARD M, TRUSTEE................................2,022.50
LASSELLE, KATHRYN P............................................1,138.75
LAT LONG FISHERIES LLC.........................................2,924.38
LATHAM, ELAINE C - LIV TRUST DATED 09/14/17........289.38
LATHAM, ELAINE C - LIV TRUST DATED 09/14/17.....4,744.38
LATHAM, ELAINE C - LIV TRUST DATED 09/14/17 & 
  LATHAM, LEONARD & LATHAM, ROSS......................424.38
LATHAM, ELAINE C - LIV TRUST DATED 09/14/17 & 
  LATHAM, LEONARD & LATHAM, ROSS...................2,760.63
LATHAM, ELAINE C - LIV TRUST DATED 09/14/17 & 
  LATHAM, LEONARD & LATHAM, ROSS......................474.38
LATHROP, J PHILIP & LATHROP, LYNDA.....................6,460.63
LAUDERDALE, ELIZABETH D & LAUDERDALE, 
  FRANK C..................................................................339.38
LAUDERDALE, FRANK C & LAUDERDALE, 
  ELIZABETH DIANE...................................................334.38
LAUGHLIN, TONI F (PIP).............................................140.00
LAVALLEE RE TRUST - 2017 KACH, FRANCIS L..........1,335.63
LAWRY, MURIEL......................................................2,459.38
LAWSON, EDWARD A & LAWSON, LINDA M.............3,861.88
LAX, ERIC & SULZBERGER, KAREN...........................6,895.00
LAZAZZERO, MARDELLA D - TRUST.........................1,871.25
*LEAVITT, DANA C & LEAVITT, PATRICIA A................1,277.50
LEAVITT, DENISE W....................................................896.88
LEAVITT, LINWOOD M & LEAVITT, ANN L..................1,068.13
LEBLANC, CYNTHIA....................................................258.75
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LECK, ANDREW & LECK, PHYLLIS............................1,875.00
LECK, JONATHAN B.................................................1,467.50
LEDUC, LORA R..........................................................933.13
LEE, ALISON R............................................................203.13
LEE, JAMES F & LEE, KAREN L.....................................371.88
LEE, KAREN & LEE, JAMES.......................................1,755.63
LEEMAN, CHRISTOPHER A & LEEMAN, 
  LEEMAN, HEATHER..................................................720.63
LEEMAN, CHRISTOPHER A & KINDELL-LEEMAN, 
  HEATHER M..........................................................2,178.13
LEEMAN, CHRISTOPHER A & KINDELL-LEEMAN, 
  HEATHER M.............................................................605.00
LEEMAN, CHRISTOPHER A & KINDELL, HEATHER M...1,730.00
LEEMAN, CRAIG M & LEEMAN, DONNA...................1,285.63
LEEMAN, DONALD K & LEEMAN, MARILYN A...........1,037.50
LEEMAN, ERIC S......................................................1,493.75
LEEMAN, FAY A.......................................................1,561.25
*LEEMAN, GEORGIA B.............................................1,107.50
LEEMAN, JENNY A & SCOTT K, TR...............................310.63
LEEMAN, KATHERINE..............................................3,536.88
LEEMAN, MARTIN E & LEEMAN, JENNIFER L.................62.50
LEEMAN, MARTIN E & LEEMAN, JENNIFER L............1,215.63
LEEMAN, PAUL F III & LEEMAN, CERINA..................3,030.00
LEEMAN, PAUL F III & LEEMAN, CERINA..................1,811.88
LEEMAN, PAUL F, JR & JESSICA A.............................1,420.63
*LEEMAN, RUTH S (HEIRS OF OR DEVISEES OF).......1,166.88
LEEMAN, SCOTT K & MOLLER, JENNY ANN..............2,056.25
LEEMAN, SCOTT K & LEEMAN, JENNY A......................863.75
LEEN, KATHRYN.........................................................966.25
LEIBMAN, FELICIA, TRUSTEE...................................3,947.50
LEIGHTON, CHRISTOPHER M & LEIGHTON, 
  ELIZABETH C........................................................3,516.88
LEIPER, SYLVIA M - (DEVISEES OF)..........................1,327.50
LEITMAN, EVA, TR......................................................375.00
LEITMAN, EVA, TR...................................................3,905.63
LEMIEUX, DANIEL N & LEMIEUX, LAURIE A.................184.38
LENDICK, ERIC JOHN..................................................728.13
LENNOX, ELIZABETH D & WINER, JUDITH L..............2,978.13
LENT, CHRISTOPHER R.............................................1,510.00
LENT, PETER............................................................2,170.63
LENT, PETER A............................................................175.00
LEONARD, JUDITH......................................................646.88
LEOPOLD, DOREEN EVELYN.....................................1,635.63
LERLEY, LOUISE B.......................................................296.88
LERLEY, LOUISE B....................................................1,106.25
LERLEY, LOUISE B.......................................................468.13
LEURART, AMY M & LEURART, KARL A.....................2,570.63
LEVEEN, JONATHAN L & MCPHERSON, MARY..........1,766.25
LEVIN, ROBERT A....................................................1,931.88
LEVINE, RICKY K - REV TR - LEVINE, RICKY K TTEE....2,271.88
LEVIS, JAMES N......................................................2,494.38
LEVITT, MARY H......................................................1,086.25

LEWIS, ANNE D.......................................................1,217.50
LEWIS, MANON I........................................................441.25
LEWIS, SANDRA L......................................................953.13
LEWIS,(HEIRS) & STIMPSON, RADIVONYK & 
  RICE, PAMELA.............................................................8.75
LIBBY, DAN L...........................................................2,024.38
LIBBY, HELEN M (HEIRS OF) LIBBY, MARK F & 
  LIBBY, JOHNATHAN M & LIBBY, MATTHEW M & 
  RAY, ANDREW J.......................................................315.63
LIBBY, HELEN M (HEIRS OF) LIBBY, MARK F & 
  LIBBY, JOHNATHAN M & LIBBY, MATTHEW M & 
  RAY, ANDREW J....................................................3,688.75
LIBBY, JONATHAN M..................................................730.00
LIBBY, KATHERINE G...................................................806.88
LIBBY, LOWELL WHITNEY & LIBBY, MELISSA N........5,937.50
LIBBY, MARK FINDLAY............................................3,985.63
LIBBY, SARAH.........................................................1,143.13
LIBBY, SUSAN D & LIBBY, BETH B................................691.25
LIBBY, SUSAN D & LIBBY, BETH B................................284.38
LICARI, CAROLINE P, 2012 TRUST - 
  LICARI, CAROLINE P, TRUSTEE...............................5,905.00
LICERO, ROSS & LICERO, CATHLEEN.........................5,224.38
LICHTMAN, VIRIGINIA T...........................................1,365.00
LIFETIME TRUST FBO JOHN BILLIK UWO 
  MARILYN BILLIK BILLIK, JOHN, TRUSTEE...............2,441.25
LILLY, JOSEPH D & LILLY, KATHERINE G....................2,728.75
LIND, DIANE & BJORK & ELIZABETH D, TRUSTEES....3,953.13
LINDBERG, GEORGE A III & LINDBERG, FRANCES M... 1,868.13
LINDQUIST, CAROL A...............................................2,468.13
LINDQUIST, CAROL A...............................................2,448.13
LINDSAY LIONEL R AND GRACE P TRUST LINDSAY, 
  LIONEL R & GRACE POLLY, CO-TRUSTEES..................926.88
LINKAS, CHRISTOPHER C & LINKAS, DANIELLE N.....5,701.88
LISTER, JAMES P & LISTER, CHRISTINA....................1,717.50
LITTLE FALLS BROOK TRUST....................................5,893.13
LITTLE, CLAIRE A.....................................................1,500.00
LITTLEFIELD, ALAN C & MURRAY-LITTLEFIELD, 
  REBECCA A...........................................................2,105.63
LITTLEFIELD, ALAN C, TRUSTEE..................................258.75
LITTLEFIELD, ANDREW K............................................340.63
LITTLEFIELD, ANDREW K, TR......................................265.00
LITTLEFIELD, JONATHAN BROWN & 
  LITTLEFIELD, BRIDGET EILEEN..................................406.25
LITTLEFIELD, JONATHAN BROWN & 
  LITTLEFIELD, BRIDGET EILEEN..................................406.25
LITTLEFIELD, SARAH V, ROSENBAUM, DARCY L, &
  LITTLEFIELD, CHRISTOPHER B.................................333.13
LLEWELLYN, GARY L & LLEWELLYN, DEBRA L..........3,345.63
LLOYD, LAURA G & LLOYD, SPENCER........................5,523.13
LLOYD, LAURA G & LLOYD, SPENCER........................1,674.38
LOCKE, LORELEI, ET AL............................................1,293.13
LOCKHART, ARTHUR J..............................................1,210.63
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LOCKHART, DAVID S & LOCKHART, SHARON.............4,245.00
LOCKHART, JAMES & LOCKHART, SYLVIA..................4,531.25
LOCKHART, JAMES WESTON & LOCKHART, SYLVIA.......350.63
LOCKHART, JANET E...................................................705.63
LOCKHART, MICHAEL & DANIAS, LISA......................1,891.25
LOCKHART, PETER B................................................2,311.88
LOCKHART, PHILIP B JR & CAROL M & 
  WELDAY, AMY L & DAVID W III..............................1,610.00
LOCKHART, ROBERT B & PIRJO, ELSIE.......................7,625.00
LOCKHART, ROBERT B.............................................2,007.50
LOCKHART, ROBERT B, TR & LOCKHART, DAVID S.........226.88
LOMUSCIO, KATHLEEN E, ET AL..................................168.75
LOMUSCIO, KATHLEEN E, ET AL..................................408.75
*LONEY, PHYLLIS H.................................................2,067.50
LONG COVE DOCK CORP..............................................674.38
LONG, WILLIAM SCOTT...............................................175.00
LONG, WILLIAM SCOTT...............................................216.25
LONGE, J KENDELL, JR & JANE E, CO-TRUSTEES...........699.38
LONGE, JAMES T...........................................................56.25
LOOKING AT LOUDS, LLC..........................................1,920.63
LOPRIENO, DONALD & LOCKHART, PAGE..................1,974.38
LORD, JASON F & PALINO, ANNA M.........................1,533.75
LORD, NATHANIEL D & PULSIFER, LAURI R...............2,351.88
LORD, PATRICIA.......................................................1,338.13
LORD, STEPHEN F & LORD, BEVERLY D.....................3,536.25
LORD, STEPHEN F & LORD, BEVERLY D........................636.25
LORENZ, HELMUT H & LORENZ, M A........................1,088.13
LOSORNIO, TRICIA...................................................1,876.88
LOUD, WILLIAM A & LOUD, TAKAKO.........................1,050.63
LOVERIDGE, VICKI A................................................1,259.38
LOVERIDGE, VICKI ANN...........................................1,762.50
LOW, CHARLES J JR & LOW, LISA MARIE.....................882.50
LOW, LISA MARIE.......................................................445.00
LOWBERG, GARY W & LOWBERG, JAYE BAILEY........1,593.75
LOWD, HARRY M III.................................................2,860.63
LOWD, HARRY M III......................................................93.75
LOWD, ROBERT B, TR & LOWD, MONIQUE, TR...........1,782.50
LOWDEN, WILLIAM B.................................................926.25
LOWE, MARIA & LOWE, JASON...................................995.00
*LOZNICKA, MARLENE S.........................................1,789.38
LUCINA, PHYLLIS A.................................................1,793.75
LUCORE, SANDRA K & KLEITZ, DORSEY R.................3,681.25
LUDMAN, C STEVEN & LUDMAN, CYNTHIA.................348.75
LUDWICK, JONATHAN & LUDWICK, BETHANY..........2,781.25
LUGOSCH, EMILE & LUGOSCH, RONNA S.......................15.63
*LUGOSCH, EMILE & LUGOSCH, RONNA S................1,690.00
LUKIANOV, EUGENE R................................................270.00
LUKIANOV, ROMAN E & LUKIANOV, IRINA W...............438.13
LUPINE LADY, LLC....................................................1,143.13
LURIE, NATALIE & DAVID, CO-TRUSTEES - 
  ABRAHAM A LURIE REVOCABLE TRUST.................4,856.88
LUTTE, KENNETH A & LUTTE, PAMELA S..................1,551.25

LYDON, AMELIA M 2010 REVOCABLE TRUST - 
  LYDON, AMELIA M, TRUSTEE................................1,100.63
LYFORD, MATTHEW RC & LYFORD, KAZUYE.................550.00
LYFORD, MATTHEW RC & LYFORD, THADDEUS MC....1,546.88
LYNSON, LLC...........................................................1,066.88
LYON, JAMES WH....................................................3,988.13
LYONS, ELLIOT B...........................................................30.00
MACCONNELL, DENNIS............................................3,557.50
MACCORKLE, LEON & MACCORKLE, SARA................2,298.13
MACCREADY, PETER E & MACCREADY, ROBIN M..........175.00
MACDONALD, JOSEPH, TR............................................70.63
MACDONALD, WILLIAM & EILEEN R, TR.................12,260.63
MACDONALD, WILLIAM L & MACDONALD, EILEEN R...406.25
MACDOUGALL, PETER & MACDOUGALL, SUSAN......1,869.38
MACK, EMILY & KARCZEWSKI, CHRISTOPHER..........1,033.13
MACK, RUSSELL T & MACK, KATHLEEN M................2,280.00
MACKENZIE, ROCHELLE P...........................................681.25
MACKENZIE, SUSAN J & MACKENZIE, JAMES E.........4,540.63
MACKENZIE, SUSAN J & MACKENZIE, JAMES E................1.25
MACKEY, ROBERT & MACKEY, LOUISE......................3,925.00
MACKEY, ROBERT & MACKEY, LOUISE.........................443.13
*MACKINNON, GEORGE R & MACKINNON, 
  NANCY O..............................................................2,796.25
MACOMBER, PATRICK.................................................165.63
*MACONE, HELEN...................................................6,715.63
MACPHEE, ALAN.....................................................4,457.50
MACTYE, DAVID C, TR..............................................7,706.25
MACWALTERS, SHELLIE A & MACWALTERS, 
  DANIEL S..............................................................1,296.88
MAD COTTAGES, LLC...............................................1,293.75
MADAN, CLYDE A & BEVERLY A, TR..........................1,054.38
MADDEN, SHIRLEY M & ONEIL, MARYANN.................170.63
MAGINNES FAMILY LTD PTNRSHIP...........................4,520.00
MAGINNES FAMILY LTD PTNRSHIP...........................2,073.13
MAGNESS, MARGARET B............................................646.25
MAGNESS, MARGARET B.........................................1,573.13
MAHAN, CLIFTON & CONNELL, ANNIE........................770.00
MAHAN, CLIFTON R, JR..............................................145.00
MAHAN, CLIFTON R, JR & CONNELL, ANNIE M.........1,532.50
MAHAN, CLIFTON ROBINSON..................................2,173.75
*MAHAN, EDWARD T & MAHAN, ARLINE G.............3,188.75
MAHAN, SHANNON M...............................................501.88
MAHAN, STUART J..................................................1,635.63
MAHAN, STUART J..................................................1,659.38
MAHONEY, LINDA C................................................1,285.63
MAINE COAST CRAFT SCHOOL, LLC.............................189.38
MAINE KAYAKS, INC...................................................333.75
MAINES, BARBARA L (DEVISEES OF)..........................493.13
MAINESAIL PROPERTIES, LLC..................................2,550.00
MALGIERI, MICHAEL J & MALGIERI, BETH K.............2,171.88
MALGIERI, MICHAEL J & MALGIERI, BETH K.............2,025.63
*MALLARD, PHILIP W.............................................1,360.63
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MALLEN, ELAINE J & MALLEN, CRAIG A......................632.50
MALLORY, JOSEPH S III, TRUSTEE...........................12,496.25
MALLORY, WENDY V, TRUSTEE.................................9,402.50
MALONEY, ALVAH & MALONEY, KELLY........................823.13
MALONEY, CHRISTOPHER........................................1,160.63
MANCHESTER, JAMES A & MANCHESTER, KATHLEEN L &
  MANCHESTER, JONATHAN L - REVOC TR U/A........2,248.13
MANCHESTER, WILLIAM W.....................................1,089.38
MANGANO, RICHARD A & MANGANO, SANDRA D....1,653.13
MANNING, THEODORE D, JR.......................................785.63
MANNING, VIRGINIA L...............................................702.50
MANNS, MYLES N......................................................570.63
MARCUS, ANN........................................................3,058.75
MARK S PRIOR, INC....................................................744.38
MARKS, RICHARD A JR & SHUTTLEWORTH, 
  TRACY A...............................................................1,728.13
MARKS, RICHARD A JR & SHUTTLEWORTH, 
  TRACY A...............................................................1,008.75
MARR, ANNE V & MARR, ELIZABETH M...................1,860.00
MARR, WARREN E...................................................2,568.13
MARRQUID CORP.........................................................63.75
MARSH, PETER & MARSH, SUSAN...........................2,250.63
MARSHALL, DOUGLAS & MARSHALL, CAROLYN J....4,326.25
MARSHALL, ELIZABETH A & STOLTE, COREY E..........1,558.75
MARSHALL, HUBERT M & MARIAN N,TR....................516.88
MARSHALL, HUBERT M & MARIAN N,TR.................2,786.88
MARSHALL, JEFFREY & MARSHALL, SHAUNNA..........412.50
MARSHALL, LEE D......................................................368.13
MARSHALL, LEONARD J & MARSCHALL, 
  BARBARA M.........................................................1,608.13
MARTIN, ALISON G & MARTIN, DANA K...................5,587.50
MARTIN, DANA K & MARTIN ALISON G....................3,856.25
MARTIN, DAVID C & CORWELL-MARTIN, CAROL M...1,879.38
MARTIN, ELEANOR C..................................................985.63
MARTIN, ISHAM & MARTIN, MARY C.......................1,549.38
MARTIN, KRIS W & MARTIN, LUCILE P........................456.25
MARTIN, LUCILE P...................................................2,034.38
MARTIN, PETER H - MARITAL TRUST........................1,681.88
MARTINOVIC, ALEKSANDER J & 
  SACCHI-MARTINOVIC, DIANA...............................1,313.13
MARTONE, FRANK J & MARTONE, JOSEPHINE..........2,162.50
MASON, RICHARD F JR & MASON, BEVERLY A.........1,198.75
MASSEY, MELVIN G & MASSEY, GERALDINE M.........1,382.50
MASSEY, SALLY A & LUKIANOFF, MICHAEL...............3,961.25
MASTERS MACHINE CO.........................................26,928.75
MASTERS, GEORGE S JR & MASTERS, RICHARD C........245.00
MASTERS, GEORGE S JR.............................................235.63
MASTERS, GEORGE S JR & LINDA.............................3,787.50
MASTERS, GEORGE JR................................................362.50
MASTERS, GEORGE JR.............................................2,239.38
MASTERS, JASON.......................................................284.38
MASTERS, JASON....................................................5,671.88

MASTERS, JASON G....................................................276.25
MASTERS, MARIANNE................................................215.63
MASTERS, MARIANNE.............................................2,112.50
MASTERS, MARTHA H................................................510.00
MASTERS, MARTHA H................................................514.38
MASTERS, MARTHA H................................................175.00
MASTERS, RICHARD................................................2,947.50
MASTERS, RICHARD & MASTERS, GEORGE S JR...........445.00
MASTERS, RICHARD...................................................203.13
MASTERS, RICHARD C.............................................1,233.75
MASTERS, RICHARD C.............................................8,899.38
MASTERS, RICHARD C & MASTERS, GEORGE S JR..........36.88
MASTERS, RICHARD C & MASTERS, GEORGE S JR.....1,090.00
MASTERS, RICHARD C & MASTERS, GEORGE S JR.....1,130.63
MASTERS, STEVEN C & MASTERS, LISA S.................3,163.13
MASTERSON, BARRY J & MASTERSON, DORIS E..........306.25
MASTERSON, BARRY J & MASTERSON, DORIS E..........993.75
MATEL, JAMES K & MATEL, SARAH S.......................2,849.38
MATEL, JAMES K, TRUSTEE......................................1,818.75
MATRUMALO, ANTHONY F & 
  MATRUMALO, SUSAN M.......................................1,371.25
MATRUMALO, ANTHONY F & 
  MATRUMALO, SUSAN M..........................................573.75
MATTOZZI, DOMENICO & MATTOZZI, BONNIE & 
  MATTOZZE, SAVIN & MATTOZZI, DOMINIQUE........1,348.13
MAWN, PETER & CARR, SANDY...............................3,560.63
MAXIM, JEANNE M.................................................8,298.13
MAYBERRY, ALICE......................................................103.13
MAYBERRY, ALICE M...............................................1,831.25
MBH REALTY, LLC....................................................2,113.75
MCALICE FAMILY TRUST - 2015...............................2,326.88
MCARDLE, RICHARD D...............................................814.38
MCCABE, EDWARD LEE..............................................368.75
MCCABE, TERRY......................................................4,660.00
McCARTHY, BRIDGETTE...........................................1,729.38
MCCARTHY, MARY E, TR & ROBBIE, WILLIAM C, TR.....974.38
MCCARTHY, NANCY H.............................................3,535.63
MCCLOY, CHRISTOPHER L & MCCLOY, VIRGINIA P.....3,838.13
MCCLURE, SCOTT C & MCCLURE, CAROL B...................419.38
MCCONNELL, ROGER & MCCONNELL, DOROTHEA.....1,892.50
MCCONNELL, ROGER & MCCONNELL, DOROTHEA.....1,244.38
MCCORMACK, GWYNETH VAUGHAN & 
  MCCORMACK, MICHAEL J.....................................4,581.88
MCCORMICK, ELIZABETH DARE & 
  MCCORMICK, RICHARD MARK..............................1,363.13
MCCOY, JOYCE T......................................................4,760.63
MCCRACKEN, JILL........................................................96.88
MCCRACKEN, JILL...................................................1,543.75
MCCRANE, CONSTANCE J & SCHYLLING, DAVID O.....8,244.38
MCCUBBIN, KAREN ANN.........................................1,767.50
MCCUTCHEN, KATHERINE........................................1,824.38
MCCUTCHEN, KATHERINE...........................................481.25
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MCDERMOTT, JOSEPH H, TR & MARTHA E, TR..........1,657.50
MCDONALD, CHYLLENE KELLEY..............................9,244.38
MCDONALD, DAVID L & VARLETA, FLORENCE M..........352.50
MCDUNNAH, SHARON K............................................794.38
MCFARLAND VENTURES, LLC...................................1,523.13
MCFARLAND VENTURES, LLC......................................399.38
*MCFARLAND, ARTHUR E SR......................................580.63
MCGLAUFLIN, CINDY A...............................................751.88
MCGRATH, MICHAEL J & MCGRATH, MARTHA C..........937.50
MCGRATH, ROBERT E & MCGRATH, PAMELA S............884.38
MCGUCKIN, JOHN & BATTINIERI, RALPH..................1,152.50
MCGUCKIN, JOHN M & BATTINIERI, RALPH N.............225.63
MCGUCKIN, JOHN M & BATTINIERI, RALPH N.............926.88
MCGUCKIN, JOHN M & BATTINIERI, RALPH N.............209.38
*MCGUIRE, JANICE L...............................................1,921.88
MCINTIRE, JENNIFER & GOTTSCHALK, GREGORY......1,948.13
MCINTIRE, RC & DF & JC.............................................421.25
MCINTIRE, RC & DF & JC..........................................2,001.25
MCINTIRE, RICHARD C & MCINTIRE, JULIENE C........1,837.50
MCINTIRE, RICHARD C & MCINTIRE, JULIENE C...........573.75
MCINTIRE, ROLVIN W..............................................2,380.00
MCKEEN, WILLIAM & MCKEEN, SUSAN.......................380.00
MCKINLEY, ROBERT S & MCKINLEY, CAROL E..............884.38
MCKINNON, JOHN E & MCKINNON, JOAN C.............1,344.38
MCKINNON, MICHAEL J & MCKINNON, 
  CHRISTINE M........................................................1,296.25
MCKITRICK, JOSEPH W & MCKITRICK, LUCILLE R........812.50
MCLAIN, BRIAN......................................................1,174.38
MCLAIN, BRIAN......................................................1,393.13
MCLAIN, BRIAN C....................................................1,077.50
MCLAIN, DAVID H & MCLAIN, LINDA Y.....................4,222.50
MCLAIN, KIMBERLY I..................................................222.50
MCLAIN, LINDA..........................................................483.13
MCLAIN, ROXANNE.................................................1,011.25
MCLAIN, SHEILA.....................................................1,381.25
MCLAIN, STEVEN F.....................................................974.38
MCLAIN, WILLIAM D...............................................1,619.38
MCLAIN, WILLIAM D & MCLAIN, KIMBERLY I...........1,455.00
MCLAUGHLIN, ROBERT F & MCLAUGHLIN, 
  ROBERTA M.................................................................8.13
MCLAUGHLIN, ROBERT F & MCLAUGHLIN, 
  ROBERTA M.............................................................279.38
MCLAUGHLIN, TIMOTHY I & MCLAUGHLIN, 
  KAREN L...............................................................1,205.00
MCLEAN HOLDINGS, LLC.........................................5,598.75
MCLEAN HOLDINGS, LLC.........................................1,517.50
MCLEAN HOLDINGS, LLC............................................331.25
MCLEAN HOLDINGS, LLC............................................620.63
MCLELLAN, MELANIE S..............................................930.00
MCLETCHIE, KARL-MAGNUS W................................2,231.25
MCMILLAN, DONNA J.................................................104.38
*MCMILLAN, DONNA J............................................1,396.25

MCMILLAN, VIRGINIA, TR, ET AL.............................4,938.75
MCPHERSON, MARY E & LEVEEN, JONATHAN L...........212.50
MCPHERSON, MARY E & LEVEEN, JONATHAN L........1,509.38
MCQUARRIE, ROBERT G & NORMA L,TR & 
  LAWSON, EDWARD A..............................................855.00
*MEAKIN, JEAN PIPER............................................1,575.00
*MEANS, DONALD C & MEANS, MARY RAE..............1,418.75
MEANS, DONALD C & MEANS, MARY RAE.....................36.25
MELLICK, SHELBY......................................................673.13
*MELVILLE, MARIA ANGELA G.................................1,693.13
*MERRILL, JOHN M & ANNE G & MOWAT, 
  SARAH C MERRILL................................................5,208.13
MERRITT, RICHARD E & MERRITT, DIANE D..............1,214.38
MESERVE, PAMELA & SVENS, DAVID A....................1,263.13
MESERVE, STACY HARRIS........................................1,172.50
*MESSER, ARTHUR & MESSER, NADINE...................1,330.00
MESSIER, LYNN & MESSIER, MARILYN M.................3,163.75
MESSIER, MARILYN M................................................393.75
METCALF, LLC.............................................................476.88
METOUDI, LAURA F....................................................456.25
MEYER, KAY M (HEIRS OF)......................................2,044.38
MEYER, PAUL F & MEYER, MARTHA........................2,730.00
MEYERS, JILL.............................................................650.63
MICOCCI, ANTHONY P & MICOCCI, RHODA M, TR - 
  HARRIET P MICOCCI REVOCABLE TRUST................5,848.75
*MIKULAK, DEBRA LEE & BLOOM, FREDERICK E......1,406.25
MILDEN, MALISSA & MILDEN, JAHVID.......................408.75
MILLER ISLAND TRUST - RICHARDS, JAMES G, TTEE....301.25
*MILLER, EDWIN L..................................................1,235.63
MILLER, HYDE F TRUST - MILLER, HYDE F & 
  MILLER, CANDACE L, TRUSTEES............................1,446.88
MILLER, TIMOTHY E & CHAMBERS-MILLER, 
  CHRISTINA C........................................................1,767.50
MILLS, CHARLES B & MILLS, TAMMY J.....................2,111.88
*MILLS, DONALD T & MILLS, DONNA A...................2,686.88
MILLS, KEITH R & ROBERTS, LAURA A.....................1,898.75
MILLS-SCOFIELD, DEBORAH, TR..............................1,246.25
MINER, REID A & MINER, MARY M..........................3,999.38
MINOR, DAVID F & MINOR, BARBARA A..................3,601.25
MIROW, GEORGE........................................................453.75
MITCHELL, CHRISTOPHER D & RICHARDSON, CARA...3,465.00
MITCHELL, JENNIFER...............................................2,773.13
MITCHELL, JENNIFER..................................................172.50
MITCHELL, REBECCA & HARRIS, BENJAMIN, TR........2,331.25
MITKUS, JOHN P & MITKUS, LINDA A.........................131.25
MITKUS, JOHN P & MITKUS, LINDA A......................1,058.75
MJH-PEM, LLC...........................................................804.38
MJH-PEM, LLC........................................................1,990.63
MOCARSKI, DANIEL & MOCARSKI, CLAIRE...............5,117.50
MOEBIUS, CHARLES G.............................................1,485.00
MOFFO RE TRUST MOFFO, CARMINE JR, TRUSTEE.........21.88
MOFFO, CARMINE, JR & BERNADETTE, LYNN..............313.13
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*MOFFO, CARMINE, JR & BERNADETTE, LYNN.........1,845.63
MOFFO, CARMINE, JR - TRUSTEE MOFFO RE TRUST.....381.25
MOLLER, JENNY ANN.................................................343.75
MOLLER, JENNY ANN.................................................184.38
MOLLER, ROLF M & ALINE M - REVOC TRUSTS.........6,121.88
MOLONEY, BRIAN T & MOLONEY, PATRICIA A...........1,997.50
MOLT, ISAAC C........................................................1,434.38
MOLT, RICHARD R JR & MOLT, CHRISTINA SS............3,991.88
MOLT, ROY C & MOLT, LORI S...................................1,186.88
MONACO, ALBERT...................................................1,318.13
MONAHAN, LINDA A & MONAHAN, MICHAEL W......4,163.75
MONGEON, RALPH E REV LIVING TRUST (06/05/15) - 
  MONGEON, RALPH, TRUSTEE................................5,143.13
MONGEON, RALPH E REV LIVING TRUST (06/05/15) - 
  MONGEON, RALPH E, TRUSTEE................................356.25
MONROE, MATTHEW L & MONROE, NANCY L..........1,950.00
MONTGOMERY, FREDERICK J & MONTGOMERY, 
  BEATRICE L..............................................................922.50
MONTGOMERY, RICHARD & MONTGOMERY, 
  REBECCA..............................................................2,168.75
MONTGOMERY, RICHARD & MONTGOMERY, STEPHEN &
  TAYLOR, CATHERINE MONTGOMERY.........................985.00
MONTGOMERY, STEPHEN J.........................................350.00
MONTGOMERY, STEPHEN J, MONTGOMERY, RICHARD &
  TAYLOR, CATHERINE M, TR.......................................553.13
MONTOURI, WARREN K, TRUSTEE............................6,213.75
MOODY, MATTHEW & MOODY, BONNIE J....................192.50
MOODY, MATTHEW & MOODY, BONNIE J....................413.13
MOODY, MATTHEW & MOODY, BONNIE J....................371.25
MOOK, CLEO & COLLOPY, PETER..............................1,973.75
MOORE, DALE & MOORE, MARCIA...........................1,236.25
MOORE, SLADE B....................................................1,064.38
MOQUIN, GABRIEL & MOQUIN, JUDITH S....................750.00
MORAN, JANE L & CONGDON, PRISCILLA G.................926.25
MORAN, PATRICK K.................................................1,253.75
MORGAN, JEAN......................................................1,417.50
MORIN, ALIX L & MORIN, MARK F, TR - MARK FREDERICK
  MORIN & ALIX L MORIN TRUST AGRMNT..............4,249.38
MORIN, DANIEL P & MORIN, CYNTHIA R..................5,234.38
MORONEY, TIMOTHY & MORONEY, MARY C.............1,350.00
MORRILL, LEIGH H & MORRILL, SHARON G.................850.00
MORRIS, FRANCESCA B & JOHN, CO-TRUSTEES........2,153.13
MORRIS, FRANCESCA B & JOHN, CO-TRUSTEES........3,750.00
MORRIS, FRANCESCA B & MORRIS, JOHN, CO-TTEES...860.00
MORRIS, STEPHANY A.............................................1,535.63
MORRISON, DIANA M & MORRISON, RODERICK W...1,839.38
MORRISON, ETTA C & MORRISON, MICHAEL A.........1,479.38
MORRISON, LINDA & VANELLA, SHAUNDRA............1,805.00
MORSE, DAVID E. - SEPARATE PROPERTY TRUST 
  MORSE, DAVID E, TRUSTEE...................................4,000.63
MORTON, LEWIS J & MORTON, ANN M.......................856.88
MORTON, WILLIAM A JR & MORTON, SUSAN E........2,375.63

MOSES, MARTYN R & MOSES, KATHLEEN R.............1,387.50
*MOSES, MARTYN R & MOSES, KATHLEEN R...........1,831.88
MOSHER, DONNA LYNN.............................................431.25
MOSHER, GEOFFREY K & MOSHER, GENEVIEVE R....1,762.50
MOSS, DOUGLAS D JR & MCGOWAN-MOSS, 
  BERNADETTE........................................................1,586.25
MOSS, MICHAEL & MOSS, CONSTANCE....................1,375.63
MOULTON, SHAWN A & SUMMERS, ERIN C..............1,130.63
MOWATT, BRET L & MOWATT, EVELYN L.....................372.50
MULCAHY, JOHN W & FENNIMAN, ANDREW K.........5,782.50
MULLIN, CHARLES KEVIN & MULLIN, 
  ANNE ELIZABETH....................................................125.00
MULLIN, CHARLES KEVIN & MULLIN, ANNE E.............166.88
MULLIN, JOHN J.........................................................173.75
*MULLIN, LINDA & MULLIN, WILLIAM JR................1,767.50
MULLIN, SHEILA M & MULLIN, ANDREW T..............1,331.88
MUNCE, ROBERT E & MUNCE, RULENE A.................1,183.75
MURRAY, LINDA (PIP) & MURRAY, 
  GWENDOLYN B (PIP)...............................................303.75
MURRAY, PAUL & MURRAY, HILARY.........................1,232.50
MURRAY-LITTLEFIELD, REBECCA A LITTLEFIELD, & 
  LITTLEFIELD, ALAN..................................................670.00
MUSCONGUS PROPERTIES, LLC...............................3,592.50
MUSICK, MADOLYN M................................................266.88
MUSK, JANET.............................................................205.63
MUSK, JANET H......................................................1,186.88
MUSK, JANET H...........................................................61.25
MUSK, JANET HILL..................................................1,883.75
*MYERS, DONALD C & MYERS, BARBARA F.............1,085.63
MYERS, WINSLOW..................................................1,666.88
MYLES, CARY & BELKOV, CYNTHIA..........................5,155.00
NADO, WAYNE A........................................................535.63
NAGLE, JAMES K..........................................................98.13
NAGLE, JAMES K........................................................100.63
NAHANDA REALTY TRUST.......................................1,953.13
NAJIM, RALPH E & NAJIM, JANE H.............................870.00
NAJIM, RALPH E & NAJIM, JANE H.............................525.00
NASH, JEANNINE D FOSSETT & NASH, CHARLES J III &
  FOSSETT, DOROTHY..............................................1,158.75
NASH, JUSTIN W........................................................763.13
NATHANSON, STANLEY L & NATHANSON, 
  GERALDINE.............................................................158.75
NATURE CONSERVANCY (THE) MAINE CHAPTER.........126.88
NATURE CONSERVANCY (THE) MAINE CHAPTER...........86.25
NATURE CONSERVANCY (THE) MAINE CHAPTER...........31.25
NATURE CONSERVANCY (THE) MAINE CHAPTER...........24.38
NAUGHTON, JAMES J III..........................................5,412.50
NAUGHTON, JAMES J III.............................................267.50
NAVIGATOR PROPERTIES, LLC..................................1,045.63
NEE, R CHRISTOPHER & NEE, SARA E.......................2,570.00
NEELY, JEAN PATRICIA.............................................1,218.13
NEFF CABIN, LLC.....................................................1,294.38
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NEFF, LYNN K & NEFF, PETER A................................2,148.75
NEIMAN, CHRISTINA F............................................1,106.25
NELSON, ADAM R & NELSON, HOLLY P....................2,430.63
*NELSON, JAMES H & GILBERT, JACQUELINE...........1,328.13
NELSON, KATHIE SAWTELLE.......................................476.88
NELSON, KATHIE SAWTELLE....................................1,745.63
NELSON, KATHIE SAWTELLE & SAWTELLE, KATHRYN...105.00
NELSON, LOUISA L..................................................5,671.25
NELSON, LOUISA LIBBY & NELSON, MARK L...............415.63
NELSON, LOUISA LOCKWOOD.....................................456.25
NERBER, PETER & JUNE E, TR.....................................728.13
NES, CHARLES M IV.................................................1,473.13
NESS, MOLLY K.......................................................1,117.50
NESS, MOLLY K..........................................................221.25
NESS, PAUL M & NESS, BARBARA D.........................3,304.38
NEUSER, JENNIFER M.................................................883.75
NEW HARBOR LAND CORP II...................................3,810.63
NEW HARBOR LAND CORP II...................................2,099.38
NEW HARBOR LAND LLC.........................................1,580.63
†NEW HARBOR/ROUND POND CHURCHES..............1,286.88
NEW HARBOR-CHAMBERLAIN WATER ASSOC.............124.38
NEW HARBOR-CHAMBERLAIN WATER ASSOC.............249.38
NEWBEGIN, BARBARA E.............................................855.00
NEWHOUSE, RENAE B & NEWHOUSE, MARK H........2,658.75
NEWHOUSE/ZIMMERLY FAMILY TRUST - NEWHOUSE, 
  HENRY W & ZIMMERLY, ELSAN, TRUSTEES............1,377.50
NEWMAN, MATTHEW, TTEE - WINONA RE TRUST....1,503.13
NEWTON, CRAIG H & NEWTON, KATHRYN H............3,756.88
NEWTON, CRAIG H & NEWTON, KATHRYN H............2,063.13
NEXT ADVENTURE, INC.........................................10,328.13
NEXT ADVENTURE, INC...........................................1,129.38
NIAL, DAVID & NIAL, LAURA......................................939.38
NIAL, DAVID AND LAURA REALTY TRUST NIAL - 
  DAVID & NIAL, LAURA, TR........................................364.38
*NICHOLS, FRANCIS J & NICHOLS, PAULA A.............1,620.00
NICHOLS, JAY F............................................................48.13
NICHOLS, JAY F.......................................................1,919.38
NICHOLS, JOHN & NICHOLS, CAROL.........................1,038.75
NICHOLS, JOHN B JR & NICHOLS, CAROL A.................188.13
NICHOLS, JOSEPH & NICHOLS, EILEEN........................202.50
NICHOLS, LIUDMYLA.................................................713.75
NICHOLS, MEAGHAN P & NICHOLS, ROSS................1,480.63
NICHOLS, MEAGHAN P & NICHOLS, ROSS................2,056.25
NICHOLS, STEVEN B & NICHOLS, VICTORIA L............1,288.75
NICHOLS, STEVEN B & NICHOLS, VICTORIA L............1,116.25
NICKERSON, MARK A.................................................218.75
NICKLIN, WALTER S III & PATRICIA B, CO-TRUSTEES - 
  WALTER S NICKLIN III REVOCABLE TRUST..............3,036.88
NIDO, GUY E & NIDO, JANET B & NIDO, KELLY..........1,551.25
NIELSEN, ERIC & NIELSEN, BONNIE M......................2,076.25
NIELSEN, ERIC & NIELSEN, BONNIE M.........................161.88
NISBET, JUDITH A & KEVIN & DOREEN & SCOTT.......3,851.25

NISBET, SCOTT........................................................1,703.75
NOLAN, JOHN J, TR.................................................2,598.75
NOONAN, GEOFFROY.................................................651.88
NORCROSS, SUSAN E & NORCROSS, PHILLIP...............953.75
NORIAN, MATTHEW & NORIAN, COURTNEY.............2,098.75
NORIEGA, JILLIAN PRATT & NORIEGA, FRANK M......1,731.25
NORLAND, LLC...........................................................886.88
NORLAND, LLC........................................................3,610.00
NORLAND, TIMOTHY C & NORLAND, BETSEY S.........1,634.38
NORMAN, ANTHONY P & NORMAN, JO-ANITA.........1,655.00
NORTH, HOWARD E JR............................................1,350.63
NORTH, HOWARD E JR...............................................328.13
NORTH, TRISTA..........................................................231.25
NORTHERN STAR REAL ESTATE, LLC.........................2,885.63
NORTHERN STAR REAL ESTATE, LLC.........................4,985.63
NORTHSTAR ME, LLC..................................................787.50
NORTHSTAR ME, LLC..................................................411.88
NORTON, MELISSA LAVERDIERE, CO-TRUSTEES.......2,941.25
NOWOSIELSKI, KAROL & NOWOSIELSKI, IZABELA....7,544.38
NOYES, PATRICIA F REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
  NOYES - PATRICIA F, TRUSTEE...............................3,300.00
NOYES, PATRICIA F, TRUSTEE......................................716.25
NYBOE, KENNETH E (HEIRS).......................................316.25
NYBOE, MARK...........................................................965.00
NYBOE, MICHAEL S & NYBOE, CHARLOTTE L............4,025.63
O W HOLMES, INC...................................................1,700.63
O’BRIEN, AMY L.........................................................135.00
O’BRIEN, BETSEY & O’BRIEN, JOHN............................266.88
O’BRIEN, JEAN M, TRUSTEE.....................................1,201.25
O’BRIEN, JOHN C JR & O’BRIEN, BETSY ANN............1,036.88
OCHS, NANCY J & OCHS, ROBERT J..........................1,075.63
OCHS, NANCY J & OCHS, ROBERT J..........................1,279.38
OCHS, ROBERT J & OCHS, NANCY J..........................4,058.13
O’CONNOR, PETER & O’CONNOR, MARIPOSA...........2,726.88
O’DONNELL, DANIEL G & O’DONNELL, PATRICIA B...1,518.13
OGDEN, BETH............................................................998.75
OGDEN, WENDY F...................................................1,486.88
OGLE, LISLE, M.......................................................1,564.38
O’LEARY, DONALD P & O’LEARY, MONICA R.............1,668.13
O’LEARY, RICHARD..................................................2,474.38
OLIVER, JAMES W & OLIVER, RACHAEL L.................1,289.38
OLIVER, SALLY J......................................................1,345.63
OLIVERI, TERRY D & OLIVERI, MARY L.........................718.75
OLIVERI, TERRY D & OLIVERI, MARY L......................1,393.75
OLSON, ALEC R..........................................................273.13
OLSON, GREGORY B & BLACK, JANE E.........................761.88
OLSON, JANET G........................................................617.50
OLSON, JOHN W, TRUSTEE..........................................370.63
OLSON, KENNETH...................................................1,845.63
OLSON, LAUREL E......................................................749.38
OLSON, LEE R & BAKER, SUSAN O, TR......................1,541.88
OLSON, LEE R & BAKER, SUSAN O, TR......................3,384.38
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ONORATO, ISAIAH J & HILTON, ASHLEY L.................1,201.88
ONORATO, ROBERT D & ONORATO, CINDY L.................715.00
ORAM, JOAN C........................................................2,533.13
ORCUTT REVOCABLE TRUST & ORCUTT, DAVID & 
  REILLY, SARA........................................................2,888.13
ORGAN, MELISSA P.................................................1,651.88
ORMISTON, JOHN E III.............................................2,473.75
ORNOWSKI, CARL......................................................531.88
ORNOWSKI, CARL A................................................1,608.13
ORNOWSKI, CARL A...................................................356.25
ORNOWSKI, CARL A...................................................248.75
ORRICK, MARGARET H & CHALFANT, WILLIAM W....1,816.25
OSGOOD, TROY & OSGOOD, TRACY..............................894.38
OSICKA, BARBARA M, TRUSTEE...............................3,784.38
OSIER, BELINDA O...................................................4,915.00
OSIER, BELINDA O...................................................2,923.13
OSIER, BELINDA O...................................................4,163.75
OSIER, DONALD T & OSIER, CARLYLE A....................1,231.88
OSIER, DONALD T & OSIER, CARLYLE A....................1,087.50
OSIER, KILTON T......................................................1,121.88
OSMER, DORIS M - “PALACE N” TRUST OSMER - 
  PATRICIA M, TRUSTEE...........................................2,182.50
OSTIGUY, JAMES..........................................................70.63
OSTIGUY, JAMES..........................................................31.25
OTIS, ROBERT E & BARBARA S,TR............................1,766.25
OUELLETTE, J EDGAR & OUELLETTE, DOROTHY B.....1,747.50
OUR JOURNEY’S END, LLC........................................3,325.00
OWEN, MEGAN.......................................................1,133.13
PADGETT, JOHN F & GRISWOLD, WENDY..................1,718.75
PAINE, LINDA R & PAINE, GEORGE G SR...................2,838.13
PAINTER, LINDA D & BAGLIONE, FRANK V................1,679.38
PANGILINAN, TRISTAN & BORROMEO, MERCEDES....2,573.75
PANGILINAN, TRISTAN H & BORROMEO, 
  MERCEDES...........................................................3,629.38
PANGILINAN, TRISTAN H & BORROMEO, MERCEDES...606.25
PAPIERNIK, GREG & REGNIER, SUZANNE M................701.25
PAPKOV, ANDRE N & PAPKOV, NATALIE R....................248.13
PARADIS, ROSALIE A..................................................112.50
PARADY, JEANNINE....................................................746.25
PARENT, RICHARD A & PARENT, EILEEN C...............12,791.25
PARK AVENUE REALTY.............................................1,590.00
PARK, ANGELA...........................................................205.00
PARKER, KATHLEEN & HERON, HOWARD C II MD & 
  BROCK, EILEEN A..................................................1,524.38
PARKER, KATHLEEN & HERON, HOWARD C II MD & 
  BROCK, EILEEN A.........................................................8.75
PARLIN, ALICE............................................................375.63
PARLIN, RICKY...........................................................325.63
PARSONS, BETTY, TR & BLINN, RICHARD, TR............2,041.25
PARSONS, NEIL LEE....................................................556.25
PARSONS, NEIL LEE....................................................470.63
PARSONS, NEIL LEE JR................................................218.75

PARTRIDGE, ROBERT W & THURSTON,
  BARBARA AP........................................................2,551.88
PASSARO, CAROLYN M & EUGENE M & 
  BELL, JESSICA PASSARO.......................................4,007.50
PASTORE, JOSEPH & PASTORE, KATHLEEN E.............1,289.38
PATTERSON, BRITT & PATTERSON, LAURA..................153.75
PATTERSON, E BRITT & PATTERSON, LAURA A..........1,361.25
PATZ, JAMES V, TR......................................................763.13
PATZ, JAMES V, TR...................................................2,555.63
PAUL HANNA PEMAQUID, LLC.................................3,537.50
PAUL, DAVID C & PAUL, LINDA N.............................1,104.38
PAUL, DAVID C & PAUL, LINDA N................................801.25
*PAUL, GEORGE E & PAUL, DEBRA M.......................1,800.63
PAUL, LINDA N...........................................................168.75
PAULLO, RONALD....................................................2,591.25
PAVELLE, ELIZABETH...............................................3,362.50
PB SURVIVOR CORP...................................................403.13
PB SURVIVOR CORP...................................................570.63
PB SURVIVOR CORP...................................................374.38
PB SURVIVOR CORP...................................................472.50
PEDRICK, ROBERT G JR & PEDRICK, SALLY D............1,115.00
PEGHINY, JAMES W & HAMMOND, SANDRA A.........1,428.13
PELLERIN, YVON J & PELLERIN, JACQUELINE B........3,196.25
PELLETIER, MICHAEL.................................................824.38
PEMAQUID ASSOCIATES, INC...................................1,587.50
PEMAQUID ASSOCIATES, INC......................................219.38
PEMAQUID CRAFT CO-OPERATIVE...........................1,322.50
PEMAQUID INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, LLC..............9,820.63
PEMAQUID INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, LLC...................84.38
PEMAQUID INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, LLC..............1,912.50
PEMAQUID INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, LLC...................18.75
PEMAQUID POINT RE TRUST - SPATE, LOUISE, TTEE.....578.75
PEMAQUID SEAFOOD REAL ESTATE, LLC...................4,520.63
PEMAQUID STONE, LLC............................................2,671.25
PEMAQUID VILLAS CO-OPERATIVE...............................33.13
PEMAQUID VILLAS CO-OPERATIVE..........................1,934.38
PEMAQUID VILLAS CO-OPERATIVE...............................25.00
PENDLETON, BENJAMIN S, MORNEAULT, ASHLEY V, 
  PENDLETON, SCOTT E & WENDYANN & SARAH N...2,139.38
PENDLETON, BRADFORD L & PENDLETON, 
  MELANIE L...........................................................1,385.00
PENDLETON, CLYDE R & PENDLETON, N LUCILLE......1,273.75
PENDLETON, CLYDE R JR & PENDLETON, CARRIE D...1,272.50
PENDLETON, CYLDE R & PENDLETON, N LUCILLE.....1,226.25
PENDLETON, JARED M............................................1,446.88
PENDLETON, JERALDINE Y.......................................1,510.63
PENDLETON, JERALDINE Y.......................................4,356.25
PENDLETON, RONALD E & PENDLETON, 
  JERALDINE Y........................................................1,225.00
PENDLETON, RONALD E & PENDLETON, 
  JERALDINE Y........................................................1,463.75
PENDLETON, RONALD E.............................................499.38
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PENDLETON, RONALD E.............................................485.00
PENDLETON, RONALD E.............................................206.25
*PENDLETON, RONALD E........................................2,651.25
PENDLETON, SCOTT.................................................1,495.63
PENDLETON, SCOTT E & PENDLETON, 
  WENDYANN M......................................................2,458.75
PENNIMAN, ROY.....................................................1,073.13
PENNIMAN, ROY W.................................................2,303.75
PENNIMAN, ROY W.................................................1,890.63
PENNIMAN, ROY W....................................................176.88
PENNIMAN, ROY W......................................................35.63
PENNIMAN, ROY W....................................................165.63
PENNIMAN, TOM M....................................................336.88
PENNIMAN, TOM M & PENNIMAN, TRACY A............3,006.88
PENNIMAN, TOM M.................................................1,333.75
PENTA, MARY & KELLY, BARBARA & PENTA, PAUL A & 
  RICHARD A & FIELDS, PATRICIA............................1,026.88
PERKINS, CATHERINE..............................................2,240.00
PERKINS, ELIZABETH L & PERKINS, SARAH L..............928.75
PERLEY, KENTON B & PERLEY, MOLLIE H.....................259.38
PERLEY, KENTON B & PERLEY, MOLLIE H..................1,871.25
PERLEY, KENTON B..................................................1,326.25
PERLEY, KENTON B.....................................................643.13
PERLEY, KENTON B & PERLEY, MOLLIE H.....................218.75
PERLEY, KENTON B & PERLEY, MOLLIE H..................1,251.88
PERLEY, KENTON B & PERLEY, MOLLIE H.....................239.38
PERLEY, KENTON B & PERLEY, MOLLIE H.....................381.25
PERLEY, KENTON B & PERLEY, MOLLIE H..................2,172.50
PERLEY, MOLLIE H.....................................................626.88
PERLEY, MOLLIE H..................................................1,090.63
PERLEY, MOLLIE H..................................................1,410.00
PERLMUTTER, AITANA & PERLMUTTER, PERRY J.....1,105.00
PERRY, DANIEL P & PERRY, CAROL ANN...................4,363.13
PERRY, WILLIAM H & PERRY, KATHERINE D..............6,958.13
PERSSON, JOEL C & AUDREY A................................1,023.13
PETER MACCREADY, INC..........................................1,031.25
PETER MACCREADY, INC.............................................137.50
PETERS, DAVID JOHN.................................................936.25
PETERS, ELIZABETH A................................................860.63
PETERS, KENNETH C................................................1,008.13
PETERS, KENNETH C...................................................137.50
PETERSEN, ALISON & PETERSEN, THOMAS M.............636.88
PETERSEN, GARY & PETERSEN, PATRICIA.................1,407.50
PETERSON, CHARLOTTE A........................................1,953.13
PETERSON, ERIC A. & MARK A., MARGOLIS, JANE & 
  GROVER, JENNIFER, TRUSTEES FAMILY TRUST.......4,561.25
PETERSON, MARY ANN..............................................257.50
PHII LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP....................5,005.00
PHILLIPS, KIMBERLY L & REILLY, CARL E, JR.............1,657.50
PHILLIPS, MARK C & MERCANTI-ANTHONY, 
  FRANCES.................................................................582.50
*PHINNEY, DENNIS A & PHINNEY, HELEN E..............1,089.38

PHINNEY, NATHANIEL..................................................70.00
PHINNEY, NATHANIEL.............................................2,574.38
PHINNEY, NATHANIEL................................................696.25
PHINNEY, PERRY.....................................................2,590.63
PHINNEY, PERRY........................................................205.00
PHINNEY, PERRY F.....................................................373.13
PHINNEY, SUSAN TOWNSEND..................................1,838.13
PHINNEY, SUSAN TOWNSEND, TRUSTEE...................5,158.75
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F..............................................4,633.13
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F & PHINNEY, PERRY F..............1,435.63
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F & PHINNEY, PERRY F...................20.63
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F & PHINNEY, PERRY F..............3,021.25
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F..............................................1,294.38
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F & PHINNEY, PERRY F..............1,312.50
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F..............................................2,059.38
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F & PHINNEY, PERRY F..............4,283.75
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F & PHINNEY, PERRY F..............6,820.00
PHINNEY, WILLIAM F..............................................4,765.00
PIERCE, DONALD A & REED-PIERCE, MELISSA A..........203.13
PIERCE, DONALD A & REED-PIERCE, MELISSA A.......1,304.38
PIERCE, SHERRYLEE D.............................................1,713.13
PIERCE-MORIN, LINDA C.........................................1,060.00
PIERPAN, DEANNA S & PIERPAN, CHRISTOPHER G...1,907.50
PIERPONT, BROOKS A & PIERPONT, LINDA...............1,382.50
PIERPONT, BROOKS A & PIERPONT, LINDA......................8.75
PIKE, JEFFREY & PIKE, SHERRY...................................245.63
PIKE, JEFFREY M & PIKE, SHERRY L.........................1,000.00
PILIBOSIAN, KATHE.................................................1,196.25
PILIBOSIAN, KATHE & HOLLEY, CHRIS.........................274.38
PILLAR, GREGORY N & PILLAR, BARBARA A............1,901.25
PILSUCKI, ROBERT W & PILSUCKI, ROSEMARY C......2,365.00
PINE TREE COTTAGE, LLC.........................................4,178.13
PINE, CAROLYN & PINE, ANTHONY..........................1,570.00
PINKERTON, JOHN B & PINKERTON, KATHLEEN M....1,901.88
PINKHAM, CAMERON & POWELL, PAMELA & 
  PINKHAM, PAUL...................................................2,511.88
PIPER, LOIS.............................................................4,150.63
PIPER, LOIS F & HELLTHALER, GAIL M......................2,889.38
PIPER, RUTH J.........................................................2,228.75
PITCHER, SHIRLEY H & DONALD F & DONALD F JR...4,351.88
PITCHER, STEPHEN D & PITCHER, CAROLYN M - 
  REV TR.................................................................1,455.63
PLAMONDON, DEBORAH A........................................991.25
PLANTY, JANE H.........................................................930.63
PLEIS, ROBERT F & PLEIS, DONNA K........................3,381.25
PLOWDEN, MARY & PLOWDEN, DANIEL C................1,926.25
PLUMMER, CHARLES H................................................84.38
PLUMMER, HOWARD J & CHARLES & SHAWN, ETAL.....71.88
PLUMMER, SHAWN....................................................606.88
PLUMMER, SHAWN E.................................................763.13
PLUMMER, SHAWN E.................................................460.00
PLUMMER, TOBY J.......................................................71.88
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PLUMMER, ZACHARY.................................................154.38
POLAND, ANDREW LORD........................................2,855.00
POLAND, COREY L...................................................1,025.00
POLAND, EDWARD F & POLAND, GWENDOLYN...........370.63
POLAND, EDWARD F JR..............................................790.00
*POLAND, EDWARD SR & GWENDOLYN (LIFE ESTATE) 
  POLAND, FRANK G................................................1,918.75
POLAND, FRANK.....................................................1,340.00
POLAND, FRANK.....................................................1,541.25
POLAND, FRANK........................................................335.00
POLAND, FRANK........................................................246.88
POLAND, FRANK G..................................................1,293.13
*POLAND, JON G & POLAND, JON G JR........................945.63
POLAND, JON G JR.....................................................201.88
POLAND, JON G JR & POLAND, STEPHANIE.................386.25
POLAND, JON G JR & STEPHANIE................................924.38
POLAND, JON G JR & STEPHANIE J...........................4,633.13
POLAND, EDWARD JR..............................................2,604.38
POLAND, PETER & POLAND, DEBRA M.....................1,850.00
POLAND, PETER......................................................1,206.25
POLAND, PETER & POLAND, DEBRA M........................368.13
POLAND, PETER & POLAND, DEBRA M........................367.50
*POLAND, RICHARD & POLAND, DIANE......................915.00
POLAND, RICHARD H JR & POLAND, KRISTINE A......1,514.38
POLAND, RONALD T...................................................758.75
POLAND, RUSSELL & HOLMES, LLC.............................479.38
POLAND, RUSSELL & HOLMES, LLC.............................218.75
POLAND, RUSSELL & HOLMES, LLC.............................225.00
POLAND, RUSSELL & HOLMES, LLC.............................263.75
POLAND, RUSSELL & HOLMES, LLC.............................250.00
PONTRELLI, MICHAEL R..........................................2,895.63
POOLE, CARL S JR......................................................385.00
POOLE, CARL S JR......................................................600.63
POOLE, CARL S JR......................................................214.38
POOLE, CARL S JR......................................................496.25
POOLE, CARL S JR......................................................528.13
POOLE, CARL S JR & EMILY C......................................290.63
POOLE, CARL S JR & EMILY C......................................322.50
POOLE, EMILY C....................................................17,340.63
POOLE, LAURENT & CHASE, JENNIFER L..................3,687.50
POOLE, LAURENT & CHASE, JENNIFER L..................6,361.88
POOLE, LAURENT & CHASE, JENNIFER L..................3,000.00
POOLE, LAURENT & CHASE, JENNIFER L.........................3.13
POOLER, JEFFREY L & PLYMAK, BELINDA J.................925.00
POOLER, JEFFREY L....................................................984.38
POOLER, JOHN D & BROWN, ELIZABETH.......................66.88
PORTER, BARNABY....................................................396.25
PORTER, EDWARD L & PORTER, LINDA DOBSON......1,341.88
PORTER, JOHN S & PORTER, PATRICIA M, TR - 
  PORTER FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST.............220.63
PORTER, JOHN S & PORTER, PATRICIA M, TR - 
  PORTER FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST..........2,552.50

PORTER, RICHARD M & PORTER, NANCY A..............1,278.13
POST, ALEXANDER C JR & POST, KATHERINE & 
  CARTER, ANDREA POST........................................6,388.13
POTTER, BONNIE B & THE BARRY S POTTER TRUST..3,743.13
POTTER, DAVID N & WERTHEIMER, CAROL S............2,719.38
POTTER, ELIZABETH M...............................................996.88
POTTER, JUDITH HARRIS, TR...................................1,011.25
POTTER, MARK E & POTTER, LISE B............................958.13
POTTER, MARK E & POTTER, LISE B............................145.00
POTTLE, TERESA D......................................................686.25
POWELL, JORDAN H & POWELL, ERICA E.................1,220.00
POWELL, NATHAN R & POWELL, ANDREA L................218.75
POWELL, NATHAN R & POWELL, ANDREA L.............2,270.63
POWELL, NATHAN, CARPENTER & BUILDER, INC.....3,116.25
POWELL, NATHAN, CARPENTER & BUILDER, INC........257.50
POWELL, NATHAN, CARPENTER & BUILDER, INC........199.38
*POWELL, PAULINE J..............................................1,053.13
POWELL, STEPHEN P..................................................105.00
*PRAHST, HOPE J....................................................1,612.50
PRATT, DEBORAH T.................................................1,328.13
PRENTICE, CAROL ANN & GORDON, TRUSTEES.........1,414.38
PRENTICE, CAROL FAY & PRENTICE, JAMES..............1,608.75
PRENTICE, CAROLYN & VERNEY, JANET & 
  HOPE, STEVEN......................................................1,346.25
*PRENTICE, DALE A & PRENTICE, CAROLYN H..........1,740.00
PRENTICE, GORDON & PRENTICE, CAROL ANN............105.63
PRENTICE, GORDON L & PRENTICE, CAROL ANN......1,337.50
PRENTICE, GORDON L & PRENTICE, CAROL ANN......1,395.00
PRENTICE, HOPE.....................................................1,315.00
PRENTICE, PAUL A......................................................356.88
PRESTON , RICHARD M - IRREVOC TRUST 2004........5,116.25
PRESTON, DAVID G, - IRREVOCABLE TRUST 2005 - 
  PRESTON, DAVID G TRUSTEE.................................6,864.38
PRESTON, DOUGLAS J - IRREVOC TRUST 2003.........9,519.38
PRESTON, RICHARD M & PRESTON, MICHELLE P...........35.63
PRESTON, RICHARD M..........................................10,068.75
PRESTON, RICHARD M............................................3,083.75
PRESTON, RICHARD M & PRESTON, MICHELLE P.........763.75
PRESTON, RICHARD M, TRUSTEE - 
  RICHARD M PRESTON IRREVOCABLE TRUST 2004....293.75
PREUSS, FREDRICK A.................................................170.00
PRICE, STEPHEN FLAGG & PRICE, MARTHA
  MCCALLUM..........................................................1,753.13
PRICHARD, PETER & PRICHARD, ANN......................2,315.63
PRIDE, RALPH & PRIDE, VICTORIA..............................834.38
PRIME, JON L & PRIME, WINIFRED L........................2,968.75
PRIOR, AUDREY J & PRIOR, KELSEY L......................1,313.13
PRIOR, JODI L..........................................................1,573.13
PRIOR, MARK S & PRIOR, AUDREY J........................2,424.38
PRIOR, MARK S & PRIOR, AUDREY J...........................385.63
PROULX, SARAH........................................................507.50
PROVOST, PIERRE & PROVOST, ALISON....................6,610.00
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PRYZANT, RODGER M & PRYZANT, EYDIE M.............1,698.75
PUCCI, DOMINICK L & DONNA L, CO-TR...................9,920.00
PUCCI, RONALD J....................................................1,282.50
PUGH, JOHN & PUGH, MADGE.................................1,567.50
PUGH, JOHN & PUGH, MADGE....................................338.75
PULSIFER, JARED & GUMMOE, KRISTINA.................1,575.63
PULSIFER, PRISCILLA F & THOMPSON, JOYCE.............858.75
PULSIFER, PRISCILLA F & THOMPSON, JOYCE.................3.13
PULSIFER, PRISCILLA F & NORTON, STEPHEN W & 
  GAUDET, DIANNE J...............................................1,211.25
PURINTON, DOROTHY................................................258.75
PURINTON, DOROTHY A..........................................1,426.25
PUTNAM, NANCY J, TR............................................2,742.50
PYLE, RICHARD D & PYLE, NICOLE F........................7,605.63
PYSCZYNSKI, JAMES N...............................................231.25
PYSCZYNSKI, JAMES N............................................1,587.50
QUAIL RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOC...............................43.13
QUAIL RUN HOMEOWNER’S ASSOCIATION....................17.50
QUARRY HILL IMPROVEMENT ASSOC...........................31.25
QUARRY HILL IMPROVEMENT ASSOC...........................51.25
QUARRY HILL RE TRUST - LEEMAN, JENNY A, TR......4,535.00
QUIMBY, LUCY G & QUIMBY, THOMAS B, TR................140.00
QUIMBY, LUCY G & QUIMBY, THOMAS B..................1,263.75
QUIMBY, LUCY G & QUIMBY, THOMAS B.....................330.63
QUIMBY, LUCY G & QUIMBY, THOMAS B.....................416.25
QUINLAN, MARGARET TERESA................................1,005.00
QUINN, STACY.........................................................3,850.63
QUINTUS, CYNTHIA....................................................448.75
RAAB, JOANN L..........................................................403.75
RAAB, JOANN L.......................................................1,643.13
RADLOFF, ROBERT A & BEHA, ANN M......................7,883.75
RAE, JEN & RAE, BRENDAN.....................................1,813.75
*RAFALOWSKI, JOSEPH J & RAFALOWSKI, CAROL A...1,108.75
RAINEAULT, SUSAN A.................................................828.13
RANCOURT, CYNTHIA J & RANCOURT, JAMES D........2,033.13
RANCOURT, JAMES D & RANCOURT, CYNTHIA J...........219.38
RAND, GARD PAIGE & RAND, MARY ANN....................150.00
*RAND, ROGER F.....................................................1,478.13
RANDALL, JULIA IRELAND.......................................4,721.25
RANGER, SALLY D...................................................2,953.75
RANSDELL, KERRY L & RANSDELL, KIRSTIE M..........2,016.25
RAPP, CONSTANCE - TTEE LITTLE FALLS BROOK TR...1,458.75
RATIGAN, SUSAN A....................................................907.50
RAUSCHER, U KURT & RAUSCHER, ANDREA K..........2,511.88
RAY, DAVID R..........................................................2,076.25
RAYBURN, GEORGINA H.............................................813.75
RAYNOR, RUSSELL..................................................5,568.13
READY, JAMES F.........................................................225.00
REBECCA J RECOR REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST..........2,148.75
RECKENDORF, THOMAS H & RECKENDORF, 
  LAURIE M.............................................................3,010.00

REDMOND, CHRISTOPHER J & REDMOND, 
  ROSALYNN L.........................................................3,680.00
REDONNETT, BRIAN & REDONNETT, ROSA..................931.88
REED, RICHARD & REED SUSAN...............................3,431.88
REED, RICHARD & REED SUSAN..................................457.50
REED, STEPHEN D....................................................5,533.13
REESE, ROBERT M...................................................1,166.88
REEVES, ERIN & MCKERNAN, CHAD.........................1,380.63
REEVES, KATHLEEN A & HILL, GLENN.........................146.88
REID, ANNE D, TRUSTEE..............................................315.00
REID, ANNE D, TRUSTEE..............................................137.50
REID, ANNE D, TRUSTEE...........................................1,965.00
REID, JANICE...........................................................1,453.75
REIF, CHERYL..........................................................2,006.25
*REILLY, BARBARA V...............................................1,125.00
REILLY, BRANDON W..................................................431.25
REILLY, BRANDON W..................................................195.63
REILLY, CAROL M........................................................997.50
REILLY, CAROL M.....................................................1,011.88
*REILLY, JANET B....................................................1,336.25
*REILLY, JOHN M.....................................................1,175.00
REILLY, JOHN V & REILLY, ELIZABETH F.....................2,424.38
REILLY, MICHAEL.....................................................1,145.63
REILLY, MICHELLE...................................................1,068.75
REILLY, NEIL...............................................................923.13
REILLY, PAUL T, TRUSTEE..........................................1,813.75
REILLY, REGINALD........................................................18.75
REILLY, REGINALD L & REILLY, ELIZABETH A..................31.25
REILLY, REGINALD L & REILLY, ELIZABETH A................201.88
REILLY, REGINALD L & REILLY, ELIZABETH A.............1,474.38
REILLY, REGINALD L & REILLY, ELIZABETH A..................51.88
REILLY, REGINALD L & REILLY, ELIZABETH...................491.25
REILLY, REGINALD L & REILLY, ELIZABETH A................314.38
REILLY, REGINALD L & REILLY, ELIZABETH A.............3,780.63
REILLY, SALLY A.......................................................1,356.25
REILLY, SALLY ANN.....................................................105.00
REILLY, WAYNE E & TODD, ROBERTA R......................3,930.63
REILLY, WILLIAM S & REILLY, MICHAEL H.................2,084.38
REILLY, WILLIAM S..................................................1,631.25
REINHARDT, HAGEN & REINHARDT, MEGAN R..........2,339.38
REITMAYER, ANNE & EELLS, RICHARD C..................1,220.63
REN-BRO, INC............................................................803.13
REN-BRO, INC............................................................175.00
REN-BRO, INC.......................................................12,933.75
RENCO INVESTMENT ASSOCIATES............................3,299.38
RENY, ADAM & JORDAN, CAMERON............................684.38
RENY, ADAM & JORDAN, CAMERON.........................1,894.38
RENY, DANIEL E & RENY, ANDREA J..........................5,540.63
RENY, FAUSTINE E...................................................1,623.75
RENY, FAUSTINE E...................................................1,105.63
RENY, JOHN E..........................................................4,251.88
RENY, KATHLEEN.....................................................1,105.00
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RENY, KATHLEEN........................................................453.75
RENY, KATHLEEN.....................................................3,513.75
RENY, MICHAEL P....................................................3,308.13
RENY, ROBERT H - TRUST B......................................3,828.13
RENYI, ELIZABETH M............................................44,531.25
REPITON, HEIDY L & REPITON, CHRIS P....................1,550.00
REPPUCCI, RONALD J & REPUCCI, DIANE P..............1,576.88
REQUA, RICHARD M & MARY S, TR & GUTHRIDGE S & R & 
  BROWNLOW, A.....................................................5,427.50
REUMAN, MELANIE E & CONLEY, MARK R...................153.13
REYNOLDS, CHARLES G & MAE C, TRUSTEES - CHARLES G & 
  MAE C REYNOLDS REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST.......1,512.50
RICE, CAROL A........................................................1,671.88
RICE, JACQUELYN & RICE, WAYNE & RICE, CINDY T......813.75
RICE, JILL R.............................................................1,586.88
RICE, JOHN P & RICE, LORRAINE..............................1,638.75
RICE, JOHN P & RICE, LORRAINE.................................238.75
RICE, PAMELA J..........................................................941.25
RICE, PAMELA J............................................................14.38
RICE, ROBERT L.......................................................1,193.13
RICE, WAYNE M & RICE, CINDY T..............................1,155.00
RICHARDS, JAMES, TR................................................362.50
RICHARDS, JAMES, TR................................................851.25
RICHARDS, JOYCE T.................................................1,985.63
RICHARDS, SARAH LYNN & RICHARDS, TODD..............358.75
RICHARDS, TODD & RICHARDS, SARAH....................2,584.38
RICHARDSON FAMILY TRUST...................................4,518.13
RICHARDSON FAMILY TRUST......................................169.38
RICHARDSON FAMILY TRUST...................................4,290.00
RICHARDSON, GEORGE E, CPA.................................1,475.00
RICHARDSON, HEATHER COX...................................1,214.38
*RICHTER, MARION H.............................................1,529.38
RICKER, JUNE E..........................................................371.88
RICKER, JUNE E..........................................................700.00
RIESS, WARREN & RIESS, KATHLEEN...........................202.50
RIESS, WARREN C & RIESS, KATHLEEN.....................1,888.75
RIKER, GLENN E & RIKER, BARBARA A.....................3,137.50
RIMRODT, RONALD L & GRABEKLIS, JULI K..............2,915.63
RIMRODT, RONALD L & GRABEKLIS, JULI K..............1,678.75
RINES FAMILY REAL ESTATE TRUST - 
  RINES, W BRIAN, TRUSTEE....................................2,906.25
RING, CAROL W..........................................................326.25
RING, CAROL W & SMITH, PAMELA H - LIV TRUST.......890.63
RING, CAROL W.......................................................2,124.38
RING, CAROL W & SMITH, PAMELA H - LIV TRUST.......410.00
RING, CAROL W..........................................................191.25
RING, JOHN C/O ANNE COLLORD, CONSERVATOR.....2,058.13
RING, PAUL D & RING, CAROL W..............................1,505.00
RINGO, PRESTON DQ & RINGO, MEGAN E.................1,500.00
RIOPEL, GERARD H & RIOPEL, MARY S.......................500.00
RIPALDI, CARL, TRUSTEE.........................................1,821.25
RITTNER, FREDERICK G...........................................7,675.63

RIVER COTTAGE LLC....................................................833.13
RMAC TRUST SERIES 2016-CTT U S BANK N A TR.....1,286.25
ROBBINS, ALISHA A................................................1,173.75
ROBBINS, DERWOOD R JR & ROBBINS, HOLLY F..........875.63
ROBERGE, MICHELE...................................................987.50
ROBERGE, MICHELE & MAULUCCI, DAVID...................157.50
ROBERTS, CHARLES M.............................................2,885.63
ROBERTS, LAURENCE W & MARGARET M (LIFE ESTATE) 
  CUTTER, SONJA ROBERTS.....................................1,015.00
ROBINSON, CAROLE E, TR...........................................982.50
ROCKWELL, JOHN D & ROCKWELL, ELLEN M..............418.75
RODRIGUE, MARGARET J (PIP)................................1,021.88
RODRIGUES, GARCIA & WEEKS, TR..........................1,138.13
*RODRIGUES, THOMAS D & RODRIGUES, 
  MICHELE K...........................................................1,970.00
ROGER, JAMES A & ROGER, HEATHER A...................1,060.00
ROGER, JAMES A & ROGER, HEATHER A...................1,472.50
ROGERS, THOMAS & ROGERS, HELEN.........................358.13
ROGERS, THOMAS B & ROGERS, MARY T..................2,103.75
ROLFE, GEORGIA A & ROLFE, S & J...........................2,036.25
ROLLINS, MARIE R..................................................1,367.50
ROLLINS, ROXANNE & ROLLINS, STEPHEN & 
  ROLLINS, KIRK.........................................................281.25
RONALD A SHAPIRO & MARY F DUNN QUALIFIED 
  PERS TR................................................................5,640.00
ROOT, JAMES, TTEE & ROOT, ELIZABETH, TTEE.........2,068.75
ROPES, SUSAN R.....................................................1,400.00
ROSA, CHRISTINA M...............................................1,053.75
ROSA, MICHAEL P & ROSA, AMANDA L....................2,208.75
ROSE, JOSEPH P III & ROSE, MARION L....................2,005.00
ROSS, CYNTHIA MR & ROSS, PAUL L JR....................1,569.38
ROSS, ELIZABETH C....................................................140.63
ROTHSCHILD, DIANE F.............................................1,059.38
ROTTNER, CAROL J.....................................................373.75
*ROTTNER, CAROL J................................................2,375.63
ROTTNER, CAROL J.....................................................337.50
ROTTNER, CAROL J..................................................2,230.63
ROUND POND FARM, LLC........................................1,640.63
ROUND POND FARMS, LLC.........................................184.38
ROWAN, DOUGLAS M & ELIZABETH D REVOC TRUST - 
  ROWAN, DOUGLAS M & ELIZABETH D, TRUSTEES.....976.88
ROWAN, DOUGLAS M & ELIZABETH D REVOC TRUST - 
  ROWAN, DOUGLAS M & ELIZABETH D, TRUSTEES.......10.00
ROWAN, RICHARD M & ROWAN, CHRISTINE C & 
  FOX, MARK E & FOX, SHARI E...................................899.38
ROWAN, RICHARD M & ROWAN, CHRISTINE C & 
  FOX, MARK E & FOX, SHARI E.....................................12.50
ROWLAND, RICHARD K & JOAN P, TR.......................5,021.88
RUBACHA, BETSEY J................................................3,074.38
RUBACHA, BETSEY J...................................................829.38
RUGMAN, GEORGE (HEIRS) RUGMAN, LENORE........1,020.63
RUGMAN, LENORE M.................................................300.00
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RUGMAN, LENORE M..............................................1,020.00
RUIT, JOHN III & RUIT, NINA....................................2,350.63
RUNDALE, LLC.........................................................2,157.50
RUNES, SUSAN C & RUNES, ROBERT I......................2,159.38
RUNION, ERIC J & RUNION, TRACY A..........................933.75
RUSH, J PETER, TRUSTEE.........................................1,818.13
RUSH, LAUREL C & GILBY, CRYSTAL A......................1,210.00
RUSHMORE COTTAGE, LLC.......................................3,890.00
RUSHTON, CAROLINA P & RUSHTON, DOUGLAS J....2,607.50
RUSSACK, RICHARD A & HAMMETT, 
  CYNTHIA H, CO-TTE..............................................7,088.13
RUSSELL, ADAM.....................................................1,916.88
RUSSELL, ADAM........................................................264.38
RUSSELL, AMANDA....................................................328.75
RUSSELL, BRUCE D..................................................5,927.50
RUSSELL, BRUCE D.......................................................14.38
RUSSELL, DEAN.........................................................511.88
RUSSELL, DEAN......................................................1,491.25
RUSSELL, FRANCES L (ESTATE OF) - 
  JILL DAVIERO, PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE.............296.25
RUSSELL, GLADYS M, TRUSTEE...................................530.00
RUSSELL, JAMES M & GERALDINE L, TRUSTEES..........387.50
RUSSELL, JAMES M & GERALDINE L, TRUSTEES.......1,709.38
RUSSELL, JOSHUA A...................................................270.00
RUSSELL, LIZA...........................................................331.88
RUSSELL, ROBERT L & RUSSELL, MICHELLE A.............706.25
RUSSELL, LINDA & RUSSELL, RONALD........................230.00
RUSSELL, RONALD & LINDA RUSSELL......................1,136.25
RUSSELL, RONALD L & RUSSELL, LINDA A..................836.25
RUSSELL, STEPHANIE H & HOLMES, RUSSELL M.........290.63
RUSSELL, WILLIAM J JR & CROOK, LORI LEE.............2,226.25
RUSSELL, WILLIAM J SR (HEIRS) & WM J JR & 
  DELONG, SIDNEY G..................................................148.13
RUSTY BRYANT EXCAVATION......................................752.50
RUSTY BRYANT EXCAVATION........................................81.25
RUTTENBERG, JOEL H & RUTTENBERG, SOPHIE C.....4,125.63
RUWE, GAIL M........................................................1,315.00
RUZZO, LORETO J & FORMAN, SUSAN J....................1,463.75
SABIN, MARIE F & LYNCH, JOHN J JR, TR..................2,798.75
SABIN, MARIE F & LYNCH, JOHN J JR, TR.....................748.75
SABLINSKY, THEODORE W & SABLINSKY, BONNIE K...1,127.50
SADLER, WILLIAM A & SALLIE, TR...........................2,398.75
SAFRAN, CRAIG T & MCCRARY, VICKI B.......................914.38
SALERNO, RICHARD H.............................................1,401.25
SALT POND GROUP, LLC...........................................2,577.50
SALTWATER ARTISTS...............................................1,036.88
SAMOSET FISH & GAME CLUB....................................126.25
SANBORN, DONALD D.............................................1,188.13
SANDPIPER REALTY TRUST......................................7,825.63
SANDSTRUM, SHARON L & AUSLANDER, MARY W.....941.25
SANKAR, PAMELA & SUZANNE & ANDREA.................114.38
SANKAR, PAMELA & SUZANNE & ANDREA..............1,323.75

SANT, CHRISTINE & SANT, ALEXIS............................3,696.25
SANT, CHRISTINE & SANT, ALEXIS............................1,006.25
SANT, KRISTIN W....................................................4,228.75
SANT, MICHAEL J & SANT, KRISTIN W......................3,508.75
SANTERRE, Linda D & CLOUTIER, GAIL......................225.00
SANTORINEOS, KAY......................................................17.50
SARGENT, JAMES L & SARGENT, LARA D..................1,695.00
SARSTEN, ANN E.....................................................4,136.88
SARSTEN, JAN A & SARSTEN, ANN E........................4,230.63
SATTERLEE, HOWARD................................................270.63
SATTERLEE, MARJORIE SUE........................................387.50
SATTERLEE, MARJORIE SUE........................................246.88
SATTERLEE, MARJORIE SUE........................................259.38
SATTERLEE, MARJORIE SUE........................................265.63
SATTERLEE, MARJORIE SUE........................................320.00
SAUNDERS, SCOTT D & SAUNDERS, LYNN M............1,315.63
SAVARO, FRANCIS & BRENDA & SAVARO & STELLA..1,613.75
SAVCHICK, PETER W & KATHERINE TRUSTEE - 
  PETER WALTER SAVCHICK TRUST..........................1,436.88
SAWTELLE, GEORGE A & SAWTELLE, JUDITH L.........1,158.13
SAWYER, BRIAN......................................................1,688.75
SAWYER, BRIAN K & SAWYER, LINDA A...................3,798.75
SAWYER, GARY G & SAWYER, PAMELA A.................4,891.25
SAWYER, GEORGE E.....................................................31.25
SAWYER, GEORGE E................................................1,656.25
SAWYER, GEORGE E................................................3,469.38
SAWYER, STANLEY A..................................................879.38
SAWYER, STANLEY A..................................................247.50
SAWYER, THOMAS S & SAWYER, KAROL L...............2,040.63
SAYERS, LISA S..........................................................238.13
SCAMMON REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST....................2,165.00
SCAMMON REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST - SCAMMON, 
  BETH E & MARY A DENISON, TRUSTEES.................1,735.00
SCARCELLI, ROSA W & RHOADS, THOMAS H.................40.63
SCARCELLI, ROSA W & RHOADS, THOMAS H...............280.63
SCHANDELMEYER, BARBARA A...............................1,198.75
SCHIFF, TERRYLENE A (HEIRS) (PIP)............................503.75
SCHILLING FAMILY TRUST.......................................2,429.38
SCHMALTZ, DANA L & ENROTH, KATE B...................5,978.75
SCHMIDT HIGLEY, CAROL V......................................1,751.25
SCHNEIDER, BRUCE A & SCHNEIDER, BARBARA B....2,653.13
SCHNEIDER, MICHAEL D REVOCABLE TRUST - 
  SCHNEIDER, MICHAEL D, TRUSTEE...............................0.63
SCHNEIDER, MICHAEL D REVOCABLE TRUST - 
  SCHNEIDER, MICHAEL D, TRUSTEE........................1,064.38
SCHNITKER, DETMAR & SCHNITKER, JULIA B..................9.38
SCHNITKER, DETMAR & SCHNITKER, JULIA B...........1,383.13
SCHWABE, JANN L & SCHWABE, G BLAINE III..........2,448.13
SCHWANEMANN, WILLIAM & SCHWANEMANN, 
  LORRAINE...............................................................925.00
SCHWANEMANN, WILLIAM & SCHWANEMANN, 
  LORRAINE...............................................................925.00
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SCHWANEMANN, WILLIAM & SCHWANEMANN, 
  LORRAINE............................................................1,600.63
SCHWARZKOPF, CONSTANCE...................................1,835.63
SCIURUS TRUST - MAKIN, JANE V, TRUSTEE.............3,518.13
SCOFIELD, JOHN H & SCOFIELD, DEBORAH M...........1,927.50
SCOFIELD, JOHN H, TRUSTEE......................................985.63
SCOTT, ANDREW D & GUERRA, ELIZABETH L............3,893.13
SCOTT, MARY LYNN & HAMMES, ASA JAMES...........3,034.38
SCZERBOWICZ, DENNIS M & SCZERBOWICZ, 
  TIMOTHY M & SCZERBOWICZ, JEFFREY J..................997.50
SEA CHANGE LAND TRUST - ANNE OGDEN, TTEE......4,579.38
SEAGRAM, EDWARD, TRUSTEE..............................17,285.00
SEAL ROCK COVE, LLC..............................................5,172.50
SEARS, BETH E & SEARS, DARRELL E..........................880.63
SEIDERS, PETE & SEIDERS, JESSICA............................165.00
SEIDERS, PETE R........................................................897.50
SELTZER, ROBERT C & SELTZER, SANDRA L...............1,288.13
SELVERSTONE, ANDREW R & JANE E & VALENTINE, JOAN S 
  & SELVERSTONE, ROGER J, TRUSTEES....................4,283.75
SEMMES, RICHARD C (HEIRS OF)................................498.13
SENIOR, ROSE M.....................................................1,685.63
SERRA, KARALEE D.................................................1,145.00
SEVRA, RICHARD & SEVRA, PARRY H.......................1,709.38
*SEWALL, RICHARD & SEWALL, SUSAN SPROUL.....1,611.25
SEWALL, SAMUEL M, TRUSTEE................................1,208.75
SEYMOUR, RICHARD S JR & SEYMOUR, LENORE C....3,140.63
SHACHOY, MEREDITH CLARK...................................2,268.75
SHACHOY, MEREDITH CLARK...................................1,613.75
SHAFFER, LINDA J & SHAFFER, WILLIAM H..............2,031.25
SHALOM LLC...........................................................7,411.88
SHANNON, ALLAN L & SHANNON, SARA A..............1,611.25
SHANNON, ALLAN L IV & SHANNON, SARA A.............165.00
SHAPIRO, KENNETH E..............................................3,056.25
SHAPIRO, KENNETH E..............................................3,413.13
SHAPIRO, KENNETH E & CARMELINE & SHAPIRO, 
  RONALD A & MARY DUNN....................................1,496.88
SHAPIRO, RONALD A & DUNN, MARY F......................326.25
SHARAC, JOSEPH M & SHARAC, RITA P....................1,550.63
SHATTUCK, JOHN & SHATTUCK, LISA M......................159.38
SHATTUCK, JOHN & SHATTUCK, LISA M......................171.88
SHATTUCK, JOHN & SHATTUCK, LISA M......................190.63
SHATTUCK, JOHN & SHATTUCK, LISA M......................262.50
SHATTUCK, JOHN & SHATTUCK, LISA M......................190.63
SHATTUCK, JOHN & SHATTUCK, LISA M......................196.88
SHATTUCK, JOHN & SHATTUCK, LISA M......................217.50
SHATTUCK, KEVIN E & SHATTUCK, LISA E................1,060.63
SHAW, PHYLLIS M......................................................935.00
SHAW, PHYLLIS M......................................................271.88
*SHAW, ROSALIE....................................................1,198.75
SHAWS FISH & LOBSTER WHARF RESTAURANT, INC....579.38
SHAWS FISH & LOBSTER WHARF RESTAURANT, INC...2,793.75
SHAWS FISH & LOBSTER WHARF RESTAURANT, INC....871.88

SHAWS FISH AND LOBSTER WHARF REST, INC - 
  KNIGHT, WILLIAM, PRESIDENT.............................1,361.25
SHEIDLOWER, EDMOND D & SHEIDLOWER, 
  KIMBERLY A.........................................................2,576.88
SHENTON, JOHN J, TRUSTEE - JOHN J SHENTON 
  IRREVOCABLE TRUST...............................................358.75
SHENTON, JOHN J, TRUSTEE - JOHN J SHENTON 
  IRREVOCABLE TRUST............................................8,825.63
SHEPHERD, EDWARD W & KATHARINE R, TR...............606.25
SHEPHERD, EDWARD W & KATHARINE R, TR............3,705.00
SHERIDAN ACHORN LODGE TRUST - SHERIDAN, DAVID P & 
  SHELLEY S, TRUSTEES...........................................2,961.25
SHERIDAN, DAVID P & SHERIDAN, SHELLEY S.............462.50
*SHERMAN, CAROL.................................................2,276.88
SHERMAN, LAURIE A...............................................5,323.13
SHERMAN, SALLY A...................................................943.75
SHERWOOD CHILDREN’S GIFT TRUST - STACEY CHAPLEY & 
  DONALD SHERWOOD, TRUSTEES..............................627.50
SHIELDS, THEODORE...............................................1,810.63
SHOTT, JOY, TTEE - JOY H SHOTT REVOC LIV TR.........4,483.13
SIDELINGER, LAWRENCE B.........................................757.50
SIGLER, CLAY D.......................................................1,449.38
SIGLER, CLELL R & SIGLER, SHERRY R......................1,311.88
SIGNORE, HOLLY........................................................616.25
SILAR, TED E & SILAR, DIANE.......................................62.50
SILAR, TED E & SILAR, DIANE..................................2,232.50
SILES, WILLIAM H & SILES, DOROTHY D...................3,025.00
SILJEGOVIC, MALLORY & SILJEGOVIC, PETER................36.88
SILVER, BARBARA A & SILVER, BARRETT L...............2,103.13
SILVERBERG, SHIRLEY F & SILVERBERG, J WILLIAM...5,078.75
*SILVERMAN, SALLY ANN & SILVERMAN, JAMES P...3,844.38
SIMARD, DENISE P..................................................4,111.25
SIMARD, LEON...........................................................884.38
SIMMONS, CHARLES..................................................406.88
*SIMMONS, ROBERT R............................................1,148.13
SIMMONS, STACEY A & SIMMONS, MALCOLM P.........880.63
SIMON, WALTER C, & WATKINS, LORRAINE S & 
  SKEHAN, KIMBERLY A, TRUSTEES.........................3,798.75
SIMONDS FAMILY LIVING TRUST..............................2,253.75
SIMONDS FAMILY LIVING TRUST.................................223.75
SIMONITSCH, SHIRLEY A & SIMONITSCH, JAMES T...1,657.50
SIMONITSCH, SHIRLEY A & SIMONITSCH, JAMES T......318.13
SIMONS, PETER H & WEDMORE, BARBARA L...........1,697.50
SIMPSON, DANIELLE..................................................785.63
SIROIS, LYNDON J & SIROIS, KATHERINE A..................150.00
SIROIS, MARK E & ROUX, YVETTE N............................870.00
SIROIS, MICHAEL D & SIROIS, JACQUELINE R...........1,230.00
SKEHAN, BRUCE D & SKEHAN, KIMBERLY A................175.00
SKIPP, DAVID & MARY & SKIPP, ANDREW & 
  STEVENSON, JILL..................................................3,951.88
SKOGLUND, JON H & SKOGLUND, DEBORAH............1,670.00
SLABAUGH, MARILYN H, TR.....................................4,876.88
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SLOCUM, D & PARSONS, D & POE, F P & 
  NAUGHTON, JAMES J III........................................1,234.38
SLOCUM, DEBORAH P................................................561.88
SMALL, DAVID L & SMALL, GERI E...........................8,319.38
SMALL, DAVID L & SMALL, GERI E..............................401.88
SMALL, DAVID L & SMALL, GERI E..............................401.88
SMALL, HELEN C.....................................................4,856.25
SMALL, HELEN C........................................................775.00
SMALL, HELEN C............................................................5.00
SMALL, MARY JANE................................................5,190.63
SMALL, MARY JANE...................................................550.63
SMERDON, MICHAEL & SMERDON, SUSAN E..............847.50
SMIAROSKI, MARY SUSAN, ET AL............................1,135.00
SMITH, CLARENCE B & SMITH, MARY JANE.............1,768.13
*SMITH, CLARENCE B.................................................250.00
SMITH, DAVID QUENTIN.............................................195.63
SMITH, DONALD N SR................................................131.88
SMITH, DONALD N SR................................................483.13
*SMITH, DONALD O & SMITH, JEAN E.........................621.88
SMITH, GEORGE F & M KATHLEEN & NANCY C............875.63
SMITH, NANCY & JAMES & SALLY & GEORGE...........3,127.50
SMITH, PAMELA H - LIVING TRUST.............................105.00
SMITH, ROBERT......................................................2,090.00
SMITH, SEWARD P.....................................................820.00
SMITH, WILLIAM I......................................................225.00
SMITH, WILLIAM I 2007 FAMILY TRUST - 
  SMITH, WILLIAM I, TRUSTEE......................................37.50
*SMITH, WILLIAM I, TRUSTEE.................................1,069.38
SMITHBERG, ELLEN REVOC TR - MARGOLIS, KENNETH & 
  SMITHBERG, ELLEN, TRUSTEES.............................2,663.13
SNEDIKER, DAVID K & SNEDIKER, GERTRUDE A........3,776.25
SNEDIKER, DAVID K & GERTRUDE A, TR......................453.75
SNIDER, PETER G & DICKINSON, NANCY S..................860.00
SNYDER, ERIC H......................................................1,688.75
SOUCIE, WANDA J...................................................5,718.75
SOULE, JAMES L JR & MARIANNE H, TR...................1,348.75
SPAIDER, JOSEPH A & LIMA, JONI F.........................1,073.13
SPAIDER, JOSEPH A & LIMA, JONI F..............................90.63
*SPARROW, HALE...................................................1,063.75
SPAULDING, DONNA M & HUNT, LUCILLE A.............2,803.75
SPEARS, JEROME JENNINGS.......................................251.25
SPECK, ERIC W & SPECK, JUDY A.............................2,090.63
SPEKKE, ANDREW A...................................................152.50
SPEMAQUID REALTY TRUST - SHEEHAN, WM N & 
  MARY C, TRUSTEES..................................................629.38
SPEMAQUID REALTY TRUST - SHEEHAN, WM N & 
  SHEEHAN, MARY C, TRUSTEES..............................4,210.00
SPENCE, JULIE A........................................................270.63
SPENCER, NANCY E.................................................1,066.25
SPIKELL, ALISON P..................................................1,032.50
SPIKULA-GALVIN, CATHY & GALVIN, STANLEY............178.13
*SPIKULA-GALVIN, CATHY A & GALVIN, STANLEY....1,502.50

*SPILLER, WAYNE A & SPILLER, JANET L.................1,816.25
SPINNEY, CHARLOTTE C, TRUSTEE - SPINNEY 
  CHARLOTTE C REVOCABLE TRUST 2010....................918.75
*SPINNEY, ROBERT F & SPINNEY, GAIL B.................1,041.88
SPINNEY, SARAH J & SPINNEY, ALLEN F......................906.25
SPINNEY, TROY & SPINNEY, KYLIE PENDLETON........1,388.13
*SPOONER, GERALD F & SPOONER, LOIS F..................991.25
SPOONER, RAYMOND H JR & MARKLEY & OHLER & 
  FRANZ.....................................................................759.38
SPRAGUE, NORMA.........................................................0.00
*SPROUL, ALDEN L & SPROUL, SUSAN G.................1,264.38
SPROUL, ALVIN F IV & DONNA M, TR..........................196.88
SPROUL, CARLENE R..................................................193.75
SPROUL, JOHN E.....................................................2,099.38
SPROUL, PAUL F.........................................................497.50
SPROUL, PAUL F & SPROUL, NORMA N.......................993.13
SPROUL, ROBERT JR & SIGRID.................................1,013.13
SPROUL, ROBERT JR & SIGRID....................................981.25
SPURGIN, NICHOLE E.................................................811.88
ST PIERRE, MICHAEL A & ST PIERRE, LISA A................248.75
ST PIERRE, ROMEO (HEIRS)........................................487.50
STACKHOUSE, DAVID..................................................982.50
STAHL, NANCY H.....................................................5,914.38
STAHL, PETER J III & STAHL, CAROLYN B..................4,959.38
STAHL, PETER J III & STAHL, CAROLYN B.....................453.75
STANIK, SALLY ANN & EELMAN, SEEMON MARK......1,944.38
STANISLAW BROWNS HEAD TRUST.......................14,908.13
STANO, JAMES PAUL & GREEN, DONNA MARIE.............75.00
STANO, JAMES PAUL & GREEN, DONNA MARIE........1,354.38
STARK, CAROL A.....................................................2,125.00
STARLAND PROPERTIES, LLC...................................1,905.00
STARLAND PROPERTIES, LLC...................................8,883.75
STATHERS, RICHARD C & STATHERS, MONICA L........2,245.63
STAUFFER, RICHARD L.............................................6,029.38
STEBBINS, SALLY HERRING.....................................3,658.13
STEELE, EMILIE D, TTEE - PEMAQUID STEELE RE TR...1,606.25
STEELE, ROBERT & MAY, ET AL................................1,572.50
STEENSTRA, CLARK EDWARD & STEENSTRA, 
  CHERYL KIM............................................................951.25
STEER, ROGER..............................................................40.63
STEER, ROGER E.........................................................200.00
STEPHENSON, NATALIE...........................................1,014.38
STEPHENSON, STEPHANIE.......................................2,281.88
STEPHENSON, WENDELL R......................................1,031.88
STEPPING STONE HOUSING, INC.................................498.13
STEPPING STONE HOUSING, INC.................................265.63
STERN, DAPHNE L...................................................1,538.75
STETSON, JACK A & STETSON, PAMELYN F...............3,916.25
STEVENS, JUDITH A.................................................3,118.13
STEVENS, MICHAEL B & STEVENS, MARY M.............2,348.75
STEVENSON, DONALD J & STEVENSON, ANN...........1,823.75
STEVENSON, DONALD J & STEVENSON, ANN..............150.63
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STEVENSON, DONALD J & STEVENSON, ANN..............228.13
STEWART, GREGORY & STEWART, DAWN.................1,618.75
STEWART, GREGORY & STEWART, DAWN....................239.38
STEWART, GREGORY..................................................153.13
STEWART, GREGORY D............................................1,277.50
STEWART, SAMUEL C.................................................598.13
STINSON, JOSIAH B & STINSON, SARAH L...................281.25
STOCKWELL, KAREN T..................................................93.75
STODDARD, JANE C.................................................3,524.38
STONEHENDGE INVESTMENTS OF MAINE, LTD.........1,095.63
STOTZ, JOHN K & STOTZ, MARGARET Z....................1,495.00
STOTZ, KASSANDRA M & STOTZ, ZACHARY S...........1,660.00
*STRACHAN, CAROLYN D........................................1,750.63
STRAUSS, NONA D, TR.............................................2,228.75
STUBBS, LAURA......................................................1,137.50
STUBBS, LAURA A......................................................300.00
STUBBS, LAURA A......................................................309.38
STUBBS, LAURA SPROUL............................................218.75
STUBBS, LAURA SPROUL.........................................1,361.25
STUBBS, LAURA SPROUL............................................390.63
STUHLMAN, BYRON D & STUHLMAN, HESTER.........3,940.00
SULLIVAN, CRYSTAL LEE.............................................322.50
SULLIVAN, DANIEL J JR & SULLIVAN, 
  MARGUERITE M...................................................2,721.25
SULLIVAN, MARGUERITE M & SULLIVAN, DANIEL J... 5,725.00
SUMARIA SYSTEMS, INC............................................548.13
SUMARIA SYSTEMS, INC.......................................21,165.00
SUMARIA, VENILAL & SUMARIA, DEBORAH...........10,719.38
SUMARIA, VENILAL & SUMARIA SYSTEMS, INC, TR...3,678.13
SUNDELIN, DAVID C................................................1,548.13
SUNDERHAUF, HARRIET K..........................................788.13
SUYDAM, PETER V...................................................2,366.25
SWAIN, VIRGINIA E, TR & BESKIND, HARRY, TR........1,575.00
SWAIN, VIRGINIA E, TR & BESKIND, HARRY, TR...........170.00
SWANK, GWENDOLYN..................................................84.38
SWETT, ANN 1984 TRUST - BARBARA BURT & 
  RICHARD BURT, TRUSTEES....................................5,819.38
SWETT, ANN 1984 TRUST - BARBARA BURT & 
  RICHARD BURT, TRUSTEES....................................6,120.63
SWETT, MARJORIE & SWETT, ROBERT - TRUST.........3,796.88
SWIATKOWSKI, DAMASO M & SWIATKOWSKI, 
  MARY J................................................................6,145.63
SWIATKOWSKI, DAMASO M & SWIATKOWSKI, 
  MARY J...................................................................463.75
SWIATKOWSKI, MARY J..............................................455.00
SWIFT, BRUCE H & O’CONNOR, ELLEN F...................2,181.88
SWIFT, BRUCE H......................................................1,776.25
SYKES, CYNTHIA........................................................585.63
SZIJJARTO, JANOS...................................................1,947.50
TABENKEN, MATTHEW & TABENKEN, JOYCE............5,054.38
*TADDEI, MARILYN J..................................................933.13
TAILLON, TERRY L & TAILLON, MICHAEL P...................879.38

TAILLON, TERRY L & TAILLON, MICHAEL P...................917.50
TALLEY, DONALD L & TALLEY, DIANE S.....................3,298.13
TAMMEN, DORRANCE M.........................................1,140.00
TANNEY, WILLIAM D & TANNEY, TERESA T..............10,297.50
TAPIA, DANIEL & TAPIA, GERALDINE..........................393.75
TARASCHI, CAROLINE I............................................3,058.13
*TARR, GERALDINE M & GENTHNER, SUSANNE K....1,407.50
TAUTKUS, RICHARD C..............................................3,740.63
TAYLOR, CATHERINE M...............................................351.25
TAYLOR, CHRISTINE M & TAYLOR, RAYMOND G........2,084.38
TAYLOR, DENNIS A & TAYLOR, JENNIE M.....................184.38
TAYLOR, EDGAR C & TAYLOR, SUSAN L.....................2,741.25
*TAYLOR, JEFFREY L................................................3,185.00
TCHEN, JOHN & SUSMAN, JUDY..............................1,590.63
*TEDROW, JOHN CF & TEDROW, JANE E...................1,170.00
TELFAIR-RICHARDS, JODY.......................................1,606.88
TEMPLETON, DIANA...................................................485.00
TEMPLETON, JEFF...................................................1,525.00
TEMPLETON, WILLIE H JR & TEMPLETON, DIANA.....1,616.25
TEMPLETON, WILLIE H JR & TEMPLETON, DIANA........465.63
TEMPLETON, WILLIE H JR.............................................86.25
TEMPLETON, WILLIE H JR...........................................655.00
TERENZI, DONNA M...................................................333.13
TERENZI, RONALD...................................................4,794.38
TERMINE, STEVEN C................................................1,360.00
TERMINE, STEVEN C...................................................233.75
TERRY, DARLENE........................................................861.25
THACKER, DONALD G & LOIS F, TR...........................4,574.38
THATCHER, ROBIN S...................................................844.38
THE FO’C’SLE TRUST DATED JULY 13, 2016...............5,396.88
THE TAB-LLB TRUST u/a/d 12/23/2016......................259.38
THE TAB-LLC TRUST.................................................5,419.38
*THELANDER, EDWIN FJ & THELANDER, LILIANA.....2,651.88
THIBODEAU, CYNTHIA, ET AL.....................................389.38
THIBODEAU, LISA ANN & GAMMON, MICHAEL P & 
  MULHOLLAND, JENNIFER L...................................1,802.50
THIGPEN, DON A & THIGPEN, PATRICIA I..................2,446.88
THOMAS, ARLENE G & GEYER, F (HEIRS) & 
  GEYER, L F & L A......................................................888.75
THOMAS, CHARLES T & THOMAS, SARAH................3,726.25
THOMAS, J ELLIOTT & THOMAS, VICTORIA P...............941.25
THOMAS, JAMES D & THOMAS, SALLY SHEAROUSE....178.13
THOMAS, MARTHA M & EDMUNDS, HUGH G JR.......2,571.88
THOMAS, PEGGY & THOMAS, DALE................................0.00
THOMAS, STEVEN B & THOMAS, KATIE A....................917.50
THOMPSON, DANIEL C & THOMPSON, GUY R..............978.13
THOMPSON, DANIEL CRAIG.....................................5,007.50
THOMPSON, EDGAR H & THOMPSON, JOYCE P............865.00
THOMPSON, ERNEST THORNE JR................................380.00
THOMPSON, LYNNE................................................1,189.38
THOMPSON, MERLE A & THOMPSON, KAREN P.....14,250.63
THOMPSON, MERLE A & THOMPSON, KAREN P.....11,248.75
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THOMPSON, MERLE A & THOMPSON, KAREN P.......2,675.63
THOMPSON, MERLE A & THOMPSON, KAREN P.......3,322.50
THOMPSON, MERLE A & THOMPSON, KAREN P.......3,895.63
THOMPSON, MERLE A & THOMPSON, KAREN P.......1,238.13
THOMPSON, MERLE A & THOMPSON, KAREN P.......7,630.00
THOMPSON, MERLE A..................................................42.50
THOMPSON, MERLE A................................................324.38
THOMPSON, SHARON E..............................................989.38
THOMPSON, SHARON KURTZ & KURTZ, THOMAS P & 
  KURTZ, STEPHEN GODOLPHIN..............................3,555.00
THOMPSON, WILLIAM A & THOMPSON, LAURIE C...1,001.88
THORN, JOHN G & THORN, SANDRA J......................2,013.13
THORNTON, SUSAN A & DALEY, MICHAEL J.............1,124.38
TIBBETTS, ARNER S & TIBBETTS, ROBERTA A..............929.38
TICHY, KARIN N..........................................................991.88
TIDEWATER TELECOM, INC.........................................266.88
TIDEWATER TELECOM, INC.........................................344.38
TIDEWATER TELECOM, INC.........................................671.25
TIDEWATER TELECOM, INC.........................................335.63
*TIERNEY, PAUL B & TIERNEY, EVELINE L.................2,698.75
*TIMONEY, PEGGY E................................................2,139.38
TINGLE, MARYLOU C - TRUST..................................1,013.75
*TINGLEY, JACK E & TINGLEY, SIBYL C......................5,646.88
TIPTON, CLYDE & TIPTON, JANE..................................911.25
TISDALE, GREGORY & TISDALE, JENNIFER A................325.00
TITUS, LINDA..........................................................2,555.63
TMP HOLDINGS, LLC..................................................395.00
TOLBERT, WILLIAM AB............................................5,036.25
TOMAN, DARYN P & BRYANT, CHRISTY E.................1,257.50
TOMPKINS, BONNIE M & TOMPKINS, WILLIS...........1,166.25
TOOTHAKER, CARL, ROBERT C & BARRY C...................338.13
TOOTHAKER, CARL, ROBERT C & BARRY C................3,296.88
TOUCHETTE, BRANDON L & TOUCHETTE, JENNIFER..1,002.50
TOUSSAINT, RONALD P & TOUSSAINT, JANE W.........3,267.50
TOWNSEND & ROCKWELL, ET AL.............................4,520.63
*TRACY, WILLIAM M & TRACY, PATRICIA G...............2,038.13
TRAIN, ELIZABETH K & CASSIDY, MICHAEL E............1,373.13
TRAINOR, JOSEPH L & TRAINOR, GERRY L...................250.63
TRAINOR, JOSEPH L & TRAINOR, GERRY L...................241.25
*TRATES, CRYSTAL L & ANTHONY JR.......................2,103.75
TRAZOFF, SUZANNE................................................3,023.75
TREESE, JOSEPH M & TREESE, KATHLEEN M.............3,294.38
TREIDLER RE TRUST - TREIDLER, SUZANNE, TTEE........231.88
TREIDLER, FRANZ & TREIDLER, SUZANNE................4,896.88
TRESCOT, LINDA O...................................................1,080.63
TRICKETT, WENDY L & WHEELER, WILLIAM W.........1,670.63
*TRIPP, JUDITH A & NIXON, HERBERT J.......................727.50
TROIANO, WILLIAM L & TROIANO, JULANN M..........2,316.88
TROUWBORST, SUE ANNE & TROUWBORST, 
  JOHN CRAIG.........................................................1,203.75
TROXEL, CYNTHIA R...................................................702.50

TRUDO, DAVID H REVOCABLE TRUST OF 2016 - 
  TRUDO, DAVID H, TRUSTEE.......................................548.13
TRUE REALTY TRUST..................................................246.25
*TRUE, IRVING C & TRUE, MARGARET M.................2,980.00
TRUE, IRVING C & TRUE, MARGARET M......................324.38
TRUE, JONATHAN W................................................3,198.13
TRUE, JONATHAN W & TRUE, AUDRA L....................1,248.75
TRUNDY, BETSY N & TRUNDY, DAVID O....................2,496.88
TUCKER, BETTINA SMITH & REED, MATTHEW S.......1,035.63
TUCKER, G JUNE......................................................2,096.25
TUCKER, G JUNE, ET AL...........................................3,348.13
TUCKER, G JUNE, ET AL..............................................953.75
TUCKER, SHERRIE & LAWTON, WILLIAM JR..............4,310.00
*TUDOR, BARBARA J..............................................1,780.00
TUDOR, GEORGE E, TRUST (THE) 
  JANE P TUDOR TRUST (THE)..................................4,476.25
TUDOR, ROBERT A & TUDOR, COLLEEN.......................406.25
TUKEY, CLAUDE CLARK............................................1,821.25
TUKEY, CLAUDE CLARK............................................2,300.63
TUN, THAN WIN & THIEN, SOE SOE..........................1,106.25
TURCOTTE, THOMAS J & TURCOTTE, SALLY J............1,768.13
TURMELLE, DEIDRA L..............................................4,295.00
TURNBULL, SANDRA JEAN......................................6,859.38
TURNER, JAY S & AURELIE M REV LIVING TRUST......3,285.63
TWIGG, JOHN K & TWIGG, MARY L..........................2,157.50
TWIGG, MARY L & TWIGG, JOHN K.............................432.50
TWIGG, MARY L & TWIGG, JOHN K..........................2,800.63
US CELLULAR, RE DEPT..............................................974.38
ULMER, WALTER F...................................................1,308.75
VADAS, GLENN M & VADAS, VICKI B...........................225.00
VAN DINE, JUDITH..................................................1,077.50
VAN GILS, MAE R....................................................1,597.50
VAN KNOWE, RICHARD..............................................721.25
VAN VEEN, FRANCIS J & VAN VEEN, LARRAINE M.....1,158.13
VAN WINKLE LEDGEWOOD, LLC...............................7,245.63
VANCE, HENRY T & VANCE, NANCY KNOWLTON.......2,194.38
VAUGHAN, HERBERT G JR & VAUGHAN, DIANE K.....5,833.75
VAUGHAN, ROBERT C & VAUGHAN, EDITH H............1,919.38
VERNEY, SONYA S.......................................................543.13
VERNEY, VERNE & VERNEY, KEVIN..............................216.88
VERNEY, VERNE & VERNEY, KEVIN..............................222.50
VICTORIA L NICHOLS, LLC...........................................761.25
VICTORIA L NICHOLS, LLC........................................1,370.63
VIGUE, DONALD C & VIGUE, BARBARA M................1,430.00
VIGUE, DONALD C & VIGUE, BARBARA M...................299.38
VILLANO LOTSPEICH FAMILY, LLC.............................3,963.13
VILLANO LOTSPEICH FAMILY, LLC..................................52.50
VILLECCO, WALTER P & VILLECCO, AUDREY B...........2,077.50
VINCENT, TODD A & VINCENT, KRISTIN L..................2,269.38
VINCENTSEN, STEPHANIE J & VINCENTSEN, 
  M TODD................................................................1,508.13
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VIRGINIA S JAMES REV TRUST INDENTURE - JAMES, 
  VIRGINIA S & JAMES-CHUNG, HILLERY, TTEES.......3,380.63
VIRGINIA S JAMES REV TRUST INDENTURE - JAMES,
  VIRGINIA S & JAMES-CHUNG, HILLERY, TTEES......3,370.00
VITANZA, ROSARIO A & VITANZA, AMY M................2,760.00
VITANZA, ROSARIO A & VITANZA, AMY M................1,193.13
VITANZA, ROSARIO A & VITANZA, AMY M...................530.00
VOLLMER, MARGUERITE............................................941.25
*VOSS, CARROL M & BATH SAVINGS TRUST CO TR...5,145.63
W & A CONSTRUCTION LLC (PIP)................................804.38
W W Wood Properties, LLC.................................1,542.50
WAGERS, ROBERT T & WAGERS, CAROLENE C..........1,058.75
WAGNER, FRANCES.................................................3,281.88
WAGNER, ROWEN E & WAGNER, DANIEL C..............1,188.75
WAHLE, RICHARD & LARIVIERE, LARIVIERE, CAROL...2,918.13
WAKELIN, DAVID S & LAKIN, ROBERT F, TRUSTEES - 
  J ROBERT LAKIN TRUST............................................368.13
WALBRECHT, WENDY E...........................................1,529.38
WALDO REAL ESTATE, LLC.......................................1,466.25
WALES, THOMAS & JOHNSON, REBECCA S...............6,753.13
WALES, WALTER M & WALES, KAREN E....................2,558.75
WALKER, FREDERICK & WALKER, ANN - REVOC TR...1,885.00
WALKER, GEORGE F III & WALKER, JOY.......................305.63
WALKER, GEORGE F III & WALKER, JOY.......................205.63
WALKER, GEORGE F III & JOY...................................1,540.63
WALKER, GOERGE F & WALKER, JOY...........................203.13
WALKER, GEORGE F III & WALKER, JOY.......................208.75
WALKER, JACK L & BEVERLEY A, CO-TRUSTEES........4,046.25
WALKER, JACK L & BEVERLEY A, CO-TRUSTEES...........941.88
WALKER, JOHN G....................................................1,086.25
WALKER, JOHN G & WALKER, HARRY.........................970.63
WALKER, JOHN G....................................................1,591.25
WALKER, JOHN GRAHAM........................................3,283.75
WALKER, JUDITH E.....................................................902.50
WALKER, ROBERT HOWARD.........................................71.88
WALL, CANDACE........................................................860.00
WALL, HARRIETT A.................................................3,216.88
*WALL, STANLEY A.................................................1,195.63
WALSER, WILLIAM EDWARD JR & WALSER, 
  KATHERINE.............................................................383.75
WALSH, GRAHAM J....................................................965.63
WALSH, GRAHAM JACK..............................................480.63
WALSH, GRAHAM JACK..............................................268.75
*WALTHER, EDWARD & WALTHER, ERICA D.............1,511.25
WALTRIP, JAMES........................................................188.13
WALTRIP, JAMES........................................................188.13
WALTRIP, JAMES........................................................419.38
WALTRIP, JAMES........................................................250.00
WALTZ, ROBERT S & YORK, JENNIFER J....................1,114.38
WANETA, INC...............................................................97.50
WANETA, INC...............................................................93.75
WANETA, INC..........................................................4,600.63

WARD, CHARLES E & SMITH, HELEN W & WARD, 
  G DOUGLAS, JR....................................................2,281.88
WARD, MARK A & CARR, SHANNON L......................1,902.50
WARNER, BARBARA, TR..........................................2,226.88
WARREN MARR CO, INC.............................................282.50
WASKIEWICZ, DAVID..................................................607.50
WATSON, FREDERICK, JR............................................568.13
*WATSON, HERBERT R & WATSON, ROBERTA...........2,825.00
WATSON, ROBERT J & WATSON, KAREN M..................833.13
WATTERS, STEPHEN H & WATTERS, ANNE B.............2,115.63
WAUGH, JOHN S FAMILY TRUST - CREDIT SHELTER TRUST 
  WAUGH SUSAN....................................................9,346.88
WAYSTACK, F PETER & WAYSTACK, NORA L..............5,756.25
WAYSTACK, F PETER, TTEE - WSC FAMILY RE TR.......1,140.63
WEAVER, KANDY HART, & HART, MELODY & 
  HART, MARYLANE................................................1,358.75
WEAVER, MELISSA J...................................................900.00
WEBSTER, BARRY GIBSON, TR.................................1,481.25
WEIGOLD, GEORGE J III & WEIGOLD, KAREN...................0.63
WEIGOLD, GEORGE J III & WEIGOLD, KAREN...............985.63
*WEISLOGEL, PAUL O & WEISLOGEL, JUDITH B........2,396.88
*WEISS, ERICK W & PERRY-WEISS, ALEXANDRA......1,816.88
WEISS, JOHN J & WEISS, MARILYN E........................1,414.38
WEISS, THEODORE H JR & WEISS, CYNTHIA P..........2,058.75
WELCH, ALLEN W....................................................2,585.00
WELCH, ALLEN W & TURMELLE, DIEDRE.....................486.88
WELLS, JANE F & WELLS, LYNN E............................1,095.63
WELSH, KELLY R & ALBERDING, ELLEN S.................2,969.38
WENNERBERG, SUSAN C & WENNERBERG, 
  DENNIS F..............................................................1,686.88
WENTWORTH, CHERYL D........................................1,483.13
WERTZ, KENNETH & WERTZ, MARTHA ANN FAM TR...2,224.38
WESKE, JOHN S.......................................................4,961.88
WESLEY HEIGHTS TRUST - IRELAND, THOMAS E & 
  NANCY R, TR........................................................3,047.50
WEST, ALAN NICHOLS & PRISCILLA ADAMS, TR.......4,117.50
WEST, ALAN NICHOLS & PRISCILLA ADAMS, TR..........176.88
WEST, PATRICIA ANN.................................................741.88
WEST, RONALD C SR & RUTH LYN, TR............................98.13
WEST, RONALD C SR & RUTH LYN, TR.......................3,536.88
WESTHAVER, BRETT.....................................................76.88
WESTHAVER, BRETT...................................................118.75
WESTHAVER, JESSE & WESTHAVER, JESSICA...........1,646.25
WESTHAVER, KAREN..................................................672.50
WESTHAVER, KYLE & WESTHAVER, ELLEN...............1,346.25
WESTHAVER, KYLE C..................................................275.00
*WESTHAVER, SUSAN K & TIBBETTS, ROBERT A......1,024.38
WESTHAVER, THAD.................................................1,694.38
WESTON, BERKLEY K & RICE, WILLIAM E JR..................28.75
WESTON, NATHAL R (ESTATE OF).............................2,629.38
WHELTLE, R BRUCE & WHELTLE, SUSAN YARDLEY......771.88
WHELTLE, R BRUCE & YARDLEY, SUSAN......................500.00
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WHELTLE, R BRUCE & YARDLEY, SUSAN...................1,671.88
WHELTLE, R BRUCE & YARDLEY, SUSAN......................185.63
WHELTLE, R BRUCE & YARDLEY, SUSAN...................2,410.00
WHITAKER, LEWIS H JR & WHITAKER, JANICE D......1,710.63
WHITAKER, LEWIS JR & COLBURN, JANICE D...........3,830.00
WHITE, NATHAN C.....................................................531.88
WHITE, SCOTT & BONIN, JOLYNN E..........................2,110.63
*WHITEHEAD, STEVEN A.........................................1,258.13
WHITESELL, ZANE B...................................................513.75
*WHITMIRE, ROBERT L & WHITMIRE, JOAN.............1,828.13
WHITNEY, MIA........................................................1,591.88
WHITTAKER, TATYANA I..........................................2,136.88
WHITTAKER, TATYANA I..........................................1,405.00
WIERNICKI, CHRISTOPHER & WIERNICKI, JUDITH L.......78.13
WILEY, GORDON F & SANBORN, BROOKE J.................783.75
WILEY, GORDON F......................................................282.50
WILEY, JOSEPH E & WILEY, RACHEL F......................1,424.38
WILKINSON, KENT K...............................................5,226.25
WILKINSON, KENT K..................................................179.38
WILL, JOHN F..........................................................2,986.25
WILLEY, BRENT A.......................................................942.50
WILLEY, BRENT A.......................................................215.00
WILLEY, KEVIN A (HEIRS OF)......................................196.88
WILLEY, PAUL M & WILLEY, VIRGINIA A......................386.25
WILLIAMS, BRENDA HOLMES.....................................765.63
WILLIAMS, BRENDA HOLMES..................................1,976.25
WILLIAMS, BRENDA HOLMES.....................................626.25
WILLIAMS, BRENDA HOLMES.....................................437.50
WILLIAMS, BRENDA HOLMES.....................................227.50
WILLIAMS, BRENDA L................................................216.88
WILLIAMS, BRENDA L................................................229.38
WILLIAMS, CAMERON.............................................1,191.25
WILLIAMS, CHRISTOPHER S....................................1,304.38
WILLIAMS, CHRISTOPHER S.......................................193.13
WILLIAMS, DEBRA J & WILLIAMS, BRIAN J..............2,040.00
WILLIAMS, GUY....................................................10,606.25
WILLIAMS, HUGH D...................................................191.25
WILLIAMS, HUGH D................................................1,293.75
WILLIAMS, HUGH D...................................................896.25
WILLIAMS, JASON R...............................................1,476.88
WILLIAMS, ROBERT D & DIANNE V, TRUSTEES.........4,743.75
WILLIAMS, ROBERT D & DIANNE V, TRUSTEES.........2,373.13
WILLIAMS, ZETH........................................................118.13
WILLIAMSON, JORDAN C, RASSOS, DEBORAH J 
  WILLIAMSON & WILLIAMSON, JOHN C.....................370.63
WILLIAMSON, RANDALL D & WILLIAMSON, 
  RACHEL................................................................3,316.88
WILLIAMSON, RANDALL D & WILLIAMSON, 
  RACHEL B................................................................601.88
WILMOT, GEORGE R & WILMOT, JANE D...................3,934.38
WILSON, ALEXANDRA.............................................1,257.50
WILSON, ALEXANDRA L..........................................3,990.00

WILSON, BARBARA.................................................1,092.50
WILSON, BRANT & WILSON, JOYCE, TR.......................812.50
*WILSON, KENDRICK P..............................................548.75
WILSON, MARK G & BRACKETT, MARTHA L................988.13
WINCHENBACH, JOEY T...........................................1,248.13
WINCHENBACH, JOSHUA T.........................................915.63
WINCHENBACH, ROBERT A........................................976.25
WINCHESTER, JOHN F.............................................8,237.50
WINCHESTER, JOHN F.............................................5,239.38
WINDSONG COATINGS, LLC.....................................1,985.63
WINDWARD ENTERPRISES...........................................31.25
WING, ARLENE..........................................................228.75
WING, ARLENE..........................................................453.75
WING, RANDY & WING, ARLENE M.............................655.63
WING, RANDY & WING, ARLENE M.............................228.75
WING, RANDY & WING, ARLENE M.............................176.25
WING, RANDY & WING, ARLENE M.............................158.13
WING, RANDY & WING, ARLENE M.............................246.25
WITHE, JEFF...........................................................3,237.50
WITTE, AMY E.........................................................1,090.63
WOJCIULA, TOMASZ................................................1,453.75
WOLF, H JUSTIN & NELSON, MARYANNE..................7,208.13
WOLFSON, RITA PARSONT.......................................1,143.13
WOLFSON, RITA PARSONT.......................................4,563.75
WOLMAN, SAMUEL & LILLIOS, LORETTA.................3,445.00
WOOD, DONALD YATES & WOOD, ANDREA LYNN......3,353.75
*WOOD, WARREN E................................................1,424.38
WOODBURY, DONALD S & WOODBURY, JANE M..........460.00
WOODMAN, GEORGIA I..............................................792.50
*WOODMAN, WAYNE W & WOODMAN, FAYE..............379.38
WOODMAN, WAYNE W & WOODMAN, FAYE A............345.00
WOODMAN, WAYNE W & WOODMAN, FAYE................175.00
WOODMAN, YVETTE SIGLER....................................1,255.00
WOODMAR, LLC......................................................7,757.50
WOODWARD, KENNETH W & WOODWARD, JUDITH A...221.88
WOODWARD, KENNETH W & WOODWARD, 
  JUDITH A (LIFE ESTATE)...........................................851.25
WOODY, SHERRILL L...................................................319.38
WOODY, SHERRILL L...................................................331.25
*WOODY, WILLIAM E & WOODY, SHERRILL L...........1,709.38
*WOOLF-WADE, SARAH J, TRUSTEE - 
  SARAH J WOOLF-WADE REVOCABLE TRUST..........2,805.00
WORDOCK, JEANNETTE M.......................................1,143.13
WORKMAN, GARY A...................................................427.50
WORKMAN, SHELLEY J...........................................1,173.75
WORTH, WILLIAM P III & WORTH, LAURA R................983.13
WORTH, WILLIAM P III & WORTH, LAURA R..................82.50
WOTTON, DONALD & WOTTON, REBECCA...................690.63
WOTTON, DONALD JR & WOTTON, REBECCA S.........1,167.50
WOTTON, DONALD JR & WOTTON, REBECCA S............384.38
WOTTON, GERALDINE P, TR........................................926.25
WOTTON, HEIDI JO..................................................1,030.63
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WOTTON, LORA EMMA...............................................169.38
WOTTONS LOBSTER WHARF, LLC.............................2,493.75
WRIGHT, CHARLES L JR & CYNTHIA L......................2,369.38
WRIGHT, DAVID & WRIGHT, BARBARA.....................1,500.00
WRIGHT, JEFFREY......................................................670.63
WRIGHT, KATHLEEN M & EILENBERG, JEFF E...............800.63
WRIGHT, ROBERT III & PALONI, JOANN....................2,363.75
WRIGHT, TRACY L.......................................................143.75
WYMAN, REEVA.........................................................571.25
YAHOUB, THOMAS E & YAHOUB, ERNEST J..................367.50
YATES, DEBORAH & YATES, JESSICA............................548.75
YATES, DEBORAH M................................................1,055.63
YATES, PAUL M........................................................1,036.88
YATES, PAUL M...........................................................761.88
YE OLDE FORTE CABINS TRUST................................5,316.88
YE OLDE FORTE CABINS TRUST...................................180.00
YOST, JEANNE L & YOST, REED A..............................2,665.00
YOST, JOSEPH F IV......................................................966.25
YOUNG, ALITHA A & BARNES, JAMES & S
  MITH, FRANCES....................................................4,796.25
YOUNG, CLIFTON K.....................................................728.13
YOUNG, CONSTANCE P............................................1,923.13
YOUNG, CONSTANCE P...............................................130.63
YOUNG, CONSTANCE PENNINGTON.............................340.63

YOUNG, LINDA S YOUNG, RICHARD M......................1,176.88
YOUNG, LOUISE D...................................................2,443.75
YOUNG, LUCINDA S & YOUNG, ROBERT P.................2,508.75
YOUNG, STEPHEN A & YOUNG, SCOTT K......................434.38
YOUNKER, KEVIN S & YOUNKER, NORMA J..................712.50
YOUNKER, STEPHEN...................................................883.75
YOUTZ, D EUGENE & BARBARA K, TR.......................4,247.50
ZABRISKIE, NANCY J...............................................1,350.00
ZACCADELLI, DENNIS.................................................801.88
ZACHARIAS, MICHAEL DAVID.....................................955.63
ZAJTCHUK, RUSS & JOAN T, TR - 
  JOAN E ZAJTCHUK TRUST......................................3,686.88
ZAVAL, JESSICA & ZAVAL, PETER.............................1,076.88
ZIARNIK, PENELOPE R & ZIARNIK, MARK T...............1,358.75
ZIEGENHAGEN, NANCY...........................................2,251.88
ZIEGENHAGEN, NANCY..............................................612.50
ZIEMBA, JAMES J & ZIEMBA, LUCIE N......................1,526.88
ZIRKLE, DOROTHY A................................................1,888.13
ZISK, JOHNATHAN...................................................2,118.13
ZUROMSKIS, MICHAEL...............................................343.75
ZWERLING, LLOYD STEVEN & MIDDLEBERG, RONA...3,336.25
‡ Blind
† Parsonage
* Veteran

Personal Property Taxpayer List
1267 INVESTORS, LLC ..................................................68.75
ALLEN, DIANA MORSE .................................................39.38
BAY VIEW COTTAGES ...................................................17.50
BENNER CONSTRUCTION ...........................................510.63
BERGERON, DONNA & RICK .......................................106.88
BIBEAU, RYAN .............................................................48.75
BICKFORD, RICHARD & HOLLY .....................................45.00
BLI RENTALS, LLC ........................................................29.38
BRISTOL ENTERTAINMENT, LLC ..................................432.50
BRISTOL TWO, INC .......................................................39.38
BULMER CABINETMAKERS, INC ...................................58.75
CAMPANA, DENNIS & KELLEY ....................................183.13
CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC .............................232.50
CE REILLY & SON .......................................................353.75
CHAMERLAIN, THOMAS & REBECCA ............................31.25
COASTAL CUTS ............................................................25.63
COCA-COLA BOTTLING PLANTS, INC ............................15.63
COMPUTER CONNECTION ............................................31.25
CONTENTED SOLE (THE) ..............................................78.75
COOPER, EARLE A ......................................................103.75
COTTON, KENNETH S ...................................................21.88
*CREEKSIDE DENTAL ...................................................32.50

D & M MARINE ............................................................30.00
DAMARISCOTTA BANK & TRUST CO ............................327.50
DAVE’S MARINE REPAIR ..............................................15.63
DEE’S VARIETY ..........................................................119.38
DIRECTV, LLC .............................................................121.25
DISH NETWORK, LLC ...................................................40.00
FABIAN OIL, INC ........................................................210.00
FAIR WIND MARINE (BOAT SHOP) ................................75.00
FAIR WIND MARINE (GARAGE) ....................................59.38
GORDON, BRYAN .......................................................174.38
GOSNOLD ARMS & COTTAGES ....................................206.88
GRANITE HALL STORE .................................................15.00
GRAYCROFT KENNELS ..................................................21.88
GRAYHAWK LEASING, LLC ...........................................41.25
HANLEY CONSTRUCTION ........................................1,745.63
HANLEY’S MARKET .....................................................42.50
HARBOR ICE CREAM ....................................................12.50
HARBORSIDE COTTAGES ..............................................83.13
HDS ............................................................................16.25
HERR, ROBERT & PAULA ..............................................39.38
HOTEL PEMAQUID .......................................................98.75
J EDWARD KNIGHT & CO ..............................................34.38
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JAMESTOWN ...............................................................20.00
JOHNS BAY TOOLING ...................................................37.50
KEOUGH, RENEE ..........................................................18.75
KING RO MARKET ........................................................32.50
L DEWEY CHASE REAL ESTATE .....................................26.25
LABOMBARDE, WILLIAM J & KAREN ............................76.88
LINCOLNVILLE COMMUNICATIONS, INC .......................20.00
LOVELESS, MIKE & DEB ...............................................28.13
LYNDS, MICHELLE .......................................................18.75
MACDONALD, ANN ......................................................76.25
MANSIR, RICHARD & ELINOR .......................................62.50
MARLIN LEASING ........................................................22.50
*MASTERS MACHINE CO ......................................24,929.38
MJH-PEM, LLC ............................................................91.88
MUSCONGUS BAY LOBSTER CO ....................................38.13
NADEAU, PETER & SHARON .........................................87.50
NEW HARBOR CO-OP ................................................135.63
NEXT ADVENTURE, INC ..............................................317.50
NORTH COUNTRY WIND BELLS, INC ...........................237.50
NORTHERN STAR CUSTOM BOATS ................................70.00
OW HOLMES, INC ...................................................1,434.38
PEMAQUID MARINE & BOATWORKS ............................15.63
PEMAQUID SEAFOOD REAL ESTATE, LLC .....................177.50
PRIOR, MARK ..............................................................18.75

REILLY WELL DRILLING ................................................43.13
REILLY, BRANDON W ...................................................99.38
RIVERVIEW LOBSTER POUND, INC ...............................16.25
ROGERS, BENJAMIN ..................................................330.63
ROUND POND LOBSTER ...............................................33.75
SANDCASTLE POTTERY ................................................12.50
SANTORINEOUS, KAY ..................................................38.13
SCOTTISH LION ............................................................23.13
SEA ACRES MOTEL & COTTAGES ...................................29.38
SEAGULL GIFT SHOP & RESTAURANT ...........................62.50
SHAW’S FISH & LOBSTER WHARF RESTAURANT .........237.50
SHERWOOD FOREST ....................................................21.25
SUMARIA CONFERENCE CENTER ..................................68.75
SWIFT, BRUCE H ..........................................................46.88
TAMAGNINE, JAMES AND JANE ...................................88.75
THOMPSON INN & COTTAGES ....................................158.13
TIME WARNER CABLE INTERNET, LLC ...........................56.88
TIME WARNER CABLE NORTHEAST, LLC ..................4,456.25
TIMEPAYMENT CORP ...................................................33.13
WABASHA LEASING, LLC .............................................39.56
WEST AFRICAN DISTRIBUTORS ....................................46.88
YEREANCE & SON PLUMBING & HEATING ....................15.63

*BETE Exemption

2018 Unpaid Moorings

2018 Unpaid Excise Tax on Documented Boats

Gwen Akin	 PB51
Warren Busteed	 UPR162
Thomas Chappell	 NH5
Benjamin Geyer	 BC18
James Gallagher	 LC31
David Havens	 MS27
George Heselton	 LPR79
Guy Holbrook	 PB46
N. George Kasparyan	 UPR220
Aicha Kelley	 LPR4
Laleah Kennedy	 UPR61
Paul Leeman III	 RP7

Gordon Lind	 UPR215
Jonathan Ludwick	 UPR133
Katrina Robinson	 MS12
Ed Ross	 UPR 212
Joan & Richard Rowland	 UPR117
Frank Sands	 RP207
Richard Stebbins	 LC4
Caroline Taraschi	 UPR174
Diedre Turmelle	 LC42
Daniel Wall	 RP223
Kristopher Weeks	 NH65
Russell Williams	 LPR44

Owner	 Vessel Name
Shawn C. Cowan	 Zoe Monique
Spencer T. Dyer	 The Chain
Joshua J. Fitzpatrick	 Craig & Avery
Michael A. Matott	 Hellblazzer
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Atwood/North Atwood Lanes Association...............171,200
Berwick Boys Foundation........................................107,200
Bristol Area Library.................................................527,100
Bristol Areas Lions Charity, Inc.................................196,600
Bristol, Town of

Bristol Consolidated School..............................5,492,000
Bristol Mills Dam.................................................202,900
Ellingwood Park...................................................172,000
Ervine School.......................................................137,400
Fire Department - Bristol Mills.............................169,000
Fire Department - New Harbor............................286,200
Fire Department - Round Pond............................234,600
Gift from Vermont Mutual.....................................76,400
Herbert’s Landing....................................................7,300
Lighthouse Park................................................4,162,500
Long Cove Picnic Ground......................................164,400
Long Cove Watering Hole.......................................36,500
Old Dump..............................................................69,600
Pemaquid Beach Park.......................................2,268,800
Pemaquid Land Company Gift.............................969,900
Recreational Trail.................................................260,500
Rock Schoolhouse..................................................60,700
Round Pond Tennis Court.......................................89,200
Sunset View.........................................................439,100
Town Hall............................................................284,700
Town Landing - Brown’s Cove..............................257,800
Town Landing - Hanna Landing...........................469,800
Town Landing - Moxie Cove...................................96,200
Town Landing - New Harbor................................653,200

Tax Exempt Property
Town Landing - Pemaquid Falls.............................39,300
Transfer Station/Town Garage.............................557,100

Carpenters Boat Shop (The).................................1,657,600
Damariscotta River Association...............................579,200
Eldercare Network of Lincoln County.......................604,700
Federal Government Stone Lighthouse...................117,300
First Congregational Church, Trustees......................714,600
First Congregational Church, Vestry...........................54,400
Harrington Meetinghouse ......................................196,300
I.O.O.F. Hall..............................................................307,100
Long Cove Point Association....................................400,400
Maine, State of.....................................................4,983,200
Masonic Lodge No. 74.............................................186,900
Medomak Valley Land Trust.....................................108,600
Methodist Church - New Harbor..............................306,400
Methodist Church - Round Pond.............................243,500
Muscongus Cemetery Association.............................51,900
Old Bristol Historical Society...................................113,200
Pemaquid Watershed Association........................1,250,000
Road Assoc. of Biscay Lake Shore Road....................164,800
Round Pond Schoolhouse Asociation......................259,600
Round Pond Village Improvement Society............1,109,600
Samoset Monument......................................................200
Seawood Park Community Association................1,074,300
Union Church..........................................................324,500
Wawenock Trail Subdivision......................................24,600
Total Exempt Valuation......................... 32,490,000
Exempt Tax, 2018....................................... 202,863

VALUATION VALUATION

2018 REAL ESTATE SUPPLEMENTAL TAX PAYER LIST

Name	 For Tax Year	 Tax Amount
MURRAY, LINDA & MURRAY, GWENDOLYN	 2017	 303.75
BURKE, SCOTT H	 2015	 654.03
BURKE, SCOTT H	 2016	 611.46
BURKE, SCOTT H	 2017	 469.38
RODRIGUE, MARGARET J.	 2015	 933.73
RODRIGUE, MARGARET J.	 2016	 872.95
RODRIGUE, MARGARET J.	 2017	 1021.88
CARD, JAMES D & TERESA CARD	 2017	 91.88
RIOPEL, GERARD H. & RIOPEL, MARY S.	 2017	 500.00
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Bristol Fire & Rescue Paul Leeman Jr., Fire Chief

 Bristol Fire & Rescue responded to 491 calls during 2018. There were 349 
medical calls, 41 motor vehicle accidents, 34 fire calls, 11 fire alarms, 4 water 
rescues, 47 downed trees (22 involving power lines), 6 mutual aid calls, and 40 
special duty events. Members spent 1,004 hours training with a total involvement 
of 6,078 hours.

It is our goal to finish the ISO challenge this year to improve the town’s rating. 
Aiding in this will be the completion of the dry hydrant at the Monro Bridge 
on State Rt. 32 in Round Pond. We have obtained all the permits from the DEP 
enabling us to begin the construction this dry season. This will help with our ISO 
rating as it will be listed as a certified water source along with 6 others in our 
town.

The fund-raising program “911 reflective sign” continues with the placement of 
over 800 signs throughout the Town of Bristol. We hope residents and businesses 
continue to recognize these signs as a valuable savings of time when seconds 
matter when emergency services are needed.

We continue to participate in the annual Easter Egg hunt, the Round Pond 
Fourth of July parade, Olde Bristol Days, the Alvin Sproul / Samoset road race, 
fire education training with the Bristol Consolidated School children, the Flying 
Santa by helicopter at the Pemaquid Lighthouse Park, and new this June will be 
a bicycle safety rodeo. We gave each new student at Bristol Consolidated School 
a new smoke alarm plus handed out batteries for replacement of those already in 
place at their homes. This will be done twice a year as we reset our clocks in the 
Spring and Fall. Smoke alarms are the most effective method in saving lives in the 
event of home fires.

It is an honor for all members of Bristol Fire & Rescue to serve the residents of 
the Town of Bristol. I would like to thank the members for their many hours of 
dedicated service. Our participation would not be possible without the support of 
our families who are left at home at the sound of a page for our needed services. A 
huge “Thank you” needs to be given to the many businesses who allow members 
to respond to calls during working hours. It is with immense pride that we offer 
support and help 24 hours a day / 7 days a week throughout the year. A huge help 
to us would be for all to make sure that there is enough room for our emergency 
vehicles to travel without encountering trees, limbs, or rocks that will impede our 
response or damage our apparatus.

As I begin my tenth year as Fire Chief and my first year in a fulltime capacity, I 
want to thank all residents for the privilege of serving in this position, and I will 
continue to do my very best. I want to thank all who continue to support this fine 
organization through their generous donations. I want everyone to be proud of 
their Bristol Fire & Rescue.

“In case of emergency dial 911”
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Bristol Fire & Rescue Officers

Fire Chief................................................................................................... Paul Leeman Jr.

EMS Service Chief.............................................................................. Jeraldine Pendleton

Station One: New Harbor
	 First Assistant Chief..........................................................................Jared Pendleton
	 Captain....................................................................................... Bradford Pendleton
	 Lieutenant...........................................................................................Scott Sutter Jr.

Station Two: Round Pond
	 Captain............................................................................................Kathleen Corson

Station Three: Bristol Mills
	 Second Assistant Chief......................................................................Timothy Miller
	 Captain............................................................................................. Nicholas Bryant
	 Lieutenant...........................................................................................Allen Spinney

Clerk................................................................................................................Leah Cowan

Treasurer...................................................................................................Tammy Holmes

Training Officer............................................................................................Scott Sutter Jr.

Safety Officer......................................................................... James “Breck” Holladay Sr.

Chaplain................................................................................. James “Breck” Holladay Sr.

Trustees........................................... Timothy Miller, Ronald Pendleton, John Stolecki

Review Committee....... James “Breck” Holladay Sr., Tammy Holmes, Michael Witte

Fire Warden.............................................................................................. Paul Leeman Jr.

Assistant Fire Wardens............... Nicholas Bryant, Kathleen Corson, William Crider, 
Paul Leeman III, Timothy Miller, Jordan Powell

Deputy Forest Fire Wardens........................................ Rachel Bizarro, Lindsay Currier, 
Christopher Hall, Jessica Westhaver
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Bristol Parks & Recreation
Commissioners: Chairperson Clyde Pendleton, Sandra Lane, Laurie Mahan

The Bristol Parks and Recreation Department enjoyed a year of growth in 
2018. The addition of new programs and events provided opportunity for more 
community involvement. There were important upgrades on existing park 
buildings and plans were made to continue this work. This progress helped define 
the direction that Bristol Parks is moving. 

A Youth Sports program was introduced in the spring and was very well 
received by Bristol participants and their families. Over 60 students between 
grades K-8 attended the initial March session at Bristol Consolidated School - far 
more than expected. Grades K-4 participated in a multi-sport program, coached 
by Holly Nelson, which focused two days of each week on a different sport (soccer, 
volleyball, basketball, softball/baseball) and spent time working on skills for that 
sport. Grades 5-8 participated in a baseball/softball skills clinic two days a week, 
coached by Clyde Pendleton. For the second session, a soccer clinic was introduced 
in the fall for grades K-5. Participants focused one day a week on learning and 
practicing soccer skills through fun drills and games. The encouraging feedback 
from kids, parents and teachers showed a strong interest for this in the community 
and Bristol Parks is excited to continue to develop this program.

Bristol Parks is very excited about a new annual event that began in 2018, the 
Pemaquid Beach Triathlon! The event consisted of a 400-yard swim at Pemaquid 
Beach, then a 17-mile bike route around the peninsula and finally a 3-mile run 
down Pemaquid Trail and back to the beach. The race might be the most beautiful 
triathlon in Maine as much of the route hugs the beautiful Pemaquid Peninsula 
coastline. The 126 registrations far exceeded what was expected and the event was 
quite a success. Detailed feedback from participants was both very positive and 
helpful in determining how to improve. The Parks Department and spectators 
agreed that seeing so many participants pushing themselves so hard, and enjoying 
it, was truly inspirational. The 2019 triathlon should be even better with more 
participants expected as a result of the 2018 success. 

One of the most exciting things to happen in 2018 was a $300,000 donation 
toward the replacement of the Pemaquid Beach Pavilion. The Parks Department 
worked on planning the project and applying for more funding through grants. 
A land survey was completed, architects were selected, and an initial schematic 
design was presented to the community at a special town meeting. More meetings 
and an online survey helped gather further community input which the architects 
used to help guide the design. The Bristol Parks Commission sincerely appreciates 
those people who provided their input and attended meetings. The project was 
still in the schematic design phase at the end of 2018 but as we move into 2019, 
the direction and timeline of the pavilion replacement project will be determined 
by funding. The hope and intention are to have a new beach pavilion by Spring 
2020.
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There were numerous capital improvements within the Parks in 2018. At 
Ellingwood Information Center, a well was drilled, and a well pump was installed. 
A separate room was built in the basement for the hot water heater and insulation 
was added. Pemaquid Point Lighthouse Park got important improvements. The 
$10,000 grant from Morton-Kelly Charitable Trust was used for new roofs on the 
Keeper’s House, Bell Tower, Oil House, shed and Art Gallery. The chimneys were 
repointed on the Keeper’s House and some masonry work improved the basement. 
A new furnace was needed in the Keeper’s House after the old one quit. A group of 
volunteers from The Basking Ridge Presbyterian Church in New Jersey painted the 
lighthouse fence and Hancock Lumber gave a significant discount on the paint – all 
allowing the project cost to be minimal. The Parks Commission decided to have an 
energy audit and home inspection done on the Keeper’s House to help determine 
the next steps in restoration. The energy audit showed minimal insulation in the 
building which explained the high heating costs. A grant for $18,360 was received 
from the Belvedere Historic Preservation and Energy Efficiency program through 
the Maine Community Foundation. This funding went toward the purchase of 
ten new windows for the Keeper’s House which should help increase the energy 
efficiency of the building. In addition, the Parks Commission added insulation to 
the basement and attic of the building to help mitigate future heating costs. Many 
more updates are planned as the Parks Commission believes that restoring the 
historic Pemaquid Point Keeper’s House is a high priority.

The Parks Commission would like to thank the residents of Bristol for their 
loyal support. We are grateful that the hard work of the Commissioners and Parks 
Department does not go unnoticed. We will continue to operate and maintain the 
parks with compassion and mindfulness for our residents, visitors, staff and the 
environment. We are always open to new ideas and welcome feedback that helps 
us improve. 

Bristol Parks & Recreation Budget			 
	 	 	
EXPENSE ACCOUNT	 2018 ACTUAL	 2019 PROPOSED
Capital Improvements	  50,514.23 	  42,000.00 
Capital Purchases	 	
Capital Reserves	  41,000.00 	  10,000.00 
Town Landings	 	
Workers Compensation	  10,208.08 	  7,100.00 
Property & Casualty	  838.50 	  1,550.00 
Salaries	  60,599.76 	  60,600.00 
Wages - Maintenance	  63,759.75 	  65,000.00 
Wages - Staff	  87,476.82 	  93,000.00 
Wages - Clerical	  - 	  - 
Payroll Taxes	  16,205.47 	  17,100.00 
Gasoline	  2,197.60 	  2,600.00 
Diesel	  1,605.39 	  1,700.00 
Fuel Oil - Museum, apt	  3,614.84 	  3,500.00 
Hardware/Materials (general expenses)	  20,430.31 	  20,875.00 
Contractors	 	
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Maintenance (general repairs)	  3,854.64 	  4,300.00 
Sales Merchandise	  1,327.78 	  300.00 
Electricity	  6,945.94 	  6,800.00 
Phone/Cable/Internet	  5,669.47 	  5,822.00 
Toilet Rental	  4,337.50 	  4,500.00 
Rubbish	  3,160.57 	  3,100.00 
Maps	 	  2,700.00 
Office	  3,399.10 	  3,500.00 
Advertising	  2,319.75 	  2,500.00 
Sales Tax	 	
Truck/Equipment Repair & maintenance	  2,840.06 	  2,500.00 
Wedding Supplies	  - 	
Special Events, triathlon, youth sports	  9,608.36 	  10,500.00 
Vending Machine	  2,755.35 	  3,000.00 
General Park Supplies	  1,432.52 	  500.00 
Landscaping/	  7,843.81 	  9,000.00 
Mileage Reimbursement	  183.88 	  300.00 
Safety & Compliance	  2,672.95 	  3,200.00 
Lighthouse Park Expenses	  27,091.47 	
Lighthouse Apartment Expense	  1,940.32 	
Ellingwood Park Expense	  15,230.62 	
Beach Park Expense	  8,365.36 	
Miscellaneous	  323.98 	  300.00 
Contingency 	 	  13,000.00 
Parks Beach Pavilion	  256,781.30 	
TOTAL CASH EXPENDITURE	  673,907.71 	  400,847.00 
  (OPERATING AND CAPITAL)	 	
	 	
REVENUE ACCOUNT	 2018 ACTUAL	 2019 PROPOSED
Learning Center	  1,947.50 	  1,900.00 
Lighthouse Park	  209,551.00 	  210,700.00 
Beach Park	  104,515.00 	  99,800.00 
Season Passes	  6,957.00 	  7,000.00 
Apartment Rent	  18,804.34 	  19,000.00 
Art Gallery Rent / Electric	  4,340.00 	  4,500.00 
Snack Bar Rent / Electric	  4,000.00 	  3,200.00 
Weddings	  9,059.50 	  9,000.00 
Beach Shop	  6,872.00 	  5,900.00 
Vending Machines	  6,347.05 	  6,000.00 
Floats	  6,225.00 	  5,200.00 
Special Events (Youth sports, triathlon)	  11,965.36 	  13,000.00 
Merchandise Sales	  2,404.16 	  2,500.00 
Donations	  9,296.21 	  7,300.00 
Area Maps / Advertising	  - 	  4,500.00 
Beach Community Room	  87.50 	  50.00 
Beach Pavilion donation	  250,000.00 	  - 
Grants	  18,360.00 	  - 
Sales tax	  (11.92)	  - 
Reimbursements	  2,002.97 	  1,000.00 
Miscellaneous Revenue	  5,365.87 	  1,000.00 
Total	  678,088.54 	  401,550.00 
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Bristol/So. Bristol Transfer Facility 
David Poland, Manager

For the Bristol/South Bristol transfer facility, 2018 was again another busy year 
and I would say the busiest we’ve seen. The biggest change for us in 2018 was 
plastics. As everyone knows by now, there is no market for any grade of plastic 
except #2. We do the best we can to recycle what we can and unfortunately some 
things we can’t control. It pains me, and it hurts our bottom line, to have to send 
plastics to the landfill.

As we look ahead, I do not foresee major changes. Our building, trash trailers, 
loader, bulk containers, forklift, road, parking lot and scales are all essential to 
keeping the transfer facility running. Our major concern is keeping them well 
maintained, as I state every year. Buildings and machinery grow old and tired and 
don’t last forever. My goal in 2017 was to plan ahead for each item, start capital 
reserve accounts for each one and be ready for it when the time comes. Those 
accounts are in place and there is no need for any major purchases at this time. 
With the everyday operations we try to make it as simple as we can and as easy as 
we can by fine-tuning the operation. We’re always looking for new ideas to make 
things easier and more efficient. I would like to say I’m very grateful to our loyal 
staff, Kurt Geib, Raymond Eastman, and especially Darrin Smith for helping when 
one employee was ill for a whole month during the busiest time of year, and, of 
course, for all that they do to help run and maintain the facility.

During the time I have been manager I’ve done what I can to keep the budget 
flat. This year 2019 we are asking for a 3% increase. We have contracts expiring 
which we will need to renegotiate, and as the years keep getting busier, we need 
more help and we have asked Darrin to stay on. I’m proud of our towns’ growing 
commitment to recycling. We have seen our recycling rate grow every year and 
even with the plastic problem I’m happy to say it’s still growing and staying over 
21%. Every little bit helps save tax dollars, and it is important to remember that our 
tonnage to the landfill is still growing so we must try to both keep our expenses 
down and keep our recycling rate growing. Please keep up the good work, 
encourage others and keep that recycling percentage growing. 
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Bristol/South Bristol Transfer Facility Budget
January through December 2018 with proposed budget for 2019
			   Proposed
	 2018 Actual	 2018 Budget	 2019 Budget
Carried over	 30,482.16	 30,482.16	 8,449.52
Bristol Assessment	 233,680.00	 233,680.00	 240,690.00
South Bristol Assessment	 155,832.00	 155,833.00	 160,508.00
MSW Income	 2,530.40	 3,063.60	 2,530.40
Bulk Waste Income	 125,191.66	 123,537.52	 125,191.66
Mercury Income	 888.60	 881.41	 888.60
Recycling Income	 4,077.05	 2,559.65	 4,077.05
Steel Income	 6,303.05	 4,193.45	 6,303.05
	 558,984.92	 554,230.79	 548,638.28

MSW Costs	 	
MSW Disposal	 89,177.22	 78,000.00	 90,000.00
MSW Shipping	 45,475.00	 42,000.00	 46,000.00
Total MSW Costs	 134,652.22	 120,000.00	 136,000.00

Bulk Waste Costs	 	
Bulk Waste Disposal	 72,012.08	 73,000.00	 73,000.00
Bulk Waste Shipping	 68,425.00	 73,000.00	 70,000.00
Total Bulk Waste Costs	 140,437.08	 146,000.00	 143,000.00

Plant Labor Costs	 	
Plant Wages	 83,750.80	 74,650.00	 84,650.00
Plant Wages Overtime	 0.00	 1,000.00	 0.00
Plant Manager Salary	 47,493.28	 47,740.50	 47,740.50
Plant Payroll Taxes	 11,045.39	 9,743.32	 11,172.30
Plant Worker’s Comp	 4,202.00	 5,175.00	 4,500.00
Plant Health Benefits	 52,347.98	 51,244.47	 52,347.98
Total Plant Labor Costs	 198,839.45	 189,553.29	 200,410.78

Maintenance Costs	 	
Loader Maintenance	 782.64	 2,500.00	 2,000.00
Forklift Maintenance	 746.08	 500.00	 750.00
Scale Maintenance	 875.00	 1,000.00	 1,000.00
Trailer Maintenance	 2,630.56	 10,000.00	 10,000.00
Road Maintenance	 0.00	 1,000.00	 0.00
Total Maintenance Costs	 5,034.28	 15,000.00	 13,750.00

Operating Costs	 	
Fuel for Loader	 1,028.39	 1,000.00	 1,000.00
Propane for Fork Lift	 132.46	 350.00	 300.00
Gasoline	 150.56	 350.00	 300.00
Operating Costs - Other	 	
Total Operating Costs	 1,311.41	 1,700.00	 1,600.00
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Professional Services Costs
Dues and Memberships	 1,200.00	 600.00	 0.00
Bank Service Charges	 	
Professional Services Costs	 	
  Legal	 0.00	 1,000.00	 0.00
  Accounting & Audit	 3,000.00	 2,700.00	 3,000.00
Total Professional Services Costs	 4,200.00	 4,300.00	 3,000.00

Office Costs	 	
Insurance	 9,408.00	 10,000.00	 10,000.00
Printing/Advertising	 96.28	 500.00	 200.00
Office Expense	 2,289.30	 2,400.00	 2,400.00
Office Wages	 5,910.98	 5,987.50	 5,987.50
Total Office Costs	 17,704.56	 18,887.50	 18,587.50

Facility Operation	 	
Utilities	 6,201.03	 6,000.00	 6,000.00
Bottled Water	 202.87	 500.00	 250.00
Miscellaneous Facility Operation	 12.88	 500.00	 250.00
Facility Supplies	 352.65	 300.00	 300.00
License	 474.00	 490.00	 490.00
Total Facility Operation	 7,243.43	 7,790.00	 7,290.00

Reconciliation Discrepancies	 -0.01	
Education	 0.00	 1,000.00	 0.00
Capital Expense	 6,313.87	 10,000.00	 10,000.00
Misc Expense - Contingency	 2,000.00	 5,000.00	 5,000.00
Trailer Replacement Fund	 22,799.11	 25,000.00	 0.00
Facilities Capital Reserve Fund	 7,000.00	 7,000.00	 7,000.00
Equipment Capital Reserve Fund	 3,000.00	 3,000.00	 3,000.00
	 41,112.97	 51,000.00	 25,000.00
	 	
Total Expenses	 550,535.40	 554,230.79	 548,638.28
Total Income	 558,984.92	 554,230.79	 548,638.28
Net Income	 8,449.52	 0.00	 0.00
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Code Enforcement Office Report Joseph Rose

This office continues to put an emphasis on working with residents and 
contractors to assist in accomplishing project goals while ensuring that full 
compliance with Town ordinances and State law is met. Many times this is as 
simple as a phone call, other times several meetings are required.

Statistically, building permit numbers were down in 2018, at 73 building permits 
compared to 93 in 2017. Plumbing permits stayed relatively flat at 78 plumbing 
permits compared to 75. These numbers are below the average for the past five 
years. Many remodeling projects are undertaken without the requirement of a 
permit. Plumbing permits are required by State law for almost all plumbing work. 
Permit fees remain unchanged again this year.

I would like to take this opportunity to remind all property owners, occupants 
and contractors who are planning to construct, reconstruct, alter, relocate, replace 
or expand any structure to first consult the Code Enforcement Office to ensure 
compliance and avoid costly delays. Special attention should be paid to properties 
in the Shoreland Zone as delineated by the official Shoreland Zoning map for the 
Town of Bristol.

All Town ordinances, Shoreland map, and permit application can be found 
online at www.bristolmaine.org or at the Town office.
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Central Lincoln County Ambulance Service 
Nicholas Bryant, Service Chief

I would like to take the time to introduce myself as the new Service Chief of 
Central Lincoln County Ambulance Service (CLCAS). My name is Nicholas Bryant 
and I have been employed full-time at CLCAS since 2010. I have been involved in 
emergency services since I joined the Bristol Fire Department at 16 years old. I 
later went on to earn my Associate Degree in Applied Fire Science from Southern 
Maine Community College, as well as my Paramedic Training at Kennebec Valley 
Community College. I look forward to continuing to serve Bristol and our other 
communities in the years to come.

In 2018 our service responded to 1,640 emergency calls, an increase of over 
100 emergency calls from 2017. While we have seen an increase in emergency 
calls, we have continued to see a decline in transfers, specifically basic life support 
transfers. The continued reduction in transfer volume has had a large impact on 
our revenue for the year. This is an issue for our organization because, in the past, 
our operational budget has come entirely from the calls we bill for, while the town 
contributions have been used for equipment and training needs. Going forward 
the town contribution amounts have increased to compensate from our decreased 
revenue, while remaining very low cost when compared to other EMS agencies of 
comparable size.

We have continued our annual appeal letter to seek help from our community 
members in covering the increasing costs of equipment and training. I am pleased 
to announce that we have received great support again this year, raising $29,000 
to date. The money we receive in donations is going toward our effort to purchase 
our next ambulance to replace one of our two aging 2010 ambulances. The 
approximate cost of replacing an ambulance is now $170,000 and all donations are 
an essential part of acquiring these funds.

We have continued to provide Community Paramedicine visits to members 
of our community for our fifth straight year. This program has demonstrated a 
positive impact on the patient’s ability to manage medical conditions at home. We 
have completed four training modules and will continue to train on additional 
topics in the future to continue to provide the best home care to our patients.

I would like to thank Fire Chief Paul Leeman, EMS Chief Jeraldine Pendleton 
and the Bristol Fire and First Responders for being an essential partner in our 
effort to supply the quality Emergency Medical Service to the Town of Bristol.



	 ANNUAL REPORT	 81

United State Senate
U.S. Senator Susan M. Collins

It is an honor to represent Maine in the United States Senate. I am grateful for 
the trust the people of our state have placed in me and welcome this opportunity 
to share some key accomplishments from this past year. 

As Chairman of the Senate Aging Committee, I worked to help ensure the well-
being of our seniors. The Senior$afe Act I authored became law last year and is 
empowering banks, credit unions, and other financial institutions to better protect 
seniors from financial fraud. 

Following extensive committee investigations of prescription drug pricing, 
additional legislation I crafted became law, ending the egregious practice of 
pharmacy “gag clauses” that prevented pharmacists from informing patients on 
how to pay the lowest possible price.

This year, I was also successful in securing an extra $425 million for Alzheimer’s 
research—the largest funding increase ever—bringing the total to $2.34 billion. 
Additionally, the bipartisan BOLD Act I authored will create public health 
infrastructure to combat Alzheimer’s by promoting education, early diagnosis, 
and improved care management. 

More than 40 million Americans—including 178,000 Mainers—are caregivers 
for parents, spouses, children, and other loved ones with disabilities or illnesses, 
such as Alzheimer’s. The RAISE Family Caregivers Act I authored was signed into 
law last year, giving caregivers more resources and training to better balance the 
full-time job of caregiving. Another law I wrote will help grandparents who are 
raising grandchildren, largely due to the opioid addiction crisis.

In addition to helping seniors, a major accomplishment over the past year is the 
increased federal investment in biomedical research that is leading to progress in 
the fight against numerous devastating diseases. Congress has boosted funding for 
the National Institutes of Health by $7 billion in just the last three years, bringing 
total funding to more than $39 billion.

One of my highest priorities as Chairman of the Transportation Appropriations 
Subcommittee is to improve our nation’s crumbling infrastructure and ensure that 
Maine’s needs are addressed. Since the Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage 
Development (BUILD) Transportation Grants program, formerly known as 
TIGER, was established in 2009, I have secured $160 million for vital transportation 
projects throughout Maine.

Congress also delivered a Farm Bill last year, which includes many important 
provisions that will help the agriculture industry in Maine and across the country. 
Specifically, I secured provisions that will strengthen support for young farmers, 
improve local farm-to-market efforts, and increase funding for organic research.

Congress took decisive action to address the opioid addiction epidemic. In 
addition to appropriating $8.5 billion in federal funding last year, Congress enacted 
the SUPPORT for Patients and Communities Act, a comprehensive package that 
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embraces the multipronged approach I have long advocated for this epidemic: 
prevention, treatment, recovery, and enforcement to stop drug trafficking. 

Maine plays a key role in ensuring a strong national defense. In 2018, Congress 
provided funding for five ships to be built at Bath Iron Works, which will help 
to keep our nation safe and provide our skilled shipbuilders a steady job. I also 
secured more than $162 million for infrastructure projects at Portsmouth Naval 
Shipyard to support their important work to overhaul Navy submarines.

A Maine value that always guides me is our unsurpassed work ethic. In December 
2018, I cast my 6,834th consecutive vote, continuing my record of never missing a 
roll-call vote since my Senate service began in 1997.

I appreciate the opportunity to serve Maine in the United States Senate. If ever 
I can be of assistance to you, please contact one of my state offices or visit my 
website at www.collins.senate.gov. May 2019 be a good year for you, your family, 
your community, and our state.

U.S. Senator Angus S. King Jr.

As I travel Maine, I hear from people who live in every corner of our state. I hear 
about their achievements, their successes, their work to improve their communities 
– I hear about the hope they have for our state. I also hear about our challenges, 
and all the work we have left to do. As I see it, that’s my job: to listen to you, act 
where I can to build on what’s good, and work on the tough parts. As 2018 comes 
to a close, I wanted to take a moment to share an update on some of the work we’re 
doing in Washington to lift up the accomplishments of Maine people and make 
progress on the challenges they face.

From Portland to Presque Isle, from Milo to Camden, I hear about the pain 
that the opioid epidemic is inflicting on Maine communities. I’ve met with 
Maine people in recovery, family members of those struggling with substance use 
disorders, treatment providers, and law enforcement officials to learn about their 
experiences with this terrible disease, and everyone agrees that in order to fully 
respond to these problems, we need a stronger federal effort to end the opioid 
epidemic. Fortunately, some help is on the way – in October, we overwhelmingly 
passed a sweeping, bipartisan opioids bill. I’ve pushed hard for this type of 
legislation and was proud to have provisions I’ve advocated for included in the 
bill. These priorities have been guided by the voices of Maine people, and we’ll 
keep working to confront this tragic problem. 

I’ve also worked to strengthen the future of our forest economy. Maine’s 
forests have powered our state’s economy for generations, especially in our rural 
communities. So, when rapid shifts in the market led to the closure of many pulp 
and paper mills and biomass power plants, it required a collaborative approach to 
support future growth in this important industry. That’s why, together with the 
other members of the state’s Congressional delegation, I pushed to establish the 
Economic Development Assessment Team (EDAT). This integrated, multiagency 
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effort aims to foster innovation and commercialization in Maine’s forest economy, 
and we’re already seeing the benefits: in recent months, several forest industry 
businesses have announced significant investments into Maine operations, and 
in September 2018, the Forest Opportunity Roadmap (FOR)/Maine released an 
action plan to make sure this industry, and the rural communities it supports, can 
continue to thrive for generations to come.

As I close this letter, please allow me to express my gratitude to each of you – for 
your dedication to our state, and to one another. It’s often said that Maine is like 
a big small town (with very long streets) — that’s because at our heart, we’re one 
big community. It’s not only a pleasure to serve you –   it’s a pleasure to know you. 
Thank you for being the reason Maine is so special. Mary and I hope that 2019 will 
be a good year for you, your family, your community, and our great State.

	   Member of Congress Chellie Pingree

I hope this message finds you well. I am honored to represent you and your 
family and am grateful for the chance to offer both an update from Congress and 
my thoughts on the year ahead. 

In Maine, we care less about political parties than about getting the job done. 
That’s why I’m happy to report several recent victories I had reaching across the 
aisle to address issues important to our state.

Signed into law after months of deadlock, the 2018 Farm Bill contained several 
provisions I introduced. We were able to boost local food investment and organic 
research programs that are important to the Maine farmers driving a resurgence 
in our agricultural economy. The bill also created a pilot program to help doctors 
write prescriptions and offer vouchers to patients who need to change their diet but 
can’t afford fresh food. Finally, the legislation included several steps I introduced 
to reduce food waste, a national problem that is not only costly to the environment 
and economy, but a missed opportunity to help millions of Americans who don’t 
have enough to eat. 

At the end of 2018, the President signed into law legislative language I introduced 
to assist veterans who had been blindsided by debt with the Department of 
Veterans Affairs. After hearing from several veterans who did not receive mailings 
about their debt until it was too late to take action, I introduced a bill to require the 
VA to improve its notification system. The final legislation requires that veterans 
have the option of getting electronic notifications and that the VA report on the 
underlying issues. 

And on the House Appropriations Committee, I worked to protect programs 
that our state relies on, such as small business grants, rural broadband investment, 
effective responses to the opioid epidemic, shipbuilding at Bath Iron Works, and 
more. 
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As a new Congress gets underway, I will keep working with Republicans to 
make progress on key issues like these. But with Democrats now in the majority, 
I look forward to having an open debate on problems that have been ignored for 
too long. This includes the gun violence plaguing our nation, the dangers climate 
change presents to our country, crushing student loan debt, the influence of big 
money in politics, and the need for all Americans to access affordable health care 
and prescriptions. 

In Washington and Maine, my offices stand ready to answer your questions, 
listen to feedback, and assist with federal issues and agencies. My hard-working 
staff helps many hundreds of constituents every year and I welcome the chance 
to serve you.

	   Governor of Maine Paul R. LePage

For the past eight years as your Governor, my priority has been to make Maine 
prosperous. I am proud to say that my administration has had some success, but 
there is more that can be done.

Mainers experienced strong, record-setting economic growth in 2018, setting so 
many new records: a record-high number of employers; a record-high number of 
private-sector jobs; record-high revenues for the state; record-low unemployment; 
and the fastest net-earnings growth in New England. Our poverty rate declined to 
the lowest since 2005 with the fewest number of children in poverty in 17 years. 
Maine’s future is the brightest it has been in decades: there are more new businesses, 
more money in your paycheck, and better opportunities for our children. And 
that’s what it’s all about: the future of our state.

We have brought stability to state finances and implemented pro-business, pro-
growth policies across state government. The incoming administration is taking 
on a state government that is vastly improved—both structurally and financially—
from the one I inherited. Therefore, I have suggested to the new administration 
that now is the time to cut taxes by an additional 20 percent.

My administration lowered taxes by 20 percent for more than half-a-million 
Mainers. Cutting taxes for our families has proven to be an excellent policy decision. 
Despite this cut, we are seeing higher revenue in almost every tax category—sales 
and use tax, individual income tax, and corporate income tax. We must always 
remember that the revenue we receive in taxes is due to the hard work of Maine’s 
people. Democrats stated they want to use surplus money to fully fund revenue 
sharing at 5 percent, rather than the 2 percent the towns have received for the 
past 6 years. However, there is no guarantee your local government will cut 
your property taxes by one penny—never mind dollar-for-dollar—if revenue 
sharing is increased.

The people of Maine and the municipal balance sheets would be better off if 
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	   Maine State Senator Dana L. Dow

First, let me thank you for reelecting me to represent you at the State House in 
Augusta. It truly is an honor to serve the constituents of District 13 in the Maine 
Senate. I am eager to get to work so that Maine becomes an even better place to 
make a decent living and raise a family. I would like to provide you with a few 
highlights of the 128th Legislature as well as my vision for the upcoming legislative 
session, which convened in December.

During my time as a member of the Maine Senate, it has been encouraging 
to see the significant progress that has occurred. The State of Maine closed the 
fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2018 with a budget surplus of more than $126 
million and a ‘rainy day fund’ totaling more than $274 million, allowing our state 
to have a better borrowing capacity and long-term financial stability. Following 
years of budget shortfalls and high spending, the significance of these economic 
achievements cannot be overstated. Maine’s unemployment is at an all-time low, 
and the state’s jobless rate has been below four percent for a record 31 consecutive 
months. 

Perhaps the most significant action the 128th Legislature took was passing tax 
conformity. In doing so, we ensured that Maine citizens would not see their tax 
burden increase as a result of the federal changes to the tax code. Additionally, the 
tax conformity legislation included a $300 child credit and increased the property 
tax fairness credit. Serving as Chair of the Taxation Committee at the time, I was 
incredibly proud that both sides of the aisle could come together to benefit the 
Maine people. 

As we head into the 129th Legislature, I have been elected by my colleagues to 
serve as the Senate Republican Leader. I look forward to listening to all viewpoints 
and examining critical legislation with a keen eye as we have a responsibility 
to ensure the best interests of all Maine citizens. I have also been appointed to 
serve on the Marine Resources Committee, which has jurisdiction over the State’s 
commercial marine fisheries management, including the processing and sale of 
marine fish, shellfish and aquaculture. Maine is known around the world for the 
quality of seafood that comes from our coastline. I look forward to working with 
my colleagues to promote our marine industry while also taking the necessary 
steps to protect our natural resources for generations to come.

the state cut income taxes and allowed municipalities to collect property taxes or 
service fees from non-profits to supplement the local property taxes. Everyone 
should contribute to the operation of local community governments.

I encourage you to pay attention to what happens in your municipality and 
in Augusta. So many good people have worked much too hard to achieve our 
current prosperity. We must avoid letting politicians drive Maine’s finances and its 
economy back into the ground. I promise you that I will be watching.
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	   Maine State Representative Michael G. Devin

It is an honor to continue my service as your State Representative. For the last six 
years, I have been working hard on your behalf to provide responsive constituent 
services, be your advocate in Augusta and advance legislation that improves life in 
our district and in our state. 

Over the coming months, we expect to take up over 2,000 separate pieces of 
legislation covering a wide variety of topics. Top priorities include expanding health 
care coverage, bringing relief from the opioid crisis, embracing renewable energy 
and a more resilient power grid, reducing student debt, repairing our roads and 
bridges, increasing protections for workers and consumers, getting prescription 
drug costs under control, protecting the independence of seniors and making sure 
we are caring for our neighbors with disabilities. 

We will also be balancing the state budget for the next two years and will work to 
do so in a way that restores revenue sharing funds for all Maine towns and respects 
the mandate of the voters to properly fund public education. 

This year I am serving once again on the Marine Resources Committee and 
have also joined the Environment and Natural Resources Committee. Through 
these two panels, I will work to improve the quality of our oceans, take steps to 
prepare for and mitigate the effects of climate change, curb our unhealthy reliance 
on plastic bags and containers and protect our marine and natural resources-based 
economies. 

Whether we are dealing with the above issues or any other topic, I will continue 
to work with all of my colleagues, regardless of party affiliation, to make sure we’re 
doing the best work we can for the people of our district and all the people of 
Maine.

Please contact me if I can be of any help or if you want to discuss or testify on 
any legislation. My email is mick@mickdevin.org and my phone number is 975-
3132. I also send out e-newsletters from time to time. Let me know if you would 
like to receive them.

Thank you again for trusting me to be your voice in Augusta. If you have 
comments, questions or if you would like assistance with a state-related matter, 
please feel free to contact me at 287-1505 or dana.dow@legislature.maine.gov. 
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Bristol Area Library Jacqueline Bennett, Librarian

A long-term goal was met in 2018 with the opening of our new used bookstore, 
The Bristol Book Ends. Having a year-round book sale venue has proven to be 
financially beneficial. The library is exploring and considering fresh ideas for 
2019, while continuing our traditional fundraising events.

Have you ever heard about a great new book or movie and then wondered if 
the library owns a copy? Search our collection of 28,691 items at bal.tidewater.
net. 9,165 adults and 671 children visited the library in 2018 and signed out 9,265 
books. Movies were borrowed 1,348 times. It’s not just printed books the library 
offers, patrons also have access to audio books and ebooks through the Maine 
State Library’s downloadable program. Passes to the Farnsworth Museum were 
donated by The Plein Air Group and were used 68 times.

78 people joined the library this past year, giving us a total of 1,536 adult and 
children members. We would love to have you join, as well, but if you choose not 
to, there are still some wonderful ways for you to enjoy the library. We offer free 
access to computers and wireless technology. We have a free magazine table, a 
local genealogy room, and access to Ancestry.com library edition. Programs this 
past year included a “Let’s Talk About It” book discussion group, art displays by 
local artists, knitting for all ages, author and historian visits, story times, and our 
“Read to the Rhythm” summer reading program for children. The library is also a 
drop-off for the local food pantry and a meeting space for local organizations.

This year’s Board of Trustees: Carol Jaeger, President; Judith Hope, Vice 
President; Sue Trouwborst, Recording Secretary; Bonnie Sablinsky, Treasurer; and 
Anne Merrill, Corresponding Secretary. Other trustees are Becky Cooper, Judith 
Cotton, Nancy Douglas, John Marsili, Andrea Powell, Kathleen Riess, Mary Jane 
Smith, Mary Stevens, Laura Sproul Stubbs, and Bruce Swift. 

Finally, a thank you to our loyal patrons, to our hard-working volunteers with 
2,700 hours of service, to those who gave so generously to our annual appeal and 
to the Friends of the Bristol Area Library for supporting children’s programs and 
funding our annual appeal and newsletter. Many thanks to Mary Jane and Buck 
Smith for the donation of the used bookstore building and to the town of Bristol 
for their support of $14,500 in appropriations which is a very crucial part of our 
operating budget.

Community Housing Improvement Project, Inc. 
(CHIP, Inc.) Brittany Gill

“Neighbors helping neighbors keep their homes safe, warm, and dry.”
CHIP, Inc. was founded by Ruth Ives in 1984 as an ecumenical effort to help 

homeowners struggling to keep their homes safe, warm and dry.
CHIP, Inc. began in the Town of Bristol and now serves eleven towns in 

Central and Eastern Lincoln County. During our 2017-2018 fiscal year, CHIP, 
Inc. completed nine home repairs in Bristol, including creating a safe exit, heating 
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system repair, floor repairs, supporting an electric pole, two roof repairs, electrical 
repairs, correcting a septic issue, and providing running water to a household.

Volunteers, contractors and homeowners all help CHIP, Inc. complete home 
repairs. On our annual Community Cares Day in September, over 100 volunteers, 
including more than a dozen Bristol residents, give their time and skills. A group 
of retirees volunteer with CHIP, Inc. year round. And a student youth group visits 
Bristol every summer to volunteer on home repair projects and other community 
service, such as painting the lighthouse and visiting nursing homes. At times, 
homeowners and their families contribute, too. When necessary, CHIP, Inc. hires 
contractors and collaborates with other organizations to complete repair projects.

From November to March CHIP, Inc. offers a one time, one hundred gallon fuel 
assistance donation to people in need. During the 2017-2018 season, CHIP, Inc. 
donated fuel to 32 Bristol households, including 2.5 cords of firewood. A team of 
volunteers split, store, and deliver the firewood.

CHIP, Inc. partners with The Carpenter’s Boat Shop to maintain The CHIP 
Shed, a free furniture and appliance exchange. Donations are stored in The Shed, 
located at The Carpenter’s Boat Shop.

CHIP, Inc. relies on the generosity of this community to support these services. 
Thank you for your contributions.

2017-2018 CHIP, Inc; expenditures:
  Fuel Assistance
    271 Households Total ($73,082)	 32 Bristol Households ($8,138)
  Home Repairs
    71 Households Total ($105,117) 	 9 Bristol Households ($13,618)

The Friends of Colonial Pemaquid Don Loprieno, President

2018 marked the Friends of Colonial Pemaquid’s 25th anniversary as a local, 
all volunteer, 501(c)(3) organization with a proven record of stewardship 
and preservation. For a quarter-century, we have raised funds to assist with 
archeological digs, sponsored a diverse calendar of special events and lectures, 
and obtained grants and other funding for on-site projects, including nearly a 
quarter-million dollars in the late 1990s for the renovation of the Fort House, an 
18th century structure, all at no cost to the taxpayer. We’ll continue to do the same 
and more in 2019.
Outlined by the snow of an early winter storm, the 
Fort House stands silent watch over the grounds 
of Colonial Pemaquid. Constructed in the latter 
part of the 18th century and modified over time, 
it is the only original historic building on the site. 
If it could speak, it would tell of perseverance and 
hardship, of trade between native peoples and 
Europeans, of forts and battles, and eventually 
a clash of very different cultures - all part of life 
along the northern frontier in the 17th and 18th 
centuries. (Photo by Don Loprieno)
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The Fishermen’s Museum John Allan, Treasurer

The Museum opened in 2018 for its 46th season at the Pemaquid Point 
Lighthouse Park and recorded attendance at 32,105, an increase of 2,381 visitors 
over 2017. 

The natural beauty of our Lighthouse Park draws local, regional and international 
travelers to Bristol. Looking over our visitors log during September and October we 
recorded all 50 states as being represented along with Austria, Australia, Belgium, 
Denmark, Dominican Republic, England, Scotland and Wales, Finland, France, 
Germany, Ireland, Northern Ireland, Israel, Italy, New Zealand, Netherlands, 
Switzerland, Spain, Slovakia and Thailand! Oh, and we can’t forget all the visitors 
from neighboring Canada. We are truly a world known destination.

We hope our website www.thefishermensmuseum.org has helped convince some 
travelers with the photo tours through our galleries and the complete history of 
the Lighthouse. Many archival documents and photographs are posted, including 
the wreck of the Angel Gabriel, a listing of all of Maine’s Lighthouses, How to 
Catch a Lobster and much more. 

Our attractive digital interactive map of the Lighthouses of Maine built by Bristol 
resident Dave Svens continues to delight and inform. The lighthouse locations are 
discovered via lights and a touch panel and everyone finds this display surprising 
and educational. It also illustrates to visitors the intricate blend of bays and islands 
along our 3,478 miles of coastline (5,000 miles including islands).

The donations the Museum receives support artifact restoration, exhibit 
maintenance and our small operating budget, with the balance donated to Bristol. 
Our 2018 contribution of $1,856.09 raises the total donated to $264,232.00 since 
1972. 

Admission is free and the Museum is open during normal Lighthouse Park 
hours. Our collection of local fishing heritage includes original tools, traps, 
nets and artifacts, displays, dioramas, ship’s logs and first person accounts of 
shipwrecks, along with rare and unusual items that presents the history of the 
Bristol community to visitors from home and away. 

Our annual scholarship has been awarded since the 1980s and is open to Bristol 
students pursuing careers in marine related activities such as boat building, fishing, 
marine ecology and biological studies, engineering, history or other maritime 
fields. Information about our scholarship and applications can be obtained at the 
Lincoln Academy guidance office or downloaded from our website.

Once again the Board of Directors wishes to express their appreciation to the 
Bristol Park Commission and Park Staff for their support and assistance during 
2018.



90	 ANNUAL REPORT

	   Healthy Kids Leslie Livingston, M.S., Executive Director

Thank you so much, for your support of Healthy Kids. Healthy Kids is the 
Child Abuse Prevention Council of Lincoln County. Our mission is to encourage, 
support and promote the healthy development of our children so that they may 
grow into healthy, contributing members of our community.

We want you to know that Healthy Kids has provided services to an estimated 
120+ Bristol residents (we can count residents attending specific programs and 
professionals attending trainings but we have to estimate use of our in-house and 
online resource center, as well as attendance at community events and usage of our 
help at Christmas). Those utilizing our services include parents, teachers, students, 
children, day care providers, physicians, law enforcement, school board members, 
town council members and general assistance staff, service club members, inmates, 
and other community representatives including Bristol residents who may work 
with children elsewhere in the county and still receive professional training. Those 
services include:
•	 Home visiting personalized parenting support 
•	 Supervised Visitation ordered by DHHS and/or the courts
•	 Educational classes in all four Lincoln County high school health classes 

teaching students about Shaken Baby Syndrome, the impact of drugs and 
alcohol on babies and basic infant care

•	 Parenting groups, workshops and classes 
•	 Alcohol and Kids don’t mix programs for parents 
•	 School and Day Care based child abuse prevention programs and monthly 

parenting tips 
•	 Family Resource Center programs, including playgroups throughout the 

county, pregnant and parenting teen support, lending library, toy exchange, 
Christmas toy drive and free informational resources

•	 Parenting programs at Two Bridges Regional Jail
•	 Mandated Reporting, Safe Sleep, Period of Purple Crying and Strengthening 

Families programs for professionals who work with children
•	 Use of our resource center and education that includes calls and visits to 

our center, educational information on our website, our TV series online on 
LCTV 7, our community events such as free dinners, free toys at Christmas 
through our toy drive etc.

We will continue to provide all of these services to the professionals and families 
in Bristol and again, thank you for your support!
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Lincoln County Television Stephen Popp, Station Manager

Established in 1991, Lincoln County Television & Media Center (LCTV) is 
a non-profit organization that provides training in video production, access to 
production equipment, and manages and distributes videos made or requested 
by residents and organizations in Lincoln County. LCTV programming is seen 
on Spectrum Cable (channel 1301) and Tidewater Telecom’s IPTV (channel 
7). LCTV programming is also streamed live on our website www.lctv.org. 
Additionally, locally produced shows are archived and made available on-demand 
on our website. LCTV also provides an on-air Bulletin Board for local non-profits 
to publicize their events and services. The objective of LCTV is to showcase the 
people, places and events of Lincoln County.

In October 2018 Stephen Popp was hired as Station Manager after Abby Ingraham 
carried the load for an interim year following the death of longtime Executive 
Director Mary Ellen Crowley. The station is now in much better shape financially, 
creatively, and in terms of volunteers. Long-time volunteer Dave Svens has been 
joined by several newer volunteers including Bruce Hilsmeyer, John Underwood, 
Russ Lane, Abby Ingraham, intern Johanna Neeson, and several others. All have 
contributed to Bristol programming which includes Bristol municipal meetings, 
Bristol Consolidated School’s Diversity Week performances, Olde Bristol Days, 
the Liberty Pole restoration, lectures of the Old Bristol Historical Society, and 
many others.

Unfortunately, 2018 also marked a move by Spectrum to move LCTV 
programming from its long standing spot on Channel 7 to Channel 1301. This is 
part of a nationwide move by cable companies to relegate Public Access Stations 
to second (or third) tier status. There are currently bills in the Maine Legislature 
challenging this move. Even more importantly, cable companies are attempting 
to eliminate the “franchise fees” that they are required to pay towns for the use 
of public rights-of-way to string cables on utility poles. Bristol receives $24,000 
per year in franchise fees with over $9,700 appropriated by the town to LCTV for 
the important broadcast services it provides. We believe that free public access 
TV, including coverage of local municipal meetings, is critical in government 
transparency and democracy and its suppression would have a profoundly harmful 
effect on our country.

LCTV would like to take this opportunity to thank the Town of Bristol for their 
continuing financial and volunteer support. We are “Your Station, Your Voice.” 
Please consider becoming an LCTV donor, volunteer, producer or business 
sponsor in 2019!
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The Old Bristol Historical Society
Formed in 2003, the Old Bristol Historical Society is a charitable and educational 

nonprofit corporation whose purpose is to collect, preserve, and share for the 
benefit of the public the artifacts and the oral, documentary, personal, and physical 
histories of our community. By involving local people and institutions it aims to 
foster a sense of community and pride in our collective past and future.

In 2018 OBHS counted 131 paid memberships including 14 new memberships 
and 57 lifetime memberships, our highest count to date. Thanks to the growing 
support of the community, we’ve been able to grow our collections, expand our 
programming, and continue our educational outreach to the community and 
beyond.

This year community members loaned OBHS over 900 images from their 
personal collections that were scanned and added to our Digital Images Archive. 
The society also received a large number of donations from community members 
that included photographic images (including the entire Jack Lane Photography 
collection), 135 postcards, scrapbooks, school books, Bristol High School 
memorabilia, Bristol souvenirs, Footlighter programs and audio reels.

The OBHS sponsored nine public presentations this year which focused on 
specifically local topics. We continued our work with Bristol 5th graders, visiting 
the classroom several times and accompanying students on fieldtrips to Colonial 
Pemaquid and on our annual town wide history tour. OBHS representatives also 
greeted visitors at our booth during Olde Bristol Days and shared Bristol’s history 
with all who were interested. 

This year OBHS launched a new official website (oldbristolhistoricalsociety.org) 
which will greatly improve our ability to display and link to items in our collections. 
We also continued to connect with people through our Facebook page which now 
has over 1200 followers viewing our posts and engaging in conversations about 
Bristol history.

Finally, OBHS was pleased to participate as a sponsor in the fundraising 
campaign to save the Pemaquid Mill, which was successfully purchased by the 
Damariscotta River Association. We look forward to the challenge of helping to 
preserve this historically important landmark.

The current Board of Directors is comprised of Belinda Osier and Chuck Rand, 
Co-Presidents; Don Means, Vice-President & Treasurer; Jay Crooker, Secretary; 
Robert Ives, Mollie Perley, Pamela Rice, Larry Hayter, Margaret Hayter, Joyce 
Prior Thompson, Russ Lane, Rachel Fossett
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The Pemaquid Group of Artists Will Kefauver, President

The Pemaquid Group of Artists celebrated 90 years of continuous exhibition 
during the 2018 season — the last 58 years on the grounds of the beautifully 
maintained Lighthouse Park. One of the oldest artist organizations in Maine, 
PGA currently juries new members from artists residing in area townships within 
Lincoln County. Gallery admission is free for park visitors.

We exhibit a diverse collection of artworks – including oil, pastel, watercolor, 
and acrylic paintings, as well as mixed media, sculpture, ceramics, woodturning 
and marquetry. Exhibiting Artists continually update their work as others sell. 
This year we featured the art of 31 permanent members and one seasonal guest 
artist. We began our season on June 4th with an Opening Reception and from 
the 5th until October 8th we welcomed visitors and gallery patrons on a daily 
basis. We hosted a reception for Gallery Patrons in August and presented plein air 
demonstrations for park visitors on Mondays throughout the season and during 
our Meet the Artist event in July and during Open Lighthouse Day in September.

We continued our support of local arts education through financial donations to 
three area elementary schools, the preschool program, Healthy Kids, and Lincoln 
Academy. We also funded a pass to the Portland Museum of Art, available free to 
Bristol and other Maine residents by reservation through Skidompha Library in 
Damariscotta.

We are grateful to our Patron members, whose loyal enthusiasm mirrors that 
of our artist members, Board of Directors, gallery manager, and knowledgeable 
gallery attendants. Our upgraded facility and the lovely upgrades and landscaping 
done in the park as a whole continues to provide a welcoming environment for 
our clientele.

Our website, www.pemaquidartgallery.com, provides information about our 
artists, events and charitable activities.

Our very active Board is comprised of myself, Will Kefauver, President; Paul 
Sherman, Vice President; Judy Nixon, Treasurer; Kathleen Horst, Secretary; Bill 
Hallett, Claire Hancock, Anne Jackson, Tony Kilburn, and Cindy Spencer. We 
hope you will have the opportunity to visit us at the gallery in June of 2019 when 
we open our doors to begin our 91st year with an all new exhibit of the creative 
work of our new and existing members.

Pemaquid Watershed Association
Pemaquid Watershed Association (PWA) is a non-profit organization, and since 

1966 has followed its mission to conserve the natural resources of the Pemaquid 
peninsula region through land and water stewardship and education. The 47 square 
miles of the Pemaquid River watershed has about 20 square miles in the town of 
Bristol. PWA is dedicated to the continued programming and services it provides 
to all the citizens of Bristol, concentrating on land conservation, accessible trails, 
water quality and education.
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In 2018, some major PWA programs included:
•  Weekly summer water quality monitoring at Pemaquid Beach and Bristol 

Mills swimming hole. 
•  Stewardship and maintenance of the Bristol Recreational Trail.
•  Public access to hiking trails, open space wildlife habitat, and/or shorefront 

protection in Bristol at these Preserves: Bass Rock, Bearce Allen, Cosima’s, Crooked 
Farm, Hatchtown, La Verna, Little Falls Brook, and Moxie Cove. Keyes Woods 
Preserve will open in 2019.

•  Staffing and educational programming at Beachcombers’ Rest Nature Center 
(BRNC) at Pemaquid Beach Park which draws many visitors. Partnering with the 
UME Darling Marine Center, BRNC provides “Touch Tank Tuesdays” to educate 
families about marine life and offers weekly workshops all summer.

•  Partnering with the Town of Bristol’s Shellfish Commission to work toward 
removing conditional closures on the estuary through the Watershed Assessment 
Project. June 2018 storm testing jointly done with PWA and Shellfish volunteers.

•  Offering Bristol property owners an informational packet focusing on pond 
stewardship, best land-use practices to minimize erosion and pollution, boating 
and fishing regulations plus boating safety, lead tackle exchange and loon habitat 
information.

•  The LakeSmart Program: free technical advice and information to waterfront 
residents about property-care best management practices to prevent erosion and 
to safeguard water quality. 

•  The Courtesy Boat Inspection (CBI) program to educate boaters about 
minimizing the risk of spreading invasive aquatic plants through the river and 
pond system.

•  Free guided paddle trips in the region with the PWA Paddlers from May 
through September. 

•  “PWA Ponders” gatherings: annual public get-togethers of pond side land 
owners to share concerns and updates about conservation efforts related to the 
ponds. Keeping the pond water quality healthy and clean benefits recreation and 
protects waterfront property values.

•  Litter and pollution prevention and clean-ups including the Elmer Tarr 
Clean-Up Day.

PWA will soon unify with Damariscotta River Association (DRA) to become a 
stronger conservation organization with a new name. This combined land trust 
will continue to honor the natural ecosystems of our community and pursue the 
protection of land and water resources. It will serve Bristol citizens, both residents 
and visitors, with many nature preserves to enjoy and varied programs to inform. 
We will remain committed to keeping the land and water of our region healthy for 
future generations.
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		  Spectrum Generations
Spectrum Generations’ history spans over four decades of helping older and 

disabled adults age in place by providing the highest quality of life possible 
through at-home and community-based services. Spectrum Generations’ mission 
is to promote the life-long learning, health, wellness, nutrition, community 
engagement, and the social well-being of all older and disabled adults. Spectrum 
Generations offers programs and services catering to the individual needs of 
older and/or disabled adults throughout six counties (Lincoln, Kennebec, Knox, 
Sagadahoc, Somerset, Waldo), and the towns of Brunswick and Harpswell. 

We provide services to older and disabled individuals, often those who are 
homebound and may not have any additional natural supports. Our counselors 
are available to meet with people in the community, in our centers, or in an 
individual’s home; we find this accessibility to care services greatly increases the 
individual’s ability to remain aging in place. Most of our services are also offered 
for free through support; there are very few self-pay services.

In the past year, Spectrum Generations has helped the Town of Bristol in the 
following ways:
•	 Through our Meals on Wheels program, we have served 971 meals to 6 

homebound older adults
•	 We provided services to 116 unduplicated Bristol residents
•	 Aging and Disability Resource Specialists provided 145 hours of outreach 

counseling on topics including elder abuse, prescription drug coverage, and 
long-term care
•	 Additionally, 7 caregivers were able to receive respite services, aiding in 

the balancing act of working and taking care of an older or disabled loved one
Spectrum Generations continues to pursue long-range objectives including 

enhancing collaborations with other healthcare providers, such as hospitals and 
health systems, to address social determinants of health. Our efforts focus on 
improving our consumers’ health, expanding outreach efforts for people living 
in rural/isolated areas, and bolstering collaborative efforts that support older 
individuals living in their own homes (we will use new technologies, social 
networking, life management skills, and expansive volunteering to accomplish 
these plans). 

We thank our valued staff, dedicated volunteers, and community partners for 
our many successes! We could not do all that we do without their support.
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Bristol K-12 Education 
Craig Jurgensen, Superintendent of Schools, AOS 93
David Kolodin, Chair – Bristol Consolidated School Board

Looking back at 2018 (particularly as your new school superintendent), I am 
reminded that our schools must always be looking forward as we prepare our 
students to be “21st century learners” with the promise of understanding and 
addressing their aspirations, as well as making them “future ready” lifelong 
learners. We know that critical thinking, cooperation, communication, and 
creativity are essential for our students to succeed. To ensure our instructional 
practice includes these foundational skills, teachers at all levels and throughout 
all of our schools continually review and revise their curriculum and teaching 
practices. To oversee and coordinate this important work, the AOS hired Ann 
Hassett as Director of Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment. Ms. Hassett 
was most recently the Nobleboro Principal. She brings a wealth of experience in 
educational leadership, curriculum, and instruction to this important position. 
Ms. Hassett also coordinates and oversees several state and federal grant programs 
and is instrumental in our transition to a robust standards-based reporting 
system.  Additionally, Ann has reached out to, and been well received by, the staff 
and administration at Lincoln Academy. Fostering this relationship is critical to 
ensure curriculum articulation and an appreciation of the work done by Bristol 
Consolidated School staff to prepare all students for success in high school. 

There were 82 Bristol students attending secondary school programs. These 
included Lincoln Academy, Boothbay Region H.S. and Maine Connections 
Academy. 

School budgets provide the backdrop for telling the story of every school. How 
a school appropriates and uses its available funding translates to and defines what 
is important to the administration, teachers, support staff and the community 
because it represents what these groups want and need to provide for their 
students. Budget preparation is a complicated process.  From one budget year to 
another, school administrators work with local officials and community members 
to ensure that each school budget is adequate, equitable, and predictable and that 
it is developed with input from all stakeholders in a clear and transparent process.  
School Board members Darin Carlucci, David Kolodin (Chair), Cerina Leeman, 
Sarah Mathieson, and Bonnie Sablinsky have been instrumental in this work. 
Ms. Sablinsky’s additional role on the AOS 93 Board supports the interests of all 
students and community members. 

Our work together in the schools and communities is complex, sometimes 
challenging, and yet unquestionably essential and rewarding. Together we make a 
positive difference in the lives of our students, their families, and the communities 
in which we live and work. We are increasingly coming together as a learning 
community to engage in expanding our shared commitment for improving the 
education we provide to our children. I encourage you to visit the AOS 93 website 
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(www.aos93.org) for current news and information about our students and 
school activities, as well as school policies, School Committee meeting agendas 
and minutes. This website will also provide you with links to individual school 
websites and to useful information from numerous resources. Whenever you have 
a question or wish to become involved in your community school, please call me 
or a member of the Bristol School Board.

Bristol Consolidated School Jennifer Ribeiro, Principal

Bristol Consolidated School continues to grow and develop with our students. We 
hired five new teachers for this school year and three new Educational Technicians. 
New faces lead to fresh ideas and a school culture that is dynamic. We have a strong 
academic program for Preschool through 8th grade and are able to provide both 
enrichment and remedial programming for students. Students can participate in 
choral groups, band ensembles, art buddies, yearbook club, a civil rights team, a 
book club, and an after-school learning lab to name a few! In addition to the co-
curricular choices we offer at least seven athletic teams for students to participate 
in. Our students benefit from many community partnerships which enhance the 
offerings at school. We are fortunate to have the YMCA provide their after school 
program at BCS, FARMS at the Y works with our students throughout the year, the 
Educator-in-Residence program provided a Kieve educator for eight weeks this 
winter, and the DRA and Bristol area historical groups work with our students. We 
have been provided with resources and support from generous groups that have 
had an educational impact including the Perloffs’ donation of a 3D printer and the 
Silvers’ donation of RoboPots. The more I write, the more examples come to mind. 
These partnerships are special treasures that make the Bristol School experience 
so rewarding for students and staff. 

Our educational focus over the past few years has been on supporting 
student growth and helping students develop grit and perseverance. We provide 
instruction that encourages students to make growth on academic standards and 
track their progress over time. Focusing on progress with standards ensures that 
all the students are challenged appropriately throughout their school experience. 
BCS teachers, in conjunction with the entire AOS, are implementing a standards-
based reporting system this year and hope to have a tool that meets the needs of 
students, parents, and teachers by the end of the school year. Our curriculum and 
instructional materials are evaluated to ensure they are relevant. This is our second 
year with a new K-4 math program and we are focusing on the 5-8 math curricular 
update and revisions. Collaborations with Lincoln Academy are important when 
discussing our programs to ensure the middle school transition to high school is 
as successful as possible.

In meeting the needs of all students, we have many special programs available 
to our students. BCS hosts the Compass Program which is a positive behavioral 
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support program for special education students from Bristol, Nobleboro, Jefferson 
and South Bristol. This is a regional program that is financially supported by 
all sending schools. This is our third year and we have had between seven and 
eleven students participate annually. Students benefit from regular classroom 
instruction, social skills instruction, and special education programming based 
on their Individual Education Plans. We also support the Pathways Education 
Center at Jefferson Village School. That program is funded similarly to Compass 
and provides services to special education students who have a need for Life Skills 
programming. BCS has had between one and four students attend this program 
annually.

The Bristol School is an important resource to the community. The physical 
plant continues to be monitored to ensure timely upgrades and maintenance. This 
past year the kitchen got a new walk-in fridge/freezer, the roof had solar panels 
installed and the parking lot was rebuilt! It was a very busy spring and summer. 
Looking ahead our facility needs will focus on safety and security. 

Lastly, we continually seek ways to connect with parents and the community. 
We work to keep Bristol School a welcoming place for parents as well as students. 
The Parent-Teacher Organization and the Bristol Boosters continue to support 
student programming. School events are sponsored to increase school spirit 
and community involvement including Bristol YMCA night, Devil Pride Week, 
Diversity Week and the annual Thanksgiving meal served by our kitchen staff to 
students and parents. The Bristol Masonic Lodge has sponsored their fourth Bikes 
for Books program this year which provides 18 new bikes and helmets to students 
as a result of their reading efforts! Our next endeavor is planning for a new softball 
field on school grounds. A fundraising committee has formed and had its first 
successful event this past fall. We hope you enjoy one of our many upcoming 
events that are organized to support all of these programs for BCS students. 

These are the many examples of the wonderful things that go on at Bristol 
School. Not only are the students learning to be well rounded, responsible school 
community members, they are performing at high levels on state assessments. 
Last year Bristol Consolidated School students continued to score above the state 
average in English Language Arts, Mathematics and Science. We have a lot to 
celebrate!

We greatly appreciate your continued support of our PreK - grade 12 learners. 
Thank you!
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Bristol K-12 Education Budget
	
	 FY19 Budget	 Proposed	 % Diff
	 7/1/18 - 6/30/19	 7/1/19-6/30/20	
Revenues	 	 	
LOCAL APPROPRIATION: REQUIRED	 (2,873,148.82)	 (3,103,831.97)	 8.03% 
LOCAL APPROPRIATION: ADDITIONAL LOCAL	 (1,243,372.49)	 (1,741,208.28)	 40.04% 
MISC. SALES & REFUNDS (MSMA, ETC.)	 0.00 	 0.00 	 0.00% 
STATE SUBSIDY	 (219,525.65)	 (307,759.78)	 40.19% 
FUND BEGINNING BALANCE	 (225,000.00)	 (109,426.23)	 (51.37%)
Total General Fund Revenues	 (4,561,046.96)	 (5,262,226.26)	 15.37% 
Regular Instruction	 	 	
TEACHER SALARY	 823,083.44 	 858,387.55 	 4.29% 
ED TECH SALARY	 48,290.55 	 50,812.56 	 5.22% 
SUBSTITUTE SALARY	 17,500.00 	 17,500.00 	 0.00% 
TUTOR SALARY	 1,000.00 	 1,000.00 	 0.00% 
HW Learning Lab Stipend	 5,800.00 	 5,800.00 	 0.00% 
HW Learning Lab Benefits	 124.70 	 136.30 	 9.30% 
TEACHER BENEFITS	 14,464.14 	 14,886.94 	 2.92% 
ED TECH BENEFITS	 2,044.00 	 1,576.02 	 (22.90%)
SUBSTITUTE BENEFITS	 390.25 	 378.25 	 (3.07%)
TUTOR BENEFITS	 21.50 	 85.50 	 297.67% 
TEACHER HEALTH INSURANCE	 168,277.32 	 167,843.06 	 (0.26%)
ED TECH HEALTH INSURANCE	 19,544.60 	 29,549.40 	 51.19% 
HW Learning Lab Retirement	 229.68 	 241.28 	 5.05% 
TEACHER RETIREMENT	 32,676.41 	 34,177.24 	 4.59% 
ED TECH RETIREMENT	 1,257.01 	 1,676.40 	 33.36% 
SUBSTITUTE RETIREMENT	 693.00 	 728.00 	 5.05% 
TUTOR RETIREMENT	 39.60 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
TEACHER TUITION	 5,161.00 	 2,800.00 	 (45.75%)
TEACHER-CASH IN LIEU	 2,500.00 	 2,500.00 	 0.00% 
COPIER LEASE (TEACHER USE)	 5,780.70 	 5,780.70 	 0.00% 
INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES	 27,890.61 	 35,915.86 	 28.77% 
INSTRUCTIONAL TEXTBOOKS	 3,840.00 	 4,287.00 	 11.64% 
INSTRUCTIONAL DUES/FEES	 490.00 	 505.00 	 3.06% 
PRE K TEACHER SALARY	 54,008.40 	 55,361.42 	 2.51% 
PRE K ED TECH SALARY	 19,567.45 	 43,067.92 	 120.10% 
PRE K TEACHER BENEFITS	 1,029.15 	 1,040.82 	 1.13% 
PRE K ED TECH BENEFITS	 426.43 	 897.69 	 110.51% 
PRE K TEACHER HEALTH INS	 8,795.04 	 8,864.88 	 0.79% 
PRE K ED TECH HEALTH INS	 9,772.30 	 19,699.60 	 101.59% 
PRE K TEACHER RETIREMENT	 2,144.13 	 2,197.85 	 2.51% 
PRE K ED TECH RETIREMENT	 776.83 	 1,752.62 	 125.61% 
PRE K TEACHER CASH IN LIEU	 0.00 	 0.00 	 0.00% 
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PRE-K PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT/TRAINING	 300.00 	 300.00 	 0.00% 
PRE K INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES	 817.87 	 1,183.80 	 44.74% 
SECONDARY OUT OF STATE PUB/PRIV TUITION	 0.00 	 0.00 	 0.00% 
SECONDARY PRIVATE TUITION	 814,369.27 	 1,038,348.00 	 27.50% 
SECONDARY PRIVATE INSURED VALUE	 49,203.36 	 62,300.70 	 26.62% 
SEC REG ED CONTINGENCY	 24,146.50 	 24,146.50 	 0.00% 
SEC ALT ED TUITION (LA)	 3,154.89 	 3,154.89 	 0.00% 
CAL Share	 38,469.02 	 37,907.72 	 (1.46%)
G&T SUPPLIES	 0.00 	 0.00 	 0.00% 
Total Regular Instruction	 2,208,079.15 	 2,536,791.47 	 14.89% 
Special Education Instruction	 	 	
SPED TEACHER SALARY	 71,355.70 	 64,463.07 	 (9.66%)
SPED ED TECH SALARY	 97,727.18 	 102,052.16 	 4.43% 
SPED Substitute Teacher	 2,500.00 	 2,500.00 	 0.00% 
SPED TUTOR SALARY	 1,000.00 	 1,000.00 	 0.00% 
SPED TEACHER BENEFITS	 1,360.01 	 1,200.10 	 (11.76%)
SPED ED TECH BENEFITS	 2,160.25 	 2,192.17 	 1.48% 
SPED SUBSTITUTE BENEFITS	 53.75 	 58.75 	 9.30% 
SPED TUTOR BENEFITS	 21.50 	 23.50 	 9.30% 
SPED TEACHER HEALTH INS	 13,084.13 	 8,864.88 	 (32.25%)
SPED ED TECH HEALTH INS	 9,772.30 	 9,849.80 	 0.79% 
SPED TEACHER RETIREMENT	 2,832.67 	 2,559.18 	 (9.65%)
SPED ED TECH RETIREMENT	 3,879.77 	 4,190.42 	 8.01% 
SPED SUB RETIREMENT	 99.00 	 104.00 	 5.05% 
SPED TUTOR RETIREMENT	 39.60 	 41.60 	 5.05% 
SPED TEACHER TUITION	 2,700.00 	 2,700.00 	 0.00% 
SPED ED TECH TUITION	 2,400.00 	 2,400.00 	 0.00% 
SPED ED TECH CASH IN LIEU	 3,350.47 	 3,500.00 	 4.46% 
SPED CONF/PROF SERVICES	 1,500.00 	 1,500.00 	 0.00% 
SPED SUPPLIES	 950.00 	 1,650.00 	 73.68% 
SPED TEXTBOOKS	 800.00 	 800.00 	 0.00% 
SPCL PLCMNT SEC ET COST	 72,267.00 	 95,718.00 	 32.45% 
SPED SEC PUBLIC TUITION	 17,000.00 	 17,000.00 	 0.00% 
SPED ELEM PRIVATE TUITION	 0.00 	 79,200.00 	
SPED SEC PRIVATE TUITION	 214,000.00 	 161,000.00 	 (24.77%)
PEC SHARE	 51,876.74 	 56,052.05 	 8.05% 
REGIONAL PROGRAM SERVICES (WISCASSET)	 0.00 	 31,943.03 	
COMPASS SHARE	 59,874.19 	 74,333.18 	 24.15% 
SPED ADMIN COST	 27,266.63 	 28,686.92 	 5.21% 
OTH PURCH SVCS: ONLINE SUB	 645.86 	 834.88 	 29.27% 
SPED SOCIAL WORKER SALARY	 67,366.78 	 70,435.54 	 4.56% 
SPED SOCIAL WORKER BENEFITS	 1,262.92 	 1,304.63 	 3.30% 
SPED SOCIAL WORKER HEALTH IN	 21,445.44 	 21,616.08 	 0.80% 

	 FY19 Budget	 Proposed	 % Diff
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SPED SOCIAL WORKER RETIREMEN	 2,674.46 	 2,796.29 	 4.56% 
SPED PSYCH ELEMENTARY	 13,555.57 	 18,479.80 	 36.33% 
Shared Psych - Secondary	 3,000.00 	 3,000.00 	 0.00% 
SPEECH TEACHER SALARY	 34,220.25 	 42,261.32 	 23.50% 
SPEECH TEACHER BENEFITS	 693.60 	 782.77 	 12.86% 
SPEECH TEACHER HEALTH INSURANCE	 0.00 	 12,969.65 	
SPEECH TEACHER RETIREMENT	 0.00 	 1,677.77 	
SPEECH TEACHER TUITION	 1,100.00 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
SPEECH THERAPIST - CIL	 500.02 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
SPEECH CONFERENCES	 300.00 	 300.00 	 0.00% 
SPEECH TRAVEL/MILEAGE	 150.00 	 150.00 	 0.00% 
SPEECH SUPPLIES	 760.00 	 615.00 	 (19.08%)
SPED OT ELEMENTARY	 17,920.10 	 27,418.36 	 53.00% 
SPED OT SECONDARY	 586.06 	 868.50 	 48.19% 
SPED PT ELEMENTARY	 9,495.02 	 16,571.88 	 74.53% 
Sub Total Special Education	 835,546.97 	 977,665.28 	 17.01% 
CTE Instruction	 	 	
SEC TUIT ROCKLAND VOC SCHL	 3,800.00 	 100.00 	 (97.37%)
Total CTE Instruction	 3,800.00 	 100.00 	 (97.37%)
Other Instruction	 	 	
SUMSCHOOL TEACHER PAY	 4,500.00 	 4,000.00 	 (11.11%)
SUMSCHOOL TEACHER BENEFITS	 110.25 	 94.00 	 (14.74%)
SUMSCHOOL TEACHER RETIREMENT	 178.20 	 166.40 	 (6.62%)
SUMSCHOOL SUPPLIES	 250.00 	 250.00 	 0.00% 
CO-CURR STIPENDS	 6,728.00 	 7,000.00 	 4.04% 
CO-CURR STIPEND BENEFITS	 332.40 	 356.70 	 7.31% 
CO-CURR STIPEND RETIREMENT	 146.52 	 162.24 	 10.73% 
CO-CURR PROF SERVICES (KIEVE)	 5,000.00 	 5,000.00 	 0.00% 
CO-CURR MUSICAL EQUIP MAINT	 1,200.00 	 1,200.00 	 0.00% 
CO-CURR OTHER SERVICES	 12,087.00 	 12,395.50 	 2.55% 
CO-CURR SUPPLIES	 2,775.00 	 2,775.00 	 0.00% 
CO-CURR FIELD TRIP TRANS	 9,198.00 	 10,544.00 	 14.63% 
EX-CURR STIPENDS	 29,537.00 	 29,911.00 	 1.27% 
EX-CURR STIP BENEFITS	 2,168.74 	 2,252.36 	 3.86% 
EX-CURR STIP RETIREMENT	 190.56 	 195.32 	 2.50% 
GAME OFFICIALS PAY	 7,400.00 	 7,400.00 	 0.00% 
EX-CURR SUPPLIES	 5,000.00 	 5,500.00 	 10.00% 
EX-CURR DUES/FEES	 1,700.00 	 1,700.00 	 0.00% 
EX-CURR TRIPS	 11,340.00 	 12,320.00 	 8.64% 
Total Other Instruction	 99,841.67 	 103,222.52 	 3.39% 
Student and Staff Support	 	 	
GUIDANCE COUNSELOR SALARY	 39,053.21 	 41,432.67 	 6.09% 
GUIDANCE COUNSELOR BENEFITS	 767.43 	 797.07 	 3.86% 

	 FY19 Budget	 Proposed	 % Diff
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GUIDANCE COUNSELOR HI	 12,867.36 	 12,969.60 	 0.79% 
GUIDANCE COUNSELOR RETIREMNT	 1,550.41 	 1,644.88 	 6.09% 
NURSING HEALTH SRVCS	 50,476.57 	 56,139.07 	 11.22% 
HEALTH EQUIPMENT MAINT/REPAIR	 250.00 	 250.00 	 0.00% 
HEALTH SUPPLIES	 1,275.28 	 1,905.28 	 49.40% 
HEALTH PERIODICALS	 170.00 	 170.00 	 0.00% 
SEC TUTOR SALARY	 1,000.00 	 1,000.00 	 0.00% 
SEC TUTOR BENEFITS	 83.50 	 85.50 	 2.40% 
SEC TUTOR RETIREMENT	 0.00 	 0.00 	 0.00% 
ASSESSMENT FOR CURR ADMIN	 7,782.76 	 5,583.82 	 (28.25%)
STF DEVELOPMNT STIP	 2,500.00 	 2,500.00 	 0.00% 
STF DEVELOPMNT STIP BENEFITS	 53.75 	 58.75 	 9.30% 
STF DEVELOPMNT STIP RETIREMENT	 99.00 	 104.00 	 5.05% 
STAFF DEVELOPMENT - SCHOOL	 10,350.00 	 10,250.00 	 (0.97%)
STAFF DEVELOPMENT - SHARED	 5,631.26 	 5,588.07 	 (0.77%)
STF DEVELOPMNT TRAVEL	 1,000.00 	 1,000.00 	 0.00% 
LIBRARY ET SALARY	 12,244.23 	 12,613.30 	 3.01% 
LIBRARY ET BENEFITS	 267.00 	 268.48 	 0.55% 
LIBRARY ET RETIREMENT	 486.10 	 520.60 	 7.10% 
LIBRARY ET - CIL	 499.25 	 500.00 	 0.15% 
LIBRARY PROF SRVCS	 379.00 	 376.00 	 (0.79%)
LIBRARY SUPPLIES/AV	 2,933.39 	 1,181.91 	 (59.71%)
LIBRARY BOOKS/PERIODICALS	 4,470.00 	 4,360.00 	 (2.46%)
LIBRARY DUES/FEES	 600.00 	 600.00 	 0.00% 
TECHNOLOGY ET SALARY	 55,966.08 	 57,614.08 	 2.94% 
TECHNOLOGY ET BENEFITS	 1,063.41 	 1,080.24 	 1.58% 
TECHNOLOGY ET HI	 9,772.20 	 9,849.84 	 0.79% 
TECHNOLOGY ET RETIREMENT	 2,221.85 	 2,287.28 	 2.94% 
TECH CONF/WORKSHOPS	 0.00 	 1,200.00 	
AOS IT SUPPORT (KJ)	 5,051.44 	 5,253.04 	 3.99% 
COMP HRDWRE MAINT REPAIR	 5,500.00 	 5,000.00 	 (9.09%)
INSTRUCT ONLINE SUBSCRIPT - SCHOOL	 1,200.00 	 9,628.00 	 702.33% 
INST ONLINE SUBSCRIPTION - SHARED	 7,002.00 	 6,232.00 	 (11.00%)
COMP SUPPLIES	 2,500.00 	 3,000.00 	 20.00% 
COMP HRDWRE PURCHASE	 26,000.00 	 25,886.38 	 (0.44%)
COMP SFTWRE PURCH	 11,334.00 	 6,182.00 	 (45.46%)
TESTING MATLS - SCHOOL	 0.00 	 0.00 	
TESTING MATLS - SHARED	 1,998.00 	 2,279.00 	 14.06% 
SHARED WELLNESS COMMITTEE	 500.00 	 500.00 	 0.00% 
EMPLOYEE VACCINATIONS	 980.00 	 980.00 	 0.00% 
Total Student/Staff Support	 287,878.48 	 298,870.86 	 3.82% 
System Administration	 	 	
SCHL BRD STIPEND	 2,200.00 	 2,200.00 	 0.00% 
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SCHL BRD STIP BENEFITS	 183.70 	 188.10 	 2.40% 
SCHL BRD LIABILITY INS	 1,700.00 	 1,800.00 	 5.88% 
SCHL BRD ADVERTISING	 650.00 	 938.69 	 44.41% 
SCHL BRD DUES/FEES	 1,500.00 	 1,403.20 	 (6.45%)
SCHL BRD CONFERENCES	 560.00 	 560.00 	 0.00% 
SCHL BRD AUDITOR SRVCS	 5,000.00 	 5,000.00 	 0.00% 
SCHL BRD LEGAL FEES	 2,500.00 	 2,500.00 	 0.00% 
ASSESSMENT FOR ADMIN (SUPT)	 52,342.94 	 52,302.74 	 (0.08%)
ASSESSMENT FOR FISCAL SVCS: SUPT OFFICE	 42,440.13 	 45,205.06 	 6.51% 
Total System Administration	 109,076.77 	 112,097.79 	 2.77% 
School Administration	 	 	
PRINCIPAL SALARY	 94,421.00 	 95,337.84 	 0.97% 
ADMIN ASST SALARY	 36,119.52 	 66,426.00 	 83.91% 
OFFICE AIDE SALARY	 6,370.00 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
HEAD TEA STIPEND	 3,000.00 	 3,000.00 	 0.00% 
SUB CALLER STIPEND	 1,200.00 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
HD TEA STIP BENEFITS	 64.50 	 70.50 	 9.30% 
SUB CALL BENEFITS	 25.80 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
PRINCIPAL BENEFITS	 1,736.36 	 1,740.41 	 0.23% 
ADMIN ASST BENEFITS	 2,977.00 	 5,424.87 	 82.23% 
OFFICE AIDE BENEFITS	 554.23 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
PRINCIPAL HI	 24,126.24 	 24,318.00 	 0.79% 
ADMIN ASST HI	 0.00 	 19,699.64 	
STIPEND BENEFITS	 118.80 	 124.80 	 5.05% 
MPERS Retirement	 47.52 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT	 3,748.51 	 3,784.91 	 0.97% 
ADMIN ASST - CIL	 1,000.23 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
OTHER BENEFITS: REGULAR EMPLOYEES	 149.96 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
PRINCIPAL PD	 1,200.00 	 1,200.00 	 0.00% 
SHARED POWERSCHOOL STIP	 777.00 	 1,049.00 	 35.01% 
Powerschool/Infosnap Software Rental	 0.00 	 4,485.00 	
PRINCIPAL COPIER LEASE	 5,780.70 	 5,780.70 	 0.00% 
PRINCIPAL PRINTING	 400.00 	 400.00 	 0.00% 
PRINCIPAL TRAVEL	 250.00 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
PRINCIPAL PD TRAVEL	 0.00 	 0.00 	
PRINCIPAL SUPPLIES/POSTAGE	 3,400.00 	 3,400.00 	 0.00% 
PRINCIPAL DUES/FEES	 600.00 	 600.00 	 0.00% 
Total School Administration	 188,067.37 	 236,841.67 	 25.93% 
Transportation and Buses	 	 	
BUS MONITOR SALARY	 11,000.00 	 11,000.00 	 0.00% 
BUS MONITOR BENEFITS	 951.50 	 940.50 	 (1.16%)
BUS MONITOR RETIREMENT	 0.00 	 0.00 	 0.00% 
CONTRACTED TRANS K-12	 354,463.20 	 406,719.20 	 14.74% 
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	 FY19 Budget	 Proposed	 % Diff
SPED ELEMENTARY DRIVER	 3,500.00 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
SPED SECONDARY DRIVER	 7,500.00 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
SPED ELEM DRIVER BENEFITS	 451.15 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
SPED SEC DRVR BENEFITS	 966.75 	 0.00 	 (100.00%)
SPED ELEMENTARY TRANS	 3,000.00 	 25,000.00 	 733.33% 
SPED SEC TRANS	 6,509.13 	 75,000.00 	 1052.23% 
SEC VOC TRANS	 18,876.61 	 17,393.11 	 (7.86%)
Total Transportation and Buses	 407,218.34 	 536,052.81 	 31.64% 
Facilities and Maintenance	 	 	
SHARED CHO STIPEND	 349.00 	 300.00 	 (14.04%)
DISPOSAL SERVICES	 5,900.00 	 12,000.00 	 103.39% 
PROPERTY INSURANCE	 8,321.14 	 7,209.48 	 (13.36%)
TELEPHONE	 4,100.00 	 4,000.00 	 (2.44%)
FURNITURE - NON INSTRUCTIONAL	 4,639.80 	 4,000.00 	 (13.79%)
FURNITURE - INSTRUCTIONAL	 6,961.00 	 15,759.70 	 126.40% 
ELECTRICITY	 32,000.00 	 31,000.00 	 (3.13%)
HEATING FUEL-PROPANE	 39,000.00 	 44,725.68 	 14.68% 
MISC BUILDING/UTILITY FEES	 400.00 	 400.00 	 0.00% 
PRINCIPAL - REVOLVING RENO FUND	 0.00 	 0.00 	 0.00% 
CUSTODIAN SALARY	 109,220.80 	 113,765.60 	 4.16% 
SUMMER/SUB CUSTODIAN PAY	 5,000.00 	 5,000.00 	 0.00% 
CUSTODIAN BENEFITS	 11,651.27 	 12,074.11 	 3.63% 
SUMMER/SUB CUSTODIAN BENEFITS	 553.00 	 548.00 	 (0.90%)
CUSTODIAN HEALTH INSURANCE	 51,130.08 	 49,249.20 	 (3.68%)
CUSTODIAN WORKSHOPS	 800.00 	 800.00 	 0.00% 
CUSTODIAN TRAVEL	 475.00 	 475.00 	 0.00% 
CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES	 16,500.00 	 16,500.00 	 0.00% 
BLDG MAINTENANCE SERVICES	 39,675.00 	 49,822.00 	 25.58% 
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES	 16,021.00 	 22,521.00 	 40.57% 
GROUNDS MAINT SERVICES	 8,250.00 	 10,250.00 	 24.24% 
CONTRACTED MOWING	 4,300.00 	 4,300.00 	 0.00% 
CONTRACTED SNOWPLOWING	 2,500.00 	 4,000.00 	 60.00% 
SCHOOL EQUIP REPAIR SERVICES	 0.00 	 0.00 	 0.00% 
SHARED SAFETY COMMITTEE	 250.00 	 250.00 	 0.00% 
CAPITAL ENHANCE & IMPROVEMENT	 28,922.00 	 32,722.00 	 13.14% 
Total Facilities Maintenance	 396,919.09 	 441,671.77 	 11.28% 
All Other Expend., incl. Lunch	 	 	
SCHOOL LUNCH MONITOR	 3,461.63 	 3,600.09 	 4.00% 
SCHOOL LUNCH MONITOR BENEFITS	 299.42 	 307.81 	 2.80% 
FOOD SERVICE GF SUBSIDY	 20,858.07 	 15,004.19 	 (28.07%)
FOOD SERVICE EQUIPMENT >5k	 0.00 	 0.00 	
Total All Other Expenditures	 24,619.12 	 18,912.09 	 (23.18%)
Total Expense	 4,561,046.96 	 5,262,226.26 	 15.37% 
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AOS 93 Enrollment (October 2018)

ELEMENTARY Pre‑K K 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th TOTAL

Bristol 14 20 16 19 21 15 25 17 19 23 189
Open Enrollment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Bristol Total 14 20 16 19 21 15 25 17 20 23 190
Bremen 4 6 3 5 5 12 5 7 6 53
Damariscotta 20 20 19 20 21 13 14 24 16 167
Newcastle 13 10 10 19 16 22 23 28 25 166
Open Enrollment 3 0 3 3 1 3 6 2 21
Superintendent’s Agree 1 1 1 1 2
Public Tuition 1 0 2 3 2 4 5 6 8 31
GSB, CSD Total 41 36 37 50 46 55 54 65 58 442
Jefferson 17 17 19 15 29 16 23 22 19 177
Open Enrollment 1 1 2
Superintendent’s Agree 3 2 1 4 0 1 1 2 0 14
Jefferson Total 20 19 20 19 29 17 25 24 20 193
Nobleboro 15 6 14 14 12 14 17 17 18 127
Open Enrollment 0 3 1 0 3 0 2 3 2 14
CAL (from out of NCS)
Public Tuition
Superintendent’s Agree
Nobleboro Total 15 9 15 14 15 14 19 20 20 141
South Bristol 3 3 4 5 4 11 3 6 7 46
Superintendent’s Agree
Open Enrollment 2 2 2 3 1 6 0 3 1 20
So. Bristol Total 5 5 6 8 5 17 3 9 8 66
TOTAL ELEMENTARY 14 101 85 97 112 110 128 118 138 129 1032

SECONDARY ENROLLMENT and home school 9th 10th 11th 12th TOTAL
Bremen 11 10 5 10 36
Bristol 20 18 24 20 82
Damariscotta 22 17 20 34 93
Jefferson 25 23 30 24 102
Newcastle 17 15 27 24 83
Nobleboro 18 16 15 24 73
South Bristol 10 4 7 6 27
TOTAL SECONDARY 123 103 128 142 496

AOS No. 93 Total K-12  1528
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Lincoln Academy Nancy Starmer, Interim Head of School

Greetings from Lincoln Academy, where our second trimester is in full swing. 
Classes are about halfway through their academic year, and winter sports season 
is at its peak. My name is Nancy Starmer, and I am currently serving as Lincoln 
Academy’s Interim Head of School. After working for many years first as a public 
school teacher, then as an independent school teacher and administrator in 
Massachusetts and Pennsylvania, I came out of retirement to serve as a consultant 
and now Interim Head at LA. The experience has been fascinating and rewarding. 
This is a wonderful school, full of dedicated teachers who are not only committed 
to serving our wide range of students well but who are also active citizens of 
their local communities. Those connections, and the clear investment the local 
communities have in the success of our school, are qualities I’ve come to appreciate 
most about Lincoln Academy. Students, faculty, staff, alumni, and parents share a 
deep love for this place, and that shines through every aspect of the school.

Our biggest news of 2018-19 is that after an extensive national search the LA 
Board of Trustees has hired Jeff Burroughs to be Lincoln Academy’s next Head 
of School. Jeff, who is currently the Assistant Head of School for Academics at St. 
Johnsbury Academy in Vermont (also a Town Academy) will take the reins on July 
1, 2019. Before moving to St. Johnsbury, he and his wife Melissa spent several years 
at the Hyde School in Bath. Thanks to these roles Jeff has experience in both the 
Town Academy model and life in midcoast Maine, and all are looking forward to 
having him here at LA.

In the meantime, we are having a full and active year. In September we welcomed 
a large freshman class of 151 students from 21 sending towns and 14 countries 
around the world, bringing our total student population to 560. Our new students 
came in on a high note: 2018 was an excellent year for LA sports, arts, academics, 
and extracurriculars. The girls tennis team won their first ever state championship, 
and the boys lacrosse and boys cross country teams were both state runners up. 
Many teams were also honored with Good Sportsmanship Awards this year, 
demonstrating that LA athletes continue to uphold a tradition of excellence both 
on and off the field.

LA students also excelled in the arts in 2018, and this year continue to do so. 
The Wind Ensemble won Gold at New York City’s WorldStrides Heritage Festival 
in April, and 67 student musicians this year--a record number--have qualified for 
District, All-State, and All-State Jazz Honors Festivals. Though the 2019 season is 
just beginning, LA’s theater program has won the Regional One Act Competition 
11 out of the last 12 years, including in 2018. In visual arts students have over a 
dozen courses to choose from in drawing, painting, ceramics, metal sculpture, 
printmaking, and more, and in June 2018, as in previous years, a significant number 
of graduating seniors continued on to major or minor in visual or performing arts 
at universities, art schools, and conservatories.

Each year more than 150 students take at least 1 AP course at LA, many taking 
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multiple courses and sitting multiple exams. 2018 was no exception. Our teachers 
mentor students wishing to do independent studies in a wide variety of subjects. 
This year independent studies include sustainable agriculture; multivariable 
calculus; bassoon, piano, and a number of other instrumental studies; journalism; 
woodworking; and physics. About half of LA students participate in at least one 
sport and many are two- and three-sport athletes. Other extracurricular activities 
include State-Champion Debate and Math Teams, Model United Nations, Outing 
Club, Special Olympics, and a wide variety of service and student-interest clubs. 

Our residential program has brought students from the US and the world to the 
LA dorms and added significant geographic diversity to our student population. 
This has been apparent in every aspect of school life, from class discussions to 
celebrations of world holidays. Our international students benefit tremendously 
from their experience at LA as well, enjoying the beauty of the area, making 
friends with local students and being invited into their homes, volunteering at 
Pumpkinfest (a true cultural experience!) and sharing Thanksgiving with the staff 
at Camp Kieve. 

Though our student population has changed over the last six years, Lincoln 
Academy remains deeply rooted in the local community. At LA, we are committed 
to providing a top-notch education for all students who come through our doors, 
whether they take vocational or Advanced Placement courses, participate in one 
of our Alternative Education or special education programs, or a combination of 
the above. This I hope is evident in the variety of paths our graduates choose after 
LA. In the Class of 2018 there were 139 graduates, 96 of whom went on to four-
year colleges, 13 to two-year educational programs and community colleges, 28 of 
whom went straight into the workforce, and 2 of whom joined the military. 

Along with our academic, athletic, arts, and extracurricular programs, we 
continue to uphold many long-standing traditions that some of you probably 
remember from your days as students or parents at LA: every Friday we gather 
for an all-school Community Meeting in the gym. Students meet daily with 
the same academic advisor during all four years at LA. We held our annual 
Homecoming celebration in September, complete with the parade through 
downtown Damariscotta, and as I write this letter we are planning for our 2019 
Winter Carnival in February. 

We are deeply appreciative of the support of local sending towns. Your children 
are the lifeblood of Lincoln Academy. Please know that you are always welcome 
to attend a sporting event, concert, or Parents’ Association meeting, or to stop by 
for a tour. We invite you to follow Lincoln Academy News on social media if you 
would like to know more about day to day activities on our busy campus.

Thank you for being part of a long tradition of independent education at Lincoln 
Academy.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
William H. Brewer, Certified Public Accountant

858 Washington Street, P.O. Box 306, Bath, Maine 04530

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Bristol, 
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial 
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Bristol as of 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
that the management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison 
information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the Town of Bristol’s basic financial 
statements. The introductory section and the combining and individual nonmajor 
fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
January 18, 2019
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018

The Municipal Officers of the Town of Bristol, Maine offer the readers of Bristol’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of its financial activities 
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018. We encourage readers to consider 
the information presented in conjunction with additional information furnished 
in the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those financial 
statements. 
The Financial Statements
The financial statements presented herein include all activities of the Town of 
Bristol, Maine using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB (Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board) Statement No. 34. The government-wide financial 
statements present the financial picture of the Town using the accrual basis of 
accounting. They present governmental activities (functions that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues) and business-type activities 
(functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs 
through user fees and charges) separately. These statements include all assets of 
the Town as well as all liabilities, including long-term debt.
The fund financial statements include statements for each of the three categories 
of activity: governmental, business-type and fiduciary. Notes to the financial 
statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities
The statement of net position and statement of activities report information about 
the Town and its activities as a whole. Excluding infrastructure, these statements 
include all assets and liabilities of the Town using the accrual basis of accounting, 
which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of 
the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when 
cash is received or paid.
These two statements report the Town’s net position and changes to it. Net position 
is the difference between assets and liabilities, which is one way to measure the 
Town’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases and decreases in 
net position is one indicator of whether the Town’s financial health is improving 
or deteriorating. Other factors to consider are changes in the Town’s property tax 
base and the condition of its infrastructure. In the statement of net position and 
statement of activities, the Town’s activities are separated as follows:
Governmental activities: Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in this 
category, including public safety, public works, and general administrative services. 
Property taxes, excise taxes, user fees, interest income, cable television franchise 
fees and State and Federal grants finance these activities.
Business-type activities: Parks and Recreation is considered a “business-type” 
activity. A fee is charged to visitors to cover costs associated with admission to and 
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use of Bristol’s parks. Parks and Recreation is completely self-supporting through 
admissions, rental income and other user fees and donations.
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most 
significant funds, not the Town as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts 
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific 
activities or objectives. Some funds are required to be established by State law 
or by grantor. In the Town of Bristol, these include worthy poor funds, cemetery 
funds and a small fund set aside for maintenance of the Rock Schoolhouse. During 
2018, the town opened two new dedicated accounts: a Restricted Funds account to 
hold proceeds of a major grant for replacement of the fish ladder; and a Veterans’ 
Memorial account for donations for the proposed memorial. Management also 
establishes other funds to help it control and manage money for particular 
purposes, using funds set aside by vote of the Town or by the Parks and Recreation 
Commissioners. In fiscal year 2018 Bristol had eleven such “capital reserve” 
accounts: the Bridge Fund, the Building Fund, the Computer Fund, the Bristol 
Dam Fish Ladder Fund, the Highway Equipment Fund, the Landings and Harbors 
Fund, the Revaluation Fund, the Parks Fund, the Learning Center Fund, the Fire 
Truck Fund and the Facility Maintenance Fund which offsets capital expenditures 
for Bristol’s three fire stations.
Governmental Funds
Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus 
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the remaining balances at year 
end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting 
method called “modified accrual”, which measures cash and all other financial 
assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements 
provide a detailed, shorter-term view of the Town’s general government operations 
and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the Town’s programs. The Town’s governmental funds consist of 
the following:
General Fund: The general operating fund of the Town used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Proprietary Funds: When the Town charges customers for services it provides 
(business-type activities), these services are generally reported in proprietary 
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are 
reported in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities.
Fiduciary Funds: The Town’s fiduciary funds are held in trust for the benefit of 
others. These funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements 
and cannot be used to support general government activities and operations.
Governmental Activities
The cost of all governmental activities in 2018 was $7,234,521.50, an increase of 
$114,554.92 in comparison to 2017. Some of the costs were paid by those who 
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directly benefited from the programs, or by other governments and organizations 
that subsidized certain programs with operating grants and contributions. The 
Town paid for the “public benefit” portion of governmental activities with property 
taxes and through additional sources such as excise tax, interest revenue, State 
revenue sharing, cable television franchise fees and other miscellaneous revenues.
Town programs include education, general government, health and welfare, 
highways and bridges, protection, special assessments (County tax), and 
unclassified. Each program’s net cost (total cost less revenues generated by 
activities) is presented below. The net costs show the financial burden placed on 
the Town’s taxpayers by each of the functions:

Governmental Activities	 Net Cost 2018	 Net Cost 2017	 Net Cost 2016
Education	 4,284,340.08	 3,823,588.35	 3,989,021.73
General Government	  454,362.57	  522,910.80	  541,968.91
Health and Welfare	  299,713.86	  297,393.54	  303,918.60
Highways and Bridges	  485,125.63	  764,331.32	  834,439.04
Protection	  411,699.41	  400,097.11	  337,962.33
County Tax	  1,328,624.68	  1,291,093.93	  1,246,397.72
Unclassified	  (35,043.60)	  (16,537.38)	  (25,077.43)
Debt Service Interest	  5,698.87	  10,088.91	  15,012.32
Total	 7,234,521.50	 7,092,966.58	 7,243,632.22

On December 31, 2018, Bristol’s net position for governmental activities totaled 
$9,604,690.46. The net position as of December 31, 2017 was $9,528,468.41 thus 
an increase in net position of $76,222.05 during fiscal year 2018. 
Business-Type Activities
The cost of the Town’s only proprietary fund, Bristol Parks and Recreation, was 
$343,279.64. The amount paid by users of the system and raised through grants 
and donations was $727,888.41, resulting in a net gain of $384,608.77. Much of this 
gain is set aside for use in renewal of the pavilion at the Pemaquid Beach Park.
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The breakdown of actual expenditures for the year may be found in the Selectmen’s 
Financial Report which is part of the 2018 Annual Report of the Town of Bristol. 
This could be compared with the proposed budget for 2019 to ascertain potential 
increases or decreases in individual budgetary items.
Administrative Notes
Bristol had just one outstanding loan at the end of fiscal year 2018: a fire truck loan 
which matures in 2023. The following is a comparison of total long-term debt as of 
December 31st of each fiscal year:
  	 FY 2018	 FY 2017	  FY 2016
	 101,270.67	 190,644.06	 367,143.86
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There was an increase in the County Tax assessment as compared with fiscal year 
2017. 
	 FY 2018	 FY 2017	 FY 2016
	 1,328,624.68 	 1,291,093.93 	 1,246,397.72
There was an increase in unappropriated surplus as compared with fiscal year 
2017. 
	 FY 2018	 FY 2017	 FY 2016
	 1,276,461.14 	 1,256,622.37	 1,181,527.00
The mill rate was unchanged at 6.25 per $1,000.00 of valuation in fiscal year 2018, 
the same rate as in fiscal year 2017. In 2017, the mill rate was adjusted to reflect 
the revaluation of property throughout the Town. Based on the old valuations, the 
mill rate in fiscal year 2016 was 7.90 per $1,000.00 of valuation in 2016. 
Education accounted for approximately 65% of the tax commitment followed by 
the County tax assessment at 20% and the Municipal budget at 15%. 
Bristol’s financial position continues to be exemplary. The Municipal Officers 
continue to pursue ways to contain the cost of providing essential services to 
Bristol’s taxpayers. Bristol taxpayers should, however, be prepared to face growing 
needs for funds as enrolment in the Bristol School rises (following four decades 
of slow decline), as we face increased demands for infrastructure, and as the 
rising costs of law enforcement (through the County tax), health care (including 
ambulance services) and education surpass the overall inflation rate.
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Exhibit A: Statements of Net Position, December 31, 2018 and 2017
	 GOVERNMENTAL	  BUSINESS-TYPE 	 2018	 2017
	 ACTIVITIES	  ACTIVITIES 	  TOTAL 	  TOTAL 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 				  
CURRENT ASSETS:	 	 	 	
Cash (Note B)	  2,875,331.68 	  375,930.99 	  3,251,262.67 	  3,294,437.61 
Accounts Receivable (Note C)	  13,833.04 	 	  13,833.04 	  11,814.03 
Taxes Receivable (Schedule A-7)	  180,913.10 	 	  180,913.10 	  165,917.60 
Tax Liens	  41,919.65 	 	  41,919.65 	  42,104.57 
Tax Acquired Property	  4,038.88 	 	  4,038.88 	  5,578.66 
Due From Other Funds	  6,328.80 	  206,115.30 	  212,444.10 	  195,850.42 
Total Current Assets	  3,122,365.15 	  582,046.29 	  3,704,411.44 	  3,715,702.89 
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT (NOTE J):				  
Land and Land Improvements	  1,506,745.30 	  202,291.36 	  1,709,036.66 	  1,337,343.19 
Buildings	  5,253,164.22 	  398,823.65 	  5,651,987.87 	  5,567,900.08 
Equipment	  2,400,893.49 	  153,646.41 	  2,554,539.90 	  2,511,046.81 
Infrastructure	  7,858,410.54 	 	  7,858,410.54 	  7,434,308.07 
Total Property, Plant, & Equipment	  17,019,213.55 	  754,761.42 	  17,773,974.97 	  16,850,598.15 
Less:  Accumulated Depreciation	  (10,257,255.54)	  (519,280.71)	  (10,776,536.25)	  (10,072,028.69)
Net Property, Plant, and Equipment	  6,761,958.01 	  235,480.71 	  6,997,438.72 	  6,778,569.46 
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:				  
Related to Pension	  108,774.15 	  - 	  108,774.15 	  101,782.78 
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows	  9,993,097.31 	  817,527.00 	  10,810,624.31 	  10,596,055.13 
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION 				  
CURRENT LIABILITIES:	 	 	 	
Notes Payable (Note D)	  21,459.59 	  - 	  21,459.59 	  89,472.07 
Deferred Revenue (Note P)	  4,922.07 	 	  4,922.07 	  180,072.77 
Accounts Payable - Trade	  22,861.81 	  10.01 	  22,871.82 	  11,198.05 
Security Deposit - Parks	  300.00 	  800.00 	  1,100.00 	  300.00 
Due To Other Funds	  206,115.30 	  5,092.80 	  211,208.10 	  195,732.42 
Total Current Liabilities	  255,658.77 	  5,902.81 	  261,561.58 	  476,775.31 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:				  
Pension Liability	  39,524.00 	  - 	  39,524.00 	  50,244.00 
Notes Payable - 
  Net of Current Portion (Note D)	  79,811.08 	 	  79,811.08 	  101,171.99 
Total Long-Term Liabilities	  119,335.08 	  - 	  119,335.08 	  151,415.99 
Total Liabilities	  374,993.85 	  5,902.81 	  380,896.66 	  628,191.30 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:				  
Related to Pension	  13,413.00 	  - 	  13,413.00 	  12,380.00 
NET POSITION:				  
Net Invested in Capital Assets	  6,660,687.34 	  235,480.71 	  6,896,168.05 	  6,404,565.10 
Restricted for:	 	 	 	
  Capital Projects	  563,915.91 	  370,838.19 	  934,754.10 	  331,933.33 
  Other Purposes	  855,165.23 	  8,487.31 	  863,652.54 	  1,353,918.79 
Unrestricted	  1,524,921.98 	  196,817.98 	  1,721,739.96 	  1,865,066.61 
Total Net Position	  9,604,690.46 	  811,624.19 	  10,416,314.65 	  9,955,483.83 
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, 
  and Net Position	  9,993,097.31 	  817,527.00 	  10,810,624.31 	  10,596,055.13  
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Exhibit C: Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to Net Position of Governmental Activities 
for the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES:	 2018	 2017
Restricted for:	 	
Capital Projects (Schedule A-15)	  563,915.91 	  331,933.33 
Other Purposes (Schedule A-4)	  855,165.23 	  1,353,918.79 
Unassigned (Schedule A-3)	  1,276,461.14 	  1,256,622.37 
Total Governmental Fund Balances (Exhibit F)	  2,695,542.28 	  2,942,474.49 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statements of 	 	
Net Position are different because:	 	
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not	 	
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.	  6,761,958.01 	  6,595,209.16 
Deferred outflows are deferred as expense in the fund	 	
financial statements and in the government-wide financial	 	
statements as expense in the year following the year paid.	  108,774.15 	  101,782.78 
Property taxes not collected within sixty days after year end are deferred	 	
as revenue in the fund financial statements.  In the government-wide	 	
financial statements the revenue is income in the year assessed.	  192,623.69 	  190,275.62 
Pension liability is not due and payable in the current	 	
period and therefore is not reported in the funds.	  (39,524.00)	  (50,244.00)
Notes payable are not due and payable in the current	 	
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.	  (101,270.67)	  (190,644.06)
Deferred inflows are deferred revenues related to pension expenses	 	
that are amortized in the government-wide financial statements.	  (13,413.00)	  (12,380.00)
Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A)	  9,604,690.46 	  9,576,473.99  

Exhibit D: Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of 
Governmental Funds to the Statements of Activities for the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017		
	 2018	 2017
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit F)	  (198,926.63)	  302,411.74 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statements of	 	
Activities are different because:	 	
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.	 	
However, in the Statements of Activities, the cost of those	 	
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as	 	
depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlays 	 	
exceeds depreciation (depreciation exceeds capital outlays).	  174,134.57 	  (300,190.17)
Repayment of loan principal is an expenditure in the	 	
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces liabilities	 	
in the Statements of Net Position.	  89,373.39 	  176,454.80 
Net book value of asset disposition.	  (7,385.72)	
Property taxes are deferred in the fund financial statements, but	 	
in the government-wide financial statement they are recorded	 	
as income the year they are assessed.	  2,348.07 	  (14,373.80)
Pension expense is adjusted for changes in earnings contributions	 	
and contribution subsequent to the measurement date.	  16,678.37 	  (8,371.89)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities	  76,222.05 	  155,930.68 
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Exhibit G: Statements of Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund Type
Parks and Recreation Department for the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
		  Capital	 2018	 2017
	 General	 Projects	 Total	 Total
REVENUES:	 	
Admissions:	 	
  Lighthouse Park	  208,901.00 	   	  208,901.00 	  207,117.00 
  Pemaquid Beach Park	  102,730.00 	 	  102,730.00 	  92,095.11 
Rent	  23,231.84 	 	  23,231.84 	  23,587.19 
Passes	  9,392.00 	 	  9,392.00 	  7,951.66 
Concession Rental	  3,200.00 	 	  3,200.00 	  1,200.00 
Beach Shop	  6,872.00 	 	  6,872.00 	  5,227.00 
Vending Machine	  6,347.05 	 	  6,347.05 	  5,275.01 
Weddings	  9,059.50 	 	  9,059.50 	  10,043.50 
Interest	 	  494.91 	  494.91 	
Floats	  6,225.00 	 	  6,225.00 	  4,820.00 
Special Events	  1,048.00 	 	  1,048.00 	  374.00 
Merchandise Sales	  2,542.07 	 	  2,542.07 	  4,065.53 
Miscellaneous	  7,323.97 	 	  7,323.97 	  2,805.76 
Donations	  9,296.21 	  300,000.00 	  309,296.21 	  5,396.86 
Learning Center	  1,947.50 	 	  1,947.50 	  242.50 
Area Maps	 	 	 	  4,171.00 
Triathlon	  10,917.36 	 	  10,917.36 	
Snack Bar Sales	 	 	 	  22,376.07 
Grants	  18,360.00 	 	  18,360.00 	  12,000.00 
Total Revenues	  427,393.50 	  300,494.91 	  727,888.41 	  408,748.19 
EXPENDITURES:				  
General Parks:	 	 	 	
Salaries and Wages	  206,726.33 	  - 	  206,726.33 	  204,469.38 
Payroll Taxes	  15,814.56 	 	  15,814.56 	  12,329.15 
Expenses	  74,826.22 	  18,662.30 	  93,488.52 	  99,647.56 
Depreciation 	  27,250.23 	 	  27,250.23 	  25,466.24 
Loss on Disposal of Assets	 	 	 	  14.45 
Total Expenditures	  324,617.34 	  18,662.30 	  343,279.64 	  341,926.78 
Net Operating Income	  102,776.16 	  281,832.61 	  384,608.77 	  66,821.41 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):				  
Operating Transfers - In	  - 	  41,000.00 	  41,000.00 	  - 
Operating Transfers - Out	  (41,000.00)	 	  (41,000.00)	
Total Other Financing 
  Sources (Uses)	  (41,000.00)	  41,000.00 	  - 	  - 
Changes in Net Position	  61,776.16 	  322,832.61 	  384,608.77 	  66,821.41 
Net Position, January 1	  379,009.84 	  48,005.58 	  427,015.42 	  360,194.01 
Net Position, December 31	  440,786.00 	  370,838.19 	  811,624.19 	  427,015.42 
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Exhibit H: Statements of Cash Flows – Propriety Fund Type - Parks and Recreation Department 
for the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
	 2018	 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	 	
Net Income 	  385,408.77 	  66,821.41 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash	 	
Provided by Operating Activities:	 	
Depreciation	  27,250.23 	  25,466.24 
Loss on Disposal of Asset	 	  14.45 
Changes in Operating Assets:	 	
Decrease (Increase) in Due From Other Funds	  (10,455.75)	  (74,237.04)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	  402,203.25 	  18,065.06 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:	 	
Acquisition of Fixed Assets	  (79,370.64)	  (21,165.06)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets	 	  3,100.00 
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities	  (79,370.64)	  (18,065.06)
Change in Cash 	  322,832.61 	  - 
Cash Balance, January 1	  48,005.58 	  48,005.58 
Cash Balance, December 31	  370,838.19 	  48,005.58

Exhibit I: Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Nonspendable Trust Funds - 
Cemetery and Worthy Poor Trust Funds for the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

	 2018	 2017
REVENUES:	 	
Interest and Dividends	  2,750.92 	  2,437.61 
Realized Gain on Sale of Securities	  914.95 	  1,023.79 
Other Income	 	  588.85 
Total Revenues	  3,665.87 	  4,050.25 
EXPENSES:	 	
Worthy Poor	  2,000.00 	  1,700.00 
Fees	  767.49 	  751.81 
Other Expenses	  400.00 	  700.00 
Total Expenses	  3,167.49 	  3,151.81 
Changes in Net Position	  498.38 	  898.44 
Net Position, January 1	  98,401.13 	  97,502.69 
Net Position, December 31	  98,899.51 	  98,401.13

Exhibit J: Statements of Cash Flows - Fiduciary Fund Type - Nonspendable Trust Funds		
Cemetery and Worthy Poor Trust Funds for the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017		

	 2018	 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	 	
Net Income 	  498.38 	  898.44 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	  498.38 	  898.44 
Cash Balance, January 1	  98,401.13 	  97,502.69 
Cash Balance, December 31	  98,899.51	 98,401.139
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
The accounting policies of the Town of Bristol conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governmental units.

1. Financial Reporting Entity
The Town of Bristol was incorporated in 1765. The Town operates under a town meeting 
form of government.
In evaluating the Town of Bristol as a reporting entity, management has addressed all 
potential component units. The primary criteria for including a component reporting entity 
are the exercise of financial accountability by the Town of Bristol’s municipal officials.
The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally 	accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements 
and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when 
applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  

2. Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Statements
The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the 
Town as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds). 
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities 
as governmental. The Town’s fire protection, recreation, public works, and general 
administrative services are classified as governmental activities.
In the government-wide Statements of Net Position, the governmental column is presented 
on a consolidated basis by column, and is reported on a full accrual, economic resource 
basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and 
obligations. The Town’s net position is reported in three parts - net invested in capital 
assets; restricted; and unrestricted. The Town first utilizes restricted resources to finance 
qualifying activities.
The government-wide Statements of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each 
of the Town’s functions and business-type activities (fire, public works, administrative, 
etc.). The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property, certain 
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits, and charges, etc.). The Statements of Activities 
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues and operating 
and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (fire, 
public works, etc.). Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either 
operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.
The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general 
revenue (property, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).
This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity and the 
change in the Town’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.
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3. Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements
The financial transactions of the Town are reported in individual funds in the fund 
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the 
financial statements.
The following fund types are used by the Town:
a. Governmental Funds:
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and 
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description 
of the governmental funds of the Town:
1. General Fund:
General Fund is the general operating fund of the town. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
2. Capital Projects:
Capital Projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and equipment. 
3. Fiduciary Funds:
Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and 
therefore are not available to support town programs. The reporting focus is on net assets 
and changes in net assets and is reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary 
funds.	
The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental 
or business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a 
single column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, 
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of either fund category) for the determination of major 
funds.
The Town’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements. Since 
by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used 
to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into 
the government-wide statements.
4. Proprietary Fund: 
The Proprietary Fund is the fund used to account for all financial resources relating to the 
Parks and Recreation Department. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable 
are those similar to business in the private sector.

4. Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing 
of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied:
a. Accrual:
Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and fiduciary 
fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.
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b. Modified Accrual:
The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when 
susceptible to accrual; i.e. both measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within 
the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized 
under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The 
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term 
debt, if any, is recognized when due.

5. Financial Statement Amounts
a. Cash and Cash Equivalents:
The Town has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and cash with fiscal agents. Statutes authorize the Treasurer of the Town, as directed by the 
municipal officers, to invest all municipal funds, including reserve and trust funds, to the 
extent that the terms of the instrument, order, or article creating the fund do not prohibit 
the investment in financial institutions as described in Section 5706 MRSA and securities 
as described in Sections 5711 through 5717 MRSA.
b. Capital Assets:
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000.00 or more are reported 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market 
value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that 
significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for 
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided 
on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

	 Buildings	 20-50 Years
	 Machinery and Equipment	  5-10 Years
	 Improvements	 10-20 Years

	 Other Infrastructure	 10-50 Years

c. Revenues:
Substantially, all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are billed and 
collected within the same period in which the taxes are levied. In applying GASB No. 33 to 
grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes 
receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time 
requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met 
are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient.
d. Expenditures:
Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. 
e. Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources:
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that 
time. The deferred outflows relate to the net pension liability, which include the Town’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which is recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension liability in the subsequent year. They also include changes in assumptions, 
differences between expected and actual experience, and changes in proportion and 
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differences between Town contributions and proportionate share of contributions, which 
are deferred and amortized over the average expected remaining service lives of active and 
inactive members in the plan.
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. The deferred inflows relate to the net pension liability, which include the differences 
between expected and actual experience and changes in proportion and differences between 
Town contributions and proportionate share of contributions, which is deferred and 
amortized over the average expected remaining service lives of active and inactive members 
in the plan. They also include the net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments, which is deferred and amortized over a five-year period.
f. Use of Estimates:
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
g. Fund Balance:
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, the Town employs terminology and 
classifications for fund balance items as follows:
Nonspendable fund balances includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in 
spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted fund balances represent those portions of fund equity that have externally 
enforceable legal restrictions.
Committed fund balances are amounts that can be used only for specific purposes because 
of a formal action taken by town government. The fund balances in the Capital Projects 
Fund are in this category.
Assigned fund balances are amounts that the Town intends to use for specific purposes. The 
Board of Selectmen approved carryovers are included in assigned fund balances.
Unassigned fund balances are all amounts in the General Fund that are not assigned to 
another category. Only the General Fund can have an unassigned fund balance.

6. Implementation of New Accounting Standards
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the following statements of financial accounting 
standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board became effective:
a. Statement No. 73, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related 
Assets that are not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68”. The objective of the Statement is to improve 
financial reporting by instituting a single framework for the presentation of information 
about pensions, thereby expanding the comparability of pension-related information 
reported by state and local governments. Management has determined that this Statement 
is not applicable.
b. Statement No. 74, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 
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Pension Plans”. The objective of the Statement is to improve the disclosure of information 
about benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in 
financial statements of state and local governments. This Statement will improve financial 
reporting through enhanced note disclosures and schedules of required supplementary 
information that will be presented by OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that 
meet specified criteria. Management has determined that this Statement is not applicable.
c. Statement No. 77, “Tax Abatement Disclosures”. The objective of the Statement is to 
improve disclosure of information about the nature and magnitude of tax abatements, 
making these transactions more transparent to financial statement users. As such, users will 
be better equipped to understand (1) how tax abatements affect a government’s future ability 
to raise resources and meet its financial obligations and (2) the impact those abatements 
have on a government’s financial position and economic condition. Management has 
determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial statements.
d. Statement No. 80, “Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units”. The objective 
of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement 
presentation requirements for certain component units. The additional criterion requires 
blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the 
primary government is the sole corporate member. The additional criterion does not apply 
to component units included in the financial reporting entity pursuant to the provisions 
of Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units. 
Management has determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial 
statements.
e. Statement No. 81, “Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements”. The objective of this Statement 
is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements 
by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government 
is a beneficiary of the agreement. Split-interest agreements are a type of giving agreement 
used by donors to provide resources to two or more beneficiaries, including governments. 
Split-interest agreements can be created through trusts or other legally enforceable 
agreements with characteristics that are equivalent to split-interest agreements - in which 
a donor transfers resources to an intermediary to hold and administer for the benefit of 
a government and at least one other beneficiary. Examples of these types of agreements 
include charitable lead trusts, charitable remainder trusts, and life-interests in real estate. 
As such, this Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an 
irrevocable split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resources at the inception of the agreement. Management has determined the impact of 
this Statement is not material to the financial statements.
f. Statement No. 82, “Pension Issues”. The objective of this Statement is to address certain 
issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for 
Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets that are not within the 
Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 
67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of 
payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of 
assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard 
of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by 
employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. Management has 
determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial statements.
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7. Subsequent Notes
The Town of Bristol has evaluated the subsequent events through January 18, 2019, the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued. No subsequent events were identified 
which required accrual or disclosure.

NOTE B - CASH:
Cash
The Town’s cash is categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Town 
at year end. These categories are defined as follows:
Category #1 - Insured or collateralized with securities held by the Town or by its agent in 
the Town’s name.
Category #2 - Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust 
department or agent in the Town’s name.
Category #3 - Uncollateralized (This includes any bank balance that is collateralized with 
securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but 
not in the Town’s name.) 
At December 31, 2018 cash consisted of:

ACCOUNT TYPE	 CARRYING AMOUNT	 BANK  BALANCE	 CATEGORY #1	 CATEGORY #2	 CATEGORY #3
Interest Bearing Accounts	 3,348,308.27	  3,386,879.55	  3,386,879.55	 -	 - 

NOTE C - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Accounts Receivable consists of the following:
	 State Homestead	 13,430.96

	 State of Maine GA	  402.08
		  13,833.04
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
An allowance for doubtful accounts is not considered necessary at December 31, 2018.

NOTE D - NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE:
The following is a summary of note and bond transactions of the Town for the year ended 
December 31, 2018:

	 BALANCE			   BALANCE
General Fund:	 1/1/18	 ADDITIONS	 REDUCTIONS	 12/31/18
Bath Savings Institution - Fire Truck	  68,591.24	 	  68,591.24
 The First - Fire Truck	 122,052.82	 	  20,782.15	  101,270.67

	  190,644.06	  	  89,373.39	  101,270.67

Long-Term Debt as of December 31, 2018 is as follows:

General Fund:	
The First - Fire Truck	
This note is for 10 years with monthly principal and interest payments of	
$1,997.95 and a final payment of remaining principal and any accrued	
interest. The interest rate is 2.750%.	  101,270.67
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The annual requirement to amortize notes and bonds payable as of December 31, 2018 
follows:

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31	 PRINCIPAL	 INTEREST	 TOTAL
2019	  21,459.59	  2,515.81	  23,975.40
2020	  22,057.23	  1,918.17	  23,975.40
2021	  22,671.51	  1,303.89	  23,975.40
2022	  23,302.90	  672.50	  23,975.40
2023	  11,779.44	  94.01	  11,873.45

	  101,270.67	  6,504.38	  107,775.05

NOTE E - GENERAL FUND BUDGET:
The Town operates on a net budget as compared with a gross budget. All revenues are 
not estimated, but are credited to the particular operating account. Certain revenues are 
dedicated for particular purposes by vote of the townspeople at the annual town meeting 
or at special town meetings.
At the annual town meeting, held in March of each year, the townspeople vote on various 
articles on which amounts for appropriations have been recommended by the Board of 
Selectmen and/or the budget committee.

NOTE F - ASSIGNED FOR OTHER PURPOSES:
Historically, the townspeople vote to carry certain departmental unexpended balances 
forward to the following year for expenditure. This is usually in lieu of additional 
appropriations in any particular account.
	 General Government	 54,609.00
	 Education	  631,361.44
	 Highways and Bridges	  119,050.46
	 Protection	  48,513.09

	 Unclassified	  1,631.24
		  855,165.23

NOTE G - REVENUE RECOGNITION - PROPERTY TAXES:
The Town’s property tax for the current year was levied May 31, 2018 on the assessed value 
listed as of April 1, 2018 for all taxable real and personal property located in the Town. Taxes 
were due September 15, 2018 with interest at 8% per annum or part thereof commencing 
September 16, 2018. 
Tax liens are filed against delinquent real estate taxpayers after eight months but within one 
year of the original tax commitment. If the tax, interest, and costs have not been paid eighteen 
months after the filing of a lien certificate then the lien is automatically foreclosed.
The National Council on Governmental Accounting (N.C.G.A.) Interpretation No. 3 
requires that property tax revenue be recognized only to the extent it will be collected 
within sixty days following the year end. The deferred tax revenue shown on the balance 
sheet represents property taxes not expected to be collected within sixty days after the year 
end.
Property taxes are recognized when they become available. Available includes those taxes 
expected to be collected within sixty days after year end as stated above.
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NOTE H - MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM:
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows for resources related to pensions, and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the Maine Public Employees Retirement 
System State Employee and Teacher Plan (SET Plan) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
the Plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value.
Maine Public Employees Retirement System
General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan Description - Teaching-certified employees of the Town of Bristol are provided with 
pensions through the Maine Public Employees Retirement System State Employee and 
Teacher Plan (SET Plan), cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans, 
administered by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MPERS). Benefit terms 
are established in Maine statute. MPERS issues a publicly available financial report that can 
be obtained at www.mainepers.org.
Benefits provided - The SET Plan provides defined retirement benefits based on members’ 
average final compensation and service credit earned as of retirement. Vesting (i.e. 
eligibility for benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs upon the earning of five years 
of service credit. In some cases, vesting occurs on the earning of one year of service credit 
immediately preceding retirement at or after normal retirement age. For SET members, 
normal retirement age is 60, 62, or 65. The normal retirement age is determined by whether 
a member had met certain creditable service requirements on specific dates, as established 
by statute. The monthly benefit of members who retire before normal retirement age by 
virtue of having at least 25 years of service credit is reduced by a statutorily prescribed factor 
for each year of age that a member is below her/his normal retirement age at retirement. 
MPERS also provides disability and death benefits, which are established by statute.
Contributions - Employee contribution rates are defined by law or Board rule and depend 
on the terms of the plan under which an employee is covered. Employer contributions 
are determined by actuarial valuations. The contractually required contribution rates are 
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, 
is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
SET Plan - Maine statute requires the State to contribute a portion of the Town’s contractually 
required contributions. Employees are required to contribute 7.65% of their annual pay. 
The Town of Bristol’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended December 
31, 2018 was 15.05% of annual payroll of which 3.97% of payroll was required from the 
Town and $169,765.78 was required from the State. Contributions to pension plan from the 
Town was $14,230.44 for the year ended December 31, 2018.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions
The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total pension liabilities 
used to calculate the net pension liabilities were determined by actuarial valuations as of 
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that date. The Town’s proportion of the net pension liabilities were based on projections of 
the Town’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating School Administrative Units and the State (SET Plan), 
actuarially determined.
SET Plan - At June 30, 2018, the Town reported a liability for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the 
Town. The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was 
associated with the Town were as follows:
Town of Bristol’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability	 39,524.00 
State’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Associated with the Town of Bristol	  1,676,676.00 
Total	 1,716,200.00

At June 30, 2018, the Town of Bristol’s proportion of the SET Plan was .002721%.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Town recognized pension income of $16,678.33 
and revenue of $169,765.78 for support provided by the State for the SET Plan. At December 
31, 2018, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources:
	 Deferred Outflows 	 Deferred Inflows 
	 of Resources	 of Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience	  1,662.00 	  -
Changes in Assumptions	 	  618.00
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings 	 	
  on Pension Plan Investments	  11,027.00	  11,608.00
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Town Contributions 
  and Proportionate Share of Contributions	  4,911.00	  1,187.00
Town Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date	   91,174.15	
Total	  108,774.15	  13,413.00

$91,174.15 is reported as deferred outflows and resources related to pensions resulting from 
the Town of Bristol’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized 
as a reduction of the net pension liabilities in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
	 Year ended December 31:	
	 2018	 3,827.00
	 2019	 2,213.00
	 2020	 264.00
	 2021	 (2,117.00)
Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement:

	 	 SET Plan
	 Inflation	 2.75%
	 Salary Increases, per year	 2.75% - 14.5%
	 Investment return, per annum, compounded annually	 6.875%
	 Cost of living benefit increases, per annum	 2.20%



128	 ANNUAL REPORT

Mortality rates were based on the RP2014 Total Dataset Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table 
for Males and Females. 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2010.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate 
of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of 
June 30, 2018 are summarized in the following table:
		  Long-Term Expected
Asset Class	 Target Allocation	 Real Rate of Return
Public Equities	 30.0%	 6.0%
US Government	 7.5%	 2.3%
Private Equity	 15.0%	 7.6%
Real Assets:	 	
  Real Estate	 10.0%	 5.2%
  Infrastructure	 10.0%	 5.3%
  Natural Resources	 5.0%	 5.0%
Traditional Credit	 7.5%	 3.0%
Alternative Credit	 5.0%	 4.2%
Diversifiers	 10.0%	 5.9%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.875% 
for the SET Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rates 
assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and 
that contributions from participating local districts will be made at contractually required 
rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liabilities.
Sensitivity of the Town of Bristol’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities to 
changes in the discount rate - The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.875% for the SET Plan, as 
well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using the discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower 5.875% for SET Plan or 
1 percentage-point higher 7.875% for SET Plan than the current rate:
	 1% Decrease 	 Current Discount	 1% Increase
SET Plan	 (5.875%)	 (6.875%)	 (7.875%)
Town of Bristol’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability	  69,352.00	 39,524.00	 14,896.00

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued MPERS financial report.
Payables to the Pension Plan - none as of December 31, 2018.
Changes of Benefit Terms - None
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Changes of Assumptions - None
General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan description - Employees of the Town are provided with post employment benefits 
through the Maine Public Employees Retirement System Consolidated Plan, administered 
by the Maine Public Employers Retirement System (MPERS). Benefit terms are established 
in Maine statute. MPERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
www.mainepers.org.
Additional Financial and Actuarial Information
Additional financial and actuarial information with respect to the Plans can be found in the 
System’s 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report available online at www.mainepers.
org or by contacting the System at (207) 512-3100.
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
The Group Life Insurance Plans (the Plans) provide basic group life insurance benefits 
during retirement, to retirees who participated in the Plans prior to retirement for a 
minimum of 10 years (the 10-year participation requirement does not apply to recipients of 
disability retirement benefits).
The level of coverage in retirement is initially set to an amount equal to the retiree’s average 
final compensation. The initial amount of basic life is then subsequently reduced at the rate 
of 15% per year to the greater of 40% of the initial amount or $2,500.00.
Funding Policy
Premium rates are those determined by the System’s Board of Trustees to be actuarially 
sufficient to pay anticipated claims. Premiums for basic life insurance coverage for retired 
teachers are paid by the State as the total dollar amount of each year’s annual required 
contribution. 
On-Behalf Payments
As mentioned above, contributions are made by the System for participating retired teachers. 
The summary below provides the School Department’s allocation of these contributions 
as well as the proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability is not 
recorded on the School financial statements since it is a liability of the State of Maine and 
not a liability of the School District.

	 On-Behalf	 Allocation of:	 Net OPEB
	 Payments	 Benefit Expense	 Liability
2017	 2,042.00	 2,507.00	 22,535.00

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information
Additional financial and actuarial information with respect to the Plans can be found in the 
System’s 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report available online at www.mainepers.
org or by contacting the System at (207) 512-3100.

NOTE I - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES:
Due To and Due From Other Funds consist of the following:
	 Due From Worthy Poor Trust Fund	  1,236.00
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NOTE J - PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:
The following is a summary of changes in fixed assets at December 31, 2018:
	 BALANCE	 ADDITIONS AND	 BALANCE
	 JANUARY 1, 2018	 DELETIONS	 DECEMBER 31, 2018

Land and Land Improvements	 1,337,343.19	 371,693.47	 1,709,036.66
Buildings	  5,567,900.08	  84,087.79	  5,651,987.87
Equipment	  2,511,046.81	  43,493.09	  2,554,539.90
Infrastructure	  7,434,308.07	  424,102.47	  7,858,410.54
	 16,850,598.15	 923,376.82	 17,773,974.97
Accumulated Depreciation	  (10,072,028.69)	  (704,507.56)	 (10,776,536.25)
Net Property, Plant, and  Equipment	 6,778,569.46	 218,869.26	 6,997,438.72

NOTE K - RISK MANAGEMENT:
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
All significant losses are covered by commercial insurance. There has been no significant 
reduction in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage 
for the current year or the three prior years.

NOTE L - INTEREST COST INCURRED:
During the current year the Town incurred interest costs totaling $5,698.87 which was 
charged as an expense to protection.

NOTE M - OVERLAPPING DEBT:
The Town of Bristol is situated in Lincoln County and is therefore subject to annual 
assessment of its proportional share of county expenses. Long-term debt outstanding in 
Lincoln County for which the Town of Bristol would be proportionally responsible in the 
event the County defaulted, is approximately $4,919,305.00 at December 31, 2018. The 
Town of Bristol’s share would be 13.4% of the debt, or approximately $659,187.00.

NOTE N - EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS:
During the year there were overdrafts in Homestead and Marsh Island Tax. Historically, 
Marsh Island Tax has been funded from unappropriated surplus, and the Homestead 
Appropriation was $0.31 higher than revenue.

NOTE O - JOINT VENTURE:
The Towns of Bristol and South Bristol have entered into an interlocal agreement to provide 
for solid waste disposal facilities for the two communities. The joint venture is administered 
by a joint board composed of the Board of Selectmen from each town. All costs and revenues 
are shared in the ratio of 60% - Bristol and 40% - South Bristol. 
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The following is a summary of the joint venture financial statements:
	 TOTAL	 BRISTOL’S SHARE

Total Assets	 284,393.51	 170,636.11
Total Liabilities	  4,097.54	  2,458.52
Total Net Position	 280,295.97	 168,177.59
Total Revenues	 528,862.72	 317,317.63
Total Expenditures	  549,106.17	  329,463.70
Change in Net Position	 (20,243.45)	 (12,146.07) 

Bristol’s assessments paid to the joint venture in 2018 totaled $233,680.00 and are recorded 
as expenditures.

NOTE P - DEFERRED REVENUE:
Deferred Revenue consists of the following:

Prepaid 2019 Taxes	 1,672.84 
State Revenue Sharing	  3,249.23

	 4,922.07
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SCHEDULE A-1: Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

	 ORIGINAL	
	 AND FINAL	
	 BUDGET	 ACTUAL
REVENUES:	 	
Property Taxes	  6,521,357.69 	  6,519,914.97 
Excise Taxes	  630,000.00 	  675,795.40 
Intergovernmental Revenue	  43,548.59 	  43,548.59 
Education	 	  576,140.20 
General Government	  15,000.00 	  87,720.33 
Health and Welfare	 	  1,075.48 
Highways and Bridges	  46,496.00 	  326,257.59 
Protection	 	  38,763.18 
Unclassified	  22,500.00 	  69,871.44 
Interest	 	  19,308.43 
Maine State Retirement on Behalf Payment	 	  169,765.78 
Homestead Reimbursement	  53,801.96 	  53,801.65 
BETE	  19,583.03 	  19,583.00 
Total Revenues	  7,352,287.27 	  8,601,546.04 
	 	
EXPENDITURES:	 	
Education	  4,103,444.32 	  5,110,184.64 
General Government	  540,102.29 	  571,784.63 
Health and Welfare	  283,986.00 	  287,259.40 
Highways and Bridges	  669,785.68 	  849,438.38 
Protection	  271,647.42 	  337,344.22 
County Tax	  1,328,624.68 	  1,328,624.68 
Unclassified	  23,645.62 	  54,410.84 
Debt Service	  95,668.53 	  95,072.26 
Maine State Retirement on Behalf Payment	 	  169,765.78 
Total Expenditures	  7,316,904.54 	  8,803,884.83 
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures	  35,382.73 	 (202,338.79)
	 	
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):		
Operating Transfers - In	  - 	  54,996.00 
Operating Transfers - Out	  (127,000.00) 	 (331,572.00)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)	  (127,000.00)	 (276,576.00)
Excess of Expenditures and Other Uses 	 	
Over Revenues and Other Sources	  (91,617.27)	 (478,914.79)
Fund Balance, January 1	  2,610,541.16 	  2,610,541.16 
Fund Balance, December 31	  2,518,923.89 	  2,131,626.37  
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2017
	 Badgley, Timothy R....................................... 626.25
	 Bailey, Arthur L.............................................. 731.88
*Bailey, Daniel F. & Maria V............................... 181.18
	 Beauchamp, Isa.............................................621.88
	 Benner, Robert.............................................. 171.25
	 Carpentier, Andrew J..................................... 814.38
	 Cowan, Shawn C. & April M...........................262.62
	 Cray, Virgil, Jr...................................................106.88
	 Cyr, Daniel & Lori G..................................... 1,194.38
	 D&E Land, Inc................................................. 403.13
	 Davis, Kathleen F........................................... 238.13
	 Dodge, Terrie A..............................................366.58
	 Emery, Dallas E., Sr........................................283.75
	 Emery, Dallas, Sr......................................... 2,243.13
	 Fenner, Sharon L..........................................1,115.00
	 Fitzpatrick, Joshua J......................................463.13
	 Flower, David M...........................................1,034.38
	 Flower, David M...........................................1,726.50
	 Fogg, Brent A. & Fogg, Anne Marie................758.75
	 Foster, David A., Jr. & Charlyn F................... 1,878.75
	 Gilbert, Clinton K...........................................821.88
	 Griffin, Leslie...................................................100.12
	 Gunther, Robert...........................................1,651.88
	 Gunther, Robert............................................. 574.38

SCHEDULE A-8: Tax Liens, December 31, 2018

	 Hanna, Susie Juan...................................... 1,766.88
	 Holladay, James Breckenridge, Jr. & Breanna.. 1,399.38
	 Hopkins, Therese........................................... 523.75
	 Jackson, Stacey M.......................................... 998.13
	 Jordan, Katherine Eaton................................574.38
	 Lane, Elizabeth M..........................................621.25
	 Lane, Elizabeth M...........................................181.25
	 Lane, Elizabeth M........................................1,490.00
	 Lane, Elizabeth M.......................................... 768.75
	 Lane, Elizabeth M., TR................................... 263.13
	 Little, Claire A..............................................1,500.00
	 MBH Realty LLC...............................................44.04
	 Moran, Jane L. & Congdon, Priscilla G............ 926.25
	 Organ, Melissa P...........................................1,651.88
	 Penniman, Tom M.........................................336.88
	 Penniman, Tom M. & Tracy A......................3,006.88
	 Pooler, Jeffrey L. & Plymak, Belinda J............482.88
	 Smith, Robert............................................. 2,090.00
	 Templeton, Jeff.......................................... 1,523.75
	 Termine, Steven C........................................1,485.00
	 TMP Holdings, LLC.........................................395.00
	 Wilson, Barbara.......................................... 1,092.50
	 Workman, Gary A........................................... 427.50
	 41,919.65

SCHEDULE A-9: Tax Acquired Property, December 31, 2018

SCHEDULE A-10: Taxes Receivable, December 31, 2018 

Real Estate
	 Adler, Stephen R............................................ 307.50
	 Badgley, Timothy R........................................ 626.25
	 Bailey, Arthur L.............................................. 731.88
	 Bailey, Daniel F............................................... 254.38
	 Baybutt, Mark D.......................................... 3,223.14
	 Beauchamp, Isa............................................. 621.88
	 Benner, Robert................................................171.25

	 2018	 2017	 2016	 2015	 2014	 Totals
Card, James D. & Teresa	  91.88 	  91.88 	  7.07 	  40.56 	  22.14 	  253.53 
Laughlin, Toni F.	  140.00 	  140.00 	  128.77 	  89.92 	 	  498.69 
Kalina, Michael & Kristin	  138.13 	  138.13 	  296.25 	 	 	  572.51 
Rodrigue, Margaret J.	 	 	 	 	  872.95 	  872.95 
Whitesell, Zane	  513.75 	  513.75 	  813.70 	 	 	  1,841.20 
	  883.76 	  883.76 	  1,245.79 	  130.48 	  895.09 	 4,038.88  

	 Benner, Roy A................................................ 247.50
*	 Bickford, Carroll M., Trust................................718.13
	 Booker, James B............................................... 786.66
*	 Boynton, Patricia M........................................ 795.76
	 Brackett, John W..........................................1,802.50
	 Brackett, Lynne Hughes...............................1,275.18
	 Bradley, William Ross..................................... 862.50
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	 Brewer, Thomas L.........................................1,062.50
	 Briggs, Edda, TR & Watson, Barbara, TR.......... 481.25
*	 Brooks, Katherine P........................................ 651.58
	 Brown, Peter & Virginia & Brown, Clara.............12.23
	 Buckingham, James B..................................1,361.25
	 Budrow, Michael G.......................................1,310.89
	 Burke, Scott H. (PIP)....................................... 469.38
	 Bums, Shannon R., Trustee............................. 132.84
	 Card, Guy........................................................106.88
	 Carpentier, Andrew J...................................... 814.38
	 Cervera, Xavier.............................................7,926.25
	 Chadwick, Jessica L.........................................110.63
	 Chappell, Thomas M......................................... 38.92
	 Chase, Michael................................................. 945.63
	 Cheney, Prescott..........................................1,501.26
	 Child, Aaron................................................... 441.25
	 Child, Aaron C..............................................1,038.75
	 Child, Aaron C................................................ 478.75
	 Churchill, Douglas J........................................ 351.25
	 Claxton, Lorinda C.......................................... 951.72
	 Cogar, Lara L. TR.......................................... 4,435.63
*	 Colby, Virginia..............................................1,367.50
	 Cowan, Shawn C............................................ 591.88
	 Crocker, Claire S., TR........................................... 5.84
	 Crockett, Evelyn M...........................................467.50
	 Cyr, Daniel..................................................... 1,194.38
	 D&E Land, Inc................................................. 403.13
	 Davey, Regina Ann, Guardian of..................... 226.88
	 Davis, Kathleen F............................................ 238.13
	 Digregorio, Vincent J.......................................192.50
	 Dodge, Elliott, Jr. & House, Melissa..............1,323.78
	 Dodge, Terrie A............................................. 1,030.00
*	 Drake, Megan R...............................................212.50
*	 Drisko, Lynne J................................................895.63
	 Drum, Peter W............................................. 3,534.38
	 Emery, Dallas E., Sr......................................... 283.75
	 Emery, Dallas, Sr......................................... 2,243.13
	 Eraklis, John................................................... 488.75
	 Fenner, Sharon L..........................................1,115.00
	 Fitzpatrick, Joshua J....................................... 463.13
	 Flower, David M...........................................1,068.75
	 Flower, David M...........................................1,605.00
	 Fogg, Brent A................................................... 758.75
	 Fortier-Taplin, Joyce H..................................1,068.75
	 Foster, Beverly............................................... 259.38
	 Foster, David A., Jr........................................1,878.75

	 Foster, Jennifer...............................................546.31
	 Foster, Mary................................................... 290.34
	 Foster, Michael R............................................ 871.25
	 Geyer, Cheyenne Mary Pasciuti.......................161.25
	 Geyer, Tyler T................................................. 1,051.25
	 Gibson, Louise Ann & Lee B. Trustees.......... 2,373.75
	 Gifford, Christopher C................................... 1,059.38
	 Gilbert, Clinton K............................................ 821.88
	 Griffin, Leslie...................................................123.75
	 Gunther, Robert...........................................1,651.88
	 Gunther, Robert............................................. 574.38
	 Hailcore, LLC............................................... 5,463.75
*	 Hall, Hugh F.........................................................1.25
	 Hanna, Bronwen E.......................................1,476.88
*	 Hanna, David W............................................1,446.25
	 Hanna, Susie Juan........................................1,766.88
	 Heaberlin, Mallory M.................................... 1,055.63
*	 Heim, William G............................................4,511.88
	 Holladay, James Breckenridge, Jr. & 
	   Breanna..................................................1,399.38
	 Hopkins, Therese............................................ 523.75
	 Hunt, Robert E............................................... 213.13
	 Hutchins, Ronald L......................................... 628.30
	 Jackson, Stacey M............................................ 998.13
	 Jordan, Katherine Eaton................................. 574.38
	 Lake Leasing Corporation.............................4,680.63
	 Lane, Elizabeth M.......................................... 621.25
	 Lane, Elizabeth M...........................................181.25
	 Lane, Elizabeth M........................................1,490.00
	 Lane, Elizabeth M.......................................... 768.75
	 Lane, Elizabeth M., TR.................................... 263.13
	 Lat Long Fisheries, LLC................................ 2,924.38
*	 LeBlanc, Cynthia............................................ 258.75
	 Libby, Helen M. (Heirs of)........................... 3,688.75
*	 Libby, Helen M. (Heirs of).............................. 315.63
	 Libby, Jonathan M.......................................... 730.00
	 Lichtman, Virginia T...................................... 1,365.00
	 Little, Claire A..............................................1,500.00
	 Lyon, James WH.......................................... 3,987.85
	 MacDougall, Peter.......................................1,869.38
	 Maines, Barbara L. (Devisees of).................... 493.13
*	 Manns, Myles N............................................... 570.63
	 MBH Realty LLC........................................... 2,113.75
	 McKitrick, Joseph W....................................... 812.50
	 McLellan, Melanie S....................................... 930.00
	 Moran, Jane L.................................................. 926.25
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	 Neely, Jean Patricia......................................1,218.13
	 Nyboe, Mark.................................................. 965.00
	 O’Leary, Richard.......................................... 2,346.32
	 Oliver, Sally J................................................1,096.80
	 Olson, Alec R.................................................... 273.13
	 Organ, Melissa P............................................ 1,651.88
	 Penniman, Tom M....................................... 3,006.88
	 Penniman, Tom M.......................................... 336.88
	 Pilibosian, Kathe............................................ 612.95
	 Pilibosian, Kathe............................................ 274.38
	 Pooler, Jeffrey L.............................................. 925.00
*	 Post, Alexander C., Jr. & Post, Katherine...... 2,466.53
*	 Preston, Richard M., Trustee..............................59.41
	 Prior, Audrey J..............................................1,313.13
	 Pysczynski, James N....................................... 793.24
	 Reeves, Erin.................................................1,380.63
	 Reilly, John V............................................... 2,424.38
	 Reilly, Michelle............................................... 840.90
	 Reilly, Neil...................................................... 918.69
	 Reilly, William S...........................................1,491.65
	 Robbins, Alisha A........................................... 973.75
	 Rodrigue, Margaret J. (PIP)..........................1,021.88
*	 Russell, Joshua A............................................ 270.00
*	 Satterlee, Howard.......................................... 270.63
	 Schiff, Terrylene A. (Heirs) (PIP)......................313.91
*	 Sciurus Trust......................................................13.88
	 Selverstone, Andrew R., & Jane E., 
	   Valentine............................................... 4,283.75
	 Simmons, Charles............................................406.87
	 Smith, David Quentin......................................191.58
	 Smith, George F. & M. Kathleen and Nancy C... 875.63

	 Smith, Robert............................................. 2,090.00
	 Sproul, Paul F................................................. 497.50
*	 Sproul, Paul F................................................. 993.13
*	 Sullivan, Crystal Lee....................................... 322.50
	 Templeton, Jeff.......................................... 1,525.00
	 Termine, Steven C........................................1,360.00
	 Termine, Steven C.......................................... 233.75
*	 Terry, Darlene....................................................16.61
	 TMP Holdings, LLC....................................... 395.00
	 Van Knowe, Richard....................................... 721.25
	 West, Alan Nichols & Priscilla Adams, TR..... 4,083.98
	 West, Alan Nichols & Priscilla Adams, TR.........176.88
	 Westhaver, Brett.............................................. 76.88
	 Westhaver, Brett.............................................109.16
*	 Weston, Nathal R., Estate of........................ 2,629.38
	 Whitney, Mia...............................................1,591.88
	 Williams, Zeth.................................................118.13
	 Wilson, Barbara...........................................1,092.50
	 Wood, Donald Yates.................................... 3,353.75
	 Woodman, Georgia I........................................792.50
	 Workman, Gary A........................................... 427.50
*	 Zaccadelli, Dennis.......................................... 801.88
Total Real Estate Uncollected............... 176,467.87

Personal Property
*	Computer Connection.................................  31.25 
	 Johns Bay Tooling........................................  37.50 
Total Personal Property Uncollected........... 68.75 
Total Taxes Uncollected...................176,536.62 

*	Paid after the close of books

Schedule A-11: Prior Years Taxes Receivable, December 31, 2018	 	
2017	 	
Burke, Scott	  469.38 	
Rodrigue, Margaret	  1,021.88 	  1,491.26 
2016	 	
Burke, Scott	  611.46 	
Rodrigue, Margaret	  872.95 	  1,484.41 
2015	 	
Burke, Scott	  467.08 	
Rodrigue, Margaret	  933.73 	      1,400.81 
		   4,376.48 
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2018 Special Town Meetings

July 24, 2018
Article 2.
To see if the Town shall authorize the municipal officers to repair the Bristol Mills 
Dam, and construct a new fish passage sufficient to accommodate the expected 
maximum capacity for alewife migration in the Pemaquid River Watershed?
ELECTION RESULTS:
YES:	 992
NO:	 105
Blanks:	 11

Article 3.
To see if the Town shall authorize the municipal officers to remove the Bristol 
Mills Dam, and construct a new water level control structure north of the Benner 
Road Stone Arch Bridge; a new public swimming facility at Ellingwood Park; and 
new dry hydrants as necessary to maintain fire protection water supplies?
ELECTION RESULTS:
YES:	 115
NO:	 948
Blanks:	 45

Article 4.
To see if the Town shall authorize the municipal officers to transfer $40,000 from 
surplus to be applied to the preparatory work to implement either Article 2 or 
Article 3 above?
Selectmen recommend 	 (3 – 0)
Budget Committee recommends 	 (10 – 0)
ELECTION RESULTS:
YES:	 1068
NO:	 30
Blanks:	 10

∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞∞
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October 30, 2018

Article 2.
To see if the Town will authorize the replacement of the current Beach Pavilion, 
without use of property tax or surplus funds.
Action: The article was moved, seconded and voted to ACCEPT

Article 3.
To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to apply, on behalf of the Town, 
for federal financing assistance under the provisions of the Land and Water 
Conservation Fund Act, Public Law 88-578 for the development of the Pemaquid 
Beach Pavilion Replacement Project; and further authorize the Selectmen to enter 
into the Land and Water Conservation Fund Project Agreement with the State 
subsequent to federal approval of the project.
Action: The article was moved, seconded and voted to ACCEPT

Article 4.
To see if the Town authorizes the expenditure of a $300,000 private foundation 
grant for the Beach Pavilion replacement, and as a match for up to $300,000 of 
federal grant funds.
Action: The article was moved, seconded and voted to ACCEPT
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Warrant for Annual Town Meeting
March 18 & 19, 2019

To Sean M. Hunter, a resident in the Town of Bristol in the County of Lincoln and 
the State of Maine,
Greetings: In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and 
warn the inhabitants of the Town of Bristol, in said County and State, qualified 
by law to vote in town affairs, to meet at the Bristol Town Hall on Monday the 
18th day of March, 2019 at 8:00 AM, then and there to act upon Article 1. The 
polls for voting on Article 2 shall be opened at 8:00 AM and will close at 8:00 
PM. The remaining business to be transacted under this Warrant will be taken 
up on Tuesday, March 19th, 2019 at 7:00 PM at the Bristol Consolidated School 
Gymnasium.

ARTICLE 1
To elect a Moderator by written ballot to preside at said meeting.

ARTICLE 2
To choose by secret ballot the following public officials:
	 •	 One (1) Selectman/Assessor/Overseer of the Poor for a 3-year term
	 •	 Two (2) members of the School Committee for 3-year terms
	 •	 One (1) member of the Parks and Recreation Commission for a 3-year 

term
	 •	 Two (2) members of the Planning Board for 3-year terms

ARTICLE 3
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for REGULAR 
INSTRUCTION.
School Committee recommends (4-0):.......................................... $2,536,791.47
Budget Committee recommends (10-0, 1 abstention):............................... Same

ARTICLE 4
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for SPECIAL EDUCATION 
INSTRUCTION.
School Committee recommends (4-0):............................................. $977,665.28
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 5
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for CAREER & 
TECHNICAL EDUCATION INSTRUCTION.
School Committee recommends (4-0):.................................................... $100.00
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same



	 ANNUAL REPORT	 139

ARTICLE 6
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for OTHER 
INSTRUCTION.
School Committee recommends (4-0):............................................. $103,222.52
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 7
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for STUDENT AND 
STAFF SUPPORT.
School Committee recommends (4-0):............................................. $298,870.86
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 8
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for SYSTEM 
ADMINISTRATION.
School Committee recommends (4-0):............................................. $112,097.79
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 9
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for SCHOOL 
ADMINISTRATION.
School Committee recommends (4-0):............................................. $236,841.67
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 10
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for TRANSPORTATION 
AND BUSES.
School Committee recommends (4-0):............................................. $536,052.81
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 11
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for FACILITIES 
MAINTENANCE.
School Committee recommends (4-0):............................................. $441,671.77
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 12
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for DEBT SERVICE.
School Committee recommends (4-0):........................................................ $0.00
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same
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ARTICLE 13
To see what sum the Town will be authorized to expend for ALL OTHER 
EXPENDITURES.
School Committee recommends (4-0):............................................... $18,912.09
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 14
To see whether the Town will authorize the Bristol School Committee to transfer, 
in addition to the statutorily allowed 5%, an additional 10% (for a total of 15%) of 
funds between budget cost centers as necessary in the best interest of the Bristol 
School Department, provided that such transfers will not increase the total budget 
of the Bristol School Department.

ARTICLE 15 SUMMARIZES THE PROPOSED SCHOOL BUDGET

ARTICLE 15
(This article is required by Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, §15690 (4A).)
To see what sum the Town will authorize the School Committee to expend for 
the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 from the Town’s 
contribution to the total cost of funding public education from pre-kindergarten 
to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act; 
non-state-funded school construction projects; additional local funds for school 
purposes under Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690; unexpended 
balances, tuition receipts, state subsidy and other receipts for the support of 
schools.
School Committee recommends (4-0):.......................................... $5,262,226.26
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLES 16 & 17 RAISE FUNDS FOR THE PROPOSED SCHOOL BUDGET

School Budget Funding Summary
Art. 16 Required (EPS) Local Raise Amount Estimate	 $3,103,831.97
Art. 17 Additional Local Raise Amount Estimate	   1,741,208.28
Total Local Funds Raised	 $4,845,040.25
Fund Balance Forward	 109,426.23
State Subsidy Estimate	      307,759.78
Total School Budget Request	 $5,262,226.26

ARTICLE 16
To see what sum the Town will appropriate for the total cost of funding public 
education from pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs 
and Services Funding Act (School Committee recommends $3,411,591.75) and 
to see what sum the Town will raise as the Town’s contribution to the total cost of 

continued next page
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funding public education from pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the 
Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance with Maine Revised 
Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15688.
School Committee recommends.................................................... $3,103,831.97
Explanation: The Town’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services 
Funding Act is the amount of money determined by state law to be the minimum 
amount that a municipality must raise in order to receive the full amount of State 
dollars.
(To “appropriate” means to devote (money or assets) to a special purpose; ‘to allow 
to be spent’. To “raise” means that this portion of the appropriation will be satisfied 
by local tax dollars. The difference between the “appropriate” amount and the “raise” 
amount is the amount of state subsidy.)

ARTICLE 17
(Written ballot required, per Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, §15690 (3 A-B).)
Shall the Town raise and appropriate $1,741,208.28 in additional local funds, 
which exceeds the State’s Essential Programs and Services allocation model, to 
fund the budget recommended by the School Committee?
The School Committee recommends $1,741,208.28 for additional local funds 
and gives the following reasons for exceeding the State’s EPS funding model:
Explanation: The additional local funds are those locally raised over and above 
the Town’s required contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 
pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services 
Funding Act, and local amounts raised for delivery of special education services, 
intervention services for students needing additional assistance, and to provide 
classroom instruction as deemed appropriate by the administration, the Bristol 
School Board and the residents of the town so as to help achieve the Town budget for 
educational programs.
(To “appropriate” means to devote (money or assets) to a special purpose; ‘to allow to 
be spent’. To “raise” means that this portion of the appropriation will be satisfied by 
local tax dollars. For this article, the “appropriate” amount, and the “raise” amount, 
are the same.)
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ARTICLE 18 AUTHORIZES EXPENDITURE ON CAPITAL PROJECTS 
FORESEEN IN THE 2019-20 FISCAL YEAR

ARTICLE 18
Shall the Bristol School Committee be authorized to transfer up to $25,000.00 
from undesignated fund balances at the end of the 2018-19 Fiscal Year to the 
Capital Projects Fund, previously established by the Town, and shall the School 
Committee be further authorized to expend up to $300,000.00 from this reserve 
fund and from grants received, to finance the following capital expenses which 
include, but are not limited to:
	 Construction of a regulation softball field for girls’ teams:.............$300,000.00
School Committee recommends (4–0):.................................................Approval
Budget Committee recommends (7–4):....................................................... Same

ARTICLE 19 AUTHORIZES EXPENDITURE OF GRANTS AND 
OTHER RECEIPTS FOR EDUCATION PURPOSES

ARTICLE 19
Shall the Bristol School Committee be authorized to expend such sums as may be 
received from federal or state grants or programs or other sources during the fiscal 
year for education purposes provided that such grants, programs or other sources 
do not require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated?
School Committee recommends (4–0):.................................................Approval

ARTICLE 20 AUTHORIZES THE ADULT EDUCATION PROGRAM

ARTICLE 20
To see if the Town will appropriate $115,631.44 for CENTRAL LINCOLN 
COUNTY ADULT EDUCATION and raise $10,371.18 as the local share; with 
authorization to expend any additional, incidental, or miscellaneous receipts in 
the interest and for the well-being of the adult education program.
	 Request to Selectmen................................................................... $10,371.18
Selectmen recommend (3-0):      Taxation.................................... $10,371.18
Budget Committee recommends (10-0):..................................................... Same
Explanation: All towns in the Central Lincoln County Adult Education Program 
(CLCAEP) must agree to appropriate the total CLCAEP budget, and then raise their 
contribution to that budget.
(To ‘‘appropriate” means to devote money (or assets) to a special purpose; ‘to allow 
money to be spent.’ To “raise” means that this portion of the appropriation will be 
satisfied by Bristol’s local tax dollars.)
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ARTICLE 21
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to carry forward the 
unexpended balances of accounts as indicated in the 2018 Audit report, copies of 
which are in the Annual Report, on the Town’s website, and on file in the Town 
Office.

ARTICLE 22
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the municipal officers to spend an amount 
not to exceed 3/12 of the budgeted amount in each budget category of the 2019 
annual budget during the period from January 1, 2020 to the 2020 Annual Town 
Meeting.

ARTICLE 23
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for GENERAL 
GOVERNMENT. 
	 Payroll......................................................................................... $380,000.00
	 Town expense................................................................................. 70,000.00
	 Utilities and heating oil.................................................................. 10,000.00
	 Information Technology systems and software............................. 20,000.00
	 Computer Capital Reserve Fund...............................................        5,500.00
	 TOTAL........................................................................................ $485,500.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Balance carried............................................................................. $32,749.45
	 Taxation........................................................................................ 397,531.09
	 Surplus............................................................................................ 25,500.00
	 Fees, interest and miscellaneous revenue...................................... 15,000.00
	 Franchise fees..............................................................................     14,719.46
	 TOTAL........................................................................................ $485,500.00
Budget committee recommends (11-0):...................................................... Same
Note: The Selectmen intend to re-name the Computer Capital Reserve Fund in 2019 
to the ‘Information Technology Capital Reserve Fund’ to reflect its intended use for 
the diverse range of IT equipment required by the Town.

ARTICLE 24
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for LIABILITY 
INSURANCE & WORKER’S COMPENSATION.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Balanced carried............................................................................. $3,399.30
	 Surplus............................................................................................ 26,600.70
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $30,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same



144	 ANNUAL REPORT

ARTICLE 25
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for BUILDING 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Surplus.......................................................................................... $10,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same
Note: In 2019 Selectmen intend to paint the Town Hall, and repair the roof of the 
Hanna Landing Storage Building. Additional funds, if needed, will be taken from the 
Buildings Capital Reserve Fund.

ARTICLE 26
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for BUILDINGS 
CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Taxation.......................................................................................... $5,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 27
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for ASSESSMENT.
	 Assessment Reserve...................................................................... $15,000.00
	 Annual maintenance contract.......................................................  12,000.00
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $27,000.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Taxation........................................................................................ $27,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 28
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for LEGAL FEES.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Balance carried............................................................................... $1,014.33
	 Surplus..........................................................................................      8,985.67
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $10,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 29
Shall an amendment to the Harbor Ordinance as approved by the Harbor 
Committee on February 14, 2019 and by the Selectmen on February 20, 2019 be 
enacted?
The amendment is posted in the Town Office and on the Town’s website, and is made 
part of this warrant by reference.
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ARTICLE 30
To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to expend funds raised and 
appropriated in 2018 for that year’s TOWN ROAD MANAGEMENT, for 
contracted work not completed within the 2018 budget year, to complete such 
contracts in 2019.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Balance carried............................................................................. $47,410.09
Budget Committee recommends (11–0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 31
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for TOWN ROAD 
MANAGEMENT.
	 Road and Bridge Maintenance................................................... $575,000.00
	 Snow Removal.............................................................................. 340,000.00
	 Bridge Capital Reserve Fund......................................................... 20,000.00
	 Street Lights.................................................................................       6,000.00
	 TOTAL........................................................................................ $941,000.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Foundation grant for Upper Round Pond Road Bridge........... $100,000.00
	 DOT Block Grant........................................................................... 46,496.00
	 Surplus.......................................................................................... 151,884.99
	 Excise Tax...................................................................................   642,619.01
	 TOTAL........................................................................................ $941,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (10-0, 1 abstention):............................... Same

ARTICLE 32
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for TOWN GARAGE 
AND HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT.
	 Town Garage................................................................................... $5,000.00
	 Highway Equipment Maintenance/Repair.................................... 10,500.00
	 Highway Equipment Capital Reserve Fund..................................... 5,000.00
	 Diesel Fuel.....................................................................................     3,000.00
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $23,500.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Balance Carried............................................................................ $16,119.01
	 Excise tax.......................................................................................     7,380.99
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $23,500.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same
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ARTICLE 33
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for the SOLAR ARRAY 
CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Surplus.......................................................................................... $10,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (11–0, 1 abstention):............................... Same

ARTICLE 34
To see if the Town will allow the Selectmen to deposit proceeds from the sale of 
Town owned equipment to the appropriate capital reserve accounts.

ARTICLE 35
To see if the Town will allow the Selectmen to apply for, receive, and expend 
Federal and State government grants, and private donations and grants, for the 
benefit of the Town.

ARTICLE 36
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for FIRE & RESCUE.
	 Bristol Fire & Rescue Operations.............................................. $311,600.00
	 Tanker Note.................................................................................... 23,976.60
	 Fire Truck Capital Reserve Fund................................................... 30,000.00
	 Facility Maintenance Fund............................................................. 10,000.00
	 Dry Hydrants...............................................................................     20,000.00
	 TOTAL........................................................................................ $395,576.60
Selectmen recommend (3–0):
	 (i)	 Reallocation of balances carried, previously appropriated for the ISO 

Challenge and the Munro Bridge Dry Hydrant, to be reassigned to the 
‘Dry Hydrants’ account;

	 (ii)	Appropriation as follows:
		  Balances carried...................................................................... $21,113.79
		  Taxation.................................................................................  374,462.81
		  TOTAL.................................................................................. $395,576.60
Budget Committee recommends (11–0, 1 abstention):............................... Same

ARTICLE 37
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for ORDINANCE 
ADMINISTRATION, to which sum shall be added the fees collected for Building 
Permits and the Town’s share of Plumbing Inspection fees.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Surplus.......................................................................................... $15,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same
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ARTICLE 38
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for TOWN LANDINGS 
& HARBORS.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Balance Carried............................................................................ $20,521.36
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 39
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for TOWN LANDINGS 
& HARBORS CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Harbor Committee Balance Carried........................................... $35,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 40
To see if the Town will set the salaries of the Harbor Masters.
Selectmen recommend $1,500.00 plus $2.00 per permit to each of the three (3) 
Harbor Masters from the Town Landing & Harbors account.

ARTICLE 41
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for the BRISTOL MILLS 
FISH LADDER.
	 Fish Committee.............................................................................. $1,000.00
	 Fish Ladder Capital Expense......................................................  300,000.00
	 TOTAL........................................................................................ $301,000.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Balance carried.................................................................................. $965.00
	 Surplus............................................................................................ 25,035.00
	 Fish Ladder Capital Reserve Fund................................................. 71,000.00
	 Grants received...........................................................................   204,000.00
	 TOTAL........................................................................................ $301,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (9–1, 1 abstention):................................. Same

ARTICLE 42
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for the BRISTOL MILLS 
DAM REPAIR.
Selectmen recommend (3–0):
	 Surplus.......................................................................................... $30,000.00
	 Bristol Dam Capital Reserve Fund..............................................   20,000.00
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $50,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (9–0, 2 abstentions):............................... Same
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ARTICLE 43
Shall the Town of Bristol enact the “Town of Bristol River Herring Ordinance”? 
The River Herring Ordinance reads, in its entirety: “For the year of 2019, there 
shall be no taking of river herring in the Town of Bristol.”

ARTICLE 44
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate to help the Shellfish 
Committee, in partnership with the Pemaquid Watershed Association, clean up 
pollution sources in the LOWER PEMAQUID RIVER WATERSHED.
	 Contracted services and laboratory fees...................................... $10,000.00
Selectmen recommend (3–0):
	 Balances carried............................................................................. $1,631.24
	 Shellfish license revenue.................................................................. 2,500.00
	 Surplus...........................................................................................     5,868.76
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $10,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12–0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 45
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for ANIMAL 
CONTROL.
	 Contract with Lincoln County Sheriff ’s Office............................. $7,800.00
	 Contract with Lincoln County Animal Shelter............................     3,250.00
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $11,050.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Surplus.......................................................................................... $11,050.00
Budget Committee recommends (12–0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 46
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for GENERAL 
ASSISTANCE.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Surplus............................................................................................ $7,500.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same
Note: Certain qualifying General Assistance disbursements are 70% reimbursed by 
the Maine Department of Health and Human Services.
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ARTICLE 47
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for the Town’s 
CEMETERIES.
	 Maintenance................................................................................... $8,000.00
	 VFW Memorial Day Decorations.................................................     2,500.00
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $10,500.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Surplus.......................................................................................... $10,500.00
	 TOTAL.......................................................................................... $10,500.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same 

ARTICLE 48
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for Bristol’s share of the 
operation of the BRISTOL/SOUTH BRISTOL TRANSFER STATION.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Taxation...................................................................................... $240,690.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 49
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for OLDE BRISTOL 
DAYS.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Surplus............................................................................................ $6,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 50
To see if the Town will authorize the Bristol Consolidated School to utilize 
approximately 1.5 acres of Town-owned land adjacent to the School, to construct 
a regulation girls’ softball field.
Selectmen recommend: (3–0):...............................................................Approval
School Committee recommends (4-0):..................................................Approval
Note: This project will include clearing, grading and seeding of land that is at present 
80% in woodland, 20% cleared open land.
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ARTICLE 51
The Parks and Recreation Commissioners will present design proposals for the new 
Pemaquid Beach Park pavilion prior to discussion of Article 51. Authorization to 
proceed with replacing the existing pavilion was granted at the Special Town Meeting 
of October 30, 2018.
To see if the Town will vote to accept the PARKS & RECREATION Budget as 
presented.
Selectmen recommend (3-0):.................................................................Approval
Budget Committee recommends (12-0):...............................................Approval
Note: A copy of the 2019 Parks and Recreation Budget is attached to and made a part 
of the Parks and Recreation Commission’s 2018 report, printed within the Annual 
Town Report.

ARTICLE 52
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate from taxation for the 
following non-profit requests, each item to be voted on separately.

		  Request to	 Selectmen	 Budget Committee
		  Selectmen	 Recommend	 Recommends
	 1. Bristol Area Library	 $14,500.00	 $14,500.00	 3-0	 $14,500.00	 10-0
	 2. Eldercare Network	 7,500.00	 7,500.00	 3-0	 7,500.00	 10-0
	 3. Healthy Kids	 1,200.00	 1,200.00	 3-0	 1,200.00	 9-0-1
	 4. Life Flight	 1,500.00	 1,500.00	 3-0	 1,500.00	 10-0
	 5. New Hope for Women	 1,045.00	 1,045.00	 3-0	 2,000.00	 10-0
	 6. Old Bristol Historical Society	 9,500.00	 9,500.00	 3-0	 9,500.00	 10-0
	 7. Pemaquid Watershed Assc.	 1,500.00	 1.500.00	 3-0	 1.500.00	 10-0
	 8. Spectrum Generations	     7,000.00	     7,000.00	 3-0	     7,000.00	 10-0
	 TOTAL	 $43,745.00	 $43,745.00	 	 $44,700.00	

ARTICLE 53
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for CENTRAL 
LINCOLN COUNTY AMBULANCE, INC.
	 Request to Selectmen................................................................... $49,000.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Taxation........................................................................................ $39,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (10-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 54
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for LINCOLN COUNTY 
TELEVISION (LCTV).
	 Request to Selectmen..................................................................... $9,753.00
Selectmen recommend (3-0):
	 Franchise Fees................................................................................ $9,753.00
Budget Committee recommends (10-0):..................................................... Same
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ARTICLE 55
To see what sum the Town will vote to raise or appropriate for CONTINGENCY, 
to be allocated by the Selectmen to other accounts as the need arises.
Selectmen recommend (3–0):
	 Surplus.......................................................................................... $20,000.00
Budget Committee recommends (11-0):..................................................... Same

ARTICLE 56
To see if the Town will vote to set the interest rate to be paid by the Town on abated 
taxes at 4.00% for 2019.

ARTICLE 57
To see if the Town will fix a date when taxes shall be due and payable and to see 
if the Town will fix a rate of interest to be charged on taxes unpaid from and after 
that date.
Selectmen recommend:........................................ September 16th, 2019 at 8.00%

ARTICLE 58
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept prepayment 
of taxes, the amount collected not to exceed the previous year’s taxes. No interest 
shall be payable on any prepayment.

ARTICLE 59
To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to fund abatements of property 
taxes from Surplus.

ARTICLE 60
To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to acquire title on the properties 
upon which the taxes have not been paid in accordance with appropriate state law 
and procedures.

ARTICLE 61
To see if the Town will allow the Selectmen to direct the Treasurer to waive 
foreclosure of a real estate property tax lien if they determine such course to be in 
the best interest of the Town.

ARTICLE 62
To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to sell all surplus town owned 
personal property and tax acquired property on such terms as they deem advisable, 
except that the Selectmen may sell tax acquired property to the former registered 
owner at private sale.
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The Registrar of Voters’ office will be open at the Bristol Town Hall and place of 
voting on Monday, March 18, 2019 for the purpose of correcting the voter list 
and to accept new enrollments and on Tuesday, March 19, 2019 at the Bristol 
Consolidated School from 6:30 PM until Closing. 

Given under our hands this 20th day of February, A.D. 2019.

Chad  M.  Hanna
Harry  M.  Lowd, III
Paul  M.  Yates
Selectmen of the Town of Bristol
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